SCV

WATER

D

SCV Water Agency
Engineering and Operations
Committee Meeting

Thursday, January 4, 2024
Committee Meeting Begins at 5:30 PM

Members of the public may attend by the following options:

IN PERSON BY PHONE VIRTUALLY
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Toll Free: 1-(833)-568-8864 Please join the meeting from your
Engineering Services Section Webinar ID: 160 323 9551 computer, tablet or smartphone:
Boardroom https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1603239551

26521 Summit Circle
Santa Clarita, CA 91350

Have a Public Comment?

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to Iquintero@scvwa.org or by
mail to Leticia Quintero, Executive Assistant, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350.
All written comments received before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and
posted on the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received after 4:00 PM.
the day of the meeting will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and posted on the SCV Water website the
following day. All correspondence with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. (Public
comments take place during Item 2 of the Agenda and before each Item is considered. Please see the Agenda for details.)

This meeting will be recorded and the audio recording for all Committee meetings will be posted to yourSCVwater.com within
3 business days from the date of the Committee meeting.

Disclaimer: Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and guidelines regarding

COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use
their own judgment with respect to protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19.

SCV Water - 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350-2173 - 661-297-1600 - yourSCVwater.com


mailto:lquintero@scvwa.org
https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1603239551

[This page intentionally left blank.]



SCV

WATER

&

Date: December 27, 2023

To: Engineering and Operations Committee
William Cooper, Chair
Gary Martin

Piotr Orzechowski
Kenneth Petersen

From: Courtney Mael, Chief Engineer C% /@/
Keith Abercrombie, Chief Operating Officer

The Engineering and Operations Committee meeting is scheduled on Thursday, January 4,
2024 at 5:30 PM at 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the Engineering
Services Section (ESS) Boardroom. Members of the public may attend in person or virtually.
To attend this meeting virtually, please see below.

IMPORTANT NOTICES

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In
Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 1603239551 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the
link: https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1603239551Any member of the public may listen to the
meeting or make comments to the Committee using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link
above. However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person.

Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a
Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to
protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19.

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to
Lquintero@scvwa.org or by mail to Leticia Quintero, Executive Assistant, Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency, 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received
before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted
on the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything
received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be made available at the meeting and posted
on the SCV Water website the following day.

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD « SANTA CLARITA, CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 « 661 2971600 « FAX 661 297-1611

website address: www.yourscvwater.com


lquintero
COURTNEY INITIALS

eadler
Keith Abercrombie initials


December 27, 2023
Page 2 of 3

MEETING AGENDA
1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS — Members of the public may comment as to items within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not on the Agenda at this time.
Members of the public wishing to comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so
at the time each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the
Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) To participate in public
comment from your computer, tablet, or Smartphone, click the “raise hand” feature in
Zoom. You will be notified when it is your turn to speak, please unmute when
requested. To participate in public comment via phone, dial *9 to raise your hand.
When it is your turn to speak, dial *6 to unmute.

ITEMS PAGE

3. * Recommend Approval to Purchase Approximately 11,220 AMI 5
Compatible Meters

4. * Recommend Approval of Adopting a Resolution Authorizing the General 7
Manager to Execute a License Agreement with Los Angeles SMSA
Limited Partnership, a California limited partnership d/b/a Verizon
Wireless on Agency Property, and Find that the Contract Agreement is
Exempt from CEQA Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3)

5. * Recommend Approval of Adopting a Resolution to Adopt the Final 43
Mitigated Negative Declaration (Sch # 2023090505) and Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program and Approval of a Purchase Order
for Final Design Services for Honby Tank Pipeline Improvement Project

6. * Recommend Approval of Adopting a Resolution Pursuant to a 425
Categorical Exemption Under CEQA Guidelines Section 15301, and a
Categorical Exclusion Under NEPA, Awarding a Contract for Beldove
(Copper Hill) 2 Water Storage Tank Coating Project to Simpson
Sandblasting & Special Coatings, Inc.

7. * Recommend Approval of Adopting a Resolution Authorizing a Purchase 431
Order to Kennedy Jenks Consultants for Final Design Services for the
Magic Mountain Pipeline (Phases 1-3) Inspection Access Modifications
Project, and Finding the Project Categorically Exempt from the
California Environmental Quality Act Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines
Sections 15301 and 15303

8. * Recommend Approval of Adopting a Resolution Pursuant to a 447
Categorical Exemption Under CEQA Guidelines Section 15301, and a
Categorical Exclusion Under NEPA, Awarding a Contract for Rio Vista
Water Treatment Plant PLC Controller Upgrade Project to Royal
Industrial Solutions

9. * Monthly Operations and Production Report 461

10. * Capital Improvement Projects Construction Status Report 471




December 27, 2023

Page 3 of 3
11. * Committee Planning Calendar 473
12. General Report on Treatment, Distribution, Operations and
Maintenance Services Section Activities

13. * General Report on Engineering Services Section Activities 477
14. Adjournment

* Indicates Attachment

. Indicates Handout

NOTICES:

Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Leticia Quintero,
Executive Assistant, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency at
26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 Requests must specify the nature of the
disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact
information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss appropriate arrangements.
Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate
time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested accommodation.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Committee less than seventy-two
(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.

Posted on December 27, 2023.




[This page intentionally left blank.]



ITEM NO.

&

WATER COMMITTEE MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 18, 2023
TO: Engineering and Operations Committee
FROM: Keith Abercrombie /@( i

Chief Operating Officer

SUBJECT: Recommend Approval to Purchase Approximately 11,220 AMI Compatible
Meters

SUMMARY

The Agency has approximately 75,000 metered service connections ranging in sizes from 5/8”
to 12”. The Agency is committed to converting all meters to an Automated Metering
Infrastructure (AMI) system and staff has already replaced and converted over 35,000 meters.
The Agency is currently in the middle of a 3-year $2,000,000 WaterSMART Water and Energy
Efficiency Grant (WEEG). This purchase request for 11,220 AMI meters will complete the meter
purchase requirements for the grant and bring the total number of AMI meters in the distribution
system to more than half of the total service connections.

DISCUSSION

Historically, the legacy retailers used two different meter manufacturers; Master Meter and
Sensus. After the formation of SCV Water it was determined to continue using these same two
different manufacturers due to the large number of assets already in place throughout the
service area. In 2022, the Agency received a Federal Bureau of Reclamation WaterSmart Water
Energy Efficiency Grant (WEEG) for an Automated Metering Infrastructure project. The grant
funding period is from July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2025. The grant requires installation of
21,163 new AMI meters and conversion of an additional 10,000 meters (which has already been
completed). Over the past two (2) years,10,000 meters have been replaced with new AMI
meters. This meter purchase is in alignment with the completion of the WEEG grant. The meter
manufacturer (Sensus) for this purchase, has indicated that lead times for meters are up to 10
weeks. Therefore, the staff is recommending the purchase of 11,220 Sensus meters now for the
start of installation in July of 2024. The cost estimate to purchase 11,220 meters to convert the
remaining AMR and manual read meters to AMI-compatible meters is approximately
$4,861,181.

STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS

This project helps meet SCV Water Strategic Plan Objective C.4.7 “Evaluate infrastructure
technology (AMI/AMR) and operational strategies to manage demands better.”

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Funds for the purchase are included in the Capital Improvement FY 2024/25 Meter
Replacement Budget.


eadler
Keith Abercrombie initials

lquintero
Item No. 3


RECOMMENDATION

That the Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors
authorize the General Manager to purchase 11,220 meters in the amount not exceeding
$5,000,000.


eadler
Matt Stone initials


ITEM NO.

&

WATER COMMITTEE MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 11, 2023
TO: Engineering and Operations Committee
FROM: Courtney Mael, P.E. (AL

Chief Engineer

SUBJECT: Recommend Approval of Adopting a Resolution Authorizing the General
Manager to Execute a License Agreement with Los Angeles SMSA Limited
Partnership, a California limited partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless on Agency
Property, and Find that the Contract Agreement is Exempt from CEQA
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3)

SUMMARY

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (“Agency”) owns property located off Whites Canyon Road
(Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 2812-009-903, 2812-009-904, and 2812-009-902), depicted in the
map in Attachment 1. The Agency also holds an easement from Joan E. Rhone, Eric Dutton,
Teresa Zundel, and Joan E. Rhone as Trustees of the George L. Rhone and Joan E. Rhone
Family Trust dated June 15, 1984 (collectively, “Rhone Family Trust”) over certain real property
located in the City of Santa Clarita, County of Los Angeles—assigned Assessor’s Parcel
Numbers 2812-009-120 and 2801-013-038 (“Rhone Family Trust Property”).

Los Angeles SMSA Limited Partnership, a California limited partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless.
(“Verizon”) and the Rhone Family Trust are parties to an Option and Land Lease Agreement
dated October 15, 2012, (2012 Ground Lease”) where Verizon leases a portion of the Rhone
Family Trust Property to construct and operate a wireless communication facility (the “Wireless
Facility”). In connection with the Option and Land Lease Agreement, Rhone Family Trust has
granted Verizon a non-exclusive access right that in part extends over, under, and along the
Agency’s Existing Easement Area but does not provide direct vehicular access to the Wireless
Facility.

Santa Clarita Water Company, as predecessor-in-interest to the Agency, the Rhone Family
Trust, and Verizon are parties to an Easement Holder Acknowledgement Regarding Verizon
Wireless Facilities Within Existing Easement, dated October 15, 2012 (“Acknowledgement
Agreement”). Within the Acknowledgement Agreement the Agency acknowledged Verizon’s use
of the Existing Easement Area; Verizon understood and agreed that the Agency has the
superior and prior right of enjoyment of the Existing Easement Area; and Verizon’s use of the
Existing Easement Area will not interfere with Agency operations. Verizon is also required to
repair any damage to Agency property.

On March 30, 2017, the Rhone Family Trust and ATC Sequoia LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company (“ATC”), entered into an Easement and Assignment Agreement whereby Rhone
Family Trust assigned its interests as Landlord in the Option and Lease Agreement to ATC.
Rhone Family Trust also granted a perpetual easement for communications purposes over the
existing Verizon leased premises on Rhone Family Trust’s real property. Contemporaneously,


lquintero
COURTNEY INITIALS

lquintero
ITEM NO 4


Verizon, ATC, and Rhone Family Trust entered into a First Amendment to the Option and Land
Lease Agreement.

To date, Verizon accesses the Communications Facility from the Existing Easement Area
through the Rhone Family Trust Property which is presently an unimproved steep hillside, which
has made access difficult for Verizon’s reach lifts and other vehicles. Recently, Verizon has
approached the Agency with a request to utilize the nearby Agency access road for pedestrian
and vehicular access from the Existing Easement Area to the Rhone Family Trust Property and
the Communication Facility. Agency staff and Verizon have subsequently negotiated the
proposed License Agreement (Attachment 2) to provide for such use of the Agency’s access
road.

DISCUSSION
The proposed License Agreement includes these key terms:

e License Fee — Five thousand dollars ($5,000) per year, increasing by three (3) percent
each year

e Term — co-terminus with the 2012 Ground Lease

e Access — Forty-eight (48) hour advance written notice during normal Agency operating
hours with option for Agency to require an escort, escort time will be compensated by
Verizon.

e Transfer of License Rights — No assignment or sublicensing by Verizon

e Termination — Either party can terminate for any reason upon sixty (60) days advance
notice

e Imposes insurance and indemnity obligations on Verizon and hazardous materials
protections

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) DETERMINATION

The License Agreement is exempt from environmental review under the California
Environmental Quality (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15301, the “existing
facilities” exemption, which exempts from CEQA “the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting,
leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities,
mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of
existing or former use..... The key consideration is whether the project involves negligible or no
expansion of use can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in
question” as, here, the License Agreement permits access to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Access Road for continued operation of a Wireless Facility and would not result in any
expansion of use.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The proposed license fee is five thousand dollars ($5,000) per year with an annual increase of
three (3) percent and will be coded to Non-Operating Revenue-Facility Revenue (account 101-
1201.46020.000). Between the License Agreement’s inception and its termination year of 2069,
assuming it is not prior terminated, the Agency will receive $501,983 from Verizon under this
License Agreement.



RECOMMENDATION

That the Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors
approve adopting the attached resolution authorizing the General Manager, or designee, to
enter into the attached License Agreement with Los Angeles SMSA Limited Partnership, a
California limited partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless and take all necessary actions to carry out
the intent of the proposed License Agreement. The Engineering and Operations Committee
should also find that the license agreement is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines
Section 15061 (b)(3).

Attachments

Me?


eadler
Matt Stone initials


[This page intentionally left blank.]

10



Attachment 1 - Agency Owned Property Map

1 N . i

: T ARN 2812:005:602
. /APN 2812-009-904 " e Ky

!' APN 2842-009-903
| B, e

12/5/2023, 9:48:04 AM

|:] Parcel Outlines
Street Centerlines

Secondary

Bureau of Land Management, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P, NGA,
. USGS
Minor

Created using Mapping Your City (City of Santa Clarita) - Web AppBuilder
The City of Santa Clarita does not warrant




[This page intentionally left blank.]

12



Attachment 2

REVOCABLE NON-EXCLUSIVE ACCESS LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Revocable Non-Exclusive Access License Agreement (“License”), dated
, 2023 (“Effective Date”), is made by and between the Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency (“SCVWA?”), and Los Angeles SMSA Limited Partnership, a California limited
partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless with its principal offices at One Verizon Way, Mail Stop
4AW100, Basking Ridge, New Jersey 07920 ( “Licensee”).

RECITALS

A. SCVWA owns certain real property generally located off of Whites Canyon Road, Santa
Clarita California, and assigned Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 2812-009-903, 2812-009-904, and
2812-009-902, as depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto (“SCVWA Property”) and holds an
easement from Joan E. Rhone, Eric Dutton, Teresa Zundel, and Joan E. Rhone as Trustees of the
George L. Rhone and Joan E. Rhone Family Trust dated June 15, 1984 (collectively, “Easement
Grantor”) over certain real property located in the City of Santa Clarita, County of Los Angeles,
assigned Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 2812-009-120 and 2801-013-038 (“Easement Grantor
Property”), recorded in the Official Records of Los Angeles County as Document No. 97-1366021
(“Existing Easement Area”).

B. Licensee and Easement Grantor are parties to that certain Option and Land Lease
Agreement dated October 15, 2012, (“2012 Ground Lease”) pursuant to which Licensee leases a
portion of the Easement Grantor Property to construct and operate a wireless communication
facility (the “Wireless Facility”). In connection with the Option and Land Lease Agreement,
Easement Grantor has granted to Licensee a non-exclusive access right-of-way and a non-
exclusive utilities right-of-way that in part extends over, under and along SCVWA'’s Existing
Easement Area. Said non-exclusive access right-of-way does not provide direct vehicular access
to the Wireless Facility.

C. Santa Clarita Water Company, predecessor-in-interest to SCVWA, Easement Grantor and
Licensee are parties to that certain Easement Holder Acknowledgement Regarding Verizon
Wireless Facilities Within Existing Easement, dated October 15, 2012 (“Acknowledgement
Agreement”), whereby, inter alia, SCVWA acknowledged Licensee’s use of the Existing
Easement Area, and Licensee understood and agreed that SCVWA has the superior and prior right
of enjoyment of the Existing Easement Area, and Licensee’s use of the Existing Easement Area
shall not materially interfere with SCVWA'’s use, improvements, fixtures, or equipment situated
within the Existing Easement Area. Further, the Acknowledgement Agreement requires Licensee
to repair any damage to SCVWA'’s property and any improvements located thereon or within the
Existing Easement Area.

D. On March 30, 2017, Easement Grantor and ATC Sequoia LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (“ATC”) entered into an Easement and Assignment Agreement whereby
Easement Grantor assigned its interests as Landlord in the Option and Lease Agreement to ATC

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 1 of 13
55396.00018\41364662.1

13



and granted a perpetual easement for communications purposes over the existing Licensee leased
premises on Easement Grantor’s real property. Contemporaneously, Licensee, ATC and Easement
Grantor entered into a First Amendment to the Option and Land Lease Agreement.

E. SCVWA has improved a portion of the SCWVA Property with an access road extending
from the Existing Easement Area to SCVWA'’s water tank facilities located on a portion of the
SCVWA Property upon Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 2812-009-904 and 2812-009-902, as
described and depicted in Exhibit B attached hereto (“SCVWA Access Road”).

F. Recently, Licensee has requested to use the SCVWA Access Road for pedestrian and
vehicular ingress and egress access purposes from the terminus of the Existing Easement Area to
the Easement Grantor Property.

G. SCVWA is willing to grant such an access license to Licensee, and Licensee is willing to
accept such an access license from SCVWA on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

LICENSE

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and intending to be legally bound hereby, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE: SCVWA grants to Licensee, subject to the conditions and
covenants of this License, a non-exclusive revocable license with the necessary rights of ingress
and egress over the SCVWA Access Road for pedestrian and vehicular access for the purpose of
installing, operating, removing, and maintaining the Wireless Facility and any equipment, utilities,
conduits, and appurtenances necessary for the continued operation of the Wireless Facility.

2. NON-EXCLUSIVENESS OF LICENSE: This License is non-exclusive. SCVWA shall
continue to control the SCVWA Property, including, without limitation, the right to issue
additional permits and licenses. Licensee acknowledges that the primary purpose of the SCVWA
Access Road and SCVWA Property is to serve as a valuable asset to SCVWA'’s ratepayers and
SCVWA itself, and Licensee’ use of the Access Road and SCVWA Property as permitted
hereunder shall be subject to SCVWA’s paramount rights (“Paramount Rights”) to use the Access
Road and SCVVWA Property for any and all current and future uses necessary for SCVWA'’s needs.
If SCVWA determines that Licensee is physically interfering with such use, SCVWA shall notify
Licensee and Licensee shall cease such physical interference within twenty-four (24) hours
thereafter. In case of an emergency, SCVWA may take steps to eliminate such physical
interference without prior notice to Licensee and the Licensee shall be liable to SCVWA for the
reimbursement of any and all costs reasonably incurred by SCVWA to eliminate such physical
interference. This License does not constitute a lease, but constitutes a mere revocable non-
exclusive license, limited to the use expressly and specifically described herein. Licensee
disclaims any interest that when coupled with the license herein granted would render it
irrevocable.

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 2 of 13
55396.00018\41364662.1

14



3. SCVWA ACCESS ROAD RESTRICTIONS: Licensee shall have the right of
non-exclusive ingress and egress across and along the SCVWA Access Road, seven (7) days a
week, twenty-four (24) hours a day, via foot or motor vehicle (but not including vehicles with
more than two (2) axles/more than twenty (20) feet in length, and 26,000 Ibs. of gross vehicle
weight) via the SCVWA Access Road, in order to access the Wireless Facility, subject to the
limitations set forth below. Prior to accessing the SCVWA Access Road, Licensee shall provide
written notice to SCVWA at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance, except in the event of a bona
fide emergency affecting the health, safety, and welfare of the SCWA Property’s occupants or the
operational integrity of the Wireless Facility, in which case Licensee shall provide notice to
SCVWA as soon as reasonably possible after such emergency access. Except in the event of a
bona fide emergency as described above, all access requests must be submitted to SCVWA during
SCVWA'’s normal business hours, Monday through Friday from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m., PT to commence
the forty-eight (48) hours advance notice period. Access requests submitted outside of normal
business hours and on weekends and national holidays, shall not be deemed submitted until 9 a.m.
PST the next business day, at which time the forty-eight (48) hour advance notice period shall
commence. In the event access to the SCVWA Access Road is restricted and/or locked by SCVWA
personnel, Licensee shall be required to obtain any and all necessary access credentials or keys
from the SCVWA Chief Engineer, or designee, on a temporary basis, not to exceed Licensee’s
reasonable access requirements. In such event, Licensee or their designee shall provide proper
identification prior to checking out any access credentials or keys. Licensee is prohibited from
attaching or affixing any Licensee owned or controlled locking mechanisms upon SCVWA access
gates or access control devices in use at the SCVWA Property. All access to the SCVWA Access
Road by Licensee shall be subject in each instance to all permits, ordinances, as well as any
applicable local, state, and federal laws (“Laws”) in addition to this License.

4. TERM OF LICENSE:

a. The parties intend the term of this License to be co-terminus with the 2012 Ground
Lease. So long as the 2012 Ground Lease is in effect, and provided Licensee is not in default under
this License (after notice and the expiration of applicable cure periods), the term of this License
shall be automatically extended to mirror the life of the 2012 Ground Lease. Licensee shall provide
written notice to SCVWA at least sixty (60) calendar days prior to the termination or expiration of
2012 Ground Lease, or any extension thereof; provided however, that if Licensee and Easement
Grantor replace the 2012 Ground Lease with another lease agreement, this License shall continue
in full force and effect, provided Licensee provides SCVWA with a copy of any replacement lease
or any extension of the 2012 Ground Lease evidencing Licensee’s continued occupancy right upon
the Easement Grantor’s Property. This Licensee shall be deemed to have been abandoned by
Licensee if the Wireless Facility ceases operation and is removed from the Easement Grantor
Property for a period three consecutive months (for reasons other than due to casualty, as
adequately demonstrated by documentation provided by Licensee), at which time SCVWA shall
provide notice to Licensee of such abandonment and this License shall be terminated automatically
upon Licensee’s receipt of such notice.

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 3 of 13
55396.00018\41364662.1

15



b. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any party may terminate this License at any time
for any reason by giving the other party three (3) months prior written notice of its intention to
terminate this License. In the event this License is terminated by Licensee, any License Fees paid
to date shall become nonrefundable, and SCVWA shall not be obligated to return or refund any
portion of the License Fee for any unused months on a proportionate basis, and Licensee shall not
be entitled to reimbursement or payment by SCVWA of any further expenses or costs it may incur
by reason of its election to terminate this License hereunder.

5. LICENSE FEE: Within sixty (60) days after the Effective Date, and annually hereafter,
Licensee shall pay SCVWA Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) per year (“License Fee”), at the
address set forth below. In any partial year occurring after the Effective Date, the License Fee will
be appropriately prorated. Each year on the anniversary of the Effective Date, the License Fee shall
increase annually by an amount equal to three percent (3%) over the amount of the License Fee in
effect immediately prior to such increase. The License Fee shall be payable without offset or
deduction by check sent to SCVWA'’s address specified below or to any other person or firm as
SCVWA may, from time to time, designate in writing at least sixty (60) days in advance of any
License Fee due date. If, at any time, Licensee fails to make timely payment, interest shall accrue
on the past due amount at the rate of ten percent (10%) per month or the maximum allowable by
law, whichever is less, until the License Fee any all accumulated interest is paid in full. This right
to collect interest is in addition to all rights of SCVWA to terminate this License for non-payment
pursuant to Section 4 of this License.

6. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: The License granted herein is personal to Licensee and
no right hereunder may be assigned or sublet, in whole or in part, and except for Licensee’ invitees
for business purposes. Further, Licensee shall not permit any other person, firm, or corporation to
use, in whole or in part, any of the rights or privileges granted pursuant to this License without
first obtaining the advance written consent of SCVWA. SCVWA may withhold its consent to a
transfer of this License in its sole and absolute discretion. As a condition to any transfer of this
License approved by SCVWA, the successor in interest shall be required to execute a Revocable
Non-Exclusive License Agreement with SCVWA and provide the insurance coverage required
herein.

7. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR: SCVWA assumes no responsibility for maintaining,
repairing and inspecting the SCVWA Access Road. Licensee shall use the SCVWA Access Road
as-is with no warranty. Licensee shall, at its sole cost and expense, repair any damage it may cause
to the SCVWA Property and SCVWA Access Road, and shall be liable to SCVWA for any such
damage. Upon SCVWA'’s written request, Licensee shall repair any such damage at its sole
expense within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice. If the Licensee fails to comply with this
Section, SCVWA may complete or cause to be completed the work, and Licensee shall reimburse
the SCVWA for such invoiced costs within thirty (30) days of receipt. SCVWA shall have the
right under this Section 7 to require Licensee to make repairs or perform maintenance of the
SCVWA Access Road if such maintenance or repair is due to Licensee’s or Licensee’s contractors,
subcontractors or agents’ acts or omissions.

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 4 of 13
55396.00018\41364662.1

16



8. INDEMNITY: To the furthest extent permitted by law, Licensee shall indemnify and hold
harmless and defend SCVWA, its directors, officers, employees, and authorized volunteers, and
each of them from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation), of every kind or nature arising out of or in connection with
Licensee’s use of the SCVWA Access Road or its failure to comply with any of its obligations
contained in this License, except such loss or damage which was caused by the sole negligence
or willful misconduct of SCVWA, or its directors, officers, employees, or authorized volunteers
(collectively, the “Indemnity Obligation”). The Indemnity Obligation includes, by way of
illustration and not by limitation, all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation), of every kind or nature arising out of or in connection with
(i) Licensee’s use of SCVWA Access Road and SCVWA Property, or use by Licensee’s
contractors, personnel, and agents; (ii) Licensee’s failure to properly repair the SCVWA Access
Road and SCVWA Property as required hereunder; or (iii) any breach or violation by Licensee or
its contractors, personnel and agents hereunder. Licensee’ indemnity obligations set forth in this
Section 8 shall survive termination or expiration of this License.

9. INSURANCE: Licensee, and all of Licensee’s invitees accessing SCVWA Access Road
shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this License, the insurance
requirements in Exhibit C to this License.

10. CONDITION OF EFFECTIVENESS: As a condition precedent to the effectiveness of this
License, Licensee shall have provided adequate documentation to SCVWA demonstrating
compliance with Section 9.

11. ENVIRONMENTAL:

a. For purposes of this License, the term “Hazardous Substances” means: (a) any
substance, products, waste, or other material of any nature whatsoever which is or becomes listed,
regulated, or addressed pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation,
and Liability Act (CERCLA), 42 United States Code Section 9601 et seq.; the Resources
Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 United States Code Section 6901 et seq.; the Hazardous
Materials Transportation Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 United States Code Section 1801 et
seq.; the Clean Water Act, 33 United States Code Section 1251 et seq.; the Toxic Substances
Control Act, 15 United States Code Section 2601 et seq.; the California Hazardous Waste Control
Act, Health and Safety Code Section 25100 et seq.; the Hazardous Substance Account Act, Health
and Safety Code Section 25330 et seq.; the California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement
Act, Health and Safety Code Section 25249.5 et seq.; California Health and Safety Code Section
25280 et seq. (Underground Storage of Hazardous Substances); the California Hazardous Waste
Management Act, Health and Safety Code Section 25170.1 et seq.; California Health and Safety
Code Section 25501 et seq. (Hazardous Materials Release Response Plans and Inventory); or the
California Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, Water Code Section 13000 et seq., all as
amended; or any other federal, state, or local statute, law, ordinance, resolution, code, rule,
regulation, order or decree regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct
concerning any Hazardous Substance, now or at any time hereinafter in effect; (b) any substance,

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 5 of 13
55396.00018\41364662.1

17



product, waste or other material of any nature whatsoever which may give rise to liability under
any of the above statutes or under any statutory or common law theory based on negligence,
trespass, intentional tort, nuisance or strict liability or under any reported decisions of a state or
federal court; (c) petroleum or crude oil, other than petroleum and petroleum products which are
contained within regularly operated motor vehicles; and (d) asbestos.

b. Except as otherwise specifically permitted under the terms of this License, Licensee
shall not use, create, generate, store, deposit, dispose of or allow any Hazardous Substances on,
under, about or within the SCVWA Access Road or SCVWA Property in violation of any federal,
state, or local law, rule, regulation, order, decree or other requirement listed in this Section 11. No
underground or above ground storage tanks shall be installed on the SCVWA Access Road.

c. Licensee shall, within forty-eight (48) hours of the discovery by Licensee of the
presence of, or believed presence of, a Hazardous Substance as defined herein, give written notice
to SCVWA in the event that Licensee knows or has reasonable cause to believe that any release of
Hazardous Substance brought onto the SCVWA Property by Licensee or Licensee’s contractors,
personnel or agents has come or will come to be located on, under, about or within the SCVWA
Access Road. The failure to disclose in a timely manner the release of a Hazardous Substance by
Licensee, including but not limited to, an amount which is required to be reported to a state or
local agency pursuant to law (e.g., California’s Hazardous Materials Storage and Emergency
Response Act, Health and Safety Code Section 25550 et seq.) shall be grounds for immediate
termination of this License by SCVWA in addition to actual damages and other remedies provided
by law. Licensee shall be responsible for immediately cleaning up and completely removing all
Hazardous Substances placed by Licensee on, under, about or within the SCVWA Access Road or
the SCVWA Property, in a manner that is in all respects safe and in accordance with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

d. In the event Hazardous Substances are discovered by Licensee, Licensee shall
disclose to SCVWA the specific information regarding Licensee’ discovery of any Hazardous
Substances placed on, under, about or within the SCVWA Access Road or the SCVWA Property
by Licensee and provide written documentation of its safe and legal disposal.

e. Breach of any of these covenants, terms, and conditions, and Licensee’s failure to
cure within thirty (30) days after Licensee’s receipt of written notice from SCVWA, shall give
SCVWA the authority to immediately terminate this License. In such case, Licensee will continue
to be liable under this License to remove and mitigate all Hazardous Substances placed by Licensee
or its invitees, on, under, about or within the SCVWA Access Road or the SCVWA Property.
Licensee shall be responsible for, and bear the entire cost of removal and disposal of, all Hazardous
Substances introduced to the SCVWA Access Road or the Property by Licensee during Licensee’s
period of use of the SCVWA Access Road. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall not be
responsible for any Hazardous Substances that existed at the SCVWA Property prior to the
Effective Date or that otherwise do not result from the activities of Licensee thereon; provided that
Licensee shall be responsible to the extent Licensee’s actions have exacerbated any pre-existing
condition of which Licensee is aware or should reasonably have been aware.

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 6 of 13
55396.00018\41364662.1

18



12. SEVERABILITY: Each provision of this License is intended to be severable. If any term
or provision shall be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or invalid for
any reason whatsoever, such provision shall be severed from this License and shall not affect the
validity of the remainder of this License.

13. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS: Licensee shall comply with all applicable
local, state and federal laws that apply to the SCVWA Access Road and the SCVWA Property.

14. INTEGRATION: This License constitutes the complete expression of the agreement
between the parties and supersedes any prior agreements, whether written or oral, concerning the
subject of this License. Any modification of or addition to this License must be in writing signed
by both parties.

15. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY OF LICENSEE: Licensee, its officers, agents, and
employees shall act in an independent capacity and shall not represent themselves to be or be
construed to be officers, agents, or employees of SCVWA.

16. TIME OF ESSENCE: Time is and shall be of the essence of this License and of each and
every provision contained in this License.

17. RELATIONSHIP: The parties intend by this License to establish the relationship of
licensor and licensee only and do not intend to create a partnership, joint venture, joint enterprise,
or any business relationship other than that of licensor and licensee.

18. CAPTIONS: The captions in this License are for convenience only and are not a part of
this License. The captions do not in any way limit or amplify the provisions hereof and shall have
no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part hereof.

19. CHOICE OF LAW; VENUE: This License shall be construed, and its performance
enforced, under California law. Any judicial proceeding in connection with any dispute under, or
enforcement of, this License shall be brought in Los Angeles County, California.

20. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS AND EXHIBITS: All of the recitals hereof, and
Exhibits A, B & C attached hereto are incorporated by this reference and are made a part hereof
as though set forth at length herein.

21. NOTICES: Except as otherwise specifically provided in this License, any notice, submittal
or communication required or permitted to be served on a party shall be in writing and may be
served by personal delivery to the person or the office of the person identified below. Either
SCVWA or the Licensee may from time to time designate an alternate person or office for service
in a written notice given to the other. Notices shall be deemed sufficiently served five (5) days
after the date of mailing by certified or registered mail, one (1) day after mailing by overnight
courier, or upon personal delivery. Service may also be made by mail, by placing first-class
postage, and addressed as indicated below, and depositing in the United States mail to:

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 7 of 13
55396.00018\41364662.1

19



To Licensee: Los Angeles SMSA Limited Partnership
dba Verizon Wireless
180 Washington Valley Road
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921
Attention: Network Real Estate
Re: Plum Canyon

To SCVWA: Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Attn: General Manager
27236 Bouguet Canyon Road
Santa Clarita, CA 91350-2173

24. AUTHORITY; SIGNATURES REQUIRED: This License may be executed in two or
more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original and all of which together constitute
one agreement. Counterparts and/or signatures delivered by pdf or SCVWA-approved electronic
means have the same force and effect as the use of a manual signature. Both SCVWA and Licensee
wish to permit this License to be electronically signed in accordance with applicable federal and
California law. Either party to this License may revoke its permission to use electronic signatures
at any time for future documents by providing notice pursuant to this License. The parties agree
that electronic signatures, by their respective signatories are intended to authenticate such
signatures and to give rise to a valid, enforceable, and fully effective License. SCVWA reserves
the right to reject any digital signature that cannot be positively verified by SCVWA as an authentic
electronic signature. Each party hereby represents and warrants to the other that it (a) is a duly
organized and validly existing entity, formed and in good standing under the laws of the State of
California; (b) has the power and authority and the legal right to conduct the business in which it
is currently engaged; and (c) has all requisite power and authority and the legal right to
consummate the transactions contemplated in this License. Each party hereby further represents
and warrants that this License has been duly authorized, and when executed by the signatories
listed below, shall constitute a valid agreement binding on each party in accordance with the terms
hereof.

If this License is entered into by a corporation, it shall be signed by two corporate officers,
one from each of the following two groups: a) the chairman of the board, president or any vice-
president; b) the secretary, any assistant secretary, chief financial officer, or any assistant treasurer.
The title and name of the corporate officers shall be printed under the signature.

[signatures appear on following page]

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 8 of 13
55396.00018\41364662.1

20



The parties have executed this License as of the Effective Date.

LICENSEE:

LOS ANGELES SMSA LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP, a California limited
partnership dba Verizon Wireless

By: AirTouch Cellular Inc., its General
Partner

By:

Name:

Title:

Exhibits:

SCVWA:

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER
AGENCY

a California water agency.

By:

Print
Name:

Director,
Title:

Department

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Gerard Lavery Lederer, Best Best & Krieger,

LLP

Exhibit A — Legal Description of SCVWA Property
Exhibit B — Description and Depiction of SCVWA Access Road

Exhibit C — Insurance Requirements

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 9 of 13

55396.00018\41364662.1

21



Exhibit A

|:] Parcel Outlines

Bureau of Land Management, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P, NGA,
USGS

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
The City of Santa Clarita does not warrant




Exhibit B
Description and Depiction of SCVWA Access Road

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 11 of 13
55396.00018\41364662.1

23



—\ -_— — ‘IN 8'Z G NOANVO SALIHM OLNO LHOR *140dSNVYL g
N NYNL I 9°0 YSSIONIMd VIA OLNO LIFULS SSOHD LSHI FHL LY LHOI NANL IN 2°0 AMH #
‘NOILJ3GSNI VIO ¥03 LON ‘313dSNI e oza.___.uWo“._.uwmw «nﬁuu«w Mw% N VHH3IS OLNO 13437 NHNL IN 0'T AYLNNOD NOANYD QHVMOL AMH VHY3IS ¥O4 V9 LIX3 g
ONV Q3A0HdQY VINGOTYD 40 VIS SI 43NS * 3000 WOWLOTT3 VINSOAVD 2200 IAVL N T2 AMA ASTIVA 3dOTALNY N $T-¥D 3LNOY ILVLS 29T LSIXI IAVL ‘VLIHYIO ex) <
3000 ONIBNNTY VINOITVD 2207 * 300 ONIGTING VINSOIYD 2200 * VLNVS NI AMH VH83IS OL N G MOTIOH ‘I 9°T IAY NOHANYD ANVS WOYH N G| IvVL 3
3000 VOINVHO3IN VINJOJIVD 2202 * 3000 A¥IN3 VINYOJNVD 2202 £€1006 YO 'SITIONV SO1 : H
"3AV 34 VINVS 'S 02€ ‘Ol 301440 NOZIY3A ‘NOdd £y ]
39Vd 43AN0D avavoxanoaauoszs “BIP NOK a10jeq B .
. FOILON SAVA ONINHOM . - =
L 133HS 2 40 NIN S3INOIY MO]9q SeUM Mouy 3ONVITdIWOD 3d0D SNOILO3YIA ONIAIMA .ux -
3LNLYLS VINHOSITYO 8
‘ — ‘ Biouaebip mmm o / Y «
Q O N V d Y0 0092-£22-008-T ‘34 1T0L 4 £
O O 0 1437V 910 - 3
Z S5 W O —I VO ‘(HLNOS) VINYOSITYD NI 910 NOA ROON3A ALNIN | B
< B O 340438 SAILMIOV ANNOYOUIANN “INVS JHL ¥0J I1BISNOISIY (] e
mu_ (ot ( SINVAIDILHYd 3O NOILYOOT NIVAEO OL 3 40 MHOM 3HL HIM ONIOIIO0Hd 340438 SIONYAIUISIA ANV 50 ONILIWM NI LOJUHONY 3HL AJLION ATILVIOINMI sy 028 HOINIGH00D I8 <
T 35 m TIVHS NV 3UIS B0 3HL NO SNOLIONOD ONV SNOISNINIQ ONLISIX3 ONV SNY1d TV AJ3A TIVHS ¥OLOVYINOD HLYON 2
nﬂu @) W % W Va0 31705 T e mie HOONIA 32Y %
o 2
4 c T @) S31ON HOLIOVYULNOD TVHIANIO .
O 3 m HOONIA 3 g
= O V c
z 3 > F
o < QO n N 20 JUNLYNOIS NSO g
Y g
By O3 m < SONIMVYYA NOILONYLSNOD £
> >'s Z MO0719 FUNLVNOIS SSTTIUIM NOZIHIA
m m - m O Py uokueg
sa3um
DNV w w zZ N rog8z
2] m:_r : /I\I_ @ ‘paJnd si ainjiey yans jun saiJadosd YAMADS 49410 Suluiaduod sjesodoad
$,995U921| 0 $,3UBU) JO J3Y10 Aue Jo Suissadold pue malnal sl JO uoisuadsns s,YAMIS
ur3nsas ||im (s)ruswaaie Sunsixa Aue Japun syuswalinbas YMADS |18 yum Ajdwod oy aunjieq ‘ST
(a ‘Auiadoud yMADS uo padess aq 1snw |eualew/juawdinba |y 4T
l 311S ‘paiajdwiod Suiaq ylom Jo uoneinp
3y 1noysnouy3 a1is uo Juasaid Jaaul8ua [10s panosdde YANADS Ue SABY 1SN YIOM [10S AUy €T
‘sjuawasea pue Auadoud YMADS Y3noayy passadde aq 1snw oM alis |l ‘2T
*pajjeisul Suiaq 03 Joud yue) Jaem
3Y3 Y23eW 0} PAIL0D 3q ISNW SBUUSIUE ||y "BUIEOI yUE) J91eM SUIAJOAU] YIOM [[e SuLINp 3)IS U0
90 1SNW S “TekZ-vLT (££8) oM Buileod yuey Ja1em ||e pue Aue 1oy |SD 3sN 3snWw s1ojoejuo) ‘1T
“WMADS wouy [erosdde yum
m<E >P— Z_O—> Suo|e a1is uo auop aq ||im Suipulid Jo Suind ‘Suipjam uaym pasn aq Isnw Hwiad YJOM 10H 0T
ALTIGSS303v WS IH3YG v SIS RN OO B e
*pamojjo4 3q
"NOILYLISVH NYWNH 804 LON ANV d3NNVANN SI ALITIOVA 3ONVITdWOD vav 1snW $21nPa201d YHSO-[eD 1UBLIN 15O “qof 33 SULINp SaW [[e 1B 3)IS UO UIOM 3G 1SNW 3dd  °8
1y :ONINOZ LNIHYND oM
an INOILONYLSNOD 40 IdAL Buluui8aq o3 Joud sinoy ssauisng Aduady _ww.:o: Suunp ‘@an0u :mt_MB oy gy aMSISNAL - L
» 'suiBaq oM alojaq pajoyiod aq Isnw saAN Iy "9
esin AONVANOO0 “y4om SuluuiSaq a4ojaq W3y SIQ Ul ||ed 03 paJinbau s1101esuo0) g
NOILVINHOANI NOILONHLSNOOD ‘pawuojiad 2 jou Aew jiom asimiayio
‘a1s uo suejd panoidde YMADS aA_Y ISNW J01eIIUOD "paJinbai s Suneaw uonansuodaudy  p
‘uonesado jo
$IN0Y YMADS 40 apisino uaddey 01 SI J10M Ou Se ‘D] Jo peaye 91eulpiood IsnA “w-d gy 03
. ‘wre pg:£ ‘ Aepui4 Jayio A1an3 wrd pg:g 01 "wre gg:£ Aepsiny] - Aepuoly :uonesado Jo sinoH '€
13 05 £5'998 v3dv 3SVATIVIOL *510302dsuj 4ad BULIOYIUD Y3IM S3WI3 |0 Je DS UO palinbai si WooIyleq 3|qeLod T
14 0s 00'vze = (8T x.81) :v3dY 3SV313104ONOW ‘Apsadoud ay) uo suiSaq jIom 210jaq palinbal aq Aew pioday jo Aeansy T
14 OS £672¥S = (.8-2T X.0T-2¥) V3V ISYIT LNIWCINOI S910N UORANASU02-31d (VMADS) AoUasy 191 ASJIEN E3liE]) Eaues
‘NOILYINDTVO Y34V 3SVIT ONILSIX3
S31LON NOILONYLSNOD VMADS
ADNFOV ¥3LYM 3NV OIVLSYD / VO "AMLNNOD NOANVO  :NOILOIASIENC
g LSE16 VO "AHLNNOD NOANYO
O AvOd NOANVO SILIHM LOE8Z  :SSFHAaV 3LIS
% NOANYD WN1d EEINETTS
. ‘NOILYINHO-NI AL43d0dd
- =
< w J X0Ng30Yd 443r *1OVINOO
= | 0991-892- 156
- 0SET6 VO 'V.LIMYID VINVS -
Mo | 1] 0 1Iv130 GHVTIO8/ SN¥Td 30N34 eV GvOH NOANYD 13n0N08 7E2e VI13 HOLOIA {LOVINOD _6/826 'O 'YNOHOO
o =z 0 _ ADNIOV ¥3LVM 3NV OIVLSYD €le-reLdnNN ¥02# '133d1S NOONId '3 61
> < NV1d 3118 G39HVING eV § 00k 3LINS "LS VINTIVM L6E LY "ONI ‘NDIS3d vH43d
© m 0 NV1d 3LIS T1vd3NA0 -V SHIINIONT OMM 1031IHOYVY
% 3TOdONOW NOZIH3A OL SS30O0V 40 HIINIONT NAIO
9 = HYIANLYYONIIM NI¥ :LOVLINOD
= M o o v ANIOd 1V 31O ANV JONIH MNIT NIVHO ONILSIX3 JOV1d3d B3 IAOWNIH  » , HINLEVONIIM NI L LOVINOD
= 0 AvOH SS300V NVd TIAID z £€822-0£926 VO 'LSFHOL DAV . 0SE16 VO 'VLIHVTIO VINVS 28G+-01€ (6v6) ‘Hd
c O0ET 31INS "3AIYA 3INIOd WNHLO3dS T HALYM ONILSIXT FOMFOAMM mm wnﬁ_n_\w_@l__/m_ﬂ_ma Mmﬂﬂﬂwﬂaﬁm@wwﬁmywﬂw&ﬂ . Aavod NOANVO 13N0N09a vezLe £822-0£926 VO ‘'1S3HO-H MV
m 0 X3ANI 133HS ® S3LON AdVANV.LS NV1d TIAID s S30IAY3S LINIWAOTdIA VIONO3S AONIOV HILVM XV OIVLSVO 0€1 ALINS ‘IAIHA ILINIOd WNHLOAdS +
o AAILVINIS3dd3d S.LNVOITddV V34V ISVI1 IT0dONOW SST13HIM NOZIEIA OL INIOVIraY ‘HINMO S30INHIS INIWAOT3A VIONDIS
0002-982 (6+6) 301440 V3HY ONIMEYd TTOIHIA FJONVNILNIVIA G3AYd MIN OL NMOA ) ) N3OV SLNVOINddY
0 AIAENS OIHAVHDOdOL z-0 87926 VO ‘INIAYI IYNSOTONT FONIH HIOAYISTH HILYM 1V SSTOOV H4O INIOd NOHS LNO&NA 'a OANYINEY “LOVINOO -
10 'INNIAY NOANYD ONVS S085T ALHIdOHd AONIOV HILYM 40 NOILHOd SSOHOV ININISYI SSI00V 0966-082- 156 81926 'O 'INING
0 AIAHNS OIHAVHDOdOL -0 ¥06-600-2182 ‘M 2} SSTTIHIM NOZIHIA LY AVOH SSIOOV AIAVA MIN TIVISNI o 08826 VO YNOHOO HOO4 1sdi4 'd ONIATINg
£06-600-2182 ‘206-600-2182 ‘0ZT-600-2T82 UOZUIBA 02 34INS "FIOHIO SHNIP L1y 3AV NOANVO ANVS S0SS -
'601-600-2182 '8£0°€10°218Z SNV 'ONIMOTIOH FHL 4O LSISNOO OL NOILYLSENS dOL400H INNVIANN ONI"ONIAIAENS YAYA VO SSTT1IHIM NOZIHIA
0 1934 3L 1 SHYIFNNN T308Vd S.HOSSISSY 33SSTVINVOddV SNOILYOINNNINOD SS3T3HIM NOZIHIA ONILSIX3 NV HOH LIgIHX3 38V HOAINENS LNVOIddv
AN NOILdIYOS3a 133HS AJVININNS 1O3rovd NOILdINOS3A 193rodd NV3l 123rodd
Q3LIEIHOYd ATLOLS SI SSTT1IMIM NOZINIA OL
S3LVI3Y LI SV NVHL ¥3HLO IYNSOTOSIA HO ISN ANV ‘ >
LSE L6 VYD ‘Aluno)D uoAueD
OL TVILNIAIINOD B AYVLIINAONd S| SONIMYAA
40 13S SIHL NI G3NIVANOD NOILYWHOSINI 3HL UQOWH_ CO\ACMO mmu_._ F\_\/\/ —vOmwN
NOILYINHOANI AdV1314d0dd .
wouy sieak of 1S UBBG 10U SBY UOTONAISUCD 8U) | BIMEUBlS
m _ D w Jo 21ep oy woy sieak o
@ M M @ O ! Z < m I_ m >K |esepa4 Jo ‘ajers *Aunog *AiD ayi Jo uoisinoid Aue sejeloin jey
oM AUe Jo [encidde e aq o} 1o Jiuad 0} PaWAaP 3 ‘SIOUES!
J8pun ‘ LON TTVHS Suoneayioads pue sueid jo 18s siu) jo Buiduers ay)
108UIBUT J1UD 3} J0 oIsSILIad UBRLM Joud L §
sueid aseu) 0) Suopelslje Jo Suoedypow ‘sabue:
S1)1 pue ‘saw e 18 ays qof Y je 1day aq Jsnw suoneoyvads pue sued
_ _ _ _ 621 pue swi| [le m Aiduwioo o seeuiBuz ubisaq au)
4E1 L2#aor - 1| pue AJuo 20UEULIOJUCD [210UBB 10} S| MAINSI SIUL
aeq J00uiBUT JoID T d ‘PPe Asupnog
YK
£202/31/6 4 row rrnyma)
q pauBlsnooq.
NOILONHLSNOD ¥04 AIAO¥ddY
uones seopag Bupesuibuz
OV| ZA3d7T1-ad0 %007 £2/20/60 | 0 fouaby 1a1eM A3lieA EILEID BlUES
dee| 2 A3 T - a0 %001 €2/12/9| 0
dee | 2 A3d 11 a0 %06 2z/LonT | 0
deC | TA3YTT- 37 %00T ceelg | 0
dre MIIAIY 31 %06 eenell| o
Ag NOILdI¥OS3a 31va | A3

A Snivisanssi |\ V|

04125£852693-€1Qv-3365-Qy9v-28Y63.V4 :al 8dojaau3 ubignoog

24



¢ 40 L 133HS

1O

aimeubis Jo sjep

\ (04 NOANYD SILHM OL HLvd
SS300V INUSKI ¥IA0 LDNVIE ‘CILLOTd ._.on SQY003¥ WIDIHH0 40 89L 39vd ‘9O6N 008 NI 89¢H
\ ‘ON ININNYLSNI SY 1961 ‘L ¥38W3D30 QIQY0ITY 'SISOJUNd SSIWOTF ANV SSIWONI ¥04 LNINISVI NV °G

(NOREH Q3LL0) SQ¥0OIY TWIDLAH0 40 218 30Vd 'LOSIQ %008
NI ‘86Z% ‘ON LNINNJOQ SV 1961 ' 1SNONY (3Q¥003Y SISO 3INM 3did 3HL ¥04 SININISVI z<®

1334 \

[~ — "

SON 3SVO V' Z

09 0g¢ 0 09 S1)| pue ‘sau

9

.05 Jo195 s1uL. s " : \ \ (NOLVIRIOANI GROD3Y MO UVNIREALIA 38 LAVO NOLVOOT JHL ‘ALLOT LON) ‘SLNALVd
d A 6 40 912 39vd '9 008 NI Q30¥003Y '¥E1618 "ON LNALVA NI Q3A¥ISIY SV VORIIAY 4O S3LVIS QILINN
ATVIS DIHAVYUD \ ot e s FHL 40 ALMOHLNY FHL AB NOLLONHISNOO STYNYD ¥D SFHOLIG 04 AVM 40 LHOW V 304 INBWISY3 NV g

s1eq 198UIBUT JIYD “T'd 'PRIN ASupnoD
sjuswase]

dH/94
w/vi/al
A

suoIsirey

Aq pouino0q

el TJ\S 30@
/ \ €202/81/6 N\& 3 u

NOILLONYLSNOD ¥Od A3AOHddY

A J——
W fouaby sejep AojjeA elue|) ejueg

VLLKENS A

YAUATWD

¥06-600-218Z ® £06-600-C18Z 'Z06-600-Z18T

"SON [|92Jed S,10SSasSy

O.VS wy n - —
OV JIYNLS 4 1Y3IaN7 e

"ONI ‘ONIABAUNS

3S¥31 ANV SS300V/140d FTLIL

SY 196L ‘TL AVAN Q3Q003¥ SINVNIL INIOM SV ‘I4M ONV ONVESNH ‘YOvE '3 AHLONOO ONY YovE

/ / "SQY003Y W40 ‘06 3OVd ‘0221 @ % 008 NI 62rv "ON LNIANYLSNI

AINENS DIHAVYHOOdOL

/ "0 ONONAYVY D¥4 0330 3HL NI QIAY3SIY SY ‘ONV1 AIVS NI ONV ¥3ONN STVAINIA ¥3HIO ONV SIONVLSENS
/ Q3ANIY TIV OV WNLIVHASY 'v3¥8 ‘SYO WNTI04L3d 110 30NY0 ONINIVAZY TIV WOUSIIHL 1d30X3 0STY

~
Q
~
A

/ [Ge) / SQY¥003Y¥ WIOI440 ‘G65 )

/ L ‘ON LNFANYLSNI SV ‘196l ‘0L HOMVA (3Q¥003 G330 NI NOSRIMOW ‘8 INIMO¥YO A8 QIANISIY SV ‘AYINI

\ 30V4NS 40 LHOW LNOHLWM LNA ‘ONVT AIYS NI ANY ¥3IONN STVAININ ¥IHLO ONY SIINVLSENS GIYANI

\ /

TV ONY WNLIYHASY ‘Y38 ‘SYO 'WNII08L3d N0 30M¥0 TIV 40 IVH-INO 3HL WONJ3N3HL 1d30X3

oy a3, 4

ONINNID38 40 INIOd 3HL OL 1334 £0°09¢ 1SV3 LS |

10 HLNOS 3NM ATY3LS3M QNS ONOWY ¥

3ON3HL
YILYVNO LSTMHLNOS 3FHL 40 ¥ALYVND LSVIHLNOS QIVS 40 3N ATYALSIM IHL OL 1334 £F'IEC LSIM IS
£ .28 HLNOS JMOS 40 NV QNS 40 3NM ATY3HLYON JHL 40 NOILYONOTO¥d ATALSIM JHL ONOWW ¢

9¢ 107 |

—
¥ 107
-
-~ 8 107

\
N
4€ 107

‘IONIHL “OMIS 40 ONV QIVS 40 ¥3NMOO ATYILSIMHLY¥ON
3HL OL 1334 £0°09€ 1S ,9¢ 81 .10 HLYON OMIS 4O ONV1 QIVS 40 3NIT ATYALSIM 3HL ONOW T

cr 107

N
—_

‘JONIHL ‘ALNNOD QIVS 40 SAY0D3Y 'SA¥0IIY W 101440 40 '69 39vd 00190

u 008 NI 162 ‘ON LNJWNYLSNI SV €261 ‘¥ ¥38N303Q G3CH0IY (IMIS) ANVANOD ¥ILWM VLIMVID VLNVS
1

St 107

£1/862 SOY ¥3d “YINYOO "03S \
/1 6985 ‘30 Q3dnvis 3sve

3L3IHONOD NO XSIa SSvdd .SC a4 Y _ _

K I\G% \r IFI ‘%M% mosecess | |
T Twam - = — T T T T T — 759

8915¢

OL @330 NI | 130¥vd SV Q381¥0S3A ANV 3HL 40 d3NJOO ATYILSIMHLNOS 3HL OL 1334 62°16E 1SV3 4§
22 .68 HLYON M314VND LSIMHLNOS 3HL 40 YALYVND LSYIHLNOS OIVS 40 3NN ATNIHLNOS IHL ONOTY

I

— “ION3HL ‘¥3L¥VND ISIMHLNOS IHL 40 ¥AUYYND LSYIHLNOS QIVS 40 YINYOD LSIMHLNOS IHL LY ONINNIO3E

SMOTIO4 SY @381¥0S3A ‘JOIUIHL L¥1d WII440 3HL OL INIGYDIIY

‘VINYO4MYD 40 3LVIS ‘SINIONV SOT 40 ALNNOD 3HL NI NYIQMIN ONIGYYNY¥3IE NvS ‘LSIM Gl 3ONVY
‘HLYON # dIHSNMOL '8 NOLJ3S 40 ¥ILAVNO LSIMHLNOS IHL 40 ¥ALUYND LSVIHLNOS 3FHL 40 NOILYOd LVHL
£ T30Uvd

X08 TId S01p489/L SOLEL LY

£1/96Z SO¥ ¥3d SN I —— — A7
‘6656 'S, 0IINVLS s#t %&b@w&@
ovL ® MovL ava1 ad SH099 1
£1/86Z SO¥ ¥3d SH9191 =]
‘020 dN ,£655 'S, QIINVLS g1, hn‘
9N7d MOTIIA HLIM Jdid NOM

SSF00V 40
HLVd HLOM

V1d1vO VINVS
‘dd NOANVO S3LIHM

— 'SQY¥0J3Y WI0L440 ‘062 39¥d ‘0221 O %008 NI '6Zv¥ ON LNINNNLSNI
SY 1961 ‘TL AVN Q3Q003Y SINVNIL INIOP SV ‘IJM ANV QNVESNH ‘VOVE "3 AHLOMOQ ONV YOvE

1INOANYO NN TTd.

4 0 100 anis !

— ‘0 ONOWAVY WO¥4 0330 3HL NI 03AY3S3Y SY ‘ONV1 OIVS NI ONV ¥3ONN STVYININ ¥3HLO ONV SIONVLSENS
Q34ONIY TIV NV NLIYHASY V348 ‘SY9 'WNTI0¥L3d “1I0 30NY0 ONINIVAIY TV WOM4IYIHL 1d30X3 OSTV

ALNNOD SFTIONYV SO

HILNIA

90051 3,94,20.105- (NOLLdI¥OS3a V931 ¥3d)
G 1 ——

SQ¥003y
4D ‘G651 "ON ININNYLSNI SV ‘L96L ‘DL HOMVW Q30N0J3Y U330 NI NOSIYYON '8 3NIO¥VI A8 QIAYISIY
SV ‘AMLNI 30V4¥NS 40 LHOM LNOHLIM LNA ‘ONY1 AIYS NI ONV ¥3ONN STYMINIA ¥3HLO ONY SIONVLSENS
QIYANIX TV ONY ANLTYHASY ‘Y3¥E ‘SYD ‘ANIT08L3d 110 30N¥D TV 40 JIVH-3INO 3HL WOM4IMIHL 1d30X3

wi

ININNI938 40 LNIOd 3n¥L 3HL OL 1334 00°0Z 1SV 3ON3HL 1334

001 HINOS 3ON3HL 1334 0¥l 1SIM 3ONIHL 1334 001 HLYON 3ONIHL ‘1334 0L 1SV3 3ONIHL ‘ONINNIIE

81926 V3 INIAYI
JANIAY NOANYD ONVS G066G1L

40,50, 0N

MEEE 18] | ~ &J — _ ——

it
£06-600-Z18Z2 ‘N'd'V (NOLLAINOS3A Y91 ¥3d)
QZK,VQS - N ﬂmom_\m

40 INIOd 3N¥L 3HL OL 1334 0G} HL¥ON 3ON3HL ‘¥ILYVNO LSIMHLNOS QIVS 40 ¥INYOJ LSYIHLNOS 3HL

685, #Bg%z.d- ! | 206-600-2182 ‘N'd'V N £ 1308vd
- WO¥4 1334 099 1SIM NO3M3IHL INVISIO '8 NOILOIS AI¥S 40 3NM ATHIHLNOS 3HL NI LNIOd ¥ LV ONINNI3E

SMOTIO4 SY Q3BINOSIA ‘403N3HL LV1d W40 IHL OL INIGYOOOV ‘VINYOAIVO 40
31VIS ‘SITINY SOT 40 ALNNOD 3HL NI ‘NVIGIIN ONIGYYNYIE NVS ‘HINOS SL JONVY 'HINON + dIHSNMOL
‘8 NOILO3S 40 YIL¥VNO ISIMHLNOS FHL 40 ¥ILYVYND LSYIHLNOS HL 40 4IVH HLNOS 3HL 40 NOILLYOd LYHL

T TBNVd
MWGQMMWMQMKE\ 'SQY003Y VIDI440 062 39Yd ‘0ZZLA M008 NI ‘6Zr¥ ON LNINNULSNI
SV ‘196} ‘ZL AVA (Q30Y0O3Y SINVNIL INIOr SV ‘3JM ONV ONVESNH 'vOvE 3 AHLONOQ ONV vOvE
‘0 ONOWAVY NOYd @330 3HL NI QIAYISIY SY ‘ONVT QIVS NI ONV ¥IANN STVHININ ¥IHLO ONV SIONVLSENS
ARYANIY TIV ANV WALTYHASY ‘YI¥E ‘SYD ‘WNTI0¥L3d 110 30N¥0 ONINIYWIY TIV WOMIIYIHL 1d3DX3 0STV

|
ag33d 434

WIS MSLYdNrLE
NOILO3S +/3S 40 v\_m.w HOod

f009¢

dOI/1 6581
INIONOW

SA4003Y

VI0I440 ‘G6SL "ON LNINNULSNI SV ‘LGBL ‘OL HOMYWN (30¥0J3Y 0330 NI NOSIMMON '8 INMO¥VD A8 AIAYISIY
SV ‘AMLNI 30V4¥NS 40 HIuE_Soxtx Hﬂm ‘ONV1 n_?,m NI ONV 30NN STVYINIA ¥3HLO ONY S3ONVLISENS
0Z1-600-2182 ‘N'd'V — Q3YANIX TV ONY ANLTYHASY ‘V3dE ‘SYO “ANT0dL3d 110 30N TV 40 4IVH-3INO 3HL WOLRY3HL 1d30X3
ONINNI93E 40 INIOd 3HL OL 3NIM ATY3HLNOS GINOININ QIVS ONOTY ATALSIM JONIHL ‘B NOLLO3S AIVS 40
3NN ATYIHLNOS 3HL OL 3NM GINOLLNIN 1SV AIVS ONOTY ATYIHLNOS JONFHL ‘8 NOLDIS AIVS 40 ¥ILYVND
LSIMHLNOS 3HL 40 ¥3LYVNO LSVIHINOS 3HL 40 FIVH ISV3 3HL 4O 3INM ATNAISIM 3HL OL ISV3 91 2T
.68 HLYON ‘L 1304¥d OIS 40 INM ATY3HLNOS 3IHL ONOTY 3ONIHL ¥INMOO LSIMHINOS 3HL 0L 1334 00°01C
1SV3 ,p¥ L8 .0 HLNOS ‘I T304V 40 3N ATHILSIM QIVS INOTW ONV NOLLVONOTO¥d QIVS ONOTV JONIHL

— ‘ALNNOO OIS 0¥003¥ ALNN 00 3HL 40 301440 3HL NI ‘SG¥003¥ WIIH0 ‘¥S. 39vd ‘1£0Z0 %008 NI

Y3y 3SVIT SS3IIV 40 HLVd
HLOM 21 SSTTIIM NOZI¥EA T3SOJ0Yd

66LF "ON LNINNYLSNI SY ‘C961 ‘6L INNM 030Y0D3Y ‘ANVAWOD ¥3LVM LNINII0S OL @330 NI 038I40S3A ANV
3HL 40 L 1304¥Vd 40 3INIT AW3ISIM 3HL 40 NOLVINOIONd ATWIHIMON 3HL HLM 40343HL NOILIISYIINI
e 3HL OL 1334 V292 .91 22 .68 HLYON 'INM TITV¥Vd GIVS ONOW JONFHL ‘4IVH HLNOS QIVS 40 3NN
ATYIHLNOS FHL WO¥S (STIONV LHOW LV QIUNSYIN) 1334 00°09¢ ATIHLYON INVISIO ONV HLM T3ITIVYVd

SILVHL 3NNV 0L 1334 20°09¢ 1S3M L bl .1 HINON ‘4IVH ISV3 VS 40 3N ATGALSIM JHL INOTWY
_ — JONIHL ‘4IVH HLNOS AIVS 40 4TVH 1SIM 3HL 40 4TVH 1SV JHL 40 Y3INNOD ISIMHLNAS IHL LV ONINNI3E
—— e

G3ON SY LNFHONOW NNo4
3d07S 40 doL — SOL — NNV TLIHINOD
3d07S 40 301 — 30L — JINLINYLS 40 dOL
AM=-S0-IHOY ~— — @—— 3d07S 40 doL
TN MTOYS e e e e 3d07S 40 301

*SHOTI04 SY (3ERIOSIA "JOIYIHL LV1d TVIDL0 JHL OL ONIQIOIQY VINYOINVO

40 31V1S 'SITIONY SOT 40 ALNNOD IHL NI ‘NVIOREA ONIGHYNY3E NVS ‘1SIM GL JINVY 'HLHON ¥ dIHSNMOL
‘8 NOILLO3S 40 ¥3LWVNO LSIMHLNOS FHL 40 ¥ILYVNO LSVIHLNOS 3HL 40 4IVH HLNDS 3HL 4O NOLLYOd LVHL
) ToYvd

GLERE T3 BRI
{208 VS TPRXS LooUR] °E] 667

ool e o6 “od Goolaes Lo Rl

3NIT 107 HORILNI AVH 20 1HOW MY
3NIT 10T HORAINI — — — —— INT ALYF04d N

N1 MOT QNNOY9 TYINLYN 9N — NlU uwwcm uo

_

_

_

_

__ uondinsaq |eba

B — EV _ _ |lelo eoldy 9SeoT] @995

_

_

_

_

_

_

NI N NVHD >t x——x— 17w ooT3 A3 HO-NNo Sz 000 “oN Y300
AN ——— — ——— TNV LI dI

TN Y00 13M8Y2 Jw19713 93
I VM ® Ve ]
(VOldhL) 31 1) T34l ONUSHT H0 WELIMVID 9
30077 = ET

150d Q19 o JHNLONULS S0 WOLIOS  WLE
Tz N SININ TSV SHOSSISSY NV

ANVANOD 3ONVHNSNI FTLIL ANV HLTYIMNONNOD ‘A8 (3¥Yd3dd

Moday apIL

dep Ayunip

_
_
_
_
TIH MR/ LON) | s TS N 89 601-600-Z182 ‘N'd'V __ 1207 ‘51 238010 R
_
_
_
_

09=,1 3Vis

|leroq Adepunog _

' Juozusa

0 NOANYD GNVS

r
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I__
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
=
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
L

AMS ATTVA

NMOHS SY

6.2z "ON€Or B2y 9Se97/3uswase] SS90y

W0O'BPBAIBO'MMM  YAYATYO-008 8814 IIoL

9v.6-082-196 Xed 0966-082-156 :8uoUd :peubig sjleq °1004 V 4O HIN3L 1S3¥VIN 3HL OL Q3NIAY3LIQ SI ONV

sbulieag jo siseg sa3eulp100) d1ydeaboan

‘BU0I0D ‘G0Z BUNS “IID SHUS| 082251 . _ . B (83 GAVN) 8861 40 WLYO WOLNIA NYORIINY HLYON 3HL 40 SA¥IL NI SI (SNOLVAZTE) WLYO WOL¥IA
ﬂ o) - > O mxmmm,\u M 0 S02 EUNS “4O SWAF by 156200825 = ONILSY3 SE95ISLET = INHLYON 3HL "ONGO3S V 40 HLOYANNH IS3WVAN 3HL OL ‘(.) SONOD3S ONV () SILNNIN ‘() SIO30 NI Q3ISSIudX3 QY HONVY INTUYS
olo|MzZ|R|B|x 2 ONI "©9NIASAYNS . YO VNN'S SI ONV (€8 QVN) €861 40 WNLYQ NVOIINY HLYON 3HL 40 SWNIL NI SI (SILVNIGNODD DHdV¥9039) WNLYQ
Cc|® m=mma| g "ce0e '80 ¥38AILAIS SZ'CRsNELS = INUSYI ZHO0CLEL = SNHLYON TVINOZI¥OH 3HL ATTVOLYIA 1334 € -/+ NHLM OL 3Lv¥NJOV 3¥¥ 3AOBY NMOHS SNOILVAITI 3IHL LVHL
= ) A ‘ ! ° : NV ATIVINOZROH 1334 Gb —/+ NHLM OL 3LVHNOOV 3 3A0BY NMOHS JONLINOT ONY 30NLLLYT 3L
> 9AINS jJO 33ed O YNNS NOLYOLALYID
3 SH0D) SNOLVLS JONRMZY ONLVAIO ATSNONLNOD (V'N'N'S) VORIV HLYON 08 HOANVO 1310708 N
° . [ e
3 :Ag pad edaud (88 GAVN) L334 £5°G021 NOLVATTE ‘ISV0 "S¥0'D VIREHY HLYON LINLYWAS 3L LINLYVAS VIT1 ONIMOTIOA 3HL OL S3LL G3AYISE0-QT34 NOdN ATIVOOT GINWNILIA v SONRVIE aIVS IO X0 T R aTAds 0 NONVD STOZVA
< 188-1088 SNOLLD3S 3000 SIOUNOSIY OMBNG VINYOAYD IHL OL JONVAUOOIV NI (52'2202) ' INOZ KXHC XK KRR XX o
2 dewyousg 0500 ‘2861 40 WILSAS JLYNIGHO0D VINIOATVO IHL NOdN Q358 Juv NOIUIH NMOHS SONINVIE IHL @NING3L3A 38 oL
w)
©
5]
]

04125£852693-€1Qv-3365-Qy9v-28Y63.V4 :al @dojaru3 ubignoogq

25



T 40 ¢ 133HS W.
Q I | ] ! \ \ \ . v
[}
@ | 17 107 75 107 _ v 107 _ bt 107 \ St 107 \ 9% 107 \ /¥ 107 \ 9% 107 \
z / /
oA | _ \ ——_—— - - A\ - - - -
: T
- | e % 'SIHOV 990°0 40 1334 IWVNDS BI6T ININIVINOD > _
L3 |18 w 1025 MILZ0ION ‘ONINNI938 0 INIOd 3HL OL 1333 8671 ‘LSV3 L4334 GLON SV INFAONO GNNOS
2[=|=[3(S WE4E6L HLNON JONIHL ‘1334 6907 ‘IS ,ZLHZOL HLNON JONBHL ‘L334 #G'€2 ‘LS 10904 HLYON _ [ ™ " | IO 20 il soL NGNS LTNOD
ES JONBHL 1334 /89 ‘ISIM ,L0,86.98 HLNOS JONBHL ‘1334 647 ‘ISIM ,¥E,I2.90 HLMON JONFHL ‘1334 £6'ST 0z oL 0 0z
B |N|® IS ,SLE7.89 HLNOS JONIHL 1334 GIEE “ISIM HOIGE8 HLNOS 3ONIHL 1333 2021 ‘ISIM 99,500 0BH B0 —— - 0L —— RS B 0L
E - HLNOS 3ON3HL 1334 1¥'0E 'ISV3 LIEICEL HINOS JNIHL ‘133 6665 'LSV3 ,£7.2049 HLNOS 3ONHL 1334 _ TIVIS DIHAV YD AM-0-LHIY e e 34078 0 oL
Fls soL VL ‘ISV3 £S8E.YS HIYON 3ONBHL 1333 p£€1 'LSV3 SEPL6L HIYON JONJHL LV, LNOJ V SNINNI9IE P~ - — 0 S0 Tl
& _HW_ SHOTIOS SV 03EI0SIA 'VINMOATVO 40 _ 3N 107 YORANI AVH S0 LHOW
3 VIS 'STIINV SO 40 ANNOD FHL NI ‘NVIGRSIN ONKISVNN3S NVS ‘LS GI JONVY 'HLYON ¥ dIHSNMOL ‘8 0
El NOLLO3S 30 ¥3LYVAD LSYIHLNOS 3HL 30 YAUYNO L1SVIHLNOS 3HL NHLM ONIAT ONV1 40 NOLYOd ¥ ONBE _ T 101 SORN T AL¥3d0¢d
= E . E ] aN0¥D TvinLYN
2 = V¥ 3sva __U INIAVD H0 3907 ————— 3N MO
z - = R s 0 ¢ _ v M TV INNIVITY TLTIND) e 30V HINY S
2 =
E] o == 2 P _ m 2 TNIS W NIVH) 5 —— s — 10v8 JIOTII A3
= I 54660241 IR < W NWIND ——— — ——— BWYd ORLOTII dF
) \ W/&EN%/ ~ 34075 40 SOL _ ﬁ TV X071 @——————— LINGYD J8LOTTT 27
2 = =
= Q ‘ WY G NN LM ® 13 N1
Lw ~ = & S ; = ~—_ H
il © / A [ ] T _ @ (wor) 3341 o T ONUSIT 0 SAIMVID 9
2 N - A
L~ N ey, S SH808 3 a3aav71 = EL e )
MyZE] == - ~ = so1L wm:y o _ A 1S0d @¥vn9 ° FU0LONYIS 0 WOLIOA  MIE
>~ 20 wowmn ,ﬁ% L ONO¥E8LL " v A SIGNN T8V SH0SSISY Nl
% Sy -2 YA N el _
P g S IS TN Y- pusba
‘ SN 2 v PN
| e s\ T - % A= N8 L6/
O O M = SIBEBLL gy N \ SHL984
* TR — ol RS —— . _
% 2 ) T H 180641 S BT =T L6 L} STV £92°0 40 1334 FYVNOS 12€°21 INNIVINOD SS300Y 40 HLYd HLAM
= " 150d 2 x ca/ ~ 2L SST1FIM NOZIY3A d3S0d0Yd
e} > > C 1000821 ! L Y. INOd SV 0L (344343 N0 508! NN _ ‘
Z m 206—600-2182 ‘N'd'V ¥ILVNGAH INIOd V ONV didlS OIS 40 ON3 3HL OL 1333 29°2L 'LSV3 LLTSZ0L HLNOS JONBHL ©908541 N
x “,
iy ® T w W 40 TI9NV WALNID ¥ HONOMHL 1333 697 3AYNO ONS ONOTV ATGISV3 3ONIHL 1334 0081 40 SNVY anszor K ; $06—600—-2192 ‘N'd'V
> YV ONIAVH ONY ATJ3HLNOS 3AVONOD 3A4NO INIONVL Y 40 ONINNIO3E 3HL OL 1334 £9'8v ‘ISv3 ,66,00.58
mX»Q HINOS JONIHL %SLILYO 40 JONV TVHINID V HONOMHL L334 L1'0Z 3AMND OIS ONOTY ATHILSYIHLNOS
0 — > O FONIHL 11334 00'8F 40 SNIOVY VY ONIAVH ONV ATMELSVIHLNON JAVONOD 3AMND INIONVL V 40 ONINNBIE
T mO 3HL OL 1334 98°0L ‘ISv3 ,81,60.17 HLNOS JONZHL ‘.p£,02.89 40 JIONY WALNIO V HOMONHL 133 [¥'1T
= w > e uV 3NIND QIVS ONOW ATMILSYIHLNOS FONIHL ‘L334 008 4O SNIGYA ¥ INAYH ONY ATHILSIMHLNOS 3AYONOD N 307 40 SOL
@] < N 3AMND INBINVL ¥ 40 ONINNIDIB 3HL OL 1333 £9°€9 ‘1SY3 ,ZG.6Z68 HLNOS IONIHL :,05.5v.28 40 FIONV & (NOLLJI¥OS3a TV93T ¥3d)
'e) [ WHINO ¥ HONOWHL 1334 6201 3AMND ONS ONOV ATM3LSV3 JONIHL ‘1334 QO'BL 4O SNIOVY V ONIAVH NS S01691281
(@)) IO < 68°GL M, $0,5%.68N- NV ATEHLDS IAVONOD 3AMNO INIONVL V 40 ONINNIO38 3HL OL 133 CI'%G ‘ISV3 ,8E47.LG HL¥ON o P &€ 1304Vd
C O 3z ‘ i 10— FNIHL ‘1334 5286 '1SV3 HZIS.IL HLYON FONIHL £L 40 TIONV TVHINZD V¥ HONOYHL 1334 01'5T Y >~
c O 3IAMND OVS ONOTY ATHILSV3HLYON JONHL ‘L334 Q0'BL 30 SNIOVY V INAVH ONV ATGLSVIHINOS JAVONOD N X A Sx .
.y uV y] 3A¥ND INZONVL Y 40 ONINNI9IB 3HL OL 1334 €277/ ‘ISIM ,BY,95.10 HLNON 3ONIHL ',1ZZr9S 40 FIONY _ NG ))w & SHv64281
< Z Z IWHINGO V HONOMHL 1333 181 IANMO OVS INOTY ATHALSIMHLYON JONIHL ‘1334 008l 40 SNIVY v P £ X X
Z ) : ! R ) X - ) _y —=
m 3 G INEG 7081, ONIAYH ONV ATHELSVIHLION 3AVONOD IAYMO IN3ONVL V O ONINNI3E FHL 0L L334 69y ‘LSI 60,6189 . I T SHezsl o - SRR S,
< . - - HIYON 3ONBHL ‘1333 1109} ‘IS ,ST/G09 HL¥ON JONZHL ,80/0.1r 0 JIONV TvAINZD V HONO¥HL &S R s P
< - T T T T T 1333 2670 INIMD QS INOTY ATMASIM JONBHL ‘1333 QDBL 40 SNV V SNAVH ONV ATMSHLNON by & 4
3JAVINOD IANMMO INBONVL V 40 ONINNI9ZE 3HL OL 1334 £8'78 IS [ZSG.LL HINOS JONGHL L.LLBY.LE _ S .
40 TONV TVALNZO V HONOMHL 1334 ££08 IAYND QIVS ONOTV ATLSIM JONBHL LSV ,O7,7k9C HLYON A Swasesi e ) L Sheeva
£06-600-c18¢ _ SUVIB TVIOVY ¥ LNOd HOHM HONOMHL 1334 76221 40 SNIQVH ¥ ONAVH NV ATALSIHLAOS IAVONOD sHszg 89928/
‘NdvV 3A¥ND INFONVL-NON V 4O ONINNI93E 3HL OL ‘. 9v9GbL 40 JIONV TVMINID V HONOMHL 1334 BLZL e _
NGO USI _ N0 3AUND GIVS ONOTY ATYILSIM JONGHL IS ,BZLEEH HLNOS SHVIE TVIOVY ¥ INIOd HOIHM HONONHL 1334 s ssz0czel
_ et * . x 00'6.2 40 SMIOVY Y ONIAVH NV ATS3LSVIHLYON 3AVONOD IAUND LNZONVL-NON V 40 ONINNIO3E 3HI ONIE -
1 < oNOF I8 zist INESTIBL; p— INOd VS 'ONINNI938 40 INOd 3HL OL 1333 107G ‘ISI ,91,Z0.10 HLYON 3N ATHSHLYON ONS ONAV3D Y _ S#15281
_ wsost P * x JONIHL L NOILOZS OIS 40 INM ATMBHLYON JHL ONOTY 1334 96799 ISIM ,06,[€.68 HLNOS JONIHL L 4% 4959281,
i o b : -
| 908" o ya cor ———"" "so1 \g - — /867 SOY ¥3d £L NOLLO3S /1 ,6985 "JO'Y, UIJAVLS 3Sv8 ALIONOD NO XSI SSV¥E ST LV ONIONGANOD A _ S5
108 8/~ _m soloscigt % s’ N e —somsm SNOTI04 SY (3830 'VINYOANIYD 40 VIS 'STTIONY SO 40 AINNOD 3HL NI ‘NVIQRIN -
908 g 2 | spanrie - = NG a1 INerigig) ONKINVNN3S NVS ‘ISIM S JONVY 'HLYON ¥ dIHSNMOL '8 NOILD3S 40 ¥LMVND LSVIHLNGS 3HL 40 ¥3LWVND SHOGEB yyezg
9 o e S\ Jorew omezsl R I — g & N gy % LSVIHLNOS HL 40 NOLLYOd LVHL ¥300 ‘30IS HOV3 NO 1333 9 ONK1 ‘3OM 1333 TI ONV1 40 dblS v ONI3E v x
v NOH VIS . 3 L Y 0z Nasv3 ’
- »| 29 Fd075 40, 301 R &1 _ FONZS NI NIVHO
o 5 s i )/ | s e ealy 95BST/jUBWASET SSoo0y VA
S — — 7 N6 218 ] oNSg0z81 N * T SH9L Va8l
Moz 181 % *c
3 ., & 0 ——= _ _ oy (NOLLI¥IS3a TvOTT ¥3d) \ R &
= ¥ § vI&Y FSYITT MLETIL, ) 108 40 Sot L 1308Vd — szl 130
W W [ 1] = _ SoLeLgiel _ IO L msaﬁ/s,(\\ = ~. 5
N #130 (0s30 1 ¥3d) N e zzal, P Sz 9281 -
o o . _ ‘
b z | /N T1304Vd _ oL E18/ ~ o . NHONAN —
> - N N6 6181 )~ #/ WEC 2L, \ o
9 m | NG T, _ EN f ' N / (=T S496°9281 - . . . y; Y] y;
o = S ey ~ 150d o T <
o &7 £ Z33 ~ NHONAND AN 365281
0o = £ _ Souwe el ey =l Aswees v
= / 042 9 E/.// ﬁ onse 28] P —— *si2 5281
2 0000} M.95:#400S R~ ~~ledom . i —— 2 .
™ — — — - L L //p. ) T W s —
000%L 3,$0,5%.685 SOI897E0NS \ s _ >
——— 2
6165281 LTVHASY o~
ﬁ _ L WENSX pe ]
021-600-Z192 R \
NV _ BRI | ovofses: 54915281 g S8¥CE,
| 5895781 - _
_ 3007 40 S0/ S0189518T ey | SHGGesl _ ! e
ERE AR B I | S400%281 - A /
% o 34075 3050l “Not 4ea1 8 SHOE 281
© 5902 | MapzoN | 1T _ S#rezel S#E¥I8I
@ & ol S
i S466 2284 S1607281
g im} FEEC | MISEEVEN | 011 56728, " sworza
@ - _ A N —F——X———x SHIL 9281 SH0%28L,
W W £89 | Mlogesss | 61 | SHeSe8 3 TN .
. 3 -
= g S| Masizoon | 87 _ V34V 3SVI1 SSF0V 40 HIVd m_ (54695281 e LTV ——— \_\ - Ty ~c sy, g ——
G o5z | moicnass | 27 HLOM .} SSTT3HM NOZIGA AISOd0d —X] =
S o | wsion _ 2 <
x - —
m_ ® W WMW SIEE | Mr0IS68S | 91 _ W. - § &\mﬁwﬁx _ i
wer | worsioos | 61 § . -
¢ 100 8 54565281 ssotor” - _\ -
R A N 1281,
» _ | _~ . g S
5 6665 | A£020995 | €7 - 5 @ \\
m LU | TE58E8N | 21 _ X 8 o7 ) _
% RO g
m el | asgeen | o _ Y SN, S i — — T -
INIT NIVHD avd ; E -
HLONIT | NOLLOIYIA | # NI | B /@ S SH0VZ8L 9 ~ _
- L - e
suetest "~ "%y 9%9 3,766,685 —
F18VL INTT _ | N 16281 ~%y oo ST - \@ﬁwm _
£9% | 055kl | 008 & _ - ez T I == T 3130000
LE0Z | Skik¥9 | 008 8 / R swvzsl Bl o _ w\mﬁ\\x\ _ @/
Y 5465281 X
Lr1Z | L0289 | 008 2 _ % - - - - - “ - - - -— - - - - - -
- - —_————— = 7 Twww »
8200 | oseze | 00w 9 ——
ouge | Luiees | 00w EY poviels Uoaq 10
sieak om saudxa [erosdde siy1 uol
8L | zenss | 00w ) _ 100 410 o4 0 UosA0Id Aue sarto
8d 0} pawaep oq s:
26T | 804047 | 0084 © _ _ ;i
m » p
LLOB | LLLBHLE | 26T 2 : -
oim|z|n|nZ| & _ Bhce LIONE0n < 601—600-Z182 'N'd'Y
O|T|m S|m|m o 87| Lok96l | 0062 1 WO'BPEAO M VQYATYD-008 19011 0L g— 21 pue smej [je yim Adwioo o} Jaauibu3 ubisag au}
cln Q| = e e Gl i 1SUOdSa1 BU) S1 }1 PUE AJUO S0UBLLLIOJUOD [B13UBD 10 S| MBIASI SIYL
5 iona | vimma | sniave | # amimo _ OVLGOREISEORS  0966-062-156 2U0d pouBIS 3120
W 81826 D 'BU0I0D ‘G0Z BUNS 10 SYUSF LLy 08.°87 _ s1eq JoouBuS JOD T d ‘PPN Asunog
379vL 3AUND - ’
T _ SONI '©ONIASAYNS 24 (v 5‘553 0z=,l 3OS
g _ £202/81/6 0=,
Aa poutignsoq.
g [ HAUAYD _ |le3aQ ealy 9sesn
. s uonoeg seoinieg Bunsauibuz
vGu . >m _Uw\_ MQQLQ fousby Jarepm Aellen eluelD elues
IS8
9]

04125£852693-€1Qv-3365-Qy9v-28Y63.V4 :al @dojaru3 ubignoogq

26



V\LSNOO\TWNI1\8822\ 2z \!

O 8ZZ\PDOI 55990

XXX00-02VHO

27

aLva # AWYN
. e ENREA
_v S3LON AdVANVLS MdVYIN HON3g 40 N HL ¥3ONN Q3Uvd3Nd SNYAd
:U33HS X3ANI L3IFHS 'dYIN ALINIOIA
16—v€L—1G6 XV4
— — 0£12-vEL—1G6 £8Z6 VINYO4MVD ‘VNOMOO
} —BBZC-2Z0T .y g NV1d ONIQvHO 29526 VO VLI oz# Hm L33dLS NGONM 3 nww
AT — oo 2 i)
3V
Ol=,1 <|—-—I o <|—lz<m lo t—o 31va | A9 Q3A0¥ddY | A8 Q3SNIY NOISIATY ‘A8 Q3dYd3y¥d SNYId Z(._
"MV 3LVLS 30 JONVNIGHO AMLNNOD ¥0 ALK
ANV 40 SNOISINO¥d 3HL 40 NOLVYIOIA ANV 40 TYAONAdY Vo170 MsaHLNOS 40 13TV 30135 ONIOKOKIAN
NV SV INVI 40 LIN3d ¥04 3LNLUSANS V SV Q35N 38 JON 20 0n 30530
™ mzo: 1303dS ONY SNY1d 3SFHL 40 ONIAVLS FHL siva ows Va1
w_ w mmw z_wa‘_GZw w:._. sozm zo_wm_z«mm meze
E3 NYS NO SNOI 0 S39 3384 7701 WVId
@ z mv_ s o._. ._:n;s NN m_ 1l me_._. ._._ ._. moﬂ w._._.
W NO Ld3X 38 18AN NOILYODIJID3dS ONV SNYId 40 13S SHL 31va
& :31va FUNLYNOIS
A8 ONI *SNOILNI0S TVOINHI3LO3D :AG Q3WV3INd VN ININd
‘S INIWIHINDIY
3000 LNIWJOIAIQ Q3NN 2202 €} ¥IAMILAIS 3LV LMOI3M 3G MU ATINOD TUM | LYHL AJULUZO | GNV “STVRISLVI
b 37111 Y3ANN
Jovnn oo Y30 o 10-209-0A # 193r0Yd *NOANVD AN1d *SS3TIUIM NOZINIA :3WLIL L¥OJR w_‘o..—ﬁ.—o.<&.—; AYO.S TOHING zo“o oL >:M.<<$ﬁ§wo!m.8mw>¢“:oo<:_oﬁ. rohy .oam.m
m:uon_ 40738 G3LSIT (S)LHOd3Y ST10S FHL HLIN ATdM0D TUA ALIALLOY NOILONWLSNOD TV 3HL 40 IN3OV QIZIOHLAV HO HINMO 1O3FOHd 3HL SV
ad3anodddv V1VO LMO434 TWOINHI3LOIO 34OV NG HIONN V3LV GIGHLSIA HLIM SLOIFOHd ¥Od
V1IdVY10 VINVS 40 AlLID
SOV 1170 tV3YV (Q30vH9) Q38MNISIA TW.OL
“ALNNGD GIVS 40 H3GHOJ3Y ALNNOD 3HL 40 301440 3HL NI *bL 30Vd
16 %008 NI 03713 VN A3AMNS 40 GHOD3Y NO NAOHS SY VINNOJITVD d0
SVL3A/NVd C 31V1S *S3739NV SO 40 AINNOD 3HL 40 AHOLIMN3L QILVHOJHOONINN 3HL 'ONIQVHO HONOH 40 NOLLITdWOO 3HL 1V 7 010'98'2k NOLLO3S
NobT_NYTGININ ONTGMVNHIE NVS ~1S3R i JoNvi “INON ¥ dIHSNAOL “g 40 SLNIWIHIND3H 3HL HLIM A1dWOO TIVHS HOLOVHINOD ONIGVHS 3HL ‘¥Z
S3LON QHVANVLS ‘SHVN HON38 ‘dVIN ALINIOIA 3 AHLNOS 8vno Lno (H 080'98'24) SININIUINOIY
3000 318VOIlddV ONV NV1d 3HL HLIM 3ONVQHOOOV NI O3WHOSH3d
:SNOLLJIHOS3A voaT ONIZ8 SI YHOM 3HL LVHL Q3I4SILVS 368 OL Tlid 3HL 40 NOILOVANOD ANV
NOILdIHOS3a 133HS {SHOLO3ASNI ALID A8 3LVIHAOHAAY AN3W30VId 3HL ANV ONNOYD TVHNLVN 3HL 40 NOILVHVd3Hd 3HL DNIHNG
Q3W330 4 d3MINO3Y 38 AVA S3UNSVIW VNOILIAQV)  103rOdd SNOILO3ASNI N3IOIHNS 3AIAOUA TIVHS HIINIONI WONHOILOIO 3HL €2
X3ON 135H8 SHL 40 NOLLONHLISNOO 3HL ONRING AlddY_ AV ‘NOLLIG3 “G3SIASH (3 080'98'24) ‘(10343 INIIVAINO3I
1S31V1 3HL ‘'VINHOJITVO, ‘OINSGNVHOVS ‘30HOJ MSVL ALITVAD 3AVH TIM SHOLOVS H3IHIO ONV QOHL3N NOLLONYLSNOD ‘3dO1S 40 I1ONV
HILVMINHOLS VINHOSIMVO ‘NOOSONVH 30ILOVHd INIWIOVNVN 1S38. L R e T e s an3 0L O YU e
s ov xaanonas ® L "0l GIUMN ION 1N ‘N GIMLNO 8V S.ad ONMOTIOS HONOH 4O NOLLITINOO OL HOId GIAON3Y 38 OL §I 1114 SSIOX3
QY 1410 £6/0V SNOL 12h— "4IINIONT STI0S A8 AIANIWNOD3H SV HO 110S JALLYN 03LSTL ANY A3LOVAINOD %36 HIAO 3ISVE ILYOIHODY Z SSY10 40 .» HIAO LIVHASY AT 10A03H GFHSNHD .9 LONHISNOD (2) ANV ONIM A8 NOISOH3 LIGHNI OL SV OS @3zNigvis 38 TiVHS e Ww<§§ &ﬁ.o._.o u%Ow....._.ﬂ.m.. .—tuu.w_wmm!:g %wmg
v 14 'ND 82/0¥ SNOL 92 — "HIANIONE STIOS A8 GIANIWWOD3Y SY HO TI0S JALLYN GILSTL ANV GILOVAINOD %86 HIAO 3SVE JLYOIHDOVY 2 SSY1D .9 HIAO (ANIH 8/€) INIWIAV O .7 LONHISNOO (1) NOILVI393A 40 Q30NN3a HO ST0S G38HNLSIA HLIM S3dOTS ANV '8 3HL ONOA3S 3ONV.LSIQ IN3IOI44NS LV I0S =0 IN3N3OV1d 3HL A8
28 1on oy ALy ShYIN BIHLO HO NIVU A8 NMOQ a3HSYM 0310NHLISNOD 38 OL 3HV OILVH SS3Nd33LS K2 40 §S30X3 NI S3dO1S 1114 ‘22
"ALD S3LON NOILONYLSNOD vasaooy T AvM-dC-iiel onahd' sHL  OIN " g3li80daq NVHOBNE TIV BNENG GICAONG 38 TIVHS ALV ot
SAVMQVOU SONVULNG NOLLONMLENGO aHI -OuViL TTOMEA A8 SIS S O N OO0 AL A8 Nt s s
ol o 1u0dxa/1o T B B o v Y B s ¥3d3ILS JOVUNS 3dOTS HO 1334 O NVHL HALVIUO HLJ3A HO LHOIH
INaATHg o NMAS, TV SHadSIa Y aasYMNVY J0 NOLLVMIMVANGD WWOILEIA V 3AVH STU4 S4IHM SNOLLVHIO NOLLOVINOO ONV LNIWIOV1d
(A9) 002 T4 (AD) 002 INO SINNTOA NHOMHLIEVI MVH ‘I AN s e e %W&wmc.:o:% e wumuww o i TIv SNLNG a3 JIvis SNLVINIS3UAIY TIENOdSIY
NOLLVWHOSNI T1=/LNO AL w0 345 N0 satsvi S IANSD v ige DL e e TS o o OO L) AN ALI0 L AG JNVAQY N GaNONdY
SNOISIAQUd __N3LSAS JOVNIVUQ UIHLO ANV HO AVM 4O-1HOK Onand HONS HO4 SNOLLVANSWNOO3H SSIINN 114 3HL NI G30V1d 38 TIVHS
mx»oig;mo»ozgﬁwco:ooﬂm;comwwwmw s H313WVIQ NI S3HONI 24 NVHL H31V3HO WIHILVW HVIINIS HO 3OOH ON ‘6
NOILVWHO4 NOANVO LNIW ow) VNIVHO Q3HS! 1IVHS STUdS  ‘HINNVW -..w._._w jotd (8 0€0°99°21) "YIINIONI TVOINHOILO3D IHL A8 G3AOHddV_AONV_Q3L03dSNI
SIHE3Q 3ANSANYY 810 NOLLVAZII 1Y3ANI ANI WO‘&%%M\J}W&%S%#%Q& gig.ééggsﬁggbﬁggwﬂgggg
$11S0d3A HSYM3dOTS/SNTVL/NNIANTIO0 90 ANIOd HOH  dH ‘HIHLVIM SHL WOHd Q3103108d 38 TIVHS SHINIVINOO 39VHOLS
$11S0d3a_WIANTTY 180 Jy34e 3avio 89 Q3AOHddY TV 'SH3LVM 30VSHNS OGNV 110S 3HL 3LVNIWVLINOD ‘I 060'98°L NOILO3S A8 Q3HIND3Y SLHOC3Y IHL NI G3ANTONI
TS WVIOIHILEY 48 30VIUNS HSINSI4 Sd 10N TIVHS OGNV ONILSI HI3HL HLM 3ONVAHOOOV NI Q3MO1S 38 TIVHS ONILS3L HONS 40 S1INS3H 3HL °SHLONIYLS HVIHS ONV_S3dAl
HS3aN 3HIM_Q30713M WMM 3NIT MOTd T4 38 TIVHS SIVIHSLV OIXOL H3HIO ONV ‘SIN3A1I0S ‘S0 ‘S13nd v UOS ONIGNTONI SLNIWIHINO3Y NOIS3A JHL HLIM S311¥3dOYd 10S 3HL 0
o5 oL LN TIVM 40 doL "ML ANVHQAH 3Ud  Hd ‘43LVM HO GNIM 40 SIONOH L AG LIS L 3ONVITINOD AdJIH3A OL 3AVW 38 TIVHS STI0S Tlid 40 SLS3L LN3IOIHHNS
JavLo Homid WOUd G3LHOGSNVHL ONI38 WO 0310310Hd 38 TIVHS SIVIHILVN 'J03U3HL NOLLHOJ HO 1d11 TVOILUIA 100d-4NOd
dVIN ALINIOIA 05 on SNLoed d0daL A wa R0 Homd 33 GALV713U-NOILONHLSNOD  W3HLO OGNV HLHV3 40  S3UMO0IS € HOV3 Hod OVd BNING HOVA 40 ALINGIA 3HL N 1831 N0
guNO 40 dOL OL  NOISS3Hd3d V001 a1 ‘GNIM HO °‘S3SHNOO JOVNIVHA TVHNLVN ‘SNIVNA V3V ‘SIIVMS 3HIHL
3did 313HONOO Q30HOANIZH dOH 3SNIY3INGO 10 ‘MOTEL33HS VIA 3LIS 3HL WOHJ G3LHOJSNVHL 38 LON AV ONV LIS NOILYOd HO Ld1 TVOLLY3A 1004-HNOd HOV3 NI (L0 3lIS BNITING
3QIHOTHO 1ANIAATOd OAd 30vd GHNO 40 NO G3NIV13H 38 TIVHS SINVINTIOd H3HLO ANV SLN3WIG3S a3aoH3 2 HOV3 HOd 3d01S T4 VNI 3HL 40O NOILVOOT 3HL LV 1831 3NO ‘o
3VOS OL LON SIN NISVE HOLYD 8D "SIWIL TV 1V 3LIS 103rOHd IHL WOUJ HILVMWHOLS-NON ‘G30V1d TVIHILVA 40 SGHVA OI8NO 000% HOV3 HOd 1831 3NO 4
JIOHNYW HA  313HONOD 1IVHdSV OV 40 39HVHOSIO 3HL 3LVNINT3 OL 30VW 38 TIVHS LHOdd3 AM3A3 1 ‘1417 WVOILHIA LOO4-OML HOV3I HOd 1§31 3NO '
F E 'SINNIAIND_ NNWININ
SNOILVIAZHEaY S31LON NV1d NOILLNT1Od H3LVMINHOLS ONIMOTIOH SHL HLIM JONVGHOOOY NI T1id HL 40 NOL SuanaaD Nikimm
3HL 3NINY3130 OL 3AVA 3@ TIVHS STI0S T4 3HL =0 S1S3L IN3IDIZ4NS ‘2
————— TIVM ONINIVLIY i3 3HL 4O SLAIT NV SHLJ3Q 3HL LNOHONOHHL G3LNAINLSIA ATNHOSINN
(g 020°28'L4) "BNIQVEO HONOY H3LdV 36 TIVHS QOHLIN 3NOO ONVS AS IN3OH3d O+ Q3HIND3Y 3HL '(9s5La
|||||||| 3NN IN3W3SV3 WVOILOVHd SV_NOOS SV_W3LSAS NOILVOMHI NV HLM _Q30IAOYd WLSY) QOHLIW 3NOO ONVS 3HL A8 G3NIVLEO 38 1IVHS S1S3L ALISN3a
———— ONV  H3AOO ONNOWO QO3AOHddY NV HLM J3INVId 38 TIWVHS | G3YINO3Y 3HL O IN3OH3d OF 40 WNNINIW V ‘H3AIMOH ‘HIINION3 ALID
r T (Nv1d H3d H1d3Q ANV HLAIM) 1334 33YHL Y¥3AO 83408 T3 ONV 1334 3AI3 Y3AO $3dOTS INO 1V _ ‘L 3HL Ol 378V.1d300V GOHLIN V AS G3NIWY3L3a 38 TIVHS ALISN3A @131 4
| — AVMA3N SS3H11n8 :S31ON NOLLVOIHHI ANV ONLLNVd (3 0§0'99°24) 'A3SN 36 TIVHS HIINONI ALIO 3HL OL 318VLdIOOV 1S3L
NOLLVAZT3 10dS Q3SOdOHd V 318VOIlddV LON 3H3HM ‘318VOIlddV 3H3HM '16-195L0 1S3L NOILOVJWOD
oo J0S WLSY AS Q3NINH3L3A 38 TIVHS NOILOVAWOD 3JAILVIZY 3HL
NOWLYAZT3 ONILSX3 “dVIN OIDO INg-§! TONI TIVHS LHOd3Y ‘YIINION_TVOINHOILOZO
Ll VA313 1048 N2 JHL “HIINOND ALID SHL RG IVAOUMdY, OF HOY 1U0dIE TwNd 3HL A8 d3ilLSAr SI IALISNIQ AHQ WAWIXVIW 4O IN3QU3d 06 NVHL
—_———— A8 ONIQVHD HONOH 3AOHddY TIVHS 1SID0T039 ONILINSNOO 3HL '8 SS31 LON) NOLLOVAWNOO JAILVISH HIMO1 V SSIINN '3AVHO HSINIA
X X 3407S a3S0doYd 'NOBING SZOINUZS DNNINONE 3L OL ILLNaNS MOT38 1334 OF NVHL H3d330 ALISN3A AHA WAWIXVW 40 IN3OM3d €6
38 OL S1HOd34 NOLLO3dSNI ATHINON HLIM NOLLO3dSNI OI901039 3aveo
——oou——  HNOLNOO 3AVHO A3SOdOHd Olqoidad H3ANN Q310NANOO 38 TIVHS SNOLVHIJO ONIavEd ‘9 HSINIJ MOT38 1334 07 NIHLIM ALISN3Q AHA WNWIXVW 4O IN30u3d 06 °®
(4 0L0'€8'ZH) "SNOILVOIJIO3dS DNIGVEO 3HL IVIHILIHO NOLLOVANOO
PP HNOLNOD 3AVHD ONLLSIX3 40 lHVd V 38V OGNV HLM G3NdNOO 38 TIVHS SLHO43H ADO1039 3AILYI3Y WAWININ ONIMOTI0d 3HL OL G31LOVANOD 38 TIVHS Tid 1TV ‘0
OGNV I0S S.ANVIINSNOD 3HL NI Q3GNTONI SNOLLVONIWAOO3Y 1V v SIION T14
R AHVONNOE 1OVHlL :S31ON STI0S ANV ADOT103D
——§——— 3NN TU4/100 LHOINAVA
aNn 3oal 3u¢o~<§¢m§mz<>o§d<:mmozm§x.m§q%o.w«»wo>m5¢u
............... ‘'AVM =0 LHOIH 13341S NIHLIM ONIGVHD HO NOLLONYLSNOO
NOISIAIQ S3OIAH3S ONIMIINIONI 3HL WOd NOISSINH3d 3HNO: € 1V GNV SINIGOH DNIMOHHNG 40 3ON3AIA3 HOd4 ATIVOIQ0N3d S3OTS
NN ‘30V4HnS Q3AVd uo uas |ww 103dSNI TIVHS HaNMO  'G3HINO3Y SI SINIAOH DNIMOHHNE WOYd IOVWVQ
HO 3VMS OL MO1d 133HS :S31ON AONIOV IVILN3LOd NOHH S3dOTS 3HL LO3L0Hd OL WYHDOHd 3ALINIAIHd V °'6
(v 020'28'24) 'HIINIONI
ANIOT ALID 3HL OL AHOLOVHSILYS S3OIASQ_HIHLO HO 'ONILNVId IALLO3=3 ONV
‘ ‘0L0'8°2L NOILO3S HLIM 3ONVAHOOOV ONILLIN 3LAF 4O LSISNOD TIVHS TOHLNOD SIHL 'NOISOH3 TOHLNOD OL
<MV <|_|_m<|_o <|_|Z<m M USINONS ALO_ S OL CILUNENS 38 TIVHS SiNanELvis Q3NIVINIVW ONV Q3HVd3td 38 TIVHS S$3d01S Tlid ONV 1NO =0 S30Vd 3HL '8
(88 QAVN) €9'902 “A3T3 anv HOd3H  'ONIOVYD  HVIN93H NOISIAIG SO 'NOISIAIQ AL34VS ? ONIQTING 3HL WOHd LINY3d V S3HINOIY
ONIHISNION3 3HL AG@ O3HIND3Y NOILO3JSNI 3HL OL NOILIAGY NI 2 SNV1d 3S3HL NO NMOHS (SITIVM ONINIVL3Y 3HL 3O NOLLONHLSNOD ‘L
06— pue qalr, B0V s JSRe, v Sl s, Sunei s BT
—_— S SONIQING 40 AONVANOOO 3HOL38 OIAOHAAY 38 TIVHS ONIGVED TVNId ‘9
SOVAVEG TIv' TELITaNOS NGES. SVH ONGVED N ® QILLINGNS 36 TIVHG & LHOUaY SAIvES A DEEM  HIINONT G1atd i AS
08V0 (€D 010'88'44) ‘G3AIZ03Y N328 3AVH 1 01099 Lt NOWLOZS NOILO3JSNI SNONNILNOD H3ANN 3NOQ 38 TIVHS YHOM NIVHA WHOLS TV 9
N Oml mo O — N N ‘SO0 VORENY HIUON LINHVAS JHL “MUVW HONaE D e T O e S D doL L LY 'S301A30
a3 v w:o:<>u._uou:..<§ e orrd b Ay . 3OVNIVHA TV HO4 SIHVLS IOVNIVHA 13S TIVHS HIINIONI Q134 3HL ‘¥
(25 040'88°21) ‘NOILOTISNI SHL OL 'IOYLS ONIGYHD HONOY SHL LV O3AOHddY S3OIA3Q JOVNIVHQ
0986-082-196 ‘INOHd HOW4 GIOVIA 78 TIVUS TId ON TN B0 GaNVdsua SSMLIIO IHLO ONV 'SH36 'STTVMS SOVNIVEQ 3AVH TIVHS S3LIS 030VED TIV '€
22-62°6 ‘AHdVHD0dOL 40 3Lva ANV NOILV13D3A 30 Q3HV31O N338 SVH 3LIS 3HL N3IHM ‘q 3H1 NI_NOILVININITdWI Ol HOlHd HIINIONI ALID 3HL A8 G3AOHddY 38
ONI 'ONIAZAUNS VAVAIVO :AS G3AINOHd AHAVHDOCOL 46 0L08FL) WAL 3aVEO-BHd ® TIVHS SNV1d BNIGVED 03AOHddV ‘OL SIONVHO HO ‘4O SNOILVOIJIAON ANV 2
HHOM IHL 4O SIOVLS ONIMOTIOS LV SNOLLOIASNI G3HINDIY ‘Sl 1V Ly Jus
NOANVYO NNT1d a0 SRS B TRUSDUISTIOL DO ISR sy v evey on wosiss smmos v o RSN
'NOLLVIOOSSV S.H3NMO 3WOH JHL 40 ALIIGISNOJSIY ONIHIINIONI 3HL AdILON TIVHS INOV SIH HO 33LUAH3d 3HL
mmm _mm _>> ZON_W_ m> oy S50t TS Sados 50 S ‘831ON NOLLOISNI :S31ON TvHINTD




XXX00-02vHO

4

#133HS

avod SS300V

29|0zu099 A9 wdogig—£Z0Z ‘LL d9s uo panoid Bmp'ayo 8822\Pood 5s200v\ISNOD\TWNIA\88zz\zZ\ '\

1 —8822-720C

Ol=,1

“ON_gon)

NV1d ONIQVHO

ze/v/tv

Auva)

a8

V.1HVIO VINVS dO ALIO va

A8 (3A0¥ddV

A8 Q3SA3Y

NOISIA3Y

3iva # 308 INVYN

e EA

40 NOLD3¥IQ 3HL ¥3ANN Q3¥Vd3I¥d SNYId

6EL6—PEL—1S6 XV
0£1Z—vEL—1S6
29526 VO “VLIMMNN
001 LINS LS VINTVY L6SLY
SYIINIONI MM

‘A8 Q3VdIdd SNVId

64826 VINYOIVO ‘VNO¥OD
+0z# 31S 133LS NOONIN ‘3 S6v
ONI ‘NOIS3d va¥3ad 0/0
SSINIYIM NOZINIA

“H04 Q3¥Vd3¥d SNVId

aiva # 304 3INVN

40 NOILO3MIO 3HL ¥3ANN Q3MWVdIMd SNVId

60v0—¢SY (6v6) XV

90Y0-5G¥(676)

81926 _VINNOAIYO ‘INIAYI

012 3LINS "ATHONYW /T

ONI 'SNOLLNTOS T¥OINHO3L039
‘A8 MIA3Y VOINHOILOID

d43IMOL 1130
NOZIH3A X3

™SoL - .

1334 NI 3TVIS
—

|

- —
0 0

T

0z

ot

INEG 081,

—--

N'a"V

INGO 1181

N A
INCS TG~

LINOC [e8!

/

N68 8L,

A 1O

0¢Ll-600-¢[8c 'N'd"V

/\/VQ\SQN cl8l
\//
0 Nw\%\/

e L

sieg

Wy S189K OMY UILJIM PSLIE}S UBSq OU SEY LUORONISUOD o

J8pun ‘10N TTVHS suon
“108UIBUT JAIUD BU) 10 U

Jo19s siUL “suoy
Jo Auaisuodsas au) s1 i pue AJuo S9UBLLIOJUO [£13USB 10} S| MAIAGI SIUL

‘aimeubis jo ajep

uopeayIpow ‘saBuUBYD AUB SYew o} [melun
ol 3y Je 1day aq snw suoneoyioads pue sueid
621 pue sme] |Ie [m Aldwos o) JeeuiBu3 ubisaq auy

J88UIBUT JoID T d "PeN Aaupnog

£202/81/6

24 e o)
:Aq paubignoog.

NOLLONYLSNOD ¥0Od G3AO¥ddY

uonoes seoiag Buueauibuz
fouaby Je1ep AajeN BRI BlUES

ov xaanowas ()

"HIINIONIT STI0S A8 AIANINNODFY SY HO T10S JAILYN A31S3L ANV d3LOVdINOD %S6 HIAO 3SvE FLVOIHODY 2 SSY10 40«7 HIAO LTVHISY 310A03H A3IHSNYD .9 LONYLSNOD @

"HIINIONT STIOS A8 GIANIWNODIH SV HO TI0S JAILYN A3LS3L ANV A3LOVAINOD %S6 HIAO 3SYE FLYOIHOOV 2 SSYTO .9 HIAO (INIH .8/€) LINIWIAVd OV .7 LONHLSNOD @

Bl8— onpra18)

618,

INEE 8181

S31ON NOILONHLSNOD

SIN

1lvl3d ®
V3HV ANNOHV NdNL

INLYN
_ G3L0VANOD %56

===

~
3 :

S
aNNoYy .xm_\ﬂ N

SIN

1lvl3ad
avod Ss30Jv

JNLYN

54966281,

NY1d 31vHVd3S Had
3ON34 ¥ 31VD a3S0d0dd

S4£°6281,

LIS MNYL

INLOGTB) 79w

$491°GC8!

54886281

S406°6281

“ ‘ S441°6281

04125£852693-€1Qv-3365-Qy9v-28Y63.V4 :al 8dojaau3 ubignoog

28



|-V

NV1d 31IS
B\ 2-E/\e]

WL 13HS
GEP—
O 9N Wd
Z 3 W —
%) < O On
2 S m
T
C 0= n<
9! g3 W
4 €3 O
S 3% T
< MM O n
@) Q N
By O35 _._._lA
> P30z
W © > _._._O
5 98 3F=<
W I A

819¢6 VO 3NIAYI
L3 ‘INNIAVY NOANVD ONVS GO0SSI
/\ =

Q3LIGIHOYd ATLOIMLS SI SSITIHIM NOZINIA OL .
S3ALVI3Y LI SV NVHL ¥3HLO FUNSOTISIA HO ISN ANV

SST1HIM NOZINIA
OL WILNIAIANOD ? AYYLIINONd S| SONIMYHA
40 13S SIHL NI G3NIVINOD NOILYWHOANI 3HL

' NOILYIWHOANI AdV1314d0dd .

BALIE
Je11z#E0r V|

v 2 A3d 711 -Add %00T €2/L0/60 0
ore ¢ A3d 711 - a0 %00T €2/12/9 0
ore 2 A3d 711 -dD %06 ce/LontT 0
oee T A3Y 717 -31%00T ez 0
ore M3IINIY 37 %06 cerelL 0
Ag NOILdIMOS3a 3lvad | 'A3Y

rmD._.<._.m m_me_‘ A

VIS OHAVID
e |

0oL 0s £74 0

L0-05=4 TIVOS
HLION

NV1d 1LIS TIVIIAO

-_ O _— ~ / \ \ |

—
SIS 1THS AIMVINT 50 (IDNAW ¥4 ANNA 10N SI DIV TWOS .08 X 47 SI NV SIHI 40 3715 WNIOO M1 310N

(FONVHD ON) vIav ISvIT INIWLINOI

G-I X ,OI-Zt SSITTnIM NOZINIA (3) |
anv
AN AvON AIAVA WIAO INFWISVI
56300V .21 SSITIRIM NOZINIA (3) I
(IONVHO ON) VIalv 36vaT |
ITOLONOW (@1 % @I SSITTIM NOZINIA (3) I

ALMDVY ADNIDV dLVM DAV DIVLISYD LV
@31vD01 LS THD SSTHIM NOZIIESA DNILSIXI

SVIAV 35V31 TIOJONOW/INIWAINDI NOZIHEA OL INIWISV3 SSIDDV
NO NOLLYWIOANI FIOW JOd T-V 13HS LV NVId LS 3DAVING HS —

e ———

vaav

SV TTOJONOW OL avox
daAvd MaN d3IA0 6300V 4O
HLVd ‘M .CI 5373aIM NOZIA3IA

anvl
INVOVA
) \

Avod AaAvd AFIAO 6300V JO
HLvd .ZI $53132IM NOZIa3A (3)

on_z_mmozw_on_
_.(m_m_m_«.m\rt z(._ma
§3d SAAVTIO H.IE X\
o MIN TIVIGNI OL 99

[

O=NI FAONW A0
I-v 336 '(dAL) Nv-d (£-Y)
23d SaxvTIog H.9E X \ =/

@.# MaN TIVLSNI OL 22 |
|
0
,4
|

anvA 1

AINVOVA
ﬂ @\

4

04125£852693-€1Qv-3365-Qy9v-28Y63.V4 :al 8dojaau3 ubignoog

29



r v zr

JIVOS JHAVID
NV1d 3LIS = =

a39¥VINT —

EUTRED HLYION NV1d 31IS dIDYVING

08 X 47 S NYId SIHI 40 3715 WNOO M1 30N

4

SIS 1THS ATMVING M0 0IDNAW HO4 VA 10N SI DI TS

|
~ ’ |
|
’ ' .. o
B ]
el p
“ .
IIVMS FOVNIVad ALIADONO?D (3)
(IONVHD ON) VIav 3evIT INInLINoI
“@-Zl % ,0l-

.t S53713AIM NOZIA3A (3)

ISE 16 VO ‘Anuno) uoAued
‘PY UocAued selUA\ LOESS
(LNINISVYA SSTOIV)
WNOANVYO ANN1d

YSE)NI/V\VHCI NOIJ_ODHJ_SNOCS‘

AvOod dIAVd dIAO LNIWNISVI
S5322V .ZI S53T1TAIM NOZINIA (3)

]

d
m
A
S, 1
WOy S189K OM LILJIM PaLE}S Ua3q 10U SEY UORONISUCD By Ji aineuis -
b3 ONIAVA (3) 2IAO INIWISVI
m, SSIDDV 2| SSIATTAIM NOZIANIA (N)
um 1o1id B4y InoLIM suopeayoeds 10 |
pow ‘s3BueLo AUE aew of fnyvelun
> 99 1SN SUOREdYoadS pue Sueld
 Aidwoo o} JseuiBu3 uBisaq oy
Jo AIqIsUOdsa BUy S1 1l PUE AJUO SIUBULIOJUCO [E1USE 10} S| MBING SIUL
g Je0uBUZ JoyD “T d ‘lPE Aounog SNVl ONINIINIONS ~
24 hall ?«S&S@ TAID A3d LIVHASY AIHSNAD dITDOA2IA 40 |
£202/81/6 <apoutignac. .9 NI A3AIA0D ANV HSMag TV 40 aZavaTo 38 Ol |
NOILONHLSNOD ¥O4 A3AOYddY vIAV LV1d ONILSIX3 SALVOIANI ONIHOLVH d3liod
uonoas seoinisg BusauiBuz
fouaby 1a1ep AaleA BlLED BlUES
% ANIT ALAIIOD
7 — h— - - - ——
&) 3406 "LSIX3 H4O dOL
o w
2z 3 (9 40 'dAL)
=5 A AIONVHONN NIVINTA |
Mo | 1 3 oL saxvTIoa (3) I — ARG AIAVE (N) BIAO
o = I ANIWISYI SSIDDV [Tl S53TFAIM NOZIAIA (N)
Q C
o3 z (3ONVHO ON) vaalY 36vaT 4 ALTANOD () <>
= x et
% z FTOHONOW @I X @I S53T13AIM NOZINIA () ] S £-v 336 '‘agovdIn § AIAOWIN 3G OL A
- < 31vS 3 IONId SINIT NIVHD (3) 4O NOILAOd o
G m \
=
[y A3IONVHONN NIVINIA OL )
m T1OHONOW SS3T13AIM NOZINIA (F) — | (dAL) ‘'ONN 7
o ‘AIDONVHINN NIVWIN OL JANSOTONI
= — VIOAAISTA AILVM JO dILIWIATL LV
dOL1V JIM d3gava J40 SANVALS
ﬁ - 4 3ONI SINIT NIVHD ‘H ,0-.G (3)
LT _
ONINEVA TTOIHIA IONYNILNIVIN TR L LA o
AOL vIAVY ISvIT S6IV0V 553 TTAIM 78 . ey
NOZINIA SILVIIANI ONIHOLVH SSOND — | N & ; \ ;
< . - -
| L \
Q3LIBIHOY ATLOIILS SI SSI13HIM NOZIN3A OL NVId d3d 3ISvE T3AVES dIHSNAD A0 | - S22 ¥
SILYII LI SV NVHL ¥3HLO JUNSOTOSIA HO ISN ANV ONIAVA (N) JIAO INIWISVYI S5IDDV SSITIAIM So, -
ST NOZEA NOZINIA (N) SAILY2IANI INIT aIHSVA —— : N
OL TVILNIAIINOD ¥ AYVLIINAOYd S| SONIMYHA <N\
30 13S SIHL NI G3NIVLNOD NOILYWHOLNI 3HL
NOILVINHOSNI AHVL1314d0dd 3dOTS "1SIX3 4O dOL — 1
e N e e ONIAV (3) 2INO
ANIWISVI 65322V .ZI
SS3T1IAIM NOZINIA (N)
SNV ONIAIIANIONT TIAID 3
d3d IAIRNA LIVHESY MIN HLIM d3Avd W—
ANV HSNAG 11V 4O d3avaT2 3g OL M_
3AISTTIH A3dOTS SALVIIANI (+) DNIHDLVH x .
ONIAVd “1SIX3 MNVL HIOAY3S3Y “ISIX3
Z
i
d4€ L Le#d0or SNV I ONIAIINIONT z .
AIAI2 A3d LIVHASY AIHSNAD dITOADIA JO m >
.9 NI a3a3IN0D ANV HoNAE 11V 40 azavIo 3g Ol | \
VIAV Lv1d ONILSIXT SALVOIANI DNIHDOLVH d3llod 1 a
=/  OaN ZmoWwod \\
] 7 1=V 336 '(dAl) NV
N Add SaAVIIOE H.9€ X
ov| en3wm-aowoor | eznomo| o VRV 3val NOZREA OL INIWISV3 SSIDDV LV MEN V1SN OL 99 N O THOR 204
dee| 2 A3W 11-aD %00T €2/1e9| 0 SILVD/IDN34 MaN NO TIOW AO4 €-V LBHS LV SNVId ONH HS | | -/ i
dee| 2 A3M T1-aD %06 2ZiLonT | 0 ! T 1=V 336 (dAl) NV
: Add sa@AVTIOa H.9€ X
arc| TrsuT-mwonr | zaze| o S3LVD JNIT NIVHD MIN HDONOY¥HL SSIDDV FNVL HIONY3SIY "ISIX3 & MaN TIVLENI OL 99
| manaainos | eamoe| o AVINDHIA 40 HLVd SSTHAM NOZINIA MIN
Ag NOILdI¥OS3a 3lva | A3y _ /
|

rmD._.<._.m m_D.ww_"y I

04125£852693-€1Qv-3365-Qy9v-28Y63.V4 :al 8dojaau3 ubignoog

30



[ v

NV1d 31IS

a3IodVvING

1L 133HS
ST~
O gy 2T
z S Or
@) < O (@)
3 o n
) -] m
C 0= n<
9! g3 W
4 €3 O
O S M
Z 30 > >
g ) SN
3| O35 _._._lA
S <
m © > _._._O
Z
5 82 FZ
—
z: mg
Mo 1]
' N
© 2
0

Q3LIGIHOYd ATLOIMLS SI SSITIHIM NOZINIA OL
S3ALVI3Y 11 SV NVHL ¥3HLO FUNSOTOSIA O ISN ANV

SST1HIM NOZINIA

OL WILNIAIANOD ? A¥YLIINOYd S| SONIMYHA
40 13S SIHL NI G3NIVINOD NOILYWHOSNI 3HL

NOILYIWHOANI AdV131dd0dd

BAIL9

d€Lle#ga0r

v 2 A3d 711 -3dd %00T €2/L0/60 0
ore ¢ A3d 711 - a0 %00T €2/12/9 0
ore 2 A3d 711 - dD %06 ce/LotT 0
oee T A3Y 717 - 31 %00T ez 0
ore M3INIY 37 %06 ceelL 0
Ag NOILdIMOS3a 3lvad | 'A3Y

rmD._.<._.m m_me_‘

L-d=H/ TVIS
HLION

O=NI JAOW A0 T-v 336 N.(Oﬂ\
SSAVOV LV ONIAVL MIN 20 39243

0

AL

121aLsIa A3LlvM

ANV SS3TIAIM NOZIAIA A0 S5300V

/M WSINVHDIW ONINDO0T IAIAOAL

OL 29 'ONILSIXT HOLVIW OL OL

dOLv M dagavd 40 SANVALS (€)
/M S3LVYD SINIT NIVHD 009 “ad MaN —— |

LaNIA ONILSIXT — |

3LVD LV NOILVWAONI
LOVINOD HLIM ZOVYNDIS /' D'O'N.
M3N 3AIAONd OL SS3T1IAIM NOZINIA — |

OzNI JAOW d0d Z-v 336 ‘avox
SSIDVVV LV ONIAVA MaN 20 39a3 — |

ONILSIXT HOLVIN OL
dOlv JaM a3gavd JO SANValsS
(€) ANV 3ON3d SINITNIVHD @ MaN—— |

=

SHIOAH3S3d 1431V LV
V34V A3AVd ONILSIX3

AIDONVHINN NIVININ OL dOLV IdIM
Aa3agava 4O SANVALS (€) ANV ION3d
™ SINIT NIVHD .@ SNILSIX3 40 NOILNOd

ONILSIXT HOLVIN OL
dOLlv IaIM dagaiva 4O SANValS
(€) ANV 3ON3d SNIT NIVHD .@ MaN

ineubls jo ojep

|esopa 10
om Aue Jo |
J3pun ‘L ON TIVHS suol
193UIBUT Jo1YD S} JO Lo

w1y 183K OM) UIYIIM PALIEIS UG 10U SBY LORINISUO BU)

u3 ubisaq oy}

JU0D [218UBB 10} 5| MAIABI SIL

s1eQ J90uIBU3 JID “T'd 'Iee Aeupnog

£202/81/6

NOLLONYLSNOD ¥O4 A3AOHddY

uonoag seoueg Bupsauibuz

fousby 1erem Asllen EwEID EluES

24w rape)

£q paubisns0q

JIONVHONN NIVWIN OL JOLV JaM
a3gava 40 SANVALS (€) ANV ION3d
SINIT NIVHD .@ ONILSIXT 4O NOILAOd

WO-A=N TIVIS
HLYON

AIvVTIOqd MAN

INON F1VDS
e . Y33NIONT 43HD
e avg Ly9¥8 "3'd “TIVA_AINIINOD
v20z/07 NM\
8901-dM ‘A8 a3A0¥ddV
"OMA QLS NOILO3S S3IOIAY3S ONIMIINIONI

AON3OV ¥3LVM ATIVA VLIIVIO VINVS

EI
AJS

$3AvII4dYE ALITIOVA/LINVHAAH 14 319VAONTY

'SININOJWOD TV 3ZINVATYO did LOH ANV HLOOWS S30VA¥NS HONOY ANY S3903 TV NSO
“MOTI3A AL34VS VHSO/ISNY,
40 SIV0D OML ANV ¥INMd HLIM Q3INIVd 38 TIVHS ONNOYO 3A0BY S3AYOIM¥VE 3did 1331S 3HL °

AL

AON3OV 3HL A8 Q3LVOIONI SV A¥VSS3OIN NIHM (Q3QIAOHd 38 TIVHS SIAVOIMHVE ALMIOVA 318VAONIY -

~

~

VINISIHAIY ¥O/NV

SIION

.

NOIIO3S
07
Py eI b gy Ryt EREY
V30 1108-N i ‘E\‘Emu mHt (1d 0062)
= —  9N0od
= ST L E I LRON0D
—— = g -
wEm N ‘ ﬂMF
| “zuzu\é v
,M 3VId IS L HIK
e ‘0% HOS ‘3did S .S
- g /2851 ¥ 310N 33
|3 st oL PR
G 5 0% HOS ‘3did IS ¥
L a3IN03Y sv anomay
/
N0 ¥vI10 f | X1 NO3Y3H V130 1108-n 335
1108-n via,f 3did 40 dOL OL Q3HSM3 ONV

Q3714 31340N0D

J

08 X 47 S NYId SIHI 40 3715 WNOO M1 30N

P ,o-.._ = .4/1

AISONVHONN NIVNIN OL JOLV JaM
a3agava 40 SANVALS (€) ANV 30N
SINIT NIVH? @ 9NILSIXT 4O NOILaOd

a3aoviaad

¥ QIAOWIA 39 Ol JOLV TaIM
da3gava 40 SANVALS (€) ANV ION3d
SINIT NIVHD @ ONILSIX3 4O NOILAOd

aaovIdId # AIAONWIA
38 Ol 31Vv2 SINIT NIVHD? ONILSIX3

Lala oNILeixa — |

azaovidaa

2 AIAOWIN 38 Ol JOLV JaM

aaAgAVE 40 SANVALS (€) ANV IONI
SINIT NIVHD @ ONILSIXT 4O NOILNOd — |

ONIAVA ONILGIXT 20 2003 — |
AIONVHONA NIVWTA OL dOLY TaIM

SHIOAH3S3Y H3LVM LV
Vv3adv A3Avd ONILSIX3

:3WIS

1SOd JNIT NIVHD (3

a3gava H4O0 SANVALS (€) ANV ION3d

- SINIT NIVHD @ ONILSIX3 JO ZO_._.MOn_\

ANNOYD YO 30VYI HSINIA f/

34 NOISN3L WOLLO8

Y8 YIHOLWIS —]

JMonaNyNL 1331S
/M 0¥ WNOOVIQ

Wy 30w %_7

IMOYD

5 JYM Q383vE SONVALS
€/M 30N33 INIT NIVHD
HOH ,0-8 0350d0¥d |

150d Tind ¥0
ON3 ‘3L¥9 "¥3N¥0D (3)

INLISOd L

A3TTVLSNI SI 3ON34 M3IN IHL ANV d3AON3Y SI 3ON3H
@70 IHL INIL IHL ONIINA '3AIS HOV3 1V INOLLOg ANV dOL 3HL
1V 43H1390L A3NIVHO ANV A3T1VLSNI 38 T1IM ONIONIS dNTL

V A33N TIM SHHVAS S31V3HO LvHL ONIANIEO HO ONILLND ANV
MHOM LOH TV ONIHNA LN3S3dd 39 LSNIN NOILOIdSNI AODNIOV
ONIAT13M HO4 d3dINO3Y 39 1M LING3d XHOM LOH A40VT NV
SIONIH / SLSOd ILVD NO SL108-N 1TV d13M OVL

MOOT/M S3LVD IHNOIS OL NIVHO .91/S 3AINOHd OL 'O'D
A3ZINVATYO 38 TIIM SINTLI 3ON3H 11V

1IWd3d MdOM LOH

:S31ON

4 b-.“wﬂomz\ _ JLVYD SSIDDV ANIT NIVHD (N)
3NIT 1SO¥4 M0138 'NIN 9 «
o 11 oz
R “dAL NMO¥D
< I = NWISOd |
R 1l 7
Il
s
onnow oA
30v9 HSINIY / -
ot / 3
133S/M
03 NOOVIQ B Iy 39
H
48 YIHOLIUIS 4001 : Wl
NV1d ¥3d 150d (N) /M HOIV 31V ¥3d 150d (N)
/ w
3¥IM 0384vE _ 30v¥8 doL
40 SONVALS §/M
3ON34 YNIT NIVHD _
HOIH ,0-8 0350d0dd ]
ﬁ M 03gv8 ﬁ
150d 319
7 0-21 7

SIS 1THS ATMVINT M0 0IDNAW HO4 VA 10N SI DI TS

4

04125£852693-€1Qv-3365-Qy9v-28Y63.V4 :al 8dojaau3 ubignoog

31



Exhibit C
Insurance Requirements

Minimum Insurance Requirements —Licensee shall procure and maintain for the duration of the
License, insurance against claims for injuries or death to persons or damages to property which may
arise from or in connection with the use of the SCVWA Access Road by and the activities of
Licensee or its employees thereon. Licensee shall require any contractors and subcontractors to
obtain and maintain substantially the same insurance as required of Licensee hereunder with limits
commensurate with the work or services to be provided. Licensee shall provide and maintain the
following commercial general liability, automobile liability, workers’ compensation and property
coverage:

Coverage - Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following:

1. Commercial General Liability - Insurance Services Office (1ISO) Commercial
General Liability Coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or equivalent with limits
of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury and property
damage and Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000) general aggregate including property
damage, bodily injury, and personal & advertising injury.

2. Workers' Compensation Insurance - Licensee shall provide workers’
compensation coverage as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,
and Employer’s Liability Insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 each accident for
bodily injury/$1,000,000 disease-each employee/$1,000,000 disease-policy limit.

3. Waiver of Subrogation: The insurer(s) named above agree to waive all rights of
subrogation against the SCVWA, its elected or appointed officers, officials,
authorized volunteers and employees for losses paid under the terms of this policy
which arise from work performed by the Named Insured for the Agency, but this
provision applies regardless of whether or not the SCVWA has received a waiver
of subrogation from the insurer.

4. Property insurance against all risks of loss to any Licensee or SCVWA
improvements or betterments on the SCVWA Property or SCVWA Access Road,
at full replacement cost with no coinsurance penalty provision.

If Licensee maintains broader coverage under such policies, the SCVWA requires and shall be
entitled to the broader coverage maintained by the Licensee. Any available insurance proceeds in
excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the
SCVWA.

Required Provisions - The Commercial General Liability policy is to contain, or be endorsed to
contain, the following provisions:

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 12 of 13
55396.00018\41364662.1

32



1. Additional Insured Status: SCVWA, its directors, officers, employees, and
authorized volunteers are to be included as additional insureds as their interest may
appear under this License using blanket additional insured endorsements at least as
broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 10 01 or CG 20 11 or equivalent as respects: liability
arising out of the use of the SCVWA Access Road, or activities performed by the
Licensee thereon including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection
with such activities, and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Licensee.
The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded
to SCVWA, its directors, officers, employees, and authorized volunteers.

2. Primary Coverage: For any claims related to Licensee’s use of the SCVWA
Access Road or the SCVWA Property, Licensee’s commercial general liability
insurance coverage shall be primary as respects to the SCVWA, its directors,
officers, employees, and authorized volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance
maintained by the SCVWA, its directors, officers, employees, and authorized
volunteers shall be excess of the Licensee’s insurance and shall not contribute with
it.

Notice of Cancellation: Upon receipt of notice from its insurer(s), Licensee shall provide the
SCVWA with thirty (30) days’ prior written notice of cancellation of any required coverage.

Acceptability of Insurers - Insurance is to be placed with insurers having a current A.M. Best rating
of no less than A-:VII or better or as otherwise approved by SCVWA.

Licensee agrees it will comply with such provisions before commencing the License. The SCVWA
reserves the right to obtain complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including
declaration page. Failure to continually satisfy the insurance requirements herein shall be a
material breach of contract.

Verification of Coverage - Licensee shall furnish the SCVWA with certificates of insurance and
blanket additional insured endorsements effecting coverage required by the above provisions.

All certificates and endorsements are to be received and reasonably approved by the SCVWA at
least five days before the Licensee’s use of the SCVWA Access Road commences.

Access License Agreement
Plum Canyon. Skyblue Tank Site
Plum Canyon/MDG 5000158632

Page 13 of 13
55396.00018\41364662.1

33



[This page intentionally left blank.]

34



RESOLUTION NO. XXXX

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
AUTHORIZING SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY TO
EXECUTE A NON-EXCLUSIVE ACCESS LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH LOS
ANGELES SMSA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP D/B/A VERIZON WIRELESS AND
FINDING THAT THE CONTRACT IS EXEMPT FROM CEQA PURSUANT TO CEQA
GUIDELINES SECTION 5061(b)(3)

WHEREAS, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (“Agency”) owns property located off of
Whites Canyon Road (Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 2812-009-903, 2812-009-904, and
2812-009-902), known as the Agency’s Whites Canyon Tank Site, formerly known as
Sky Blue Tank Site as depicted in Exhibit 1; and

WHEREAS, Agency’s abutting property owner at the Sky Blue Tank Site, the George L.
Rhone and Joan E. Rhone Family Trust dated June 15, 1984 (collectively, “Rhone
Family Trust”) and Los Angeles SMSA Limited Partnership, a California limited
partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless (“Verizon”) entered into an Option and Land Lease
Agreement to allow the Verizon to construct and operate a wireless communication
facility on the Rhone Family Trust’s property located in the City of Santa Clarita, County
of Los Angeles—assigned Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 2812-009-120 and 2801-013-038
(“Rhone Family Trust Property”); and

WHEREAS, Agency maintains an access road connecting the Whites Canyon Tank Site,
formerly known as Sky Blue Tank Site to Whites Canyon Road (“Access Road”); and

WHEREAS, Verizon has requested to use the Access Road for pedestrian and vehicular
ingress and egress access purposes, and the Agency is willing to grant such an access
license to Verizon; and

WHEREAS, Agency staff and Verizon have subsequently negotiated a Non-Exclusive
Revocable Access License Agreement (“License Agreement”) with the necessary rights
of ingress and egress over the Access Road for pedestrian and vehicular access for the
purpose of installing, operating, removing, and maintaining the Verizon’s wireless facility
located on the abutting Rhone Family Trust Property; and

WHEREAS, the Engineering and Operations Committee has reviewed the proposed
License Agreement, held a public hearing and recommended the License Agreement’s
approval; and

WHEREAS, the Engineering and Operations Committee has found that the License
Agreement is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental
Quality (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3), the “common sense
exemption," which provides that CEQA applies only to projects that have the potential for
causing a significant effect on the environment, and the License Agreement does not
have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment; and

WHEREAS, Agency, a public agency of the State of California duly organized, validly
existing under and pursuant to the Constitution and the laws of the State of California,
created January 1, 2018 by an act of the State Legislature (SB 634), has the requisite

55396.00018'\41853684.1

35



legal right, power, and authority to execute and deliver the Revocable Non-Exclusive
Access License Agreement and carry out and consummate all transactions
contemplated therein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s
Board of Directors does hereby find and determine as follows:

1.

6.

The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are made findings of the
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors, and by this reference
made an operative part of this Resolution.

The License Agreement in substantially the form on file with the Clerk of the
Board and attached hereto as Exhibit 2 is hereby authorized and approved.

The Agency’s General Manager (the “Authorized Representative”) or designee is
hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the License Agreement
with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be recommended by
general counsel to Agency and approved by the Authorized Representative
executing the same, said execution being conclusive evidence of such approval.
The Authorized Representative or designee and any other proper officer of the
Agency is hereby authorized to represent the Agency in carrying out the
Agency’s responsibilities under the License Agreement, including but not limited
to execution and delivery of any and all documents and instruments and
completion or causing completion of any and all acts and things necessary or
proper for carrying out the transactions contemplated by the License Agreement
and this Resolution or other required documentation.

Unless otherwise defined herein, all terms used herein and not otherwise defined
shall have the meanings given such terms in the License Agreement unless the
context otherwise clearly requires.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and adoption.

LOCATION AND CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS. The documents associated that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings are based can be
requested from the Custodian of Record located at Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency,
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. The Custodian of Record is the
Board Secretary April Jacobs.

55396.00018'\41853684.1

36



ENGINEERING &
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

License Agreement with Verizon Wireless on Agency
Property and Finding that the Contract Agreement is
Exempt From CEQA

January 4, 2024 ‘
&0

37



LOCATION MAP

B L.A. County Waterworks District #36
B Newhall Water Division
|1 santa Clarita Water Division

[l Valencia Water Division
= SCV Water Boundary

SCV

WATER

38



PROPOSED LICENSE AGREEMENT

License Fee Term Termination
$5,000.00 / Co-terminus Either party
year, annual with 2012 can terminate
increase 3% Ground Lease for any reason

SCV

WATER

39



Access Transfer
Rights
48 hr advance No
written notice, assignment or
option for sublicensing
Agency escort by Verizon

40

PROPOSED LICENSE AGREEMENT

Insurance &
Indemnity

Verizon
obligations;
hazardous
materials
protections & ScV
WATER



RECOMMENDATION

The Engineering and Operations Committee should recommend that the Board of
Directors approve the attached resolution authorizing the General Manager, or
designee, to enter into the attached License Agreement with Los Angeles SMSA
Limited Partnership, a California limited partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless, and
take all necessary actions to carry out the intent of the proposed License
Agreement. The Engineering and Operations Committee should also find that the
license agreement is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section
15061(b)(3).

SCV

WATER

41



[This page intentionally left blank.]

42



ITEM NO.

ol |

WATER
COMMITTEE MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 12, 2023
TO: Engineering and Operations Committee
FROM: Courtney Mael, P.E. (AL

Chief Engineer

SUBJECT Recommend Approval of Adopting a Resolution to Adopt the Final Mitigated
Negative Declaration (Sch # 2023090505) and Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Program and Approval of a Purchase Order for Final Design
Services for Honby Tank Pipeline Improvement Project

SUMMARY

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency) proposes to install a new pipeline to the Honby
Tanks from Honby Avenue across the Santa Clara River. The Honby pipeline conveys water
to and from the Honby Tanks and the Honby booster station. The existing pipeline has been
identified as a bottle neck in the system. The planning services for the new pipeline have been
completed and the next step is to perform final design. On October 11, 2023, staff issued a
final design request for proposals on Planet Bids and received one proposal on November 15,
2023 from Kennedy Jenks Consultants Inc (KJ). Staff recommends that the Engineering and
Operations Committee recommend approval of adopting a resolution to adopt the final
mitigated negative declaration (sch # 2023090505) and mitigation monitoring and reporting
program and approval of a purchase order for final design services for Honby Tank Pipeline
Improvement Project (Project).

DISCUSSION

The Honby Pipeline is located within the Santa Clarita Valley and traverses along and within the
Santa Clara River. Multiple wells feed into the Honby tanks via the Honby Pipeline. The existing
Honby Pipeline is a 16-inch steel pipe beginning at the north bank of the Santa Clara River at
the Honby Tanks and continues south of the mountain side. The steel pipe alternates from
buried and exposed going down the mountain.

The existing pipeline is currently not encased under the riverbed. After the pipe crosses the river
the pipeline alignment turns west paralleling the river until it reaches an access road. The
pipeline then turns south along the access road from the river. The access road then becomes
Honby Avenue, and the pipeline follows Honby Avenue to the intersection of Honby Avenue and
Santa Clara Street, where it turns west to connect to the pump station on Santa Clara Street.

Kennedy Jenks Consultants Inc had performed a preliminary study and determined the existing
pipeline must be upsized to handle the required flows. The existing pipeline is not encased
under the Santa Clara River, therefore, the existing pipeline will be abandoned in place. A new
24- or 30-inch inside diameter pipeline shall be installed based on the hydraulic analysis and the

43


lquintero
New Stamp

lquintero
COURTNEY INITIALS


new pipeline will be buried along the entire alignment. The pipe size, material and horizontal
and vertical alignment will be finalized during the final design.

On October 11, 2023, staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to five (5) of the Agency’s on-
call consultants for the final design services of the pipeline. On November 15, 2023, staff
received one (1) proposal from Kennedy Jenks Consultants Inc. The proposal was reviewed
and evaluated by staff from the Engineering Services Section and the Treatment Operations
and Maintenance Department. The evaluation team reviewed the proposal based on the
qualifications-based selection procedure applying the following criteria: responsiveness
(conformance and compliance) to the RFP requirements, project understanding, project
approach, responsibilities (resources/ capability/ qualifications/availability) to perform the work,
scope of work, and schedule. The final design scope of work services will include but are not
limited to, existing data review, geotechnical investigation, scour analysis, utilities locating,
preparing construction drawings and technical specifications, permitting, construction cost
estimate, and attending meetings, etc. Based on KJ’s qualifications and proposal, staff is
recommending KJ to provide final design services for the Project.

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) CONSIDERATIONS

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency is the lead agency for purposes of California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) as it pertains to the Honby Tank Pipeline Improvement Project (“Project”).
With the assistance of Rincon Consultants, an Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration
(IS/MND) (State Clearinghouse No. 2023090505) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program (MMRP) were prepared for the Project in accordance with the requirements of and the
State CEQA Guidelines.

The IS/MND was prepared to identify potentially significant impacts on the environment which
would result from the Project and concluded that these impacts can be avoided or reduced to a
level of insignificance with adoption and implementation of certain mitigation measures. In
particular, environmental factors that require mitigation measures to reduce impacts to less than
significant include biological resources, cultural resources, geology and soils, hazards and
hazardous materials, hydrology and water quality, land use and planning, noise, transportation,
tribal cultural resources, wildfire, and mandatory findings of significance. These mitigation
measures have been outlined in the MMRP.

Additional environmental compliance reports, including documents in accordance with the
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), will be prepared as needed for future grant funding
opportunities.

CEQA PUBLIC REVIEW PROCESS

On September 21, 2023, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency circulated a Notice of Intent (NOI)
to all responsible and reviewing agencies, the Office of Planning and Research, members of the
public that have requested notice, published the NOI in the Santa Clarita Valley Signal, and
posted the NOI with the Clerk of the Board of Directors for Los Angeles County, and released
the draft IS/MND in compliance with CEQA requirements for a 30-day review and comment
period by the public and reviewing agencies. The review period ended on October 23, 2023.

Comment letters were received from the California Department of Transportation and California

Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) to which responses have been provided in the Final
MND as Response Letters Nos. 1 and 2. The Response to Comments are enclosed as

44



Attachment 1 to this Staff Report. In response to CDFW comments, minor revisions to Mitigation
Measures BIO-4, BIO-6, and BIO-7 were made. These revisions strengthen the mitigation
measures to improve the effectiveness of the mitigation and were not required as a result of
new impacts. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15073.5(c)(1), replacement of mitigation
with equal or more effective measures does not warrant recirculation. Revisions to the Draft
MND are shown in underline/strikeout formatting of the Final MND and are limited to the
mitigation measure revisions described above.

FINAL CEQA DOCUMENTS FOR BOARD APPROVAL

The State CEQA Guidelines (California Code of Regulations (“CCR”), title 14, §15000 et seq.)
Section 15074, requires public agencies to review and consider an IS/MND and comments
received during the public review period prior to the adoption of the MND. Adoption of the Final
MND is dependent on the finding by the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s Board of Directors
that, based on the whole record before it, with the mitigation measures required by the MND,
that the proposed Project will not have a significant impact on the environment, and that the
MND reflects the Lead Agency’s independent judgement and analysis. The Honby Tanks
Pipeline Improvement Project Final MND, MMRP, and response letters can be found at
https://www.yourscvwater.com/pfas/treatment-facilities/swells under the section titled “Project
Documents”.

Additionally, State CEQA Guidelines Section 15097 require public agencies adopting an
IS/MND to adopt a program for monitoring or reporting to ensure that mitigation measures in the
IS/MND are implemented to mitigate or avoid potentially significant environmental impacts. The
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program can be found at
https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/engineering/environmental-
review/Honby-Tanks-Final-Mitigated-Negative-Declaration-Dec-2023.pdf

All the above documentation, including other materials that constitute the record of proceedings
upon which the Lead Agency decision is based, can be requested from the Custodian of Record
located at Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA
91350. The Custodian of Record is the Board Secretary April Jacobs.

STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS

The Project will help meet the Agency Objective and Strategic Plan B.1.1 “Implement capital
projects related to infrastructure reliability” and B.2.1 “Update and carryout capital projects
related to water system reliability and sustainability.”

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Funding for the Honby Tank Pipeline Improvement Project is included in the Agency’s
FY2023/24 Capital Improvement (CIP) Budget. The final design services will be performed on a
time and materials basis with a not-to-exceed amount of $370,000.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Engineering and Operations Committee recommends that the Board of Directors
approve adopting a resolution to adopt the Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration and

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program under the California Environmental Quality Act;
and approve the resolution authorizing a purchase order to Kennedy Jenks Consultants Inc for

45



an amount not to exceed of $370,000 for final engineering services for the Honby Tank Pipeline
Improvement Project.

Attachments

e?

46


eadler
Matt Stone initials


Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration

RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC.

Environmental Scientists | Planners | Engineers
rinconconsultants.com

47

prepared by

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
26521 Summit Circle

Santa Clarita, California 91350
Contact: Wai Lan Lee, PE, Engineer

prepared with the assistance of

Rincon Consultants, Inc.
180 North Ashwood Avenue
Ventura, California 93003

December 2023



This page intentionally left blank.

48



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration

RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC.

Environmental Scientists | Planners | Engineers
rinconconsultants.com

49

prepared by

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
26521 Summit Circle

Santa Clarita, California 91350
Contact: Wai Lan Lee, PE, Engineer

prepared with the assistance of

Rincon Consultants, Inc.
180 North Ashwood Avenue
Ventura, California 93003

December 2023



Table of Contents

Table of Contents

ACronyms and AbDreVIatioNS.........oocuiii i e s e e e e e e enneeeens iii

Initial Study 1

1. o=t o I o =P 1
2. Lead Agency/Project Sponsor Name and AdAress........coveeeveeeereeerreeeireeeireecreeereeeveeeeeennns 1
3. Contact Person and Contact INfOrmation .........ccceecveviiieiiiinie e 1
4. [ FoT 1T Mo Tor- 1 4 o o [P PP 1
5. General Plan Designation and ZONING......c.ueeeccuieeieiiee et cireeeecree et e e eeare e e eearee e eareeeenns 1
6. [ o) =Tt D= ol f] o1 4 [0 o PR PP 4
7. Surrounding Land Uses and SEHING ......ccccveeiiiie et 5
8. Other Public Agencies Whose Approval is Required ........c.ccveeeiiieeicceee e e 5
Environmental Factors Potentially Affected. ..ot 7
DL d=T 0 a1 o= A [0 o EO OO TP ST P PP P PPPPUTPPPPPP 7
ENVIronNmMental CheCKIiST . ... uiii it s e s sabe e e ssabae e s neeesnsreeeenns 9
1 YTy =Y i ol USSR 9
2 Agriculture and FOrestry RESOUICES........ccccieeeeiieeeeiieeeeeiteeestreeesiree e srreeessrteeeenneaeesnnnneas 13
3 F N[ @ LU | 11 Y PSPPSR 15
4 2T ToYfo) =qTor: | I YT T UL ol SR 25
5 LGN =TI =TT T o Y-SR 43
6 ENBIY ettt ettt e ee e e e e e aaaaaees 47
7 GEOIOZY AN SOIIS ..uueiieiiiee ettt et e e et e e et e e e ebe e e et a e e e e nreeeeareeeeas 49
8 Greenhouse Gas EMISSIONS ....uiicuiiiiieeieeciee ettt ste e s e e sete e snte e snseesaeeesaeeenens 55
9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials ..........ceovvieiieciee e 59
10 Hydrology and Water QUAlITY .......cccveeeeiiiieieiiee ettt ne e e e 67
11 Land Use and PIanning.......cccoocueerieenieeniienieerteeieeesieesieessteesteesseeseseesabesssseessseesssessaneess 75
12 Y Y= = | (oYU o 77
13 N OIS cettttetii e ettt e st e e e s s st e e e e e s st et e e e e s s e bbbt e e e e e e e b b e e eeessanabrtaeeesenaaraaaaeeees 79
14 Population and HOUSING .......coiiiiiiiiiieie ettt st st e st e st e sareesanee s 85
15 0 o] [ Tol YT Y ol TSRS 87
16 RECIEATION 1.ttt e e s s e e e e s s s sab e e e e e s s s sabbbaeeeesesannaeaaeees 89
17 TraNSPOITAtION ceeeiieeieeiee e e e s s e e e e e e e e e e e 91
18 Tribal CUTUIal RESOUICES ....c.uvvieeeiieee ettt ettt ettt e e tee e e s tae e e e trae e stre e e eettaeeenaaeesnreeas 93
19 Utilities and SErvice SYSTEMS .....ciiviie e e e ae e e 97
20 LT 1T PP 101
21 Mandatory Findings of SignifiCanCe .........coocuveiiiiiiiiiieee e 105
2] = =T ool 3SR 109
31T 0 T =4 2 o] 1Y 109
I oY o =T o T Y =T 113
Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration i

50



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Tables
Table 1 Attainment Status of Criteria Pollutants in Los Angeles County of SCAB..........ccccceevueenne 16
Table 2 SCAQMD Regional Significance Thresholds .........ccoccvvviieriiirie e 17
Table 3 SCAQMD LSTs for Construction and OPeration ......c..ececveeeeeieeeeiireeeecieeeeeieeeesreeeeeneee e 18
Table 4 Estimated Maximum Daily Construction EMissions.........cccceeeeeeeiiiveeeeeesecciieeee e eecnneeeeen, 20
Table 5 Project LST Construction EMISSIONS .......eeieviieieeiiiee e cee e eree e eee s eeee e nee e e saae e s 22
Table 6 Construction Air Pollutant Emissions — Mitigated .........ccccovvveeiiiecciieeee e, 24
Table 7 Summary of Vegetation and Land Cover Types in the Survey Areal ........cccceevveevcnnenns 35
Table 8 Impacts to USACE, RWQCB, and CDFW JUrisdiction ........ccceevvvveeeiieee s, 38
Table 9 Construction GHG EMISSIONS ....veivieeriieiiiiiieenieeste ettt siee e seeesieesbeesbeesbeeseeesasaesaneas 58
Table 10  Water Quality Impairments for Downstream Reaches of the Santa Clara River.............. 73
Table 11  General Plan CoNSIStENCY . ..ciiiiiiiiiiieee ettt ettt ectrrre e e e e rrree e e e e s e enbtaee e e e eennaaeaeeens 76
Table 12 Caltrans Vibration Damage Potential Threshold Criteria.......cccccvevcveericveeecciee e, 82
Figures
Figure 1 20T =4 1o T 1 I o Tt | e o TS 2
Figure 2 Project Sit@ LOCAtION ....uviiiiiiiiciteeee et e e e e e s s ra e e e s e s saaraaeeeee s 3
Figure 3 View of Project Site from the South, Facing NOrthwest ..........ccccceeviiiiiinnieinin e 10
Figure4  View of Project Site from the North, Facing SOUth..........ccceeviiiiccie e, 11
Figure 5  View of Project Site from the North, Facing SOUthWest ..........ccocceeiiiiiiiiiniiiiccec e 11
Figure 6 Vegetation Communities, Land Cover Types, and Special Status Species.........ccueeeueee.. 34
Figure 7 FEMA FIOO ZONES.......cutieeeiieeecittee ettt ettt e e et e e e e e e s eaaae e e e e s s e nnttaeeeseesnnnaaaaeens 71
Appendices
Appendix A Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Modeling Results
Appendix B Biological Resources Assessment and

Coastal California Gnatcatcher Focused Survey Report
Appendix C  Cultural Resources Assessment
Appendix D Noise Data and Analyses
Appendix E  Responses to Comments on the Draft IS-MND
Appendix F  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program
Il

51



Acronyms and Abbreviations

Acronyms and Abbreviations

APN
AQMP
AWWA
BAAQMD
BP

CAA
CAAQS
CalEEMod
CalEPA
CalRecycle
Caltrans
CAO
CARB
CDFW
CDO
CEQA
co

CO,
COze
CRHR
dB

DOC
DPM
DTSC
ESLs
FEMA
FHWA
Fps

FTA
FTBMI
GHG

Assessor’s Parcel Number

Air Quality Management Plan

American Water Works Association

Bay Area Air Quality Management District
Business Park

Clean Air Acts

California Ambient Air Quality Standards
California Emissions Estimator Model
California Environmental Protection Agency
California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
California Department of Transportation
Cleanup and Abatement Orders

California Air Resources Board

California Department of Fish and Wildlife
Cease and Desist Orders

California Environmental Quality Act

Carbon monoxide

carbon dioxide

carbon dioxide equivalent

California Register of Historical Resources
decibel

California Department of Conservation

diesel particulate matter

California Department of Toxic Substance Control
Environmental Screening Levels

Federal Emergency Management Agency
Federal Highway Administration

feet per second

Federal Transit Administration

Fernandefio Tataviam Band of Mission Indians

Greenhouse Gases

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration iii

52



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

gpm gallons per minute

GSA Groundwater Sustainability Agency

GSP Groundwater Sustainability Plan

HMMSCP Hazardous Materials Management and Spill Control Plan
IPCC Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change

LACRWQB Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board

Leq one-hour equivalent noise level

LF linear feet

LHMP Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

LSTs Localized Significance Thresholds

LUST leaking underground storage tank

MRZ-2 Mineral Resource Zone 2

NAAQS National Ambient Air Quality Standards

NAHC Native American Heritage Commission

NOx nitrogen oxides

NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

NU5 Non-Urban 5

PE Professional Engineer

PG Professional Geologist

PMio particulate matter with diameters of ten microns or less
PMys particulate matter with diameters of 2.5microns or less
PPV peak particle velocity

PRC Public Resources Code

RCNM Roadway Construction Noise Model

RMS Root Mean Squared

ROGs reactive organic gases

RTP/SCS Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy
RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board

SCAB South Coast Air Basin

SCAG Southern California Association of Governments
SCAQMD South Coast Air Quality Management District

SCCIC South Central Coastal Information Center

SCMC Santa Clarita Municipal Code

iv

53



SCV Water
SFB RWQCB
SGMP

SLF

SRA

SRA

SvP
SWPPP
SWRCB
TACs

UR2
USACE
USDA
USEPA
USFWS
USGS
VHFHSZ
VMT

VOCs
WEAP

Acronyms and Abbreviations

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board
Soil and Groundwater Management Plan
Sacred Lands File

source receptor area

State Responsibility Area

Society of Vertebrate Paleontology

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
California State Water Resources Control Board
toxic air contaminants

Urban Residential 2

US Army Corps of Engineers

United States Department of Agriculture

United States Environmental Protection Agency
United States Fish and Wildlife Service

United States Geologic Survey

Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone

vehicle miles traveled

volatile organic compounds

Worker Environmental Awareness Program

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration

54



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

Vi

55



Initial Study

Initial Study

1. Project Title

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

2. Lead Agency/Project Sponsor Name and Address

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
26521 Summit Circle
Santa Clarita, California 91350

3. Contact Person and Contact Information

Wai Lan Lee, PE, Engineer
Phone: (661) 259-2737
Email: wlee@scvwa.org

4, Project Location

The project site is located on Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 2801-001-900, 2805-002-008, 2805-
002-902, and 2805-013-900 and within public rights-of-way within Santa Clarita, California. See
Figure 1 for a map of the regional project location and Figure 2 for a map of the project site location
in a local context.

5. General Plan Designation and Zoning

The City of Santa Clarita’s General Plan land use designation and zoning designation for the project
site is: Non-Urban 5 (NU5), Urban Residential 2 (UR2), and Business Park (BP).

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 1

56



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Figure 1 Regional Location

Angeles
National
Forest

Castaic Lake State
Recreational

v Area

Castaic

14
Santa Clarita
Stevenson Ranch
Rocky > 3 4 12104
Peak ° !
Park d 2
San Fernando
(27 Yegmnd
0 2.5 5 Miles 4 4
@ (i)
Imagery provided by Esri and its licensors © 2023.
99
N
* Project Location A Bakersfield =
e 58
Eal Barstow V|
Los Padres Lancaster
National A5 4 L 15/
Forest Palmdale Victorville
14
Santa Barbara Angeles
s National
imi Valley Forest
Oxnard R
AnLoesles < Ontario
g Riverside 60 4104
o Anaheim |mna
W  santaAna »
Murrieta
Oceanside

57



Initial Study

Figure 2 Project Site Location

)
sy

.

SN

> Alignment D SCV Water Pump Station Staging Site
"1 Alignment Buffer 100-ft [ staging at APN 2805-002-902

= K I ™ 7 Tank Staging Site

0 175 350
A
Feet

Imagery provided by Microsoft Bing and its licensors © 2023.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 3

58



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

6. Project Description

Background

The Honby Pipeline is a critical piece of Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency’s (SCV Water)
infrastructure, connecting the Honby Tanks on the north side of the Santa Clara River to the pump
stations and wells that supply the tanks on the south side of the river. The Honby Pipeline conveys
water to and from the Honby Tanks and the Honby Booster Station. Well SC-8, Well SC-9, Santa
Clarita Wells, Honby Well, and the North Oak Wells all feed into the Honby tanks via the Honby
Pipeline. The Honby Pipeline has been identified as a hydraulic bottleneck and requires replacement
to ensure water supply reliability and longevity for the SCV Water system.

Project Description

The Honby Tanks Pipeline Project (herein referred to as “proposed project” or “project”) would
involve construction and operation of a new pipeline to convey water to and from the Honby Tanks
and the Honby Booster Station. The new pipeline would be constructed of either steel or ductile
iron and would be upsized from 16 inches in diameter to between 24 to 30 inches in diameter. The
pipeline would follow the alignment of the existing Honby Pipeline downhill from the Honby Tank
site to the Santa Clara River and would be approximately 2,608 feet in length. The pipeline would
cross the Santa Clara River then head west, parallel to the river to the intersection with Honby
Avenue. Once the pipeline intersects with Honby Avenue, it would turn south, and connect with the
existing pipeline at the intersection of Honby Avenue and Santa Clara Street. Figure 2 shows the
pipeline alignment. A minimum 20-foot permanent easement and additional 20-foot temporary
easement would be required for the project. The proposed pipeline would be buried underground
for the entirety of the alighment and would not have any above ground components upon
completion. The project would require the removal of the fencing bordering the Honby Tanks due to
the limited work area at the top of the slope. At the end of the existing pipeline’s usable life, the
existing Honby pipeline would be abandoned in place.

Construction

Before it is abandoned in place, the existing pipeline would be drained of any water and then filled
with grout or cellular concrete. Concrete plugs would be installed at each end of the existing
pipeline.

The new pipeline would be installed via open cut installation across the river and on the hillside.
This is expected to require dewatering, which may include treatment of groundwater prior to
discharge into a storm drain or into the Santa Clara River. Tight sheet shoring to protect the trench
would be required due to the potential of groundwater and potential sloughing of alluvial soils.

Construction of the proposed project would occur between October 2024 and January 2026
Construction activities would typically occur between 7:00 A.M. and 4:00 PM Monday through Friday.
No nighttime construction is proposed. Occasional weekend work may be required.

Construction personnel vehicles would be parked along Furnivall Avenue as well as on the SCV
Water-owned pump station located on the northeast corner of Santa Clara Street and Furnivall
Avenue, as needed. Staging is anticipated at several locations including the SCV Water-owned tank
site at the top of the hill, the SCV Water easement behind Rio Vista Elementary school, and the SCV
Water-owned pump station located on the northeast corner of Santa Clara Street and Furnivall
Avenue.

59



Initial Study

Construction of the project would have a ground disturbance of approximately 2.4 acres. Given the
project would disturb over one acre, the project would be subject to the requirements of the
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Construction General Permit. The
Construction General Permit requires the development of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP). The work area on the hillside would require approximately 40 total feet of width. The
majority of the excavation would be approximately 10 feet deep.

Construction within the Santa Clara River bed would occur over the course of one month. The
segment of pipeline underlying the Santa Clara River would be installed at a depth below the known
river scour level, which is estimated to be 20 feet. The pipe would be installed with a minimum of
24.5 feet of cover. Construction methods include the use of lighttight sheet shoring to allow
groundwater to be pumped from the trench.

Approximately 300 cubic yards of soil would be exported via haul trucks. Twenty (20) haul truck trips
would occur for soil export. Approximately 400 cubic yards of soil would be imported from offsite
sources for pipe bedding. Twenty-five (25) haul truck trips would occur for soil import.

Operation and Maintenance

As previously discussed, the proposed project would upsize the existing pipeline from 14 to 16
inches in diameter to 24 or 30 inches in diameter. The velocity in the proposed pipeline would be
approximately 5.0 feet per second (fps) with approximate flow of 9,450 gallons per minute (gpm).

The project would not involve any new operation and maintenance activities. No new employees
would be required.

/. Surrounding Land Uses and Setting

The project site is surrounded residential development to the east and south, the Santa Clara River
to the east and west, open space to the north, Rio Vista Elementary School to the south, and
industrial uses to the west.

8. Other Public Agencies Whose Approval is Required

SCV Water is the lead agency for this project. The project would also require the following
approvals:

= US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE): Nationwide Permit 58

= (California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW): Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement

= Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (LACRWQB): NPDES Construction General
Permit, Clean Water Act Section 401 Certification

= United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS): permits related to the presence of federally-
listed species may be required

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 5

60



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

61



Environmental Factors Potentially Affected

Environmental Factors Potentially Affected

This project would potentially affect the environmental factors checked below, involving at least
one impact that is “Potentially Significant” or “Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated” as
indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

O Aesthetics O  Agriculture and B Air Quality
Forestry Resources

[ | Biological Resources B Cultural Resources O  Energy

O Geology and Soils O  Greenhouse Gas B Hazards and Hazardous
Emissions Materials

[ | Hydrology and Water O Land UseandPlanning O  Mineral Resources
Quiality

O Noise O  Population and O  Public Services

Housing

O Recreation B Transportation B Tribal Cultural Resources

O Utilities and Service B Wildfire B Mandatory Findings
Systems of Significance

Determination

Based on this initial evaluation:

O | find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment,
and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

[ | | find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the
environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions to the
project have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

O | find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

O | find that the proposed project MAY have a “potentially significant impact” or “less than

significant with mitigation incorporated” impact on the environment, but at least one
effect (1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable
legal standards, and (2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier
analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is
required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration

62



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

O | find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the
environment, because all potential significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in
an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have
been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION,
including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project,
nothing further is required.

Signature Date

Printed Name Title

63



Environmental Checklist
Aesthetics

Environmental Checklist

1 Aesthefics

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact

Except as provided in Public Resources Code Section 21099, would the project:

a. Have a substantial adverse effect on a
scenic vista? O O O [ |

b. Substantially damage scenic resources,
including but not limited to, trees, rock
outcroppings, and historic buildings
within a state scenic highway? O O O [ |

¢. Innon-urbanized areas, substantially
degrade the existing visual character or
quality of public views of the site and its
surroundings? (Public views are those
that are experienced from a publicly
accessible vantage point). If the project is
in an urbanized area, would the project
conflict with applicable zoning and other
regulations governing scenic quality? O O O [ |

d. Create a new source of substantial light or
glare that would adversely affect daytime
or nighttime views in the area? O O O [ |

a. Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

According to the City of Santa Clarita’s General Plan Conservation and Open Space Element (2011a),
“scenic resources” can include “natural open spaces, topographic formations, and landscapes that
contribute to a high level of visual quality.” The General Plan describes scenic resources in the Santa
Clarita Valley as mountains and canyons, woodlands, water bodies, and Vasquez Rocks County Park.
The City’s General Plan does not specifically define scenic vistas; therefore, there are no designated
scenic vistas in the vicinity of the project site.

The Conservation and Open Space Element of the City’s General Plan specifically identifies several
large mountain and canyon regions that are of aesthetic importance to the community, including
Placerita Canyon, Whitney Canyon, Elsmere Canyon, Bouquet Canyon, San Francisquito Canyon,
Sand Canyon, Pico Canyon, and Towsley Canyon (City of Santa Clarita 2011a). The project site is not
located in any of these identified regions of aesthetic importance nor is it visible from them.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 9

64



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Although the project site itself contains undeveloped natural land, it is located in a suburban setting
and is surrounded by residential, institutional, and industrial development. Photographs
representative of the project site and surrounding area are shown below in Figure 3, Figure 4, and
Figure 5. The project site is not located in a region identified by the City’s General Plan as a scenic
vista or scenic resource area. As such, the proposed project would not have a substantial adverse
effect on a scenic vista. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

Figure 3 View of Project Site from the South, Facing Northwest

65



Environmental Checklist
Aesthetics

Figure 4 View of Project Site from the North, Facing South

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 11

66



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

b.  Would the project substantially damage scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees,
rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway?

The project site is not located near a designated state scenic highway, as identified by the California
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) (Caltrans 2018). The closest designated state scenic
highway is State Route 2, located approximately 20 miles to the southeast of the project site. Due to
distance and intervening topography, the project site is not visible from State Route 2. Therefore,
the project would not substantially damage scenic resources within a state scenic highway. No
impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

c. Would the project, in non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character
or quality of public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are
experienced from a publicly accessible vantage point). If the project is in an urbanized area,
would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic
quality?

Pursuant to Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 21071, an incorporated city with a population of at
least 100,000 people meets the criteria for an urbanized area. Santa Clarita has a population of
approximately 221,345 people and is therefore considered an urbanized area under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA; California Department of Finance 2021). The project would
include installation of an underground pipeline. Pursuant to California Government Code 53091, the
building and zoning ordinances of a county or city do not apply to the location or construction of
facilities for the production, storage, or transmission of water, wastewater, or electrical energy by a
local agency. During operation, the project would be entirely belowground, and the project site
would return to its existing visual character. Therefore, the project, as proposed, would not
substantially degrade visual character, and does not conflict with any applicable local land use and
zoning policies or other regulations governing scenic quality. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT
d. Would the project create a new source of substantial light or glare that would adversely affect
daytime or nighttime views in the area?

Construction would occur during daytime hours and would not require the use of lighting.
Therefore, construction-related impacts to light and glare would not occur.

No permanent lighting or sources of glare be installed as part of the project Therefore, operational-
related impacts to light and glare would not occur.

NO IMPACT

67



Environmental Checklist
Agriculture and Forestry Resources

2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact

Would the project:

a. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland,
or Farmland of Statewide Importance
(Farmland), as shown on maps prepared
pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and
Monitoring Program of the California
Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? a a O ]

b. Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural
use or a Williamson Act contract? O O O [ |

c. Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in
Public Resources Code Section 12220(g));
timberland (as defined by Public Resources
Code Section 4526); or timberland zoned
Timberland Production (as defined by
Government Code Section 51104(g))? O O O [ |

d. Resultin the loss of forest land or
conversion of forest land to non-forest
use? O | O [ ]

e. Involve other changes in the existing
environment which, due to their location
or nature, could result in conversion of
Farmland to non-agricultural use or
conversion of forest land to non-forest
use? O | O [ |

a. Would the project convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide
Importance (Farmland), as shown on maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

b.  Would the project conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act
contract?

c. Would the project conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined
in Public Resources Code Section 12220(g)); timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code
Section 4526); or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code
Section 51104(g))?

d. Would the project result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 13

68



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

e. Would the project involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their
location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use or conversion
of forest land to non-forest use?

According to the California Department of Conservation (DOC) Farmland Mapping and Monitoring
Program (2022a), the project site and surrounding areas are not designated as Prime Farmland,
Farmland of Statewide Importance, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Local Importance. The project
site is not located on land enrolled under the Williamson Act or zoned for agricultural use (DOC
2022b). Therefore, the project would not convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of
Statewide Importance (Farmland) to non-agricultural use and would not conflict with zoning for
agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract. There is no adjacent land to the project site that is
zoned or designated for agriculture. Due to the absence of agricultural land on or near the project
site, the project would not involve changes to the existing environment that could result in
conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use. No impact to agricultural resources would occur.

The project site and its surroundings do not contain forest land. Neither the project site nor
surrounding properties are zoned for forest land, timberland, or timberland production. Therefore,
the project would not involve changes to the existing environment that could result in the loss of
forest land or the conversion of forest land to non-forest use. No impact to forestry resources would
occur.

NO IMPACT

69



Environmental Checklist

Air Quality
Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact
Would the project:
a. Conflict with or obstruct implementation
of the applicable air quality plan? O O O [ |
b. Resultin a cumulatively considerable net
increase of any criteria pollutant for
which the project region is non-
attainment under an applicable federal
or state ambient air quality standard? O O [ | O
c. Expose sensitive receptors to substantial
pollutant concentrations? O [ | O O
d. Result in other emissions (such as those
leading to odors) adversely affecting a
substantial number of people? O O | O

Overview of Air Pollution

The federal and State Clean Air Acts (CAA) mandate the control and reduction of certain air
pollutants. Under these laws, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and the
California Air Resources Board (CARB) have established the National Ambient Air Quality Standards
(NAAQS) and the California Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS) for “criteria pollutants” and
other pollutants. Some pollutants are emitted directly from a source (e.g., vehicle tailpipe, an
exhaust stack of a factory, etc.) into the atmosphere, including carbon monoxide, volatile organic
compounds (VOC)/reactive organic gases (ROG),! nitrogen oxides (NOx), particulate matter with
diameters of ten microns or less (PM1o) and 2.5 microns or less (PMz;s), sulfur dioxide, and lead.
Other pollutants are created indirectly through chemical reactions in the atmosphere, such as
ozone, which is created by atmospheric chemical and photochemical reactions primarily between
VOC and NOx. Secondary pollutants include oxidants, ozone, and sulfate and nitrate particulates
(smog). Air pollutants can be generated by the natural environment, such as when high winds
suspend fine dust particles.

1 CARB defines VOC and ROG similarly as, “any compound of carbon excluding carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, carbonic acid, metallic
carbides or carbonates, and ammonium carbonate,” with the exception that VOC are compounds that participate in atmospheric
photochemical reactions. For the purposes of this analysis, ROG and VOC are considered comparable in terms of mass emissions, and the
term VOC is used in this IS-MND.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 15

70



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Air pollutant emissions are generated primarily by stationary and mobile sources. Stationary sources
can be divided into two major subcategories:

=  Point sources occur at a specific location and are often identified by an exhaust vent or stack.
Examples include boilers or combustion equipment that produce electricity or generate heat.

= Area sources are widely distributed and include such sources as residential and commercial
water heaters, painting operations, lawn mowers, agricultural fields, landfills, and some
consumer products.

Mobile sources refer to emissions from motor vehicles, including tailpipe and evaporative
emissions, and can also be divided into two major subcategories:

= On-road sources that may be legally operated on roadways and highways.
=  Off-road sources include aircraft, ships, trains, and self-propelled construction equipment.

Air Quality Standards and Attainment

The project site is located is located in the South Coast Air Basin (SCAB), which is under the
jurisdiction of the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). As the local air quality
management agency, SCAQMD is required to monitor air pollutant levels to ensure that the NAAQS
and CAAQS are met and, if they are not met, to develop strategies to meet the standards.
Depending on whether the standards are met or exceeded, the SCAB is classified as being in
“attainment” or “nonattainment.” In areas designated as non-attainment for one or more air
pollutants, a cumulative air quality impact exists for those air pollutants. As the local air quality
management agency, SCAQMD must monitor air pollutant levels to ensure that the NAAQS and
CAAQS are met. If they are not met, the SCAQMD must develop strategies for their region to meet
the standards. The strategies to achieve attainment status are included as part of the Air Quality
Management Plan (AQMP). The SCAB is currently designated nonattainment for the ozone NAAQS
and CAAQS, the PM;o CAAQS, and the PM, s NAAQS and CAAQS. The Los Angeles County portion of
the SCAB is also designated nonattainment for lead (CARB 2022). The proposed project is in Los
Angeles County which is within the SCAB and under the jurisdiction of the SCAQMD. This
nonattainment status results from several factors, the primary ones being the naturally diverse
meteorological conditions that limits the dispersion and diffusion of pollutants, the limited capacity
of the local airshed to eliminate air pollutants, and the number, type, and density of emission
sources within the SCAB. The attainment status for Los Angeles County portion of SCAB is included
in Table 1.

Table 1 Attainment Status of Criteria Pollutants in Los Angeles County of SCAB

Pollutant State Designation ‘ Federal Designation
Ozone Nonattainment Nonattainment
PMa1g Nonattainment Attainment

PM;s Nonattainment Nonattainment

co Attainment Attainment

NO, Attainment Attainment

SO, Attainment Attainment

Lead Attainment Nonattainment

Sources: CARB 2022a

71



Environmental Checklist
Air Quality

Air Quality Management Plan

To meet the NAAQS and CAAQS, the SCAQMD has adopted a series of AQMPs that serve as a
regional blueprint to develop and implement an emission reduction strategy that will bring the area
into attainment with the standards in a timely manner. The most significant air quality challenge in
the Air Basin is to reduce NOx emissions to meet the 2037 ozone standard deadline for the non-
Coachella Valley portion of the SCAB, as NOx plays a critical role in the creation of ozone. The 2022
AQMP includes strategies to ensure the SCAQMD does its part to further the district’s ability to
meet the 2015 federal ozone standards (SCAQMD 2022). The 2022 AQMP builds on the measures
already in place from the previous AQMPs and includes a variety of additional strategies such as
regulation, accelerated deployment of available cleaner technology, best management practices, co-
benefits from existing programs, incentives, and other Clean Air Act measures to meet the 8-hour
ozone standard.

The SCAQMD’s strategy to meet the NAAQS and CAAQS distributes the responsibility for emission
reductions across federal, State, and local levels and industries. The majority of these emissions are
from heavy-duty trucks, ships, and other State and federally regulated mobile source emissions that
the majority of which are beyond SCAQMD’s control. The SCAQMD has limited control over truck
emissions with rules such as Rule 1196. In addition to federal action, the 2022 AQMP relies on
substantial future development of advanced technologies to meet the standards, including the
transition to zero- and low-emission technologies. The AQMP also incorporates the transportation
strategy and transportation control measures from Southern California Association of Governments
(SCAG)’s 2020-2045 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (Connect
SoCal) (SCAG 2020).

Air Emission Thresholds

The SCAQMD approved the CEQA Air Quality Handbook in 1993. Since then, the SCAQMD has
provided supplemental guidance on their website to address changes to the methodology and
nature of CEQA. Some of these changes include recommended thresholds for emissions associated
with both construction and operation of the project are used to evaluate a project’s potential
regional and localized air quality impacts (SCAQMD 2023). Table 2 presents the significance
thresholds for regional construction and operational-related criteria air pollutant and precursor
emissions being used for the purposes of this analysis.

Table 2 SCAQMD Regional Significance Thresholds

75 pounds per day of VOC 55 pounds per day of VOC
100 pounds per day of NOx 55 pounds per day of NOx
550 pounds per day of CO 550 pounds per day of CO
150 pounds per day of SOx 150 pounds per day of SOx
150 pounds per day of PMyo 150 pounds per day of PMyo
55 pounds per day of PMy 5 55 pounds per day of PMy s

VOC: volatile organic compound; NOx: nitrogen oxides; CO: carbon monoxide; SOx: sulfur oxides; PMio: particulate matter measuring
10 microns in diameter or less; PMz.s: particulate matter measuring 2.5 microns in diameter or less

Source: SCAQMD 2023

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 17

72



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

In addition to the above regional thresholds, the SCAQMD has developed Localized Significance
Thresholds (LSTs) in response to concern regarding exposure of individuals to criteria pollutants in
local communities. LSTs have been developed for NOx, CO, PM1o, and PM. s and represent the
maximum emissions from a project that will not cause or contribute to an air quality exceedance of
the most stringent applicable federal or State ambient air quality standard at the nearest sensitive
receptor. LSTs take into consideration ambient concentrations in each source receptor area (SRA),
distance to the sensitive receptor, and project size. LSTs have been developed for emissions
generated in construction areas up to five acres in size. LSTs only apply to emissions in a fixed
stationary location and are not applicable to mobile sources, such as cars on a roadway (SCAQMD
2009).

The project site is within SRA 13 (Santa Clarita Valley). SCAQMD provides LST lookup tables for
project sites that measure one, two, or five acres. The project disturbance area is approximately
0.29 acre; therefore, this analysis utilizes the one-acre LSTs. LSTs are provided for receptors at
distances of 82, 164, 328, 656, and 1,640 feet from the project disturbance boundary to the
sensitive receptors. The project analysis assumes construction activity would occur adjacent to
sensitive receptors at the Rio Vista Elementary School. The allowable emissions for the project
analysis uses the 82 foot threshold. The LST threshold for construction for the proposed project is
shown in Table 3.

Table 3 SCAQMD LSTs for Construction and Operation

Allowable Emissions for a one-Acre Site in SRA-13
for a Receptor 82 Feet Away (pounds per day)

Pollutant Construction Operation
Gradual conversion of NOx to NO; 63.31 63.31
co 590.0 590.0
PM1g 4.0 1.0
PMys 2.42 0.82

NOy = nitrogen oxides; NO; = nitrogen dioxide; CO = carbon monoxide; PMio = particulate matter with a diameter no more than 10
microns; PMas = particulate matter with a diameter no more than 2.5 microns. CAAQS = California Ambient Air Quality Standards;
SCAQMD = South Coast Air Quality Management District; USEPA = Untied States Environmental Protection Agency, NAAQS = National
Ambient Air Quality Standards; LST = Localized Significance Threshold

1The screening criteria for NOx were developed based on the 1-hour NO2 CAAQS of 0.18 ppm. Subsequently to publication of the
SCAQMD’s guidance the USEPA has promulgated a 1-hour NO2 NAAQS of 0.100 ppm. This is based on a 98th percentile value, which is
more stringent than the CAAQS. Because SCAQMD’s LSTs have not been updated to address this new standard, to determine if project
emissions would result in an exceedance of the 1-hour NO; NAAQS, an approximated LST was estimated to evaluate the federal 1-hour
NO; standard. The revised LST threshold is calculated by scaling the NO: LST for by the ratio of 1-hour NO; standards (federal/state)
(i.e., 114 pounds/day * (0.10/0.18) =63.3 pounds/day).

2The screening criteria for PM.s were developed based on an Annual CAAQS of 15 mg/m?3. Subsequently to publication of the
SCAQMD’s guidance the annual standard was reduced to 12 mg/m?3. Because SCAQMD’s LSTs have not been updated to address this
new standard, to determine if project emissions would result in an exceedance of the annual PM2.s CAAQS, an approximated LST was
estimated. The revised LST threshold is calculated by scaling the PMas LST for by the ratio of 24-hour PM. s standards (federal/state)
(i.e., 3 and 1 pound/day * (12/15) =2.4 and 0.8 pound/day).

Source: SCAQMD 2008

Toxic Air Containments Thresholds

SCAQMD has developed significance thresholds for the emissions of toxic air contaminants (TACs)
based on health risks associated with elevated exposure to such compounds. For carcinogenic
compounds, cancer risk is assessed in terms of incremental excess cancer risk. A project would
result in a potentially significant impact if it would generate an incremental excess cancer risk of 10

73



Environmental Checklist
Air Quality

in 1 million (1 x 10°®) or a cancer burden of 0.5 excess cancer cases in areas exceeding a one-in-one-
million risk. In addition, non-carcinogenic health risks are assessed in terms of a hazard index. A
project would result in a potentially significant impact if it would result in a chronic and acute
hazard index greater than 1.0 (SCAQMD 2023).

Methodology

Air pollutant emissions generated by project construction were estimated using the California
Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod), version 2022.1. CalEEMod uses project-specific information,
including land use, square footage for different uses, and location, to model a project’s construction
and operational emissions.

Project construction would primarily generate temporary criteria pollutants from on-site
construction equipment operation, construction worker vehicle trips to and from the site, and off-
site export of materials. Construction of the proposed project was analyzed based on the SCV
Water’s provided pipeline details, which includes constructing 2,608 linear feet (LF) of new pipeline.
It is assumed a four-foot-wide trench would be excavated to install the new pipeline segments.
Project construction would begin in October 2024 and end in January 2026. SCV Water provided the
construction equipment list for each construction phase, and approximately 400 cubic yards of soil
would be imported on site and 300 cubic yards of soil exported off site. The soil material would be
hauled to Sunshine Canyon Landfill, approximately 9.3 miles from the project site. The analysis
assumes the construction equipment would be diesel-powered, and the project would comply with
applicable regulatory standards. In particular, the project would comply with SCAQMD Rule 403 for
dust control measures and Rule 1113 for architectural coating VOC limits.

a. Would the project conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

A project may be inconsistent with the AQMP if it would generate population, housing, or
employment growth exceeding forecasts used in the development of the AQMP. The 2022 AQMP,
the most recent AQMP adopted by the SCAQMD, incorporates local general plans and SCAG’s
Connect SoCal socioeconomic forecast projections of regional population, housing, and employment
growth.

The proposed project involves construction of a pipeline that would not directly generate
population growth through the construction of housing. Given the small-scale nature of project
construction activities, it is likely construction workers would be drawn from the existing, regional
workforce and would not indirectly result in the relocation of people to Santa Clarita. In addition, no
new SCV Water employees would be required to operate and maintain the project. Furthermore,
the purpose of the project is to convey water to and from the Honby Tanks and the Honby Booster
Station. The Well SC-8, Well SC-9, Santa Clarita Wells, Honby Well, and the North Oak Wells are fed
into the Honby Tanks via the Honby Pipeline. The Honby Pipeline has been identified as a hydraulic
bottleneck and requires replacement to ensure water supply reliability and longevity for the SCV
Water system. The project would address the hydraulic bottleneck and would not expand capacity
beyond what is currently available. Therefore, the project would not result in population growth and
would not have the potential to conflict with or obstruct implementation of the AQMP. No impact
would occur.

NO IMPACT

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 19

74



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

b.  Would the project result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for
which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air
quality standard?

Construction

Project construction would generate temporary air pollutant emissions associated with fugitive dust
(PMyo and PM3s) and exhaust emissions from heavy construction equipment and construction
vehicles. In addition, construction equipment would release VOC emissions during the drying of the
paving phase during road repair along Honby Avenue. Table 4 summarizes the estimated maximum
daily emissions of pollutants during project construction. As shown therein, construction-related
emissions would not exceed SCAQMD thresholds. Therefore, project construction would not result
in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is
non-attainment under an applicable federal or State ambient air quality standard. Impacts would be
less than significant.

Table 4 Estimated Maximum Daily Construction Emissions

Pollutant (pounds/day)

Construction co SO,

2024 3.8 32.0 36.9 <1 4.5 2.7
2025 4.4 37.3 46.3 <1 4.9 29
2026 0.3 1.8 2.3 <1 0.2 0.1
Maximum Daily Emissions 4.4 373 46.3 <1 4.9 2.9
SCAQMD Regional Threshold 75 100 550 150 150 55
Threshold Exceeded? No No No No No No

pounds/day = pounds per day; VOC = volatile organic compounds NOx = nitrogen oxides; CO = carbon monoxide; SO = sulfur dioxide;
PMio = particulate matter 10 microns in diameter or less; PMa.s = particulate matter 2.5 microns or less in diameter

Notes: Some numbers may not add up precisely due to rounding considerations.

Source: CalEEMod worksheets in Appendix A, see Table 2.3 “Construction Emissions by Year, Mitigated” emissions. Highest of Summer
and Winter emissions results are shown for all emissions. The mitigated emissions account for project sustainability features and/or
compliance with specific regulatory standards.

Operation

The project would not require new operations and maintenance activities within the SCV Water
service area upon completion of construction activities. Therefore, no new operational emissions
would be generated, and project operation would not result in a cumulatively considerable net
increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is in non-attainment under an
applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard. No impact would occur.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

20

75



Environmental Checklist
Air Quality

c.  Would the project expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Sensitive Receptors

According to the SCAQMD, sensitive receptors include residences, schools, playgrounds, childcare
centers, long-term healthcare facilities, rehabilitation centers, convalescent centers, and retirement
homes (SCAQMD 2005). Sensitive receptors nearest to the project site consist of students adjacent
to the project site at Rio Vista Elementary School. Because the project would not result in an
increase of operational vehicle trips, this project would not emit the levels of CO necessary to result
in a localized hot spot. Therefore, CO hotspots are not discussed further in this document. The
project does not include any stationary sources of air pollutant emissions, and once construction is
complete, the proposed project would not require additional operation and maintenance activities
beyond those already occurring to operate and maintain the SCV Water system. Therefore, project
operation would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations and is not
discussed further. Localized air quality impacts to sensitive receptors typically result from localized
criteria air pollutant emissions and TACs, which are discussed in the following subsections.

Localized Significance Thresholds

The Final LST Methodology was developed to be used as a tool to analyze localized impacts
associated with specific proposed projects. If the calculated emissions for the proposed construction
or operational activities are below the LST emission levels found on the LST mass rate look-up tables
(Appendix C of Final LST Methodology; SCAQMD 2009) and no potentially significant impacts are
found to be associated with other environmental issues, then the proposed construction or
operation activity is not considered to be a significant impact on air quality. The project analysis
assumes construction activity would occur adjacent to Rio Vista Elementary School. The staging area
is located immediately north of the school property boundary and pipeline installation would occur
approximately 20 feet west of the eastern school boundary. According to the Final LST
Methodology, projects with boundaries located closer than 82 feet to the nearest receptor would
utilize LST thresholds for receptors located at 82 feet. Therefore, the allowable emission for the
project utilizes the 82-foot receptor distance, and the project is in SRA 13 (Santa Clarita Valley).
Table 5 summarizes the project’s maximum localized daily construction emissions from the
proposed project. As shown therein, localized construction emissions would exceed the SCAQMD
LST thresholds for PM1o and PM> s and mitigation would be required to reduce impacts to a less than
significant level.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 21

76



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Table 5 Project LST Construction Emissions

Pollutant (pounds/day)

co PMyo
Maximum Construction On-site Emissions 37.0 42.5 4.0t 2.7
SCAQMD LST 63.32 590.0 4.0 2.43
Threshold Exceeded? No No Yes Yes

pounds/day = pounds per day; NOx = nitrogen oxide; CO = carbon monoxide; PM1o = particulate matter with a diameter no more than
10 microns; PMy.s = particulate matter with a diameter no more than 2.5 microns; SCAQMD = South Coast Air Quality Management
District; LST = Localized Significance Threshold; CAAQS = California Ambient Air Quality Standards; USEPA = United States
Environmental Protection Agency; NAAQS = National Ambient Air Quality Standards

Notes: Maximum on-site emissions are the highest emissions that would occur on the project site from on-site sources, such as heavy
construction equipment and architectural coatings, and excludes off-site emissions from sources such as construction worker vehicle
trips and haul truck trips.

1Maximum on-site construction emissions for PMio is approximately 4.04 pounds/day. 2 The screening criteria for NOx were developed
based on the 1-hour NO2 CAAQS of 0.18 ppm. Subsequently to publication of the SCAQMD’s guidance the USEPA has promulgated a 1-
hour NO2 NAAQS of 0.100 ppm. This is based on a 98th percentile value, which is more stringent than the CAAQS. Because SCAQMD’s
LSTs have not been updated to address this new standard, to determine if project emissions would result in an exceedance of the 1-
hour NO2 NAAQS, an approximated LST was estimated to evaluate the federal 1-hour NO standard. The revised LST threshold is
calculated by scaling the NO; LST for by the ratio of 1-hour NO; standards (federal/state) (i.e., 114 pounds/day * (0.10/0.18) =63.3
pounds/day).

3The screening criteria for PM.s were developed based on an Annual CAAQS of 15 mg/m?3. Subsequently to publication of the
SCAQMD’s guidance the annual standard was reduced to 12 mg/m3. Because SCAQMD’s LSTs have not been updated to address this
new standard, to determine if project emissions would result in an exceedance of the annual PM2s CAAQS, an approximated LST was
estimated. The revised LST threshold is calculated by scaling the PMz.s LST for by the ratio of 24-hour PM.s standards (federal/state)
(i.e., 3 pounds/day * (12/15) =2.4 pounds/day).

Source: CalEEMod worksheets in Appendix A, see Tables 3.1 through 3.8 “Construction Emissions Details” emissions. The highest of
Summer and Winter emissions results are shown for all emissions. The mitigated emissions account for project sustainability features
and/or compliance with specific regulatory standards.

Toxic Air Contaminants

Toxic air contaminants (TACs) are a diverse group of air pollutants that may cause or contribute to
an increase in deaths or serious illness, or that may pose a present or potential hazard to human
health. TACs generally consist of four types: organic chemicals, such as benzene, dioxins, toluene,
and perchloroethylene; inorganic chemicals such as chlorine and arsenic; fibers such as asbestos;
and metals such as mercury, cadmium, chromium, and nickel. The primary TAC emitted by project
implementation would be diesel particulate matter (DPM) generated by heavy-duty equipment and
diesel-fueled delivery and haul trucks during construction activities. DPM was identified as a TAC by
the CARB in 1998 and is primarily composed of PM1o and PM5 s exhaust emissions (CARB 2023).

Generation of DPM from construction projects typically occurs in a single area for a short period of
time. Construction of the proposed project would occur in phases over approximately 16 months.
The dose to which the receptors are exposed is the primary factor used to determine health risk.
Dose is a function of the concentration of a substance or substances in the environment and the
extent of exposure that person has with the substance. Dose is positively correlated with time,
meaning a longer exposure period would result in a higher exposure level for the maximally exposed
individual. The risks estimated for a Maximally Exposed Individual are higher if a fixed exposure
occurs over a longer period of time. According to the California Office of Environmental Health
Hazard Assessment, health risk assessments, which determine the exposure of sensitive receptors
to toxic emissions, should be based on a 30-year exposure period; however, such assessments
should be limited to the period/duration of activities associated with the project. Thus, the duration
of proposed construction activities (i.e., 16 months) is approximately 4.4 percent of the total

22

77



Environmental Checklist
Air Quality

exposure period used for 30-year health risk calculations. Current models and methodologies for
conducting health-risk assessments are associated with longer-term exposure periods of nine, 30,
and 70 years, which do not correlate well with the temporary and highly variable nature of
construction activities, resulting in difficulties in producing accurate estimates of health risk
(BAAQMD [Bay Area Air Quality Management District]2023).

Maximum DPM emissions would occur during infrastructure installation construction activities. DPM
emissions would be lower during other construction phases such as paving and site restoration
because these phases would require less construction equipment. While the maximum DPM
emissions associated with infrastructure installation would only occur for approximately 13 months,
or 81 percent of the overall construction period, these activities represent the worst-case condition
for the total construction period. This would represent less than 3.6 percent of the total exposure
period for health risk calculation. The project would install approximately nine linear feet of pipeline
per day,? which equates to construction along the boundary of sensitive receptors of approximately 136
construction days;? in addition, the sensitive receptors at the nearby elementary school would not
typically occupy the site during the weekends or during school breaks. Therefore, project construction
activities would not represent the type of long-term TAC emission source exposure that typically
subjects sensitive receptors to significant health risk. Furthermore, construction activities would
also be subject to and would comply with California regulations limiting the idling of heavy-duty
construction equipment to no more than five minutes, which would further reduce nearby sensitive
receptors’ exposure to temporary and variable DPM emissions. Compliance with the standard
construction measures required by the SCAQMD would also further reduce nearby sensitive
receptors’ exposure to temporary and variable DPM emissions. As such, project construction would
not expose sensitive receptors to substantial TAC concentrations, and impacts would be less than
significant.

Mitigation Measures

AQ-1 Construction Particulate Matter Emissions Reduction

The proposed project’s unpaved demolition and construction areas, including unpaved staging
areas, shall be wetted at least three times per day during the overlap of Infrastructure Installation
and Paving phases.

Significance After Mitigation

With incorporation of Mitigation Measure AQ-1, the project would reduce fugitive PM1o and PM, 5
emissions by approximately 74 percent, as compared to SCAQMD Rule 403 to water site twice per
day to reduce fugitive PM1o and PM; s by 61 percent. As shown in Table 6, criteria pollutant
emissions would not exceed LST thresholds. Therefore, construction activities would not expose
sensitive receptors to criteria pollutants and construction-related health impacts would be less than
significant with mitigation incorporated.

2 Total pipeline (2,608 linear feet) divide by construction days (284 days) = 9.18 linear feet per day
3 Estimated pipeline length along Rio Vista Elementary School boundary (1,1250 linear feet) divide by nine linear feet installation per
construction day = 136 construction days.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 23

78



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Table 4 Construction Air Pollutant Emissions — Mitigated

Maximum Daily Emissions (pounds/day)

Maximum On-site Emissions 37.0 42.5 3.2 2.3
SCAQMD LST 63.31 590.0 4.0 2.42
Threshold Exceeded? No No No No

pounds/day = pounds per day; NOx = nitrogen oxide; CO = carbon monoxide; PMio = particulate matter with a diameter no more than
10 microns; PMzs = particulate matter with a diameter no more than 2.5 microns; SCAQMD = South Coast Air Quality Management
District; LST = Localized Significance Threshold

Notes: Maximum on-site emissions are the highest emissions that would occur on the project site from on-site sources, such as heavy
construction equipment and architectural coatings, and excludes off-site emissions from sources such as construction worker vehicle
trips and haul truck trips.

1The screening criteria for NOx were developed based on the 1-hour NO, CAAQS of 0.18 ppm. Subsequently to publication of the
SCAQMD’s guidance the USEPA has promulgated a 1-hour NO2 NAAQS of 0.100 ppm. This is based on a 98th percentile value, which
is more stringent than the CAAQS. Because SCAQMD’s LSTs have not been updated to address this new standard, to determine if
project emissions would result in an exceedance of the 1-hour NO2 NAAQS, an approximated LST was estimated to evaluate the
federal 1-hour NO; standard. The revised LST threshold is calculated by scaling the NO, LST for by the ratio of 1-hour NO; standards
(federal/state) (i.e., 114 pounds/day * (0.10/0.18) =63.3 pounds/day).

2The screening criteria for PM..s were developed based on an Annual CAAQS of 15 mg/m?3. Subsequently to publication of the
SCAQMD’s guidance the annual standard was reduced to 12 mg/m?3. Because SCAQMD’s LSTs have not been updated to address this
new standard, to determine if project emissions would result in an exceedance of the annual PM2.s CAAQS, an approximated LST was
estimated. The revised LST threshold is calculated by scaling the PM..s LST for by the ratio of 24-hour PM.s standards (federal/state)
(i.e., 3 pound/day * (12/15) =2.4 pound/day).Source: CalEEMod worksheets in Appendix A, see Tables 3.1 through 3.8 “Construction
Emissions Details” emissions. The highest of Summer and Winter emissions results are shown for all emissions. The mitigated
emissions account for project sustainability features, watering site 3 times per day and/or compliance with specific regulatory
standards.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

d. Would the project result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting
a substantial number of people?

Project construction could generate odors associated with heavy-duty equipment operation and
earth-moving activities. Such odors would be temporary in nature and limited to the duration of
construction in the vicinity of the project site. The project contractor(s) would also be required to
adhere to SCAQMD Rule 402 (Nuisance), which prohibits discharge of air contaminants or any other
material from a source that would cause nuisance to any considerable number of persons or the
public, including odor. Project operation would involve conveyance of water via an underground
pipeline and would not result in the generation of odors. Therefore, the project would not result in
other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people,
and impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

24

79



Environmental Checklist
Biological Resources

4 Biological Resources

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact

Would the project:

a. Have a substantial adverse effect, either
directly or through habitat modifications,
on any species identified as a candidate,
sensitive, or special status species in local
or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or
by the California Department of Fish and
Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? O [ | O O

b. Have a substantial adverse effect on any
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural
community identified in local or regional
plans, policies, or regulations, or by the
California Department of Fish and Wildlife
or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? O [ | O O

c. Have a substantial adverse effect on state
or federally protected wetlands (including,
but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool,
coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling,
hydrological interruption, or other means? O [ | O O

d. Interfere substantially with the movement
of any native resident or migratory fish or
wildlife species or with established native
resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or
impede the use of native wildlife nursery
sites? O [ | O O

e. Conflict with any local policies or
ordinances protecting biological resources,
such as a tree preservation policy or
ordinance? O [ | O O

f.  Conflict with the provisions of an adopted
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural
Community Conservation Plan, or other
approved local, regional, or state habitat
conservation plan? O O O [ |

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 25

80



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

In June 2023, Rincon Consultants, Inc. prepared a final Biological Resources Assessment, including a
literature review and field reconnaissance survey, to document existing site conditions and the
potential presence of special-status biological resources, including plant and wildlife species, plant
communities, jurisdictional waters and wetlands, and habitat for nesting birds. The biological
reconnaissance survey encompassed the proposed project footprint (i.e., areas that are expected to
be affected by the proposed project, referred to in this section as the “project area.” The following
summarizes the findings of the assessment. The complete Biological Resources Assessment is
contained in Appendix B of this document.

a. Would the project have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat
modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special-status species in
local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and
Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

Special Status Plant Species

Fourteen special status plant species are known to occur or have the potential to occur within the
project site. Of the 14 plant species evaluated, two have moderate potential to occur (Catalina
mariposa lily and Plummer’s mariposa lily), and one has high potential to occur (slender mariposa
lily). Ground disturbance from project construction could directly result in the damage or removal of
special status plants if present on the site. Should special status species be encountered within the
project site, direct impacts could occur through injury or mortality to individuals by heavy
equipment during construction. Indirect impacts could result from habitat modifications, such as by
the introduction of invasive plants disseminated from construction equipment, contamination of
soils, and habitat degradation due to accidental fuel spills during construction.

Catalina mariposa lily, Plummer’s mariposa lily, and slender mariposa lily were not observed within
the project site during reconnaissance surveys, but they have a moderate to high potential to occur.
Given the proposed open cut trenching construction method, individuals of these species if present
could be removed, damaged, or disturbed by the project. Impacts to these species would be
potentially significant, but mitigable through implementation of Best Management Practices
(BMPs), a worker education program, pre-project botanical surveys, avoidance measures, and
compensatory mitigation requirements (if applicable) as prescribed under Mitigation Measures BIO-
1 through BIO-5.

Special Status Wildlife Species

Based on the database and literature review, 23 special status wildlife species are known or have
the potential to occur in the project site. Of the 23 wildlife species evaluated, 7 special status
wildlife species have low potential to occur, 9 have moderate potential, 4 have high potential, and 3
were present in the project site during the field survey. Coastal whiptail, turkey vulture, and
California towhee were present on the project site during the survey. California legless lizard, coast
horned lizard, Cooper’s hawk, and the southern California rufous-crowned sparrow have a high
potential to occur on the project site. Santa Ana sucker, unarmored threespine stickleback, arroyo
chub, Bell’s sage sparrow, coastal California gnatcatcher, least Bell’s vireo, western spadefoot,
arroyo toad, and San Diego black-tailed jackrabbit have a moderate potential to occur on the project
site. While Los Angeles County lists turkey vulture and California towhee as sensitive bird species,
they are common in the project area. With implementation of mitigation measures described
further below, potential direct and indirect impacts to special status wildlife species would be
reduced to less than significant.

26

81



Environmental Checklist
Biological Resources

Special Status Amphibians and Reptiles

Most of the special status wildlife species that may potentially occur within the project footprint are
capable of escaping harm during project construction, while others are potentially vulnerable to
direct impacts, including injury and mortality. Special status species that could be directly impacted
include potentially occurring land dwelling animals, including the coastal whiptail, silvery legless
lizard, coast (San Diego) horned lizard, as well as aquatic and semi-aquatic species such as arroyo
toad and western spadefoot.

The project’s use of open cut trenching to replace the existing line across the Santa Clara River has
the potential to directly impact these special status species. Open trench excavation consists of
digging down to and exposing the existing pipe, removing the existing pipe or a section of it,
installing a new pipe or a section of new pipe, and then backfilling the trench. Implementation of
Mitigation Measures BIO-6 and BIO-7 would require implementation of pre-construction surveys for
special status wildlife species and construction monitoring. Potential impacts to federally- and state-
listed wildlife species, if present, would require incidental take authorizations from the USFWS and
CDFW.

Coastal California Gnatcatcher and Least Bell’s Vireo

Protocol-level surveys conducted in 2023 determined that coastal California gnatcatcher was
absent, and least Bell’s vireo was not observed during any surveys. Similarly, protocol-level surveys
for least Bell’s vireo conducted downstream of the study area by Rincon in May 2020 determined
this species was absent from that area. Given the survey findings and the temporary duration and
limited size of project impacts, direct and indirect impacts to these species are not expected.

Special Status Fish Species

There are documented occurrences of unarmored threespine stickleback, Santa Ana Sucker, and
arroyo chub within 5 miles of the project area. The project’s use of open cut trenching to replace
the existing line across the Santa Clara River has the potential to directly impact these special status
species should flowing or standing water be present during construction. Implementation of
Mitigation Measure BIO-8 would restrict the construction window to avoid impacts to these species,
as well as arroyo toad and western spadefoot.

Special Status and Nesting Birds

The nests of most native birds and raptors are state and federally protected. It is likely birds use the
Survey Area for nesting (generally from early February through late August) given the mix of native
and non-native vegetation, as well as the number of bird species and individuals observed during
the survey. Implementation of the proposed project could result in direct or indirect impacts to
nesting birds, through the direct removal or trimming of vegetation. Project-related noise, vibration,
and increased lights can lead to the disturbance of nesting birds which may have a negative impact
on the animals. Although temporary, such disturbance can lead to the abandonment of a bird nest.

The project has potential to result in direct and indirect impacts to nesting birds, including species of
special concern, such as southern California rufous-crowned sparrow, Bell’s sage sparrow, and
Cooper’s hawk, and species protected under the MBTA and CFGC 3503, if they are nesting within
the project site and/or immediate vicinity during construction activities. Construction would occur
where ruderal vegetation, coastal sage scrub, and ornamental trees are present. Direct impacts
from construction activities include ground disturbance, which could potentially contain birds’ nests.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 27

82



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Indirect impacts include construction noise, lighting, and fugitive dust. These impacts could lead to
individual mortality or harassment that might reduce nesting success. Therefore, Mitigation
Measure BIO-9 would require a pre-construction nesting bird survey and protective buffers if
nesting birds are located.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-1 General Best Management Practices
General requirements which shall be followed by construction personnel are listed below.

= The contractor shall clearly delineate the construction limits and prohibit any construction-
related traffic outside those boundaries.

=  Project-related vehicles shall observe a 10-mile-per-hour speed limit within the unpaved limits
of construction.

= All open trenches or excavations shall be fenced and/or sloped to prevent entrapment of
wildlife species.

= All food-related trash items such as wrappers, cans, bottles, and food scraps generated during
proposed project construction shall be disposed of in closed containers only and removed daily
from the project site.

= No deliberate feeding of wildlife shall be allowed.
= No pets shall be allowed on the project site.
= No firearms shall be allowed on the project site.

= |f vehicle or equipment maintenance is necessary, it shall be performed in the designated
staging areas.

= |f construction must occur at night (between dusk and dawn), all lighting shall be shielded and
directed downward to minimize the potential for glare or spillover onto adjacent properties and
to reduce impacts on local wildlife.

= During construction, heavy equipment shall be operated in accordance with standard BMPs. All
equipment used on-site shall be properly maintained to avoid leaks of oil, fuel, or residues.
Provisions shall be in place to remediate any accidental spills.

=  While encounters with special status species are not anticipated, any worker who inadvertently
injures or kills a special status species or finds one dead, injured, or entrapped shall immediately
report the incident to the construction foreman or biological monitor. The construction foreman
or biological monitor should immediately notify SCV Water. SCV Water should follow up with
written notification to USFWS and/or CDFW within five working days of the incident. All
observations of federally listed species should be recorded on CNDDB field sheets and sent to
CDFW by SCV Water or the biological monitor.

BIO-2 Worker Environmental Awareness Program

A lead biological monitor shall conduct a pre-project environmental education program for all
personnel working at the site, which should be focused on conditions and protocols necessary to
avoid and minimize potential impacts to biological resources. Prior to initiation of construction
activities (including staging and mobilization), all personnel associated with project construction
shall attend a Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP) training, conducted by a qualified
biologist, to aid workers in recognizing special status biological resources potentially occurring in the

28

83



Environmental Checklist
Biological Resources

project area. This training shall include information about the special status species with potential to
occur in the project area. The specifics of this program shall include identification of special status
species and habitats, a description of the regulatory status and general ecological characteristics of
special status resources, and review of the limits of construction and measures required to avoid
and minimize impacts to biological resources within the work area. A fact sheet conveying this
information shall be prepared for distribution to all contractors, their employees, and other
personnel involved with construction of the project. All employees working at the project site shall
sign a form provided by the trainer documenting they have attended the WEAP and understand the
information presented to them. The crew foreman shall be responsible for ensuring crew members
adhere to the guidelines and restrictions designed to avoid impacts to special status species.

BIO-3 Special Status Plant Surveys

To avoid impacts to special status plants, surveys for special status plants shall be completed prior
to any vegetation removal, grubbing, or other construction activity within this area. The surveys
shall be floristic in nature, seasonally timed to coincide with the blooming period of the target
species (Catalina mariposa lily, Plummer’s mariposa lily, and slender mariposa lily), and be
conducted by a qualified biologist.

Special status plant species identified on-site shall be mapped onto a site-specific aerial photograph
and topographic map. Surveys should be conducted in accordance with the most current protocols
established by the CDFW and USFWS. A report of the survey results shall be submitted to SCV Water
for review and approval.

BIO-4 Special Status Plant Avoidance Measures

If special status plants are detected during special status plant surveys, avoidance of the special
status plants shall occur where feasible and vegetation clearing within 50 feet of any identified rare
plant will be conducted by hand, if practicable. Any rare plant eeeurrences occurrence shall have
bright orange protective fencing installed at least 50 feet beyond theiits extent, or other distance
as approved by a qualified biologist, to protect them-it from harm.

If avoidance is not feasible, SCV Water shall offset the proposed loss of individual plants at a
minimum 4% 2:1 ratio by on-site restoration (salvage, replanting, and propagation). The open scrub
and grassland habitats in the Survey Area would be a suitable location for on-site restoration.
Compensation for impacts to these species may also be accomplished by preservation of an on-site
populations or off-site populations in the vicinity of the site at a minimum of a :& 3:1 ratio if
present.

BIO-5 Special Status Plant Mitigation and Monitoring Plan

If special status plants are detected and would be impacted by project construction, a Special Status
Plant Mitigation and Monitoring Plan that provides for the replacement of the species impacted by
the project shall be developed by a qualified restoration specialist.

The Special Status Plant Mitigation and Monitoring Plan shall specify the following:

= Asummary of impacts;
=  The location of the mitigation site;
=  Methods for harvesting seeds or salvaging and transplanting individuals to be impacted;

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 29

84



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

=  Measures for propagating plants or transferring living plants from the salvage site to the
mitigation site;

= Site preparation procedures for the mitigation site;

= Aschedule and action plan to maintain and monitor the mitigation area;

=  Criteria and performance standards by which to measure the success of the mitigation,
including replacement of impacted plants at a minimum 1:1 ratio;

=  Measures to exclude unauthorized entry into the mitigation areas; and

= Contingency measures such as replanting or weeding in the event that mitigation efforts are not
successful.

The performance standards for the Special-Status Plant Mitigation and Monitoring Plan shall be at a
minimum the following:

= Within five years after introducing the plants to the mitigation site, the number of established,
reproductive plants should equal the number lost to project construction, and

= Restoration will be considered successful after the success criteria have been met for a period of
at least 2 years without any maintenance or remediation activities other than invasive species
control.

The Special Status Plant Mitigation and Monitoring Plan shall be initiated prior to development of
the project and should be implemented over a five-year period. It can also be combined with the
Habitat Revegetation, Restoration, and Monitoring Program described under Mitigation Measure
BIO-10, below.

Annual reports discussing the implementation, monitoring, and management of the Special Status
Plant Mitigation and Monitoring Plan shall be submitted to SCV Water. Five years after the start of
the mitigation project, a final report shall be submitted, which should at a minimum discuss the
implementation, monitoring, and management of the Special Status Plant Mitigation and
Monitoring Plan over the five-year period, and indicate whether the Special Status Plant Mitigation
and Monitoring Plan has been successful based on established performance standards. Should the
success criteria be met before Year Five, the mitigation effort can be deemed complete.

BIO-6 Pre-activity Survey

Prior to commencement of ground or vegetation disturbing activities at the project site, a qualified
biologist shall conduct two surveys for special status wildlife species. The first survey shall be
conducted no more than fourteen (14) days prior to commencement of project activities and the
second survey shall be conducted no more than three (3) days prior to the commencement of
project activities. The survey shall incorporate methods to detect the special status wildlife species
that could potentially occur at the site. In addition, prior to commencement of project activities, a
qualified biologist shall be retained to conduct focused surveys according to the USFWS Survey
Protocol for the Arroyo Toad (USFWS 1999).

If special status species are observed within the project site during pre-activity surveys, a qualified
biologist shall draft a “Species Protection Plan” prior to the initiation of construction. At a minimum,
the plan shall include avoidance and minimization measures for each observed species. These
measures may include, but are not limited to:

= Species-specific Worker Environmental Awareness Program materials;

30

85



Environmental Checklist
Biological Resources

= Relocation methods including planned relocation areas for the protection of special status

species; and,
= Reporting requirements.

BIO-7 Qualified Biological Monitor

A qualified biological monitor familiar with special status species with potential to occur in the
project site shall be present during initial ground disturbance or vegetation removal activities. The
biological monitor shall have the authority to temporarily stop work if one or more special status
amphibian, reptile, or mammals are observed; the monitor shall then relocate these individuals to
suitable undisturbed habitat, outside the areas directly and indirectly affected by ground
disturbance activities. The biologist shall hold the requisite incidental take permits or authorizations
for the capture and handling of the species, if applicable. Relocation-ofafederally-orstate-listed
o R N i forr

A

A N

The monitor shall recommend measures to ensure compliance with all avoidance and minimization
measures, applicable permit conditions, and any conditions required by SCV Water. When the
biological monitor is present on site, they shall be responsible for:

=  Ensuring procedures for verifying compliance with environmental mitigation are followed;
= Lines of communication and reporting methods;

= Daily and weekly reporting of compliance;

= Construction crew WEAP training;

= Authority to stop work; and

= Action to be taken in the event of non-compliance.

BIO-8 Dry Season Construction

To eliminate the potential for impacts to the unarmored threespine stickleback, arroyo toad,
western spadefoot and other sensitive aquatic species and to minimize impacts to wildlife
movement corridors, construction within the Santa Clara River will be restricted to the dry season.
This period generally occurs from May 1 to September 15; however, construction can occur outside
this window provided no flowing or ponded water is present. In addition, surface elevations within
washes will be returned to preconstruction conditions prior to the end of the dry season.

BIO-9 Nesting Birds

Project-related activities shall occur outside of the bird breeding season (generally February 1 to
August 31) to the extent practicable. If construction must occur within the bird breeding season,
then no more than three days prior to initiation of ground disturbance and/or vegetation removal, a
nesting bird pre-construction survey shall be conducted by a qualified biologist within the
disturbance footprint plus a 100-foot buffer (300-for for raptors), where feasible. If the proposed
project is phased or construction activities stop for more than one week, a subsequent pre-

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 31

86



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

construction nesting bird survey shall be required prior to each phase of construction during the
nesting season.

Pre-construction nesting bird surveys shall be conducted during the time of day when birds are
active and shall factor in sufficient time to perform this survey adequately and completely. A report
of the nesting bird survey results, if applicable, shall be submitted SCV Water for review and
approval prior to ground and/or vegetation disturbance activities.

If nests are found, their locations shall be flagged. An appropriate avoidance buffer ranging in size
from 25 to 50 feet for passerines and up to 300 feet for raptors, depending upon the species and
the proposed work activity, shall be determined and demarcated by a qualified biologist with bright
orange construction fencing or other suitable flagging. Active nests shall be monitored at a
minimum of once per week until it has been determined the nest is no longer being used by either
the young or adults. No ground or vegetation disturbance shall occur within this buffer until the
qualified biologist confirms the breeding/nesting is completed and all the young have fledged. If
project activities must occur within the buffer, they shall be conducted at the discretion of the
qualified biologist. If no nesting birds are observed during pre-construction surveys, no further
actions would be necessary.

Significance after Mitigation

Mitigation Measure BIO-1 would establish best management practices for project construction that
would prevent entrapment of wildlife, protect wildlife from construction-associated safety hazards,
and protect wildlife from affects associated with nighttime lighting and noise. Mitigation Measure
BIO-2 would provide construction personnel with the necessary knowledge to identify special-status
species, including identification and procedures to follow.

Mitigation Measure BIO-3 would identify special status plant species present prior to construction. If
identified, Mitigation Measure BIO-4 would enforce avoidance measures to prevent disturbance or
harm to special status plant species. Mitigation BIO-5 would implement a Special Status Plant
Mitigation and Monitoring Plan. These three measures in conjunction would avoid direct impacts to
special status plants where feasible, and provide replacement plantings.

Mitigation Measures BIO-6 and BIO-7 would identify special status wildlife species present prior to
and during construction, and require avoidance or transfer of individuals of a protected species.
Mitigation Measure BIO-8 would avoid impacts to aquatic species by limiting construction within the
river bed to times when there is no flowing or ponded water. Mitigation Measure BIO-9 would
identify nesting birds present prior to construction, and require protective buffers around identified
nests.

These measures would focus on the necessary conditions and protocols to prevent and minimize
potential impacts on special status species with avoidance when feasible, and relocation or
restoration when avoidance is not feasible. Implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1 through
BIO-9 would reduce construction-related impacts to special status species to a less than significant
level.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

32

87



Environmental Checklist
Biological Resources

b.  Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive
natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, or requlations, or by the
California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

As shown in Figure 6, none of the three CDFW-designated sensitive natural vegetation communities
(red willow riparian woodland and forest, scalebroom - California buckwheat scrub, and Fremont
cottonwood forest and woodland) would be impacted by project activities. The project would
temporarily impact approximately 0.42 acre of vegetation communities and land cover types
classified as riparian habitat, and 0.81 acre of native scrub habitat comprised of big sagebrush scrub,
California sagebrush — California buckwheat scrub, and thick-leaved yerba santa scrub (Table 7).

Construction activities would directly affect 0.42 acre of riparian habitat and 0.81 acre of native
scrub habitat. In addition, potential indirect impacts from construction, such as erosion, runoff, dust
from excavation and construction equipment may have the potential to result in indirect impacts to
riparian habitat. Potential impacts associated with runoff would be minimized through
implementation of appropriate BMPs, including, but not limited to, straw wattles, silt fencing, and
plastic covers for soil spoils. Implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1, BIO-2, BIO-7, BIO-8, and
BIO-10 would further reduce potential impacts to sensitive habitats to less than significant.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 33

88



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Figure § Vegetation Communities, Lcmd Cover Types qnd Specml Status Species

l_':_. Survey Area (// Fremont Cottonwood |
e | Forestand Woodland *
': = Temporary Work Area -(0.1ac)
—— Alignment Mulefat Thickets - (0.7
D SCV Water Pump ac)
Station Staging Site - Mulefat-Tamarisk
Staging at APN Thickets - (1.4 ac)
2805-002-902 Red Willow Riparian
*
Tank Staging Site - \A{gozd:\:l;d and Farest
@® Coastal Whiptail - Riverwash - (6.1 ac)
Vegetation Commmunites sandbar Willow /
and Land Cover Types 1 Mesic Graminoids
Arroyo Willow - Thickets - (0.3 ac)
- Mulefat Thickets - (2.8
a) Scale Broom -
California Buckwheat
[ sig sagebrush - (2.8 ac) Scrub * - (0.6 ac)
California Sagebrush - Thick Leaved Yerba
[ california Buckwheat ... (3.0ac)
Serub - (20.9 ac) Wild Oats and Annual
Chamise - Buck Brush - Brome Grassland - (1.9
Chaparral - (1.2 ac) ac)
Chamise- California Disturbed/Developed -
Buckwheat Chaparral - - (10.9 ac)
{&.¥=g) * CDFW Sensitive
Natural Communities

ills;Ave’

5|uoe =
=)
ine Hil

TR
EYN/EEL

T

- A i

[ 5 &.o/ced"cfcﬁ}ék St
3 'y 5 J

o __xb‘ dh

g

Imagery provided by Microsoft Bing and its licensors © 2023.

34

89



Environmental Checklist
Biological Resources

Table 7 Summary of Vegetation and Land Cover Types in the Survey Areal

Temporary CDFW Sensitive

Vegetation Community or Land Approximate Project Impact Natural Community
Cover Type Acreage (Acres) Habitat Type (Yes/No)
Arroyo Willow Thickets - - Riparian G4S4; No
Shrubland Alliance

Arroyo Willow — Mulefat 2.8 0.02 Riparian G4S4; No

Thickets Association
Big Sagebrush Shrubland - - Upland G5S5; No
Alliance

Big Sagebrush Association 2.8 0.13 Upland Unranked; No
California Sagebrush — (Purple - - Upland G5S5; No
Sage) Scrub Shrubland Alliance

California Sagebrush — 20.9 0.58 Upland G4S4; No

California Buckwheat Scrub

Association
Chamise Chaparral Shrubland - - Upland G5S5; No
Alliance

Chamise — Buck Brush 1.2 - Upland G4?; No

Chaparral Association

Chamise — California 1.7 - Upland G4S4; No

Buckwheat Chaparral

Association
Fremont Cottonwood Forest - - Riparian G4S3; Yes

and Woodland Alliance

Fremont Cottonwood 0.1 - Riparian G2Q; Yes
Forest and Woodland
Association
Mulefat Thickets Shrubland - - Riparian G4S4; No
Alliance
Mulefat Thickets 0.7 - Riparian G5S5; No
Association
Mulefat — Tamarisk 14 0.10 Riparian Unranked; No

Thickets Association

Goodding's Willow — Red - - Riparian G4S3; Yes
Willow Riparian Woodland and
Forest Alliance

Red Willow Riparian 0.2 - Riparian GNR; Yes
Woodland and Forest
Association

Sandbar Willow Thickets - - Riparian G5S4; No
Shrubland Alliance

Sandbar Willow / Mesic 0.3 0.03 Riparian Unranked; No
Graminoids Thickets
Association

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 35

90



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Temporary CDFW Sensitive
Vegetation Community or Land Approximate Project Impact Natural Community
Cover Type Acreage (Acres) Habitat Type (Yes/No)
Scalebroom Scrub Shrubland - - Riparian G3S3; Yes
Alliance
Scalebroom - California 0.6 - Riparian Unranked; Yes
Buckwheat Scrub
Association
Deerweed - Silver Lupine - - - Upland G5S5; No
Yerba Santa Scrub Shrubland
Alliance
Thick Leaved Yerba Santa 3.0 0.10 Upland Unranked; No
Scrub Association
Wild Oats and Annual Brome - - Upland GNASNA; No

Grasslands Herbaceous Semi-
Natural Alliance

Wild Oats and Annual 1.9 0.04 Upland GNASNA; No
Brome Grasslands
Association
Riverwash 6.1 0.27 Riparian N/A
Disturbed/Developed 10.1 1.15 N/A N/A
Total 53.8 2.42 N/A N/A

1 Vegetation community ranks are from CDFW (2022). Associations are indicated in italics. CDFW sensitive natural communities are
indicated in bold.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-10Habitat Revegetation, Restoration, and Monitoring Program

SCV Water shall develop a Habitat Revegetation, Restoration, and Monitoring Program for
implementation in all native habitat areas directly affected by construction activities. The program
shall include the following measures:

= Invasive Species Control

o Where appropriate and feasible, the area to be disturbed shall be treated to kill invasive
exotic species and limit their seed production prior to initiating any earthmoving activity
with the objectives of (1) preventing invasive species from spreading from the disturbance
area, and (2) removing weed sources from the salvaged topsoil. Herbicides shall be used
only by a licensed herbicide applicator and may require notification to property owners or
resource agencies. The treatment shall be completed in advance of the earthmoving in
order for this mitigation to have its intended effect (e.g., the treatment would need to occur
prior to target species setting seed).

= Topsoil Salvage and Replacement

@ In areas where vegetation and soil are to be removed, the topsoil shall be salvaged and
replaced. This may be accomplished using two lifts, the first to salvage the seed bank, and
the second to salvage soil along with soil biota in the root zone. Soil shall be stockpiled in
two areas near the project site, with the seed bank labeled to identify it. Topsoil shall be
replaced in the proper layers after final reconfiguration of disturbed areas. Stockpiles shall

36

91



Environmental Checklist
Biological Resources

be covered if the soil is to be left for an extended period of time to prevent losses due to
erosion and invasion of weeds.

= Habitat Rehabilitation and Revegetation

@ Plans and specifications for replanting areas disturbed by the project shall be developed
with native species propagated from locally collected seed or cuttings, and, if applicable,
shall include seed of sensitive species that would be impacted during construction activities.

@ Monitoring procedures and performance criteria shall be developed to address revegetation
and erosion control. The performance criteria shall consider the level of disturbance and the
condition of adjacent habitats. Monitoring shall continue for 3-5 years, or until performance
criteria have been met, specifically the restoration/revegetation of disturbed native habitat
at a 1:1 ratio. Appropriate remedial measures, such as replanting, erosion control, or weed
control, shall be identified and implemented if it is determined that performance criteria are
not being met.

Significance After Mitigation

Mitigation Measure BIO-1 would establish best management practices for project construction that
would prevent entrapment of wildlife, protect wildlife from construction-associated safety hazards,
and protect wildlife from affects associated with nighttime lighting and noise. Mitigation Measure
BIO-2 would provide construction personnel with the necessary knowledge to identify special-status
species, including identification and procedures to follow. Mitigation Measure BIO-7 would identify
special status wildlife species present during construction, and require avoidance or transfer of
individuals of a protected species. Mitigation Measure BIO-8 would avoid impacts to aquatic species
by limiting construction within the river bed to times when there is no flowing or ponded water.
Mitigation BIO-10 would avoid direct impacts to sensitive habitats where feasible and provide
replacement plantings. Implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1, BIO-2, BIO-7, BIO-8, and BIO-
10 would reduce construction-related impacts to special status species to a less than significant
level.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

c. Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands
(including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling,
hydrological interruption, or other means?

No state or federally protected wetlands occur within the project site, but does cross seven
potentially jurisdictional features consisting of 5.93 acres of jurisdictional non-wetland waters of the
United Status (WOTUS) that may be regulated by the USACE, 5.93 acres of non-wetland waters of
the State that may be regulated by the RWQCB, and 13.04 acres of potentially jurisdictional COFW
streambed.

Project construction would involve open cut trenching across the Santa Clara River and portions of
Unnamed Drainage 6 (Table 8).

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 37

92



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Table 8 Impacts to USACE, RWQCB, and CDFW Jurisdiction

USACE Jurisdiction RWQCB Jurisdiction CDFW Jurisdiction
Non-Wetland Wetland
Non-Wetland Wetland Waters Waters of the Waters of the Streambed and
Waters of the of the U.S. State State Associated Riparian
U.S. (acres/linear (acres/linear (acres/linear (acres/linear Habitat (acres/linear

Feature feet) feet) feet) feet) feet)
Santa Clara 0.26/40 0/0 0.26/40 0/0 0.39/40
River
Unnamed 0.01/132 0/0 0.01/132 0/0 0.03/132
Drainage 6
Total 0.27/172 0/0 0.27/172 0/0 0.42/172

The proposed project would temporarily impact 0.26 acre of jurisdictional waters of the U.S. and
waters of the State and 0.42 acre of CDFW jurisdictional habitat.

Prior to ground disturbance activities that could impact these features, SCV Water would consult
with the appropriate regulatory agencies (Los Angeles RWQCB, CDFW, and/or USACE) anticipated to
assert jurisdiction over the features. The project is anticipated to require a Lake and Streambed
Alteration Agreement from the CDFW, a Water Quality Certification under Clean Water Act Section
401 from the Los Angeles RWQCB, and verification from the USACE under Nationwide Permit 58.
Based on such consultation, any required permits must be obtained prior to disturbance of
jurisdictional resources. With implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-10 and BIO-11, and
adherence to agency permit requirements and existing regulations, potential direct and indirect
impacts to jurisdictional habitat would be reduced to a less than significant level.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-11 Jurisdictional Habitat Best Management Practices

To avoid and/or minimize potential indirect impacts to jurisdictional waters and water quality, the
following Best Management Practices shall be implemented within 50 feet of a jurisdictional
feature:

=  Materials shall be stored on impervious surfaces or plastic ground covers to prevent any spills or
leakage and should be at least 50 feet from drainage features. Construction materials and spoils
shall be protected from stormwater runoff using temporary perimeter sediment barriers such as
bermes, silt fences, fiber rolls, covers, sand/gravel bags, and straw bale barriers, as appropriate.

= All vehicles and equipment shall be in good working condition and free of leaks. The contractor
shall prevent oil, petroleum products, or any other pollutants from contaminating the soil or
entering a watercourse (dry or otherwise). When vehicles or equipment are stationary, mats or
drip pans shall be placed below vehicles to contain fluid leaks.

= All re-fueling, cleaning, and maintenance of equipment shall occur at least 50 feet from
potentially jurisdictional waters.

= Adequate spill prevention and response equipment shall be maintained on-site and readily
available to implement to ensure minimal impacts to the aquatic and marine environments.

38

93



Environmental Checklist
Biological Resources

Significance After Mitigation

Mitigation BIO-10 would avoid direct impacts to sensitive habitats where feasible and provide
replacement plantings. Mitigation Measure BIO-11 would establish best management practices for
project construction that would protect jurisdictional features’ water quality. Implementation of
Mitigation Measures BIO-10 and BIO-11 would reduce construction-related impacts to special status
species to a less than significant level.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

d. Would the project interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or
migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife
corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

Wildlife movement corridors can be both large- and small-scale. At the regional/landscape-level
scale, the project site is not included within any mapped landscape models, such as an Essential
Connectivity Area or Natural Landscape block in the California Essential Habitat Connectivity Project:
A Strategy for Conserving a Connected California (Spencer et al. 2010). Habitat corridors are present
within the project site, notably including the Santa Clara River. The Santa Clara River has headwaters
in the San Gabriel Mountains and flows westward approximately 84 miles to the Oxnard Plain,
where it discharges into the Pacific Ocean. This is the largest river system in southern California that
remains in a relatively natural state, and it connects highly diverse habitat types.

The Santa Clara River provides a valuable movement and migration corridor for many types of
wildlife, including terrestrial, semi-aquatic, and aquatic species. The ridgeline along the northern
boundary of the project site may also provide a local corridor for wildlife traveling between the
Santa Clara River and residential developments to the north, east, and west.

Construction activities would be temporary, short-term, and would only occur during the daytime.
Project construction would result in a temporary decrease in the function of the corridor for wildlife
movement. Although the optimal path for wildlife movement (i.e., Santa Clara River) would be
temporarily affected by the project, the wildlife can, and would likely, traverse around the work
area (e.g., north of the tanks or south along the levee access road) during construction. In addition,
implementation of BMPs, including measures to prevent wildlife entrapment (e.g., wildlife escape
ramps) would reduce potentially significant impacts to wildlife movement to a less than significant
level.

With implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-8, construction within the riverbed would occur
when the river is dry (i.e., no flowing water). Therefore, impacts to resident or migratory fish would
be less than significant.

Project operation would not increase activities that could impact wildlife movement beyond existing
conditions. The pipeline would be installed below ground and would not interfere substantially with
the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native
resident or migratory wildlife corridors or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites. Impacts
would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 39

94



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

e. Would the project conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources,
such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance?

City of Santa Clarita General Plan

The City of Santa Clarita’s General Plan land use designation and zoning designation for the project
site is: Non-Urban 5 (NU5), Urban Residential 2 (UR2), and Business Park (BP). The City’s General
Plan Conservation and Open Space Element (2011) contains objectives and policies for biological
resources relevant to the proposed project given its location and/or proposed activities. These
objectives and policies focus on conservation of existing natural areas; restoration of damaged
natural vegetation; protection of wetlands, oak trees and other indigenous woodlands, and
endangered or threatened species and habitat; and protection of biological resources in significant
ecological areas and significant wildlife corridors.

Per the General Plan Policies CO 3.1.3, 3.1.6, and 3.1.9, on previously undeveloped sites, natural site
elements are to be preserved and biological resources are to be identified and habitat preservation
measures and construction best management practices (i.e., ensure preservation of habitat and
trees designated to be protected through use of fencing and other means as appropriate, so as to
prevent damage by grading, soil compaction, pollution, erosion or other adverse construction
impacts) are to be incorporated into the site plan, where appropriate. In addition, several special
status species, as described above in criterion (a) are expected to occur within the project site.

As identified above, these objectives and policies focus on conservation of existing natural areas;
restoration of damaged natural vegetation; protection of wetlands, oak trees and other indigenous
woodlands and endangered or threatened species and habitat; and protection of biological
resources in Significant Ecological Areas (SEA) and significant wildlife corridors. With
implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1 through BIO-11, impacts to biological resources
would be less than significant and the project would not conflict with policies protecting biological
resources in the City of Santa Clarita General Plan. Impacts would therefore be less than significant
with mitigation.

Santa Clara River Significant Ecological Area

The project site is located partially within the Santa Clara River SEA. The Santa Clara River SEA
covers the length of the river and with the watershed extensions, encompasses a wide variety of
topographic features and habitat types. The orientation and extent of the SEA extends from the
river's headwater tributaries and watershed basin to the point at which it exits Los Angeles County.
Project construction would potentially affect the SEA and its biological resources due to
construction activity in the project area. With implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1
through BIO-11, impacts to biological resources within the SEA would be less than significant. During
operation, the project would be entirely below ground, and the site would return to its existing
condition. No operational impacts to SEAs would occur.

40

95



Environmental Checklist
Biological Resources

Protected Trees

Within the city, there is currently an Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance (Section 17.51.040) under the
City’s Unified Development Code. This Ordinance focuses on the preservation of oak trees within
the City’s limits, requiring an oak tree permit for removal, cutting, pruning, relocation damage or
encroachment of healthy oak trees measuring six inches in circumference or larger at 4.5-feet above
grade. No oak trees were observed during the field surveys, and no tree removal is proposed as part
of the project. Therefore, no impacts to protected oak trees would occur.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

f. Would the project conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural
Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation
plan?

The project site is not located in an area subject to an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural
Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan
(Appendix B). Therefore, no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 41

96



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

42

97



Environmental Checklist
Cultural Resources

5 Cultural Resources

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact
Would the project:
a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the
significance of a historical resource
pursuant to §15064.57? O | O O
b. Cause a substantial adverse change in the
significance of an archaeological resource
pursuant to §15064.57? O [ | O O
c. Disturb any human remains, including
those interred outside of formal
cemeteries? O O [ | O

This section provides an analysis of the project’s impacts on cultural resources, including historical
and archaeological resources, as well as human remains. CEQA requires a lead agency to determine
whether a project may have a significant effect on historical resources (PRC Section 21084.1) and
tribal cultural resources (PRC Section 21074 [a][1][A-B]). A historical resource is a resource listed in,
or determined to be eligible for listing in, the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR); a
resource included in a local register of historical resources; or any object, building, structure, site,
area, place, record, or manuscript a lead agency determines to be historically significant (CEQA
Guidelines Section 15064.5[a][1-3]).

A resource shall be considered historically significant if it:

1. Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
California’s history and cultural heritage;

Is associated with the lives of persons important in our past;

Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of construction, or
represents the work of an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values; or

4. Hasyielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history.

In addition, if it can be demonstrated that a project would cause damage to a unique archaeological
resource, the lead agency may require reasonable efforts be made to permit any or all of these
resources to be preserved in place or left in an undisturbed state. PRC Section 21083.2(g) defines a
unique archaeological resource as an archaeological artifact, object, or site about which it can be
clearly demonstrated that, without merely adding to the current body of knowledge, there is a high
probability that it:

1. Contains information needed to answer important scientific research questions and that there is
a demonstrable public interest in that information;

2. Has a special and particular quality, such as being the oldest of its type or the best available
example of its type; or

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 43

98



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

3. s directly associated with a scientifically recognized important prehistoric or historic event or
person.

To the extent that resources cannot be left undisturbed, mitigation measures are required (PRC
Section 21083.2[a-b]).

In August 2022, Rincon Consultants, Inc. prepared a Cultural Resources Assessment for the project,
which included a cultural resources records search at the California Historical Resources Information
System South Central Coastal Information Center (SCCIC) located at California State University,
Fullerton; a Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) Sacred Lands File (SLF) search; a
pedestrian field survey; and historical topographic map and aerial imagery review. The complete
Cultural Resources Assessment is contained in Appendix C of this document.

The SCCIC records search was performed to identify previously recorded cultural resources as well
as previously conducted cultural resources studies within the project site and a 0.5-mile radius
surrounding it. Rincon received the SCCIC cultural resources records search results on January 14,
2022. The National Register of Historic Places, the CRHR, the Office of Historic Preservation Historic
Properties Directory, the California Inventory of Historic Resources, the Archaeological
Determinations of Eligibility list, and historical maps were also reviewed. The SCCIC records search
identified 22 cultural resources studies conducted within a 0.5-mile radius of the project site, 10 of
which evaluated portions of the project site. The SCCIC search identified one previously recorded
cultural resource within the 0.5-mile radius surrounding the project site. Resource P-19-004452/CA-
LAN-4452H is a historic period archaeological resource that consists of foundations, septic tanks,
and domestic refuse. This resource is not recorded within or adjacent to the project site.
Additionally, the SLF search returned positive results.

a. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource
pursuant to §15064.57?

b.  Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological
resource pursuant to §15064.57

The project site has been disturbed by the previous development of the existing water tanks and
pipeline. The SCCIC cultural resources records search results identified one cultural resource
recorded within the surrounding 0.5-mile radius (Appendix C). This resource is not recorded within
or adjacent to the project site. Rincon also reviewed historical aerials and topographic maps from
HistoricAerials.com to identify potential cultural resource concerns on the project site. Historical
topographic maps from 1900 to 1930 depict the project site as undeveloped land. Topographic
maps from 1930 to 1975 depict residential development to the south, with residential development
expanding to the north, west, and east. Aerial imagery from 1947 to 1999 confirms the uptick in
residential development in all directions around the project site, as depicted in the topographic
maps, with no development occurring within the project site itself (NETR Online 2021). Topographic
maps from 1975 depict the easternmost existing tank with an adjacent unpaved road, while the
westernmost existing tank is not depicted until the 1988 topographic map (United States Geologic
Survey [USGS] 2022; NETR Online 2022). Imagery from 2000 depicts the project site similar to its
current condition. A pedestrian field survey of the project site, completed on July 19, 2022,
identified no archaeological resources on site (Appendix C).

The two water tanks on the project site are approximately 45 years of age and therefore have
potential to be historical resources. However, project components will not alter the tanks, as all
proposed modifications will be limited to underground pipeline connections and are expected to

44

99



Environmental Checklist
Cultural Resources

occur in previously disturbed areas. The project will not physically alter or impact the tanks. The
field survey and background research did not identify any other built environment resources that
may be considered historical resources within or adjacent to the project site. The project therefore
does not have the potential to impact built environment historical resources. No impact would
occur.

No archaeological resources or archaeological deposits were identified within the project site. The
absence of substantial precontact or historic-period archaeological remains within the immediate
vicinity and the previous ground disturbance associated with construction and installation of the
existing water tanks and associated pipelines indicates there is low potential for encountering intact
subsurface archaeological deposits. However, the lack of surface evidence of archaeological
materials does not preclude the existence of buried archaeological deposits. Considering the alluvial
nature of the soils and the positive results of the SLF search, the overall potential for buried
archaeological resources at the project site is moderate. In the unlikely event of an unanticipated
discovery, impacts to unknown historical or archaeological resources would be potentially
significant. Therefore, implementation of Mitigation Measures CR-1 and CR-2 are required.

Mitigation Measures

CR-1  Worker Environmental Awareness Program

A Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP) training should be conducted by an
archaeologist who meets the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualifications Standards for
Archaeology and a local Native American representative prior to the commencement of any project-
related ground disturbances. The WEAP training should include a description of the types of cultural
materials that may be encountered, cultural sensitivity issues, the regulatory environment, and
protocols for treatment of the materials in the event of a find.

CR-2 Unanticipated Discovery of Cultural Resources

In the unlikely event archaeological resources are unexpectedly encountered during ground-
disturbing activities, work in the immediate area should be halted and an archaeologist meeting the
Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualifications Standards for archeology (National Park
Service 1983) should be contacted immediately to evaluate the find. If the find is prehistoric, then a
Native American representative should also be contacted to participate in the evaluation of the find.
Impacts to the find shall be avoided to the extent feasible; methods of avoidance may include, but
shall not be limited to, capping, fencing, or project redesign. If necessary, the evaluation may
require preparation of a treatment plan and archaeological testing for CRHR eligibility. If the
discovery proves to be eligible for the CRHR and cannot be avoided by the modified project,
additional work, such as data recovery excavation, may be warranted to mitigate significant impacts
to historical resources.

Significance After Mitigation

With implementation of Mitigation Measures CR-1 and CR-2, potential impacts related to historical
and archaeological resources would be reduced to a less-than-significant level.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 45

100



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

c¢.  Would the project disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal
cemeteries?

No cemeteries are known to exist within the project site. Although unlikely, the discovery of human
remains is always a possibility during ground-disturbing activities. If human remains are
unexpectedly found, California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 states no further disturbance
shall occur until the County Coroner has made a determination of origin and disposition pursuant to
PRC Section 5097.98. In the event of an unanticipated discovery of human remains, the County
Coroner would be notified immediately. If the human remains are determined to be prehistoric, the
County Coroner would notify the NAHC, which would determine and notify a most likely
descendant. The most likely descendant would complete the inspection of the site within 48 hours
of being granted access to the site. With adherence to existing regulations, impacts to human
remains would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

46

101



Environmental Checklist

Energy
Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact
Would the project:
a. Result in a potentially significant
environmental impact due to wasteful,
inefficient, or unnecessary consumption
of energy resources, during project
construction or operation? d O O |
b. Conflict with or obstruct a state or local
plan for renewable energy or energy
efficiency? O O O [ |

a. Would the project result in a potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful,
inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or
operation?

Construction

Energy use during project construction would be primarily in the form of fuel consumption to
operate heavy equipment, light-duty vehicles, machinery, and generators. Temporary grid power
may also be provided to construction trailers or electric construction equipment. Energy use during
construction would be temporary in nature, and construction equipment used would be typical of
similar-sized construction projects in the region. In addition, construction contractors would be
required to comply with the provisions of California Code of Regulations Title 13, Sections 2449 and
2485, which prohibit diesel-fueled commercial motor vehicles and off-road diesel vehicles from
idling for more than five minutes, which would minimize unnecessary fuel consumption.
Construction equipment would be subject to the USEPA Construction Equipment Fuel Efficiency
Standard (40 Code of Federal Regulations Parts 1039, 1065, and 1068), which would minimize
inefficient fuel consumption. Furthermore, in the interest of cost efficiency, construction
contractors would not utilize fuel in a manner that is wasteful or unnecessary. Therefore, project
construction would not result in a potential impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary
consumption of energy resources, and construction-related energy impacts. There would be no
impact.

Operation

As discussed under Initial Study Section 6, Project Description, the project involves operation of a
pipeline which does not involve electricity consumption. The project would not involve any new
operation and maintenance activities, as the project replaces an existing pipeline that already
undergoes routine maintenance activities. No new employees would be required. Electricity and
fuel consumption would not be wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary because ongoing maintenance
activities would only occur as necessary for water conveyance system operation. In addition, the

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 47

102



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

purpose of the project is to address the hydraulic bottleneck in the system to ensure water supply
reliability and longevity for the SCV Water system. Consequently, there would be no operational
energy impacts.

NO IMPACT

b.  Would the project conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy
efficiency?

SCV Water has not adopted a specific renewable energy or energy efficiency plan with which the
project could comply. The proposed project would not result in operational energy use beyond
existing conditions; therefore, the project would not conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for
renewable energy or energy efficiency. Consequently, no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

48

103



Environmental Checklist
Geology and Soils

/  Geology and Sails

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact
Would the project:
a. Directly or indirectly cause potential
substantial adverse effects, including the
risk of loss, injury, or death involving:
1. Rupture of a known earthquake
fault, as delineated on the most
recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake
Fault Zoning Map issued by the
State Geologist for the area or
based on other substantial evidence
of a known fault? d O u O
2. Strong seismic ground shaking? O O u O
3. Seismic-related ground failure,
including liquefaction? O O u O
4, Landslides? | O [ | O
b. Result in substantial soil erosion or the
loss of topsoil? t O L O
c. Belocated on a geologic unit or soil that
is unstable, or that would become
unstable as a result of the project, and
potentially result in on- or off-site
landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence,
liquefaction, or collapse? O O u O
d. Be located on expansive soil, as defined
in Table 1-B of the Uniform Building Code
(1994), creating substantial direct or
indirect risks to life or property? D O O u
e. Have soils incapable of adequately
supporting the use of septic tanks or
alternative wastewater disposal systems
where sewers are not available for the
disposal of wastewater? O O O u
f. Directly or indirectly destroy a unique
paleontological resource or site or unique
geologic feature? O O [ | O
Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 49

104



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

a.1. Would the project directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the
risk of loss, injury, or death involving rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the
most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the
area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault?

a.2. Would the project directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the
risk of loss, injury, or death involving strong seismic ground shaking?

a.3. Would the project directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the
risk of loss, injury, or death involving seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

The project site is not located in an Alquist-Priolo Fault Zone. In addition, there are no faults present
on the project site, and the closest fault to the project site is the San Gabriel fault zone, located
approximately 1.6 miles to the south (USGS 2023b). Liquefaction occurs when the strength and
stiffness of a soil is reduced by intense ground shaking typically associated with an earthquake in
areas with a high groundwater table. According to the DOC (2022c), a majority of the project site is
in a potential liquefaction zone. However, design and construction of the proposed project would
conform to the current design provisions of the American Water Works Association (AWWA) and
applicable seismic provisions of the California Building Code (CBC). The CBC incorporates the latest
seismic design standards for structural loads and materials, as well as provisions from the National
Earthquake Hazards Reduction Program, to mitigate losses from an earthquake and provide for the
latest in earthquake safety. While the project site would be susceptible to seismic activity given its
location within a seismically-active area, the proposed project would be required to minimize this
risk, to the extent feasible, through the incorporation of applicable AWWA standards. A large
seismic event, such as a fault rupture, seismic shaking, or ground failure, could result in breakage of
the proposed equipment, failure of joints, and/or leakage from the facility. In the event an
earthquake compromised any project component during operation, SCV Water would temporarily shut
off the facility and conduct emergency repairs as soon as feasible. Furthermore, the project does not
include habitable structures and is located entirely underground and would therefore not expose
people to loss, injury, or death involving seismic events. Additionally, implementation of the project
would not exacerbate the existing risk of seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction, in
the immediate vicinity. Consequently, the project would not expose people or structures to
potential substantial adverse effects involving fault rupture, strong seismic ground shaking, and
seismic-related ground failure. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

a.4. Would the project directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the
risk of loss, injury, or death involving landslides?

According to the City of Santa Clarita General Plan Environmental Impact Report, the hillside portion
of the project site is located within an earthquake-induced landslide zone (City of Santa Clarita
2011b). The project does not include habitable structures and would therefore not expose people to
loss, injury, or death involving landslides. Additionally, implementation of the project would not
exacerbate the existing risk of earthquake-induced landslides in the immediate vicinity. In the event
an earthquake compromised any project component due to landslides during operation, SCV Water
would temporarily shut off the facility and conduct emergency repairs as soon as possible.

The steep slope of the hillside pipeline alignment presents constructability challenges. During
construction, the project may exacerbate landslide risk along the hillside due to machinery
maneuvering along the project alignment and open cut construction methods along the hillside. The

50

105



Environmental Checklist
Geology and Soils

pipe would be installed in a trench with a minimum cover of three feet and erosion control
measures to protect the soil over the pipe to prevent the pipe from being exposed over time.
Erosion control includes geotechnical matting of the soil, revegetation of the soil, and installation of
cutoff walls in the pipe trench at approximately ten-foot intervals to prevent water from running
into the pipe trench and eroding the bedding and backfill. With construction measures such as
minimizing soil excavation, load on the pipe, erosion control, and minimizing fittings, landslide risk
would be reduced.

In the event of a seismic event, such as a landslide, implementing specific pipeline engineering
methods would substantially reduce structural damage risks. Design features in the project include
incorporating restrained joints for pipeline installation along the slope and minimizing the use of
fittings wherever feasible. By incorporating these design features, the probability of pipeline rupture
during a landslide is greatly reduced, thereby minimizing the potential for water escape from the
pipeline and reducing the possibility of exacerbating the landslide's severity along the hillside.

The project would not introduce new infrastructure to the site that would exacerbate landslide
hazards, the proposed project would not directly or indirectly cause potential adverse effects
involving landslides. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

b.  Would the project result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

Soil erosion or the loss of topsoil may occur when soils are disturbed but not secured or restored,
such that wind or rain events may mobilize disturbed soils, resulting in their transport off the project
site. Construction activities would include grading, excavation, and trenching activities, which could
potentially result in erosion.

Construction-related stormwater pollutant discharges are regulated pursuant to the NPDES
Construction General Permit. Coverage under the Construction General Permit is required for
projects resulting in greater than one acre of disturbance area. The proposed ground disturbance is
approximately 2.4 acres. Therefore, the disturbance area on the project site would be over one acre,
and construction activities would be subject to the Construction General Permit requirements. The
Construction General Permit requires implementation of a SWPPP that outlines project-specific
BMPs to control erosion. Such BMPs include the use of temporary de-silting basins and installation
of silt fences and erosion control blankets. With adherence to the Construction General Permit
requirements, potential impacts to substantial soil erosion and the loss of topsoil would be less than
significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

c.  Would the project be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become
unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral
spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse?

Ground subsidence and associated fissuring have occurred in Los Angeles County due to falling and
rising groundwater tables. Subsidence is caused by a variety of activities, which include, but are not
limited to, withdrawal of groundwater, pumping of oil and gas from underground, the collapse of
underground mines, liquefaction, and hydro-compaction.

As discussed in criterion (a), although the project site is located in a seismically active and steeply
sloped area, the project is not anticipated to adversely affect soil stability or increase the potential

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 51

106



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

for local or regional landslides, liquefaction, lateral spreading, or collapse. The proposed pipeline
would be constructed adjacent to the existing pipeline and would occur in previously disturbed soils.
The design and construction of the proposed project would conform to the current design
provisions of from AWWA. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

d. Would the project be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 1-B of the Uniform Building
Code (1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property?

Expansive soil are soils with high shrink-swell potential. The shrink-swell potential is low if the soil
has a linear extensibility of less than three percent (United States Department of Agriculture [USDA]
2017). The hillside portion of the pipeline alignment is composed of Saugus loam which has a linear
extensibility rating of 1.5 percent. Other soil on site includes Riverwash, Sandy alluvial land, Metz
loamy sand, and Cortina sandy loam, all of which have a linear extensibility rating of 1.5 percent. All
soils on site would be considered soils with a low shrink-swell potential. In addition, the project does
not include construction of habitable structures and would be unmanned during operation.
Therefore, the proposed project would not expose people to risks related to expansive soils. The
proposed project would not be located on expansive soils and would not introduce risk to life or
property as a result of expansive soils. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

e. Would the project have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or
alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of
wastewater?

The proposed project would not include the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal
systems. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

f. Would the project directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or
unique geologic feature?

Paleontological resources, or fossils, are the evidence of once-living organisms preserved in the rock
record. They include both the fossilized remains of ancient plants and animals and the traces
thereof (e.g., trackways, imprints, burrows, etc.). Paleontological resources are not found in “soi
but are contained within the geologic deposits or bedrock that underlies the soil layer. Typically,
fossils are greater than 5,000 years old (i.e., older than middle Holocene in age) and are typically
preserved in sedimentary rocks. Although rare, fossils can also be preserved in volcanic rocks and
low-grade metamorphic rocks under certain conditions (Society of Vertebrate Paleontology [SVP]
2010). Fossils occur in a non-continuous and often unpredictable distribution within some
sedimentary units, and the potential for fossils to occur within sedimentary units depends on
several factors. It is possible to evaluate the potential for geologic units to contain scientifically
important paleontological resources, and therefore evaluate the potential for impacts to those
resources and provide mitigation for paleontological resources if they are discovered during
construction of a development project.

|II

Rincon evaluated the paleontological sensitivity of the geologic units that underlie the project site to
assess the project’s potential for significant impacts to scientifically important paleontological
resources. The analysis was based on the results of a review of existing information in the scientific

52

107



Environmental Checklist
Geology and Soils

literature regarding known fossils within geologic units mapped at the project site. According to the
SVP (2010) classification system, geologic units can be assigned a high, low, undetermined, or no
potential for containing scientifically significant nonrenewable paleontological resources. Following
the literature review, a paleontological sensitivity classification was assigned to each geologic unit
mapped within the project site. This criterion is based on rock units within which vertebrate or
significant invertebrate fossils have been determined by previous studies to be present or likely to
be present. The potential for impacts to significant paleontological resources is based on the
potential for ground disturbance to directly impact paleontologically sensitive geologic units.

The project site is located in the Mint Canyon USGS 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle. The
geology of the region surrounding the project was mapped by Dibblee and Ehrenspeck (1996), who
identified four geologic units underlying the project: Quaternary stream channel deposits,
Quaternary alluvium, Quaternary old alluvium, and Saugus Formation.

= Quaternary stream channel deposits represent modern stream channel deposits within the
Santa Clara River channel (Dibblee and Ehrenspeck 1996) and have low paleontological
sensitivity due to its young age (i.e., less than 5,000 years old) (SVP 2010).

= Quaternary alluvium consists of Holocene-aged valley deposits (Dibblee and Ehrenspeck 1996)
and has low paleontological sensitivity due to its young age (i.e., less than 5,000 years old) (SVP
2010).

= Quaternary old alluvium consists of Pleistocene-aged alluvial and stream terrace deposits
consisting of gravel and sand (Dibblee and Ehrenspeck 1996). Due to the significant number of
significant paleontological resources produced by similar sediments in Los Angeles County,
Quaternary old alluvium has high paleontological sensitivity (Jefferson 2010; Paleobiology
Database 2023; University of California Museum of Paleontology 2023).

= The Saugus Formation is a Pliocene- to Pleistocene-aged sedimentary geologic unit (Dibblee and
Ehrenspeck 1996). Multiple fossil localities are known from the Saugus Formation, so therefore,
it has high paleontological sensitivity (Paleobiology Database 2023; University of California
Museum of Paleontology 2023).

Ground disturbing activities within previously undisturbed sediments with high paleontological
sensitivity (i.e., Quaternary old alluvium, Saugus Formation) could result in significant impacts to
paleontological resources. Impacts would be significant if construction activities result in the
destruction, damage, or loss of scientifically important paleontological resources and associated
stratigraphic and paleontological data. However, the project is planned to follow the existing
pipeline alignment, meaning that all or nearly all impacted sediments would be previously
disturbed. Therefore, this project is anticipated to have a less than significant impact on
paleontological resources.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 53

108



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

54

109



Environmental Checklist
Greenhouse Gas Emissions

8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact
Would the project:
a. Generate greenhouse gas emissions,
either directly or indirectly, that may
have a significant impact on the
environment? O O [ | O
b. Conflict with an applicable plan, policy,
or regulation adopted for the purpose of
reducing the emissions of greenhouse
gases? O O [ | O

Overview of Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases

Climate change is the observed increase in the average temperature of the Earth’s atmosphere and
oceans along with other substantial changes in climate (such as wind patterns, precipitation, and
storms) over an extended period of time. Climate change is the result of numerous, cumulative
sources of Greenhouse Gases (GHG) emissions contributing to the “greenhouse effect,” a natural
occurrence which takes place in Earth’s atmosphere and helps regulate the temperature of the
planet. The majority of radiation from the sun hits Earth’s surface and warms it. The surface, in turn,
radiates heat back towards the atmosphere in the form of infrared radiation. Gases and clouds in
the atmosphere trap and prevent some of this heat from escaping into space and re-radiate it in all
directions.

GHG emissions occur both naturally and from human activities, such as fossil fuel burning,
decomposition of landfill wastes, raising livestock, deforestation, and some agricultural practices.
GHGs produced by human activities include carbon dioxide (CO3), methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, and sulfur hexafluoride. Different types of GHGs have
varying global warming potentials (GWP). The GWP of a GHG is the potential of a gas or aerosol to
trap heat in the atmosphere over a specified timescale (generally, 100 years). Because GHGs absorb
different amounts of heat, a common reference gas (CO;) is used to relate the amount of heat
absorbed to the amount of the gas emitted, referred to as “carbon dioxide equivalent” (CO,e),
which is the amount of a specific GHG emitted multiplied by its GWP. Carbon dioxide has a 100-year
GWP of one. By contrast, methane has a GWP of 30, meaning its global warming effect is 30 times
greater than CO; on a molecule per molecule basis (Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
[IPCC] 2021).

The United Nations IPCC expressed that the rise and continued growth of atmospheric CO,
concentrations is unequivocally due to human activities in the IPCC’s Sixth Assessment Report
(2021). Human influence has warmed the atmosphere, ocean, and land, which has led the climate to
warm at an unprecedented rate in the last 2,000 years. It is estimated that between the period of
1850 through 2019, that a total of 2,390 gigatons of anthropogenic CO, was emitted. It is likely that
anthropogenic activities have increased the global surface temperature by approximately 1.07

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 55

110



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

degrees Celsius between the years 2010 through 2019 (IPCC 2021). Emissions resulting from human
activities are thereby contributing to an average increase in Earth’s temperature. Potential climate
change impacts in California may include loss of snowpack, sea level rise, more extreme heat days
per year, more high ozone days, more large forest fires, and more drought years (California Natural
Resource Agency 2019).

Significance Thresholds

The majority of individual projects do not generate sufficient GHG emissions to directly influence
climate change. However, physical changes caused by a project can contribute incrementally to
cumulative effects that are significant, even if individual changes resulting from a project are
limited. The issue of climate change typically involves an analysis of whether a project’s contribution
towards an impact would be cumulatively considerable. “Cumulatively considerable” means that the
incremental effects of an individual project are significant when viewed in connection with the
effects of past projects, other current projects, and probable future projects (CEQA Guidelines
Section 15064[h][1]).

According to the CEQA Guidelines, projects can tier from a qualified GHG reduction plan, which
allows for project-level evaluation of GHG emissions through the comparison of the proposed
project’s consistency with the GHG reduction policies included in a qualified GHG reduction plan.
This approach is considered by the Association of Environmental Professionals (2016) in its white
paper, Beyond Newhall and 2020, to be the most defensible approach presently available under
CEQA to determine the significance of a project’s GHG emissions. SCV Water and the City of Santa
Clarita have not adopted a numerical significance threshold for assessing impacts related to GHG
emissions, but the City of Santa Clarita has adopted a CAP for reduction of GHG emissions. The
SCAQMD, California Office of Planning and Research, CARB, CAPCOA, or any other state or
applicable regional agency have not adopted a numerical significance threshold for assessing GHG
emissions that is applicable to the proposed Project.

In the absence of any adopted numeric threshold, the significance of the proposed project’s GHG
emissions is evaluated consistent with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.4(b) by considering whether
the proposed project complies with applicable plans, policies, regulations, and requirements
adopted to implement a statewide, regional, or local plan for the reduction or mitigation of GHG
emissions.

Therefore, the significance of the proposed project’s potential impacts regarding GHG emissions and
climate change is evaluated based on consistency with plans and polices adopted for the purposes
of reducing GHG emissions and mitigating the effects of climate change. The most directly
applicable adopted regulatory plans to reduce GHG emissions are CARB’s 2022 Scoping Plan and the
City of Santa Clarita General Plan. GHG emissions from the construction and operation of the
proposed project are provided for informational purposes.

Methodology

GHG emissions associated with project construction and operation were estimated using CalEEMod,
version 2022.1, with the assumptions described under Environmental Checklist Section 3, Air
Quality. Construction emissions occur for a limited period of a project’s lifetime; as a standard
practice, GHG emissions from construction are amortized over a presumed project lifetime. A
project lifetime of 30 years is recommended by SCAQMD (2008).

56

111



Environmental Checklist
Greenhouse Gas Emissions

a. Would the project generate GHG emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a
significant impact on the environment?

b.  Would the project conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose
of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?

Plans and policies have been adopted to reduce GHG emissions in the Southern California region,
including the City of Santa Clarita General Plan, and CARB’s 2022 Scoping Plan. The following policies
apply to the proposed project:

= Conservation and Open Space Element Goal CO 4: An adequate supply of clean water to meet
the needs of present and future residents and businesses, balanced with the needs of natural
ecosystem.

o Objective CO 4.1: Promote water conservation as a critical component of ensuring adequate
water supply for SCV residents and businesses.

o Objective CO 4.2: Work with water providers and other agencies to identify and implement
programs to increase water supplies to meet the needs of future growth.

= 2022 Scoping Plan Goal: Support climate adaptation and biodiversity that includes protection of
the state’s water supply, water quality, and infrastructure to achieve carbon neutrality as soon
as possible (CARB 2022b).

While the proposed project would not specifically involve water efficiency, it would improve the
reliability and resiliency of the local water supply system by upgrading the existing out-of-date
pipeline system. Therefore, the proposed project would improve the reliability and resiliency of the
local water distribution network. Thus, although the project would generate temporary construction
emissions, the project would ultimately be consistent with the goals of the City of Santa Clarita
General Plan and CARB’s 2022 Scoping Plan. The proposed project would not conflict with any
applicable plans, policies, or regulations to reduce GHG emissions. Therefore, impacts related to
GHG emissions would be less than significant.

Quantified GHG Emissions for InNformation Purposes

Construction of the project would generate GHG emissions. Since the project would not include new
operational activity, this analysis considers the GHG emissions from construction for informational
purposes. Calculations of CO,, CHs, and N>O emissions are provided to identify the magnitude of
potential project effects.

Construction Emissions

Construction facilitated by the project would generate temporary GHG emissions primarily from the
operation of construction equipment on site, as well as from vehicles transporting construction
workers to and from the project site and heavy trucks to transport materials. As shown in Table 9,
construction associated with the project would generate 893 MT of CO,e. Amortized over a 30-year
period pursuant to SCAQMD guidance, construction associated with the project would generate 30
MT of CO,e per year.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 57

112



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Table 9 Construction GHG Emissions

Year Emissions (MT of CO,e)

2024 189
2025 697
2026 7

Total 893
Amortized over 30 years 30

MT = metric tons; COze = carbon dioxide equivalents

Source: Table 2.3 “Construction Emissions by Year, Mitigated” emissions. Annual emissions results are shown for all emissions. The
mitigated emissions account for project sustainability features and/or compliance with specific regulatory standards. No mitigation
measures are required for this project. See CalEEMod worksheets in Appendix A.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

58

113



Environmental Checklist
Hazards and Hazardous Materials

9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact

Would the project:

a. Create a significant hazard to the public
or the environment through the routine
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous
materials? O n d t

b. Create a significant hazard to the public
or the environment through reasonably
foreseeable upset and accident
conditions involving the release of
hazardous materials into the
environment? O [ | O O

c. Emit hazardous emissions or handle
hazardous or acutely hazardous
materials, substances, or waste within
0.25 mile of an existing or proposed
school? O [ | O |

d. Belocated on a site that is included on a
list of hazardous material sites compiled
pursuant to Government Code Section
65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a
significant hazard to the public or the
environment? O n d d

e. Fora project located in an airport land
use plan or, where such a plan has not
been adopted, within two miles of a
public airport or public use airport, would
the project result in a safety hazard or
excessive noise for people residing or
working in the project area? O O O |

f. Impair implementation of or physically
interfere with an adopted emergency
response plan or emergency evacuation
plan? O [ | O O

g. Expose people or structures, either
directly or indirectly, to a significant risk
of loss, injury, or death involving wildland
fires? O O [ | O

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 59

114



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

a. Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the
routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?

b.  Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through
reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous
materials into the environment?

Construction of the proposed project would temporarily increase the transport and use of
hazardous materials in the project area through the operation of vehicles and equipment. Such
substances include diesel fuel, oil, solvents, and other similar materials brought onto the
construction site for use and storage during the construction period. These materials would be
contained within vessels specifically engineered for safe storage and would not be transported,
stored, or used in quantities that would pose a significant hazard to the public or construction
workers themselves. In addition, project construction activities would comply with all relevant
regulations, including the enforcement of hazardous materials transportation regulations.

Ground-disturbing activities associated with project construction could cause an accidental upset or
release of hazardous materials, such as vehicle and equipment fuels, if they are not properly stored
and secured. The project would involve construction activities within the Santa Clara River which is
at greater risk if contamination is to occur as it is connected to the larger watershed of the region.
As outlined in Mitigation Measure BIO-1, the project would implement best management practices
for all equipment used on-site to avoid leaks of oil, fuel, or residues within the project site. If such
conditions cause a release of hazardous materials into the environment, potential impacts to the
public or the environment could occur. To further reduce potential construction-related impacts to
a less-than-significant level, Mitigation Measure HAZ-1 would be required.

The operation and maintenance of the proposed project would not involve the storage of hazardous
chemicals on site. Therefore, there would be no impact related to hazardous materials during project
operation.

Mitigation Measures

With implementation of the following mitigation measure, potential impacts related to hazardous
materials would be less than significant.

HAZ-1 Hazardous Materials Management and Spill Control Plan

Before construction begins, the construction contractor shall develop and implement a Hazardous
Materials Management and Spill Control Plan (HMMSCP) that includes a project-specific
contingency plan for hazardous materials and waste operations. The HMMSCP shall establish
policies and procedures consistent with applicable codes and regulations, including but not limited
to the California Building and Fire Codes, as well United States Department of Labor Occupational
Safety and Health Administration and California Division of Occupational Safety and Health
regulations. The HMMSCP shall articulate hazardous materials handling practices to prevent the
accidental spill or release of hazardous materials.

Significance after Mitigation

Mitigation Measure HAZ-1 would require the development of a HMMSCP which would include a
project-specific contingency plan for hazardous materials and waste operation such that the project
would not create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials or the reasonably foreseeable upset and accident

60

115



Environmental Checklist
Hazards and Hazardous Materials

conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment. Therefore,
implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-1 would reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

c.  Would the project emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous
materials, substances, or waste within 0.25 mile of an existing or proposed school?

The nearest school to the project site is Rio Vista Elementary School, located at 20417 Cedarcreek
Street, in Canyon Country. The pipeline alignment is adjacent to the school’s northern and western
boundaries. Construction of the proposed project would comply with existing federal and state
requirements for the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials. No facilities or
infrastructure expected to contain lead-based paint or asbestos-containing materials would be
demolished as part of project construction. In addition, no hazardous waste disposal sites, solid
waste disposal sites, or hazardous substance release sites were identified within the project site that
could result in a release of hazardous emissions or materials (California State Water Resources
Control Board [SWRCB] 2023b; DTSC 2023a). Furthermore, the project would implement a
HMMSCP, as required by Mitigation Measure HAZ-1. The HMMSCP would establish policies and
procedures consistent with applicable codes and regulations for hazardous materials and waste
operations. Therefore, project construction would not emit hazardous emissions or handle
hazardous materials, substances, or waste within 0.25 mile of an existing or proposed school.
Impacts would be less than significant with mitigation.

The proposed project would not emit hazardous emissions during operation. With adherence to
these regulations and standards, project operation would not adversely affect schools within 0.25
mile of the project site due to the handling of hazardous materials, substances, or waste. No impact
would occur during project operation.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

d. Would the project be located on a site that is included on a list of hazardous material sites
compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a
significant hazard to the public or the environment?

Government Code Section 65962.5 requires the California Environmental Protection Agency
(CalEPA) to maintain a Cortese List. The California Department of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC) is
responsible for a portion of the information contained in the Cortese List. Other state and local
government agencies are required to provide additional hazardous material release information for
the Cortese List. The analysis for this section included a review of the following resources on March
22, 2023, to provide hazardous material release information:

= SWRCB GeoTracker database (SWRCB 2023b)
=  DTSC EnviroStor database (DTSC 2023a)

= List of “active” Cease and Desist Orders (CDO) and Cleanup and Abatement Orders (CAO) from
RWQCBs (CalEPA 2023a)

= Solid Waste Disposal Sites (CalEPA 2023b)

Based on review of these databases, the project site is not included on existing lists of hazardous
materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5. The nearest SWRCB sites
include three leaking underground storage tank (LUST) sites, located at 27050 Ruether Avenue,
approximate 0.17 mile to the west, 20727 Santa Clara Street, approximately 0.32 mile to the west,

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 61

116



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

and 26971 Furnivall Avenue, approximately 0.20 mile southwest of the site. However, these cases
were completed and closed in 1997, 2011, and 1996, respectively (SWRCB 2023d, 2023e, 2023f).
The nearest active site is the former Glass Seal Corporation located at 21516 West Golden Triangle
Road, approximately 1.16 miles northwest of the project site (SWRCB 2023c). The Glass Seal
Corporation site is classified as a Clean Up Program Site for volatile organic compounds. The nearest
DTSC site cleanup program is 20988 Golden Triangle Road, approximately 0.55 mile southwest of
the project site (DTSC 2023b).

Although the several LUST sites have been classified as closed by the SWRCB, there is still a risk that
hazardous materials from these sites may have infiltrated the underlying Santa Clara River Valley
Groundwater Basin, East Subbasin (Basin), as well as the soil on site. During open cut trenching
across the Santa Clara Riverbed, groundwater from the Basin is likely to be encountered,
necessitating dewatering procedures. In the event that the groundwater or on-site soil is
contaminated with hazardous materials, which could potentially originate from past LUST sites or
the active Clean Up Program site, the impacts of the dewatering process and construction could be
potentially significant. To address this, the project would require the implementation of Mitigation
Measures HAZ-2 through HAZ-5. These measures aim to identify contaminated groundwater or soil
on site and minimize the construction-related impacts of potential hazardous materials to less than
significant. It should be noted that although the project site is not currently listed as a hazardous
materials site according to Government Code Section 65962.5, there is still a possibility of
encountering hazardous materials impacts from Government Code Section 65962.5 sites during
construction from potentially contaminated groundwater or soil. Nevertheless, with the
implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-2 through HAZ-5, impacts would be reduced a less than
significant level.

Mitigation Measures

HAZ-2  Soil and Groundwater Management Plan

Prior to commencement of construction activities at the project site, SCV Water shall retain a
qualified consultant (i.e., Professional Geologist [PG] or Professional Engineer [PE]) to prepare a Soil
and Groundwater Management Plan (SGMP). The SGMP, or equivalent document, shall be prepared
to address on-site handling and management of impacted soils, groundwater, or other impacted
wastes, and reduce hazards to construction workers and off-site receptors during construction. The
SGMP shall establish remedial measures and/or soil and groundwater management practices to
ensure construction worker safety, the health of future workers and visitors, and prevent the off-
site migration of contaminants from the site. These measures and practices may include, but are not
limited to:

=  Stockpile management, including stormwater pollution prevention and the installation of Best
Management Practices;
= Collection of groundwater samples during dewatering;

=  Proper transportation and disposal procedures of impacted materials in accordance with
applicable regulations, including California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 22;

= Monitoring and reporting; and/or

= A health and safety plan for contractors working at the site that addresses the safety and health
hazards of each phase of site construction activities with the requirements and procedures for
employee protection, and outlines proper soil and groundwater handling procedures and health

62

117



Environmental Checklist
Hazards and Hazardous Materials

and safety requirements to minimize worker and public exposure to hazardous materials during
construction.

SCV Water shall review and approve the SGMP, and shall ensure that the construction contractor
implements the SGMP prior to and during construction.

HAZ-3  Subsurface Investigation

If odorous or visually stained soils or groundwater, other indications of unanticipated piping or
equipment (including hydrocarbon piping or equipment), or debris are encountered during ground-
disturbing activities, work in the immediate area shall be halted and SCV Water shall retain a
qualified consultant (i.e., PG or PE) to conduct a subsurface investigation in the potentially impacted
area. Work may continue on other parts of the project while impacted soil or groundwater
investigation and/or remediation takes place. The subsurface investigation may include, but is not
limited to, completion of soil and/or groundwater sampling and analysis for total petroleum
hydrocarbons, volatile organic compounds, semi-volatile organic compounds, organochloride
pesticides, and/or metals.

The PG or PE shall prepare a subsurface investigation report, which will be submitted to SCV Water
for review and approval. As part of the subsurface investigation, analytical results shall be screened
against the most recent San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (SFB RWQCB)
Environmental Screening Levels (ESL) (SFB RWQCB 2023).4 The ESLs are risk-based screening levels
for direct exposure of construction workers, residential land use, and commercial/industrial land
use. The subsurface investigation report shall include recommendations to address identified
hazards and indicate when to apply those recommended actions in relation to project activities.

If contaminants are detected at the project site, SCV Water shall implement the recommendations
specified in the subsurface investigation report, and appropriate steps shall be undertaken by SCV
Water to protect site workers during project construction. This could include preparation of an
updated SGMP (see Mitigation Measure HAZ-2) and/or remediation, if required (see Mitigation
Measure HAZ-4).

HAZ-4 Remediation

If the subsurface investigation (see Mitigation Measure HAZ-3) identifies that contaminants are
present within the construction limits at chemical concentrations exceeding ESLs and/or hazardous
waste screening thresholds for contaminants in soil (CCR Title 22, Section 66261.24), SCV Water
shall retain a qualified consultant (i.e., PG or PE) to conduct additional analytical testing and
recommend soil disposal recommendations, or consider other remedial engineering controls, as
necessary.

The qualified consultant (i.e., PG or PE) shall utilize the project site analytical results for waste
characterization purposes prior to off-site transportation or disposal of potentially impacted soils or
other impacted wastes. The qualified consultant (l.e., PG or PE) shall provide disposal
recommendations and arrange for proper disposal of the waste soils or other impacted wastes (as
necessary), and/or provide recommendations for remedial engineering controls, if appropriate.

Remediation of impacted soils and/or implementation of remedial engineering controls may require
additional delineation of impacts; additional analytical testing per landfill or recycling facility

4 Although established by the SFB RWQCB, the SFB RWQCB ESLs are accepted and used throughout the state by other RWQCBs and state
agencies.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 63

118



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

requirements; soil excavation; and off-site disposal or recycling. Remediation should be conducted
within the construction footprint/areas of soil disturbance to screening levels as determined by the
qualified consultant (i.e., PG or PE), SCV Water, and/or an oversight agency (e.g., Los Angeles
RWQCB [LA RWQCB] or Department of Toxic Substances Control).

SCV Water shall review and approve the project site disposal recommendations for regulated waste
prior to transportation of impacted soils off-site, and review and approve remedial engineering
controls, prior to construction. Subsequently, SCV Water shall review and implement the disposal
recommendations for regulated waste prior to transportation of impacted soils off-site, and review
and implement the remedial engineering controls, prior to construction.

HAZ-5  Disposal of Groundwater

If contaminated groundwater (decontamination water, purge water, dewatering, or underground
structures [groundwater leakage into the final structure]) is generated during construction of the
project, the LA RWQCB or the City of Santa Clarita and/or Los Angeles County Department of Public
Works would be consulted to determine if the treated groundwater can be disposed through one of
their waste discharge permits, or through an existing SCV Water permit. LA RWQCB may require
that an individual National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit and/or waste
discharge requirements be obtained for dewatering activities.

The groundwater discharge and disposal requirements vary by agency, location, concentration, and
contaminants of concern, and would therefore be developed in consultation with SCV Water and
the applicable agency, which could include LA RWQCB, the City of Santa Clarita, and/or the Los
Angeles County Department of Public Works.

Significance After Mitigation

Implementation of Mitigation Measures HAZ-2 through HAZ-5 during project construction would
reduce potential hazardous material impacts to a less-than-significant level by implementing
additional investigation and remedial measures, transportation of impacted materials, and/or soil
and groundwater management practices to ensure construction worker health and safety.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

e. For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a
safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?

The closest public or public use airport to the project site is the Whiteman Airport, located
approximately 14 miles southwest of the project site. The project site is not located within an
airport land use plan or within two miles of a public or public use airport. As a result, the project
would have no impact related to safety hazards or excessive noise for people residing or working in
the project area due to proximity to an airport.

NO IMPACT

f. Would the project impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency
response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

The City of Santa Clarita maintains a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) that is updated and
adopted every five years (City of Santa Clarita 2021). The LHMP sets forth hazard mitigation
strategies along with action items to help mitigate and combat various threats such as wildfire,

64

119



Environmental Checklist
Hazards and Hazardous Materials

drought, earthquakes, landslides, extreme heat, cyber-attacks, energy disruption, floods, and
terrorism. Construction of the proposed project would require temporary lane closures along Honby
Avenue for pipeline installation. The lane closure could slow traffic through the local area and
thereby affect implementation of emergency response and emergency evacuation plans. Therefore,
impacts would be potentially significant, and implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-6 would
be required to reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level. Operational activities associated with
the proposed project would occur solely on the project site and would not interfere with emergency
response. With implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-6, impacts to an adopted emergency
response plan or emergency evacuation plan would be less than significant with mitigation
incorporated.

Mitigation Measure

HAZ-6 Traffic Control Plan

SCV Water shall require the project contractor(s) to prepare and implement a traffic control plan
that specifies how traffic will be safely and efficiently redirected during lane closures. All work shall
comply with the Work Area Traffic Control Handbook, which conforms to the standards and
guidance of the California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. Traffic control measures for
lane closures shall be included, and priority access shall be given to emergency vehicles. The traffic
control plan shall also include requirements to notify local emergency response providers at least
one week prior to the start of work when lane closures are required.

Significance after Mitigation

Mitigation Measure HAZ-6 would require the project contractor(s) to safely redirect traffic, utilize
traffic control measures, and give emergency response providers advance notification and priority
access such that the potential to impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted
emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan would be minimized. Therefore,
implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-6 would reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

g. Would the project expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk
of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires?

The hillside portion of the pipeline alignment north of the Santa Clara River is located in a
designated Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone (VHFHSZ) (CAL FIRE 2023). The proposed pipeline
would be located within brush-covered open space vegetated with native plant communities, which
are highly combustible. The location of the project site in the wildland-urban interface could create
the potential for incidents of fire during project construction. Potential ignition sources may include
sparks from exhaust pipes, discarded cigarette butts, contact of mufflers with dry grass, other
sources of sparks or flame, and spills or releases of flammable materials such as gasoline.
Construction equipment would be subject to standard operating procedures that would limit
sources of ignition that could generate a wildland fire. All construction activities on the project site,
require fire safety protocols, including, but not limited to, on-site fire extinguishing equipment.
Compliance with applicable federal and State laws and regulations related to the proper use,
storage, and transport of hazardous materials would reduce the risk of wildfire ignition from the use
of hazardous materials during construction activities. As such, project construction would not

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 65

120



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death
involving wildland fires, and impacts would be less than significant.

Project operation would not involve potentially flammable activities and the pipeline would be
located entirely underground. No impact would occur.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

66

121



Environmental Checklist
Hydrology and Water Quality

10 Hydrology and Water Quality

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact

Would the project:

a. Violate any water quality standards or
waste discharge requirements or
otherwise substantially degrade surface
or ground water quality? d u d d

b. Substantially decrease groundwater
supplies or interfere substantially with
groundwater recharge such that the
project may impede sustainable
groundwater management of the basin? O O u d

c. Substantially alter the existing drainage
pattern of the site or area, including
through the alteration of the course of a
stream or river or through the addition of
impervious surfaces, in a manner which
would:

(i) Result in substantial erosion or
siltation on- or off-site; d [ | O O

(ii) Substantially increase the rate or
amount of surface runoffin a
manner which would result in
flooding on- or off-site; u u O O

(iii) Create or contribute runoff water
which would exceed the capacity of
existing or planned stormwater
drainage systems or provide
substantial additional sources of
polluted runoff; or | [ | O O

(iv) Impede or redirect flood flows? O u O O

d. Inflood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones,
risk release of pollutants due to project
inundation? O O [ | O

e. Conflict with or obstruct implementation
of a water quality control plan or
sustainable groundwater management
plan? O | O O

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 67

122



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

a. Would the project violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or
otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality?

Construction

Grading, excavation, and other construction activities associated with the project could adversely
affect water quality due to erosion resulting from exposed soils and the generation of water
pollutants, including trash, construction materials, and equipment fluids. Soil disturbance associated
with site preparation and grading activities would result in looser, exposed soils, which are more
susceptible to erosion. Additionally, spills, leakage, or improper handling and storage of substances
such as oils, fuels, chemicals, metals, and other substances from vehicles, equipment, and materials
used during project construction could contribute to stormwater pollutants or leach to underlying
groundwater.

The existing pipeline would be drained of any water before it is abandoned in place. It is anticipated
that the water would be discharged into the Santa Clara River bed. The discharge from the existing
pipeline would be covered under SCV Water’s existing SWRCB General Permit for Drinking Water
System Discharge which provides Clean Water Act regulatory coverage for discharges resulting from
essential operations and maintenance activities of drinking water systems. The discharge from the
existing pipeline would not violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements.

Coverage under the NPDES Construction General Permit is required for projects resulting in greater
than one acre of disturbance area. As described under Initial Study Section 6, Project Description,
the proposed facility footprint is approximately 2.3 acres. Therefore, construction activities would
be subject to the Construction General Permit requirements. Construction-related stormwater
pollutant discharges are regulated pursuant to the NPDES Construction General Permit, which
requires visual monitoring of stormwater and non-stormwater discharges; sampling, analysis, and
monitoring of non-visible pollutants; and compliance with all applicable water quality standards
established for receiving waters potentially affected by construction discharges. Furthermore, the
Construction General Permit requires implementation of a SWPPP that outlines project-specific
BMPs to control erosion. Such BMPs include the use of temporary de-silting basins, construction
vehicle maintenance in staging areas to avoid leaks, and installation of silt fences and erosion
control blankets.

Construction in the Santa Clara River bed is likely to encounter groundwater during open cut
trenching and pipeline installation. A portion of the pipeline would be installed at a depth below the
known river scour level, which is estimated to be 20 feet. During the dry season, groundwater is
expected to be encountered at 20 to 50 feet below ground surface (bgs) within the Santa Clara River
bed. Dewatering activities would be temporary and short-term as pipeline construction activities
move along the alignment within the river bed. Construction within the river bed is anticipated to
last no more than one month. Water collected from the dewatering process will be discharged in
accordance with Mitigation Measures HAZ-2 andMeasure HAZ-5. The project also would be required
to implement a SGMP pursuant to Mitigation Measure HAZ-2, subsurface investigation pursuant to
Mitigation Measure HAZ-3, and remediation pursuant to Mitigation Measure HAZ-4. If the water
collected from the dewatering process is discharged back to the river bed, Mitigation Measures
HAZ-2 through HAZ-5 would ensure that the water is evaluated and meets the necessary quality
standards before being reintroduced into the Santa Clara River and the underlying groundwater
basin, or discharged to the storm drain.

68

123



Environmental Checklist
Hydrology and Water Quality

In addition, the project would be required to obtain Clean Water Act Section 401 Certification under
the RWQCB. The Clean Water Act Section 401 Certification would require the project to comply with
State water quality standards and would allow for discharges into the Santa Clara River.
Construction would not violate any water quality standards, waste discharge requirements, or
otherwise substantially degrade water quality. Impacts would be less than significant with
mitigation

The project would not increase the impervious surface area on the project site. The project would
also not involve the storage of chemicals on site. Project operation would not involve ground
disturbance, which would limit the potential for off-site migration of sediment and adsorbed
pollutants in runoff. The project would generally preserve on-site drainage patterns, with water
continuing to flow from higher elevations to lower elevations. Operational conditions of the project
would be the same as existing conditions. Given the impervious surface area would not increase and
chemicals would not be stored, project operation would not violate any water quality standards,
waste discharge requirements, or otherwise substantially degrade water quality. No impact would
occur.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

b.  Would the project substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with
groundwater recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater
management of the basin?

The project consists of a water pipeline that would be installed underground, and the project site
would be restored to pre-project conditions after the completion of construction activities. The
project does not include the addition of impervious surfaces, and the underground pipeline would
not substantially alter the ability for groundwater to percolate through the subsurface. Therefore,
the proposed project would not interfere substantially with groundwater recharge.

During the construction phase, the pipeline installation through the Santa Clara River bed is likely to
encounter groundwater, necessitating the process of dewatering for up to one month. The Santa
Clara River serves as the primary source of recharge for groundwater basins in Ventura County,
including the Santa Clara River Valley Groundwater Basin underlying the project site (Ventura
County Watershed Protection District 2005). The project would be required to implement a SGMP
pursuant to Mitigation Measure HAZ-2, subsurface investigation pursuant to Mitigation Measure
HAZ-3, remediation pursuant to Mitigation Measure HAZ-4, and proper groundwater disposal
pursuant to Mitigation Measure HAZ-5. During the dry season, groundwater is expected to be
encountered at 20 to 50 feet bgs within the Santa Clara River bed. Dewatering activities would be
temporary and short-term as pipeline construction activities move along the alignment within the
river bed. The dewatering activities will affect shallow groundwater levels over a maximum time
period of one month and will not substantially decrease groundwater supplies or impede
sustainable groundwater management.

In addition, dewatering activities may discharge back to the Santa Clara River, in accordance with
Mitigation Measure HAZ-2 through HAZ-5. By discharging the water back into the Santa Clara River,
there may be opportunity for the groundwater to percolate back into the underlying Basin.

In addition, as discussed in Environmental Checklist Section 19, Utilities and Service Systems, the
project would be addressing the hydraulic bottleneck in the SCV Water system caused by the
existing pipeline, but would not increase capacity of the system or demand for water supply which is
sourced from groundwater. Accordingly, the proposed project would not substantially decrease

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 69

124



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project
may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin. Impacts would be less than
significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

c.(i)  Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area,
including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of
impervious surfaces, in a manner which would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or
off-site?

c.(ii) Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area,
including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of
impervious surfaces, in a manner which would substantially increase the rate or amount of
surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site?

c.(iii) Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area,
including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of
impervious surfaces, in a manner that would create or contribute runoff water which would
exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide
substantial additional sources of polluted runoff?

c.(iv) Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area,
including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of
impervious surfaces, in a manner which would impede or redirect flood flows?

During operation, the project would generally preserve drainage patterns on site, with water
continuing to flow from higher elevations to lower elevations. The proposed pipeline would traverse
the Santa Clara River but would be located belowground.

The pipeline would be installed via open-cut method for the entirety of its alignment including its
crossing through the Santa Clara River. As described in Environmental Checklist Section 4, Biological
Resources, the project would implement Mitigation Measure BIO-8, which requires that
construction within the riverbed occur when the river is dry. This would ensure that no surface
waters are diverted or altered during construction activities within the river bed. Construction of the
Santa Clara River bed portion of the pipeline would require dewatering during trench construction.
As described above under criterion (b), the water collected from dewatering would be sampled in
accordance with the SGMP required by Mitigation Measure HAZ-2. As described above in criterion
(a), the project would be required to obtain coverage under the Construction General Permit which
would require the implementation of a SWPPP that outlines project-specific BMPs to control
erosion. As a result, the project would not substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site
or area in a manner that would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site; substantially
increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-
site; create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned
stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or
impede or redirect flood flows. Impacts would be less than significant.

According to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map, the
project site is located in Zone AE, Zone X, and Zone D (FEMA 2008). FEMA flood zones in the project
site are shown in Figure 7. Zone AE are areas with a 1 percent annual chance of flooding and Zone X
indicates an area where the annual flood risk is between 1 percent and 0.2 percent. Zone D Areas
are areas with possible but undetermined flood hazards.

70

125



Figure 7 FEMA Flood Zones

3

Furnivall Ave
e

= =1 Alignment Buffer 100-ft [ Staging at APN 2805-002-902

| QS
_— . .
i '_- _ 4 Tank Staging Site

0 175 350
A
Feet

— Alignment D SCV Water Pump Station Staging Site FEMA Floodplain

Environmental Checklist
Hydrology and Water Quality

3
o
;=2
4o
O,
=

; 2! u‘OE b "
BN ACE] —
: ac
neHills Ave [T 3

=

100 Year Floodplain
500 Year Floodplain

Imagery provided by Microsoft Bing and its licensors © 2023.
Additional data provided by FEMA, 2023.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration

126

71



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

The project would implement Mitigation Measure BIO-8 which would require construction in the
riverbed to occur when the river is dry. .Given the project would generally preserve existing
drainage patterns on site and would be mostly located belowground once construction is complete,
the project would not alter the course of a stream or river, and would not divert or redirect flood
flows, potential impacts related to the alteration of the site’s drainage pattern would be less than
significant with mitigation.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

d. Inflood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, would the project risk release of pollutants due to
project inundation?

The project site is approximately 26 miles from the Pacific Ocean, separated by the Santa Susana
and Santa Monica mountain ranges, and not subject to tsunami risk. The nearest inland surface
water body that may be subject to risk of a seiche is Castaic Reservoir, approximately 7.6 miles to
the north. Given the distance to this water body, the occurrence of a seiche would not affect the
project site. In addition, the project site is outside of the dam failure inundation zone for both
Castaic Reservoir and Bouquet Reservoir (City of Santa Clarita 2011). As discussed above, the project
site is located in FEMA Zone AE, Zone X, and Zone D (7) (FEMA 2008). During construction,
pollutants such as oils, fuels, chemicals, metals, and other substances from vehicles, equipment, and
materials could risk release due to inundation since portions of the project site and staging areas are
located in a FEMA flood zone. As part of the compliance with the Construction General Permit, a
SWPPP would be prepared for the proposed project. Among other things, the SWPPP requires that
hazardous materials be properly stored, contained, and disposed of to prevent polluted stormwater
discharged from construction sites, which would prevent substantial spills of hazardous materials
during project inundation. With implementation of the SWPPP, impacts from the risk release of
pollutants due to project inundation would be less than significant during construction.

During operation, project components would be located underground and would not risk the
release of pollutants due to project inundation during flood events. Impacts would be less than
significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

e.  Would the project conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or
sustainable groundwater management plan?

Water Quality Control Plan

The Los Angeles RWQCB Basin Plan designates beneficial uses for surface waters in the Los Angeles
region and associated water quality objectives to fulfill such uses. The project site is within the Santa
Clara River watershed and drains to Reach 6 of the Santa Clara River. Reach 6 and all downstream
reaches have designated beneficial uses of Municipal and Domestic Supply (potential), Industrial
Service Supply, Industrial Process Supply, Agricultural Supply, Groundwater Recharge, Freshwater
Replenishment, Warm Freshwater Habitat, Wildlife Habitat, Rare, Threatened and Endangered
Species, Wetland Habitat, Water Contact Recreation, and Non-contact Water Recreation (Los
Angeles RWQCB 2020). Multiple reaches of the Santa Clara River downstream of the project site are
listed as impaired for numerous pollutants. Table 10 summarizes impairments for all downstream
reaches of the Santa Clara River, including the Santa Clara River estuary.

72

127



Environmental Checklist
Hydrology and Water Quality

Table 10 Water Quality Impairments for Downstream Reaches of the Santa Clara River

Santa Clara River Reach Impairments

Reach 6 (West Pier Highway 99 Bridge to Bouquet Canyon Road) Chloride, Chlorpyrifos, Temperature, Toxicity
Reach 5 (Blue Cut Gaging Station to West Pier Highway 99 Bridge) Chloride, Indicator Bacteria, Iron, Trash
Reach 4B (Piru Creek to Blue Cut Gaging Station) Not impaired

Reach 4A (A Street [Fillmore] to Piru Creek) Trash

Reach 3 (Freeman Diversion to A Street [Fillmore]) Chloride, Indicator Bacteria, Selenium, Total

Dissolved Solids, Toxicity, Trash

Reach 2 (Highway 101 Bridge to Freeman Diversion) Not impaired
Reach 1 (Estuary to Highway 101 Bridge) Dissolved Oxygen, pH, Toxicity, Trash
Santa Clara River Estuary Ammonia, ChemA,! Indicator Bacteria,

Toxaphene, Toxicity

1 ChemA refers to the sum of the chemicals aldrin, dieldrin, chlordane, endrin, heptachlor, heptachlor epoxide, lindane, endosulfan,
and toxaphene.

Source: SWRCB 2019

As described above in criterion (a), the project would implement stormwater BMPs to minimize
potential temporary, construction-related water quality impacts pursuant to the Construction
General Permit. The project would be required to implement a SGMP pursuant to Mitigation
Measure HAZ-2, subsurface investigation pursuant to Mitigation Measure HAZ-3, remediation
pursuant to Mitigation Measure HAZ-4, and proper groundwater disposal pursuant to Mitigation
Measure HAZ-5. Mitigation Measures HAZ-2 through HAZ-5 would ensure that the dewatered
groundwater is evaluated and meets the necessary quality standards if it is reintroduced into the
riverbed and consequently back into the groundwater basin. Furthermore, project operation would
not involve ground disturbance that would contribute to runoff of sediment or sediment-bound
pollutants, and the project does not involve septic systems, pet parks, agricultural land, or other
land uses commonly associated with high concentrations of nutrients, indicator bacteria, or
chemical toxicity. No chemicals would be stored on site. Therefore, the project would not
exacerbate existing impairments to the Santa Clara River and would not impair existing or potential
beneficial uses of nearby water bodies with implementation of the Construction General Permit. As
such, the project would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the Basin Plan. Impacts
would be less than significant with mitigation.

Sustainable Groundwater Management Plan

The project site overlies the Saugus Formation of the Basin. The Santa Clarita Valley Groundwater
Sustainability Agency (GSA), consisting of representatives from SCV Water, County of Los Angeles,
City of Santa Clarita, and Los Angeles County Waterworks District Number 36, oversees
management of the subbasin. The Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) governing the Santa Clara
River Valley Groundwater Basin, East Subbasin was adopted in January 2022.

The project could involve dewatering activities during installation of the pipeline across the Santa
Clara River. As described in criterion (b), the dewatered groundwater would be sampled for
contaminants according to Mitigation Measure HAZ-2 through HAZ-5 before potential release into
the Santa Clara Riverbed. Dewatering activities would not conflict with the implementation of the
GSP and would not substantially decrease groundwater levels within the Basin. It is important to
note that the Santa Clara River serves as the primary source of recharge for groundwater basins in
Ventura County (Ventura County Watershed Protection District 2005). During the dry season,

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 73

128



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

groundwater is expected to be encountered at 20 to 50 feet below ground surface (bgs) within the
Santa Clara River bed. Dewatering activities would be temporary and short-term as pipeline
construction activities move along the alignment within the river bed. The dewatering activities will
affect shallow groundwater levels over a maximum time period of one month and will not
substantially decrease groundwater supplies or impede sustainable groundwater management. In
addition, dewatering activities may discharge back to the Santa Clara River, in accordance with
Mitigation Measures HAZ-2 through HAZ-5. By discharging the water back into the Santa Clara River,
there may be opportunity for the groundwater to percolate back into the underlying Basin.

Furthermore, the project does not propose residential, commercial, industrial, or other land uses
that would increase water demand and require additional water supply. The project would address
the existing pipeline’s hydraulic bottleneck in the SCV Water system but would not increase the
overall capacity of the system. As such, the project would not increase groundwater extraction
beyond previous operating conditions and, therefore, would not conflict with or obstruct
implementation of the GSP. Impacts related to the GSP would be less than significant with
mitigation.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

74

129



Environmental Checklist
Land Use and Planning

11 Land Use and Planning

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact
Would the project:
a. Physically divide an established
community? O O O [ |
b. Cause a significant environmental impact
due to a conflict with any land use plan,
policy, or regulation adopted for the
purpose of avoiding or mitigating an
environmental effect? O O O [ |

a. Would the project physically divide an established community?

The proposed project would replace an existing underground pipeline. Therefore, project
components would not physically divide an established community. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

b.  Would the project cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use
plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental
effect?

Pursuant to California Government Code 53091, the building and zoning ordinances of a county or
city do not apply to the location or construction of facilities for the production, storage, or
transmission of water, wastewater, or electrical energy by a local agency. The project would entail
the construction and operation of a new pipeline and replacement of an existing pipeline.
Therefore, the building and zoning ordinances of the City of Santa Clarita would not apply to the
proposed project, and the project is only evaluated for consistency with the City of Santa Clarita
General Plan.

The City of Santa Clarita General Plan identifies objectives and policies to maintain public
infrastructure and provide clean water for Valley residents and businesses. The proposed project’s
consistency with applicable General Plan goals, objectives, and policies is described in Table 11. As
shown therein, the proposed project would actively support the City’s goals, policies, and objectives
related to providing an adequate supply of clean water to meet local demands. Therefore, the
project would not cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan,
policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect, and
no impact would occur.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 75

130



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Table 11 General Plan Consistency

General Plan Goal or Policy Proposed Project Consistency

Objective LU 7.2. Ensure an adequate water supply to Potentially Consistent. The proposed project would enable
meet the demands of growth. SCV Water to continue to provide a reliable source of local
water supply, by resolving an existing bottleneck issue.

Policy LU 7.3.4. Implement best management practices Potentially Consistent. As discussed in Environmental
for erosion control throughout the construction and Checklist Section 10, Hydrology and Water Quality, the
development process. proposed project would implement erosion control BMPs

during construction activities as part of compliance with a
SWPPP required by the NPDES Construction General Permit.

Goal CO 4. An adequate supply of clean water to meet Potentially Consistent. The proposed project would enable
the needs of present and future residents and SCV Water to continue to provide a local supply of clean
businesses, balanced with the needs of natural water.

ecosystems.

Source: City of Santa Clarita 2011a

NO IMPACT

76

131



Environmental Checklist
Mineral Resources

12 Mineral Resources

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact
Would the project:
a. Resultin the loss of availability of a
known mineral resource that would be of
value to the region and the residents of
the state? O O O [ |
b. Resultin the loss of availability of a
locally important mineral resource
recovery site delineated on a local
general plan, specific plan, or other land
use plan? O O O [ |

a. Would the project result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of
value to the region and the residents of the state?

b.  Would the project result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource
recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?

Mineral Resource Zone 2 (MRZ-2) areas are concentrated along waterways, such as the Santa Clara
River within and outside the City boundaries, as well as State Route 126, Castaic Creek, and east of
Sand Canyon Road (City of Santa Clarita 2011b). According to the Santa Clarita General Plan
Environmental Impact Report (2011b), the project site is located in an MRZ-2 area. However, the
project would not include mineral extraction and would not affect the availability of minerals in this
MRZ-2 area. The site is not located in a zone of oil and natural gas extraction and production (City of
Santa Clarita 2011b). No mines or quarries exist near the project site. Consequently, the proposed
project would not result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource or a locally important
mineral resource recovery site. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 77

132



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

78

133



Environmental Checklist

Noise
13 Noise
Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact

Would the project result in:
a. Generation of a substantial temporary or

permanent increase in ambient noise

levels in the vicinity of the project in

excess of standards established in the

local general plan or noise ordinance, or

applicable standards of other agencies? O O [ | O
b. Generation of excessive groundborne

vibration or groundborne noise levels? O O [ | O
c. Fora project located within the vicinity of

a private airstrip or an airport land use

plan or, where such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a public

airport or public use airport, would the

project expose people residing or

working in the project area to excessive

noise levels? O O O [ |

Noise Overview

The unit of measurement used to describe a noise level is the decibel (dB). However, the human ear
is not equally sensitive to all frequencies within the sound spectrum. Therefore, a method called “A
weighting” is used to filter noise frequencies which are not audible to the human ear. A-weighting
approximates the frequency response of the average young ear when listening to most ordinary
everyday sounds. When people make relative judgments of the loudness or annoyance of a sound,
their judgments correlate well with the “A-weighted” levels of those sounds. Therefore, the A-
weighted noise scale is used for measurements and standards involving the human perception of
noise. In this analysis, all noise levels are A-weighted, and “dBA” is understood to identify the
A-weighted decibel.

Decibels are measured on a logarithmic scale which quantifies sound intensity in a manner similar to
the Richter scale used for earthquake magnitudes. A 10 dB increase represents a 10-fold increase in
sound intensity, a 20 dB change is a 100-fold difference, 30 dB is a 1,000-fold increase, etc. Thus, a
doubling of the energy of a noise source, such as doubling of traffic volume, would increase the
noise level by 3 dB; a halving of the energy would result in a 3 dB decrease.

Human perception of noise has no simple correlation with acoustical energy. The perception of
noise is not linear in terms of dBA or in terms of acoustical energy. Two equivalent noise sources
combined do not sound twice as loud as one source. It is widely accepted the average healthy ear
can barely perceive changes of 3 dBA; a change of 5 dBA is readily perceptible; and an increase of 10
dBA sounds twice as loud.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 79

134



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Descriptors

The impact of noise is not a function of loudness alone. The time of day when noise occurs, and the
duration of the noise are also important. In addition, most noise that lasts for more than a few
seconds is variable in its intensity. Consequently, a variety of noise descriptors has been developed.
The noise descriptors used for this analysis are the one-hour equivalent noise level (Leg). The Leg is
defined as the single steady A-weighted level that is equivalent to the same amount of energy as
that contained in the actual fluctuating levels over a period. Typically, Leq is equivalent to a one-hour
period, even when measured for shorter durations as the noise level of a 10- to 30-minute period
would be the same as the hour if the noise source is relatively steady. Lmax is the highest Root Mean
Squared (RMS) sound pressure level within the sampling period, and Lmi, is the lowest RMS sound
pressure level within the measuring period.

Propagation

Sound from a small, localized source (approximating a “point” source) radiates uniformly outward as
it travels away from the source in a spherical pattern, known as geometric spreading. The sound
level decreases or drops off at a rate of 6 dBA for each doubling of the distance. Traffic noise is not a
single, stationary point source of sound. Over some time interval, the movement of vehicles makes
the source of the sound appear to emanate from a line (line source) rather than a point. The drop-
off rate for a line source is 3 dBA for each doubling of distance.

The propagation of noise is also affected by the intervening ground, known as ground absorption. A
hard site (such as parking lots or smooth bodies of water) receives no additional ground attenuation
and the changes in noise levels with distance (drop-off rate) are simply the geometric spreading of
the source. A soft site (such as soft dirt, grass, or scattered bushes and trees) receives an additional
ground attenuation value of 1.5 dBA per doubling of distance.

Noise levels may also be reduced by intervening structures; the amount of attenuation provided by
this “shielding” depends on the size of the object and the frequencies of the noise levels. Natural
terrain features such as hills and dense woods, and man-made features such as buildings and walls,
can significantly alter noise levels. Generally, any large structure blocking the line of sight will
provide at least a 5-dBA reduction in source noise levels at the receiver (Federal Highway
Administration [FHWA] 2011).

Vibration Overview

Vibration levels are usually expressed as single-number measure of vibration magnitude, in terms of
velocity or acceleration, which describes the severity of the vibration without the frequency
variable. The peak particle velocity (PPV) is defined as the maximum instantaneous positive or
negative peak of the vibration signal, usually measured in inches per second. Since it is related to
the stresses experienced by buildings, PPV is often used in monitoring and controlling construction
vibration. Although PPV is appropriate for evaluating the potential of building damage, it is not
suitable for evaluating human response. It takes some time for the human body to respond to
vibrations. In a sense, the human body responds to an average vibration amplitude (Federal
Transit Administration [FTA] 2018). Because vibration waves are oscillatory, the net average of a
vibration signal is zero. Thus, the RMS amplitude is used to describe the “smoothed” vibration
amplitude (FTA 2018). The RMS of a signal is the square root of the average of the squared
amplitude of the signal, usually measured in inches per second. The average is typically calculated
over a one-second period. The RMS amplitude is always less than the PPV and is always positive.
Decibel notation is used to compress the range of numbers required to describe vibration. The

80

135



Environmental Checklist
Noise

abbreviation VdB is used in this analysis for vibration decibels to reduce the potential for confusion
with sound decibels.

Sensitive Receptors

Noise exposure goals for various types of land uses reflect the varying noise sensitivities associated
with those uses. Typical noise sensitive uses include residential, residential care, child/elder care
facilities, schools, places of worship, and hospitals. Vibration-sensitive receptors, which are similar
to noise-sensitive receptors, include residences and institutional uses, such as schools, churches,
and hospitals. However, vibration-sensitive receptors also include buildings where vibrations may
interfere with vibration-sensitive equipment that is affected by vibration levels that may be well
below those associated with human annoyance (e.g., recording studies or medical facilities with
sensitive equipment). The closest sensitive receptors are single-family residences located 50 feet to
the west of the alignment on Honby Avenue, Rio Vista Elementary School property located
approximately 20 feet to the east of the alignment on Honby Avenue and immediately adjacent to
the staging area.

Project Noise Setting

The primary noise sources in the vicinity of the project site are motor vehicles (e.g., automobiles,
buses, and trucks), particularly along Honby Avenue, Lakemore Drive, Bonlee Avenue, and
Cedarcreek Street. In addition, noise is generated by the elementary school (e.g., school bells and
children playing) and the industrial uses west of Honby Avenue.

Significance Thresholds
The Santa Clarita Municipal Code (SCMC) addresses construction noise in the following section:

SCMC Section 11.44.080. No person shall engage in any construction work which requires a
building permit from the City on sites within 300 feet of a residentially zoned property except
between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
on Saturday. Further, no work shall be performed on the following public holidays: New Year’s
Day, Independence Day, Thanksgiving, Christmas, Memorial Day, and Labor Day. Emergency
work as defined in SCMC Section 11.44.020(D) is permitted at all times. The Department of
Community Development may issue a permit for work to be done “after hours”; provided, that
containment of construction noises is provided.

The SCMC does not provide a quantitative construction noise threshold. Therefore, based on FTA
Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment (2018) criteria, construction noise would be
significant if noise levels exceed 80 dBA L., for an 8-hour period at residential uses or construction is
conducted outside the allowable hours for construction as stated in Section 11.44.080. The FTA
Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment (2018) criteria only includes thresholds for
residential, commercial, and industrial land uses and does not include a separate school threshold.
In lieu of a school-specific construction noise threshold, the residential land use threshold was used
as that is the most conservative of the land use thresholds.

The SCMC also does not provide a quantitative vibration threshold. Therefore, vibration limits used
in this analysis to determine a potential impact to local land uses are based on guidelines for
vibration damage potential contained in Caltrans’ (2020) Transportation and Construction Vibration
Guidance Manual, shown in in Table 12.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 81

136



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Table 12 Calirans Vibration Damage Potential Threshold Criteria

Continuous/Frequent

Type of Situation Transient Sources (in/sec PPV) Intermittent Sources (in/sec PPV)
Extremely fragile historic buildings, ruins, 0.12 0.08

and ancient monuments

Fragile buildings 0.2 0.1

Historic sites and some old buildings 0.5 0.25

Older residential structures 0.5 0.3

New residential structures 1.0 0.5

Modern industrial/commercial buildings 2.0 0.5

in/sec = inches per second; PPV = peak particle velocity
Source: Caltrans 2020

a. Would the project result in generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in
ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local
general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

Construction

Temporary noise levels caused by construction activity would be a function of the noise generated
by construction equipment, the location and sensitivity of nearby land uses, and the timing and
duration of noise-generating activities. For a construction noise assessment, construction
equipment can be considered to operate in two modes: stationary and mobile. As a rule, stationary
equipment operates in a single location for one or more days at a time, with either fixed-power
operation (e.g., pumps, generators, and compressors) or variable-power operation (e.g., pile drivers,
rock drills, and pavement breakers). Mobile equipment moves around the construction site with
power applied in cyclic fashion, such as bulldozers, graders, and loaders (FTA 2018). Noise impacts
from stationary equipment are assessed from the center of the equipment, while noise impacts
from mobile construction equipment are assessed from the center of the equipment activity area
(e.g., construction site).

Construction noise was estimated using the Federal Highway Administration’s (FHWA) Roadway
Construction Noise Model (RCNM). Typical construction projects have long-term noise averages that
are lower than louder short-term noise events due to equipment moving from one point to another
on the site, work breaks, and idle time. Each phase of construction has a specific equipment mix,
depending on the work to be accomplished during that phase. Each phase also has its own noise
characteristics; some will have higher continuous noise levels than others, and some may have
discontinuous high-impact noise levels. The maximum hourly Leq of each phase is determined by
combining the Leq contributions from each piece of equipment used in that phase (FTA 2018).
Project construction phases would include infrastructure installation, paving, and site restoration. It
is assumed diesel engines would power all construction equipment. For assessment purposes, the
loudest phase (infrastructure installation) was modeled under the conservative assumption that a
dozer, crane, generator, backhoe, and a tractor would be operating simultaneously.

Construction would occur from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and would therefore
not conflict with the SCMC. Rio Vista Elementary School would be notified of the construction
schedule once it is finalized. Pipeline construction activities would be mobile and would be
constantly moving in a linear path along the pipeline alignment. Construction equipment would
travel linearly along the pipeline alignment and therefore exposure to the nearest sensitive

82

137



Environmental Checklist
Noise

receptors would be temporary, and the distance to the receptor would vary throughout a
construction day. It was assumed that the nearest sensitive receptors (the residence and school
located off Honby Avenue) would be exposed to construction noise at an average distance of 100
feet throughout a typical construction workday.

With a dozer, crane, generator, backhoe, and a tractor operating simultaneously, the hourly noise
level at 100 feet from pipeline construction would be 78 dBA Leq (see Appendix D for construction
noise modeling output). Therefore, at the nearest noise-sensitive receptors to the project
alignment, pipeline construction activities would not exceed the FTA’s 80 dBA L, threshold for an 8-
hour period. Impacts would be less than significant.

Operation

As an underground pipeline, project operation would be negligible. The project would not require
new maintenance activities that would generate noise. Therefore, no operational noise impacts
would occur.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

b.  Would the project result in generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise
levels?

Construction activities known to generate excessive groundborne vibration, such as pile driving,
would not be conducted as part of the project. The greatest anticipated source of vibration during
general project construction activities would be general construction equipment, such as vibratory
roller, which may be used within 50 feet of the nearest residential and school structures. A large
bulldozer would create approximately 0.210 in/sec PPV at a distance of 25 feet (Caltrans 2020). This
would equal a vibration level of approximately 0.098 in/sec PPV at a distance of 50 feet.> This would
be lower than what is considered the structural damage impact to older residential structures of 0.3
in/sec PPV. Therefore, temporary impacts associated with the roller (and other potential
equipment) would be less than significant.

Operation of the project would involve the operation of an underground pipeline. The project would
not include any vibration sources during operation. Therefore, no operational vibration impacts
would occur.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

c.  For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or,
where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use
airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive
noise levels?

The closest public or public use airport to the project site is the Whiteman Airport, located
approximately 14 miles southwest of the project site. The project site is not located within the noise
contours for the airport. Therefore, project construction workers would not be exposed to
temporary and short-term airport noise. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

5 PPVEquipment = PPVRef (25/D)" (in/sec), PPVRef = reference PPV at 25 feet, D = distance ,and n=1.1

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 83

138



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

84

139



Environmental Checklist
Population and Housing

14 Population and Housing

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact
Would the project:
a. Induce substantial unplanned population
growth in an area, either directly (e.g., by
proposing new homes and businesses) or
indirectly (e.g., through extension of
roads or other infrastructure)? O O O [ |
b. Displace substantial numbers of existing
people or housing, necessitating the
construction of replacement housing
elsewhere? O O O [ |

a. Would the project induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly
(for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through
extension of roads or other infrastructure)?

Due to the relatively small nature of the proposed project, construction workers would likely be
local to the Santa Clarita region; therefore, construction would not generate new population
growth. As previously discussed, the project would not increase the production capacity of the SCV
Water system nor would it increase demand for water. During project operation, the proposed
project would not directly induce population growth because it would not produce additional water
supplies for residential or commercial use. The project would not require any new employees for
operation and maintenance activities as SCV Water staff already conduct operation and
maintenance for the existing pipeline in the project’s location. Furthermore, the proposed project
would not result in the construction of new homes or new commercial or industrial uses. Therefore,
the project would not induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly or
indirectly, and no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

b.  Would the project displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the
construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

There is no existing housing within the project alignment, and no demolition would occur as part of
project construction. Therefore, the project would not displace substantial numbers of existing
people or housing, and no impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 85

140



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

86

141



Environmental Checklist
Public Services

15 Public Services

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact
a. Would the project result in substantial
adverse physical impacts associated with
the provision of new or physically altered
governmental facilities, or the need for
new or physically altered governmental
facilities, the construction of which could
cause significant environmental impacts,
in order to maintain acceptable service
ratios, response times or other
performance objectives for any of the
public services:
1 Fire protection? O O O [ |
2 Police protection? O O O [ |
3 Schools? O O O [ |
4  Parks? O O O [ |
5 Other public facilities? O O O [ |

a.1. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision
of new or physically altered fire protection facilities, or the need for new or physically altered
fire protection facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental
impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance
objectives?

The closest fire station is the Los Angeles County Fire Department Station #104, located at 26901
Golden Valley Road, Santa Clarita, approximately 1.6 miles (driving distance) west of the project site.
The proposed project would not result in increased demand for fire protection services because no
population growth would occur as a result of construction or operation of the proposed project, as
discussed in Environmental Checklist Section 14, Population and Housing. The project would not
require additional or unusual fire protection resources beyond those required for the existing
facilities on the project site. Therefore, no impact to fire protection services would occur.

NO IMPACT

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 87

142



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

a.2. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision
of new or physically altered police protection facilities, or the need for new or physically altered
police protection facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental
impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance
objectives?

The nearest police station is the Santa Clarita Valley Sheriff’s Station, located at 26201 Golden Valley
Road in Santa Clarita, approximately 1.8 miles south (driving distance) of the project site. The
proposed project would not result in increased demand for police protection services because no
population growth would occur as a result of construction or operation of the proposed project, as
discussed in Environmental Checklist Section 14, Population and Housing. Thus, the proposed
project would not result in an impact associated with the provision of new or physically altered
police protection facilities. Therefore, no impact to police protection services would occur.

NO IMPACT

a.3. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision
of new or physically altered schools, or the need for new or physically altered schools, the
construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain
acceptable service ratios or other performance objectives?

The proposed project would not result in increased demand for schools because no population
growth would occur as a result of construction or operation of the proposed project, as discussed in
Environmental Checklist Section 14, Population and Housing. Therefore, no impact to schools would
occur.

NO IMPACT

a.4. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision
of new or physically altered parks, or the need for new or physically altered parks, the
construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain
acceptable service ratios or other performance objectives?

The proposed project would not result in increased demand for parks because no population growth
would occur as a result of construction or operation of the proposed project, as discussed in
Environmental Checklist Section 14, Population and Housing. Therefore, no impact to parks would
occur.

NO IMPACT

a.5. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision
of other new or physically altered public facilities, or the need for other new or physically
altered public facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental
impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance
objectives?

The proposed project would not change existing demand for public facilities because population
growth would not result from construction or operation of the proposed project, as discussed in in
Environmental Checklist Section 14, Population and Housing. Therefore, no impact to public facilities
would occur.

NO IMPACT

88

143



Environmental Checklist

Recreation
16 Recreation
Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact
a. Would the project increase the use of
existing neighborhood and regional parks
or other recreational facilities such that
substantial physical deterioration of the
facility would occur or be accelerated? O O O [ |
b. Does the project include recreational
facilities or require the construction or
expansion of recreational facilities which
might have an adverse physical effect on
the environment? O O O [ |

a. Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other
recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or
be accelerated?

As discussed in in Environmental Checklist Section 14, Population and Housing, the proposed project
would not directly or indirectly generate population growth and therefore would not increase the
use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial
physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT
b.  Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of
recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

The project would involve construction of a water pipeline. The project would not involve
construction or expansion of recreational facilities. No impact would occur.

NO IMPACT

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 89

144



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

90

145



Environmental Checklist
Transportation

17 Transportation

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact
Would the project:
a. Conflict with a program, plan, ordinance
or policy addressing the circulation
system, including transit, roadway,
bicycle and pedestrian facilities? O O [ | O
b. Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA
Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision
(b)? | m| [ |
c. Substantially increase hazards due to a
geometric design feature (e.g., sharp
curves or dangerous intersections) or
incompatible use (e.g., farm equipment)? O O O [ |
d. Resultin inadequate emergency access? O [ | O O

a. Would the project conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation
system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?

Construction-related vehicle trips would include construction workers traveling to and from the
project site, haul trucks (including for soil import), and other trucks associated with equipment and
material deliveries. Given the minimal number of trips generated and the limited impact to public
transit and pedestrian facilities, the proposed project would not conflict with adopted policies,
plans, or programs addressing the circulation system, including public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian
facilities. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant.

Regional and local plans and policies addressing the circulation system include the City of Santa
Clarita General Plan Circulation Element and the SCAG 2020-2045 Regional Transportation
Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy(RTP/SCS) (City of Santa Clarita 2011a; SCAG 2020). No
transit stops, sidewalks, or bicycle lanes are located along the segment of Honby Avenue where the
pipeline alignment would be located. Construction traffic would be temporary and limited to the
duration of the construction schedule (October 2024 to January 2026). After construction is
complete, no changes to existing transportation patterns would occur because the pipeline would
be located underground, and no new operation and maintenance activities would be required for
the project. The minimal level of traffic generated during project construction would not have the
potential to conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system,
including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 21

146



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

b.  Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision
(b)?

CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3(b) identifies criteria for evaluating transportation impacts.
Specifically, the guidelines state vehicle miles traveled (VMT) exceeding an applicable threshold of
significance may indicate a significant impact. According to Section 15064.3(b)(3) of the CEQA
Guidelines, a lead agency may include a qualitative analysis of operational and construction traffic.
A VMT calculation is typically conducted on a daily or annual basis, for long-range planning
purposes. Increases in VMT from construction would be short-term, minimal, and temporary.
Project operation would not involve any new maintenance activities compared to existing
conditions. Therefore, operational VMT in the project area would not be increased. In addition, as
stated in the City of Santa Clarita’s Transportation Analysis Updates guidance, projects that generate
less than 110 daily trips are presumed to result in less than significant VMT impacts absent
substantial evidence to the contrary (City of Santa Clarita 2020). Project construction would result in
a maximum of 48 daily trips (Appendix A), which is substantially below the 110 daily trip threshold.
The project would involve no new operation and maintenance activities compared to existing
conditions. Therefore, the project would not generate any operational VMT. Impacts associated
with VMT would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

c¢. Would the project substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp
curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible use (e.g., farm equipment)?

Project components consist of a water pipeline that would be located belowground, including a
portion located along Honby Avenue. The project would result in no changes to the existing road
geometry of Honby Avenue. The proposed project would therefore not create or substantially
increase traffic hazards due to a geometric design feature or incompatible use. No impact would
occur.

NO IMPACT

d. Would the project result in inadequate emergency access?

Construction activities associated with the proposed project would result in road lane closures or
associated traffic impacts. As described in in Environmental Checklist Section 9, Hazards and
Hazardous Materials, the project would implement a Traffic Control Plan with implementation of
Mitigation Measure HAZ-6. In addition, although construction of the project would temporarily
increase heavy vehicle trips to and from the project site, such effects would be localized and
temporary and would not have potential to impede emergency access in the project area.
Operational activities associated with the proposed project would occur solely on the project site
and would not interfere with emergency response and would not be greater than existing
maintenance. Consequently, the project would not result in inadequate emergency access, and
impacts would be less than significant with mitigation incorporated.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

92

147



Environmental Checklist
Tribal Cultural Resources

18 Tribal Cultural Resources

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact

Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural
resource, defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, or
cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape,
sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is:

a. Listed or eligible for listing in the
California Register of Historical
Resources, or in a local register of
historical resources as defined in Public
Resources Code Section 5020.1(k), or O [ | O O

b. Aresource determined by the lead
agency, in its discretion and supported by
substantial evidence, to be significant
pursuant to criteria set forth in
subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code
Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria
set forth in subdivision (c) of Public
Resources Code Section 5024.1, the lead
agency shall consider the significance of
the resource to a California Native
American tribe. O | O O

PRC Section 21074 (a)(1)(A-B) defines tribal cultural resources as “sites, features, places, cultural

landscapes, sacred places, and objects with cultural value to a California Native American tribe” and

is:

1. Listed or eligible for listing in the CRHR, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in
PRC Section 5020.1(k), or

2. Aresource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial
evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in PRC Section 5024.1(c). In applying
these criteria, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California
Native American tribe.

AB 52 also establishes a formal consultation process for California tribes regarding those resources.
Under AB 52, lead agencies are required to “begin consultation with a California Native American
tribe that is traditionally and culturally affiliated with the geographic area of the proposed project.”
Native American tribes to be included in the process are those that have requested notice of
projects proposed within the jurisdiction of the lead agency. The consultation process must be
completed before a CEQA document can be adopted/certified.

The NAHC was contacted to request a review of the SLF on November 10, 2021. On December 27,
2021, the NAHC stated that the results of the SLF search were positive.

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 93

148



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

As part of the AB 52 consultation, SCV Water sent AB 52 consultation letters to the Gabrielefio Band
of Mission Indians-Kizh Nation, the Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians, the Fernandefio
Tataviam Band of Mission Indians (FTBMI), and the San Gabriel Band of Mission Indians on February
7, 2022. SCV Water received one response via email from the FTBMI on March 7, 2022, requesting
formal consultation and more information about the details of the project. Consultation between
SCV Water and FTBMI is ongoing.

a. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural
resource as defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074 that is listed or eligible for listing in
the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as
defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k)?

b.  Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural
resource as defined in Public Resources Code 21074 that is a resource determined by the lead
agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.17?

No tribal cultural resources have been identified within the project site. The NAHC SLF search was
returned with positive results, which means the NAHC identified a potentially sensitive tribal
cultural resource within the USGS quadrangle in which the project site is located. USGS quadrangles
cover approximately 49 to 70 square miles, and a positive SLF result does not necessarily indicate
the presence of a known tribal cultural resource on the project site. However, it is possible unknown
tribal cultural resources exist at the project site that could be substantially impacted by ground-
disturbing activities. As outlined in Environmental Checklist Section 5, Cultural Resources, Mitigation
Measures CR-1 and CR-2 require implementation of a Worker Environmental Awareness Program
training by a qualified archaeologist and a representative from a locally-affiliated Native American
Tribe, such as FTBMI, prior to construction and implementation of procedures for the unanticipated
discovery of archaeological resources, including those of Native American origin. In addition,
Mitigation Measures TCR-1, TCR-2, and TCR-3 have been included in response to the FTBMI’s
request for full-time Native American monitoring of all ground-disturbing activities, unanticipated
discovery of tribal cultural resources, and compliance with existing regulations outlined in California
Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 should human remains be inadvertently discovered during
construction, respectively.

With implementation of Mitigation Measures CR-1,CR-2, TCR-1, TCR-2, and TCR-3, the project would
not cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, and impacts
would be less than significant with mitigation incorporated.

Mitigation Measures

TCR-1 Tribal Cultural Resources Construction Monitoring

SCV Water shall retain a professional Tribal Monitor procured by the Fernandefio Tataviam Band of
Mission Indians (FBTMI) to observe all ground-disturbing activities including, but not limited to,
excavating, digging, trenching, plowing, drilling, tunneling, quarrying, grading, leveling, clearing,
driving posts, auguring, blasting, stripping topsoil or similar activity. If cultural resources are
encountered, the Tribal Monitor will have the authority to request that ground-disturbing activities
cease within 60 feet of discovery to assess and document potential finds in real time.

94

149



Environmental Checklist
Tribal Cultural Resources

TCR-2 Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources

SCV Water shall, in good faith, consult with the FTBMI on the disposition and treatment of any Tribal
Cultural Resource encountered during all ground disturbing activities.

TCR-3 Unanticipated Discovery of Human Remains

If human remains or funerary objects are encountered during any activities associated with the
project, work in the immediate vicinity (within a 100-foot buffer of the find) shall cease and the
County Coroner shall be contacted pursuant to State Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 and
that code shall be enforced for the duration of the project.

Inadvertent discoveries of human remains and/or funerary object(s) are subject to California State
Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5, and the subsequent disposition of those discoveries shall be
decided by the Most Likely Descendant (MLD), as determined by the Native American Heritage
Commission (NAHC), should those findings be determined as Native American in origin.

Significance After Mitigation

Implementation of Mitigation Measures TCR-1 through TCR-3 during ground-disturbing activities
would reduce potential tribal cultural resource impacts to a less than significant level by
implementing a Tribal Monitor, consultation with FTBMI, and procedures for the unanticipated
discovery of humans.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 95

150



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

96

151



Environmental Checklist
Utilities and Service Systems

19 Utilities and Service Systems

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact

Would the project:

a. Require or result in the relocation or
construction of new or expanded water,
wastewater treatment or storm water
drainage, electric power, natural gas, or
telecommunications facilities, the
construction or relocation of which could
cause significant environmental effects? O O O [ |

b. Have sufficient water supplies available
to serve the project and reasonably
foreseeable future development during
normal, dry and multiple dry years? O O O [ |

c. Resultin a determination by the
wastewater treatment provider which
serves or may serve the project that it
has adequate capacity to serve the
project’s projected demand in addition to
the provider’s existing commitments? O O O [ |

d. Generate solid waste in excess of State or
local standards, or in excess of the
capacity of local infrastructure, or
otherwise impair the attainment of solid
waste reduction goals? O d | O

e. Comply with federal, state, and local
management and reduction statutes and
regulations related to solid waste? O O [ | O

a. Would the project require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water,
wastewater treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or
telecommunications facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant
environmental effects?

c. Would the project result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves
or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand
in addition to the provider’s existing commitments?

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 97

152



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Water

The proposed project would involve the construction and operation of a pipeline, the environmental
effects of which are analyzed in this IS-MND. The project would address operational deficiencies of
the current pipeline and would allow the pipeline to operate at the system’s design capacity as
intended. The project would not increase the system capacity such that additional customers could
be served. No additional impact related to water facilities would occur.

Wastewater Treatment

The proposed project would not generate wastewater or otherwise contribute to an increase in
demand for wastewater treatment services. Therefore, the project would not require relocation or
construction of new wastewater facilities, and no impact would occur.

Stormwater Drainage

As discussed in Environmental Checklist Section 10, Hydrology and Water Quality, the project would
generally preserve existing drainage patterns on site. The increase in impervious surface would also
be nominal. While groundwater from dewatering during construction across the river bed may be
discharged into the City’s storm drain system, this temporary discharge would not occur unless
approved by the City and covered under the appropriate discharge permit. This discharge would be
temporary and would occur when the river is dry, typically when no rainfall is occurring in the area,
and would not exceed the capacity of the stormwater system. The project would not require new or
expanded stormwater drainage infrastructure. Therefore, no impact related to stormwater drainage
would occur.

Electric Power

As discussed in Environmental Checklist Section 6, Energy, the project would not require electricity
to operate the pipeline. No new or relocated energy facilities would be required as a result of the
proposed project. No impact would occur.

Natural Gas

The project would not involve any components requiring natural gas service and is not anticipated
to involve the relocation of existing natural gas facilities. Therefore, no impact to natural gas
facilities would occur.

Telecommunications

The project would not require telecommunications to operate the supervisory control and data
acquisition system. The project would not involve the relocation of existing telecommunications
facilities. Therefore, no impacts related to telecommunications facilities would occur.

NO IMPACT

b.  Would the project have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably
foreseeable future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years?

The project itself would not introduce a new operational water demand. Project construction water
requirements would be met via existing SCV Water supplies and facilities. Moreover, the project
would have a beneficial effect on existing water supplies by replacing and improving Honby Pipeline

98

153



Environmental Checklist
Utilities and Service Systems

to address the system bottleneck caused by the existing pipeline. Therefore, no adverse impact
would occur related to sufficient water supplies.

NO IMPACT

d. Would the project generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the
capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction
goals?

e. Would the project comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes
and regulations related to solid waste?

Construction activities may temporarily generate solid waste, including soil spoils, pavement debris,
or other construction waste, which would be disposed of in accordance with all applicable federal,
state, and local statutes and regulations. While most soil is expected to be reused as backfill
material within the project area, exported soil and minimal remaining inert construction waste
would be disposed of at existing construction waste landfills in the area. Due to the temporary
nature of construction and minimal amount of construction waste anticipated to require disposal,
the project would not generate quantities of solid waste that would account for a substantial
percentage of the total daily regional permitted capacity available at landfills accepting such waste.
Therefore, waste generated by construction activities would not exceed the available capacity at the
landfills serving the project area that would accept debris generated by the project, such as the
Chiquita Canyon Landfill and the Sunshine Canyon Landfill. The Chiquita Canyon Landfill has a
remaining capacity of 60,408,000 cubic yards and an estimated closure date of 2047 (California
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery [CalRecycle] 2023a). The Sunshine Canyon Landfill
has a remaining capacity of 77,900,000 cubic yards and an estimated closure date of 2037
(CalRecycle 2023b).

As standard practice, SCV Water complies with all applicable laws and regulations related to solid
waste generation, collection, and disposal. The project would result in a short-term and temporary
increase in solid waste generation during construction but would not substantially affect standard
solid waste operations of any landfill accepting waste. Recycling and reuse activities during
construction would comply with the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989 (AB 939).
Once operational, the project would include unmanned facilities and would not generate solid
waste. Therefore, solid waste impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 99

154



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

100

155



Environmental Checklist

Wildfire
20 Wildfire
Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact

If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity
zones, would the project:

a. Substantially impair an adopted
emergency response plan or emergency
evacuation plan? O [ | O O

b. Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other
factors, exacerbate wildfire risks and
thereby expose project occupants to
pollutant concentrations from a wildfire
or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? O [ | O O

c. Require the installation or maintenance
of associated infrastructure (such as
roads, fuel breaks, emergency water
sources, power lines or other utilities)
that may exacerbate fire risk or that may
result in temporary or ongoing impacts to
the environment? O O O [ |

d. Expose people or structures to significant
risks, including downslopes or
downstream flooding or landslides, as a
result of runoff, post-fire slope instability,
or drainage changes? O O O [ |

The hillside portion of the pipeline alignment north of the Santa Clara River is located in a
designated VHFHSZ (CAL FIRE 2023). The project site is not located within a State Responsibility Area
(SRA). The nearest SRA is located 0.8 mile northeast of the project site. In addition, as discussed in
Environmental Checklist Section 9, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, the proposed facility would be
located within brush-covered open space vegetated with native plant communities, which are highly
combustible.

a. Iflocated in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity
zones, would the project substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or
emergency evacuation plan?

The City of Santa Clarita’s LHMP (2021) sets forth hazard mitigation strategies related to a variety of
threats, including wildfire. Strategies towards mitigating wildfire include working with the Los
Angeles Fire Department to enhance emergency service and increase the efficiency of response
times, enhancing outreach and education programs on wildfires, encouraging and increasing
communication among wildland/urban interface property owners, and enhancing the City’s Urban

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 101

156



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

Forestry ability to manage wildfire events. As discussed in Environmental Checklist Section 9,
Hazards and Hazardous Materials, the proposed project would not interfere with implementation of
the City’s LHMP.

As discussed in Environmental Checklist Section 17, Transportation, the project would not impede
access to emergency services. Construction of the proposed project would require temporary lane
closures. As discussed in Environmental Checklist Section 9, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, the
project would implement a Traffic Control Plan with implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-2.
Although construction of the project would increase heavy vehicle trips to and from the project site,
such effects would be localized and temporary, and would not impede emergency access in the
project area. Consequently, the proposed project would not substantially impair an adopted
emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan in wildfire risk zones. Impacts would be
less than significant with mitigation incorporated.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

b. If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity
zones, would the project, due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire
risks and thereby expose project occupants to pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the
uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?

As discussed in Environmental Checklist Section 9, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, project
operation would not involve potentially flammable activities. However, the wildland-urban interface
could pose the potential for incidents of fire during project construction. Potential ignition sources
may include sparks from exhaust pipes, discarded cigarette butts, contact of mufflers with dry grass,
other sources of sparks or flame, and spills or releases of flammable materials such as gasoline.
Compliance with applicable federal and State laws and regulations related to the proper use,
storage, and transport of hazardous materials would reduce the risk of wildfire ignition from the use
of hazardous materials during construction activities. Therefore, impacts related to wildland fires
during project construction would be less-than-significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

c. Iflocated in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity
zones, would the project require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure
(such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may
exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment?

d. Iflocated in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity
zones, would the project expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslopes
or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or
drainage changes?

The proposed project consists of the construction and operation of a pipeline. As discussed in
Environmental Checklist Section 19, Utilities and Service Systems, the project would not result in the
relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or stormwater
drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities beyond the pipeline
alignment evaluated in this analysis. The proposed project would not include fuel breaks,
emergency water sources, power lines, or other aboveground utilities that would exacerbate fire
risk or result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment. Furthermore, the proposed
project does not include habitable structures and, as described under Environmental Checklist

102

157



Environmental Checklist
Wildfire

Section 7, Geology and Soils, the project would be constructed in compliance with standard pipeline
engineering techniques intended to minimize structural damage risks that could lead to landslide
onto off-site properties. The project would therefore not expose people to significant risks as a
result of runoff, post-fire slop instability, or drainage changes. Therefore, no impacts would occur.

NO IMPACT

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 103

158



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

104

159



Environmental Checklist
Mandatory Findings of Significance

21 Mandatory Findings of Significance

Less than
Significant
Potentially with Less than
Significant Mitigation Significant
Impact Incorporated Impact No Impact

Does the project:

a. Have the potential to substantially
degrade the quality of the environment,
substantially reduce the habitat of a fish
or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife
population to drop below self-sustaining
levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or
animal community, substantially reduce
the number or restrict the range of a rare
or endangered plant or animal or
eliminate important examples of the
major periods of California history or
prehistory? O O [ | O

b. Have impacts that are individually
limited, but cumulatively considerable?
(“Cumulatively considerable” means that
the incremental effects of a project are
considerable when viewed in connection
with the effects of past projects, the
effects of other current projects, and the
effects of probable future projects)? O [ | O O

c. Have environmental effects which will
cause substantial adverse effects on
human beings, either directly or
indirectly? O [ | O O

a. Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment,
substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population
to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community,
substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or
eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?

Potential impacts to biological resources are addressed in Environmental Checklist Section 4,
Biological Resources. As described therein, there is low to moderate potential for certain special-
status wildlife species to occur on the project site, including the federally-threatened coastal CAGN
and least Bell’s vireo. However, the project site is limited in size, as compared to the total size of
habitats supporting fish and wildlife species, and the project would only result in temporary impacts
to special-status species during construction, as the proposed pipeline would be located
underground and would not affect any species during operation. Therefore, the project would not

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 105

160



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

substantially reduce the habitat of fish and wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to
drop below self-sustaining levels, eliminate a plant or animal community, or reduce the number or
restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal. In addition, as discussed in Environmental
Checklist Section 5, Cultural Resources, the project would not eliminate important examples of the
major periods of California history or prehistory because none are known to be present in the
project area. Impacts would be less than significant.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

b. Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?
(“Cumulatively considerable” means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable
when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current
projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?

As described in the discussion of Environmental Checklist Sections 1 through 20, with respect to all
environmental issues, the proposed project would not result in significant and unmitigable impacts
to the environment. All anticipated impacts associated with project construction and operation
would be either less than significant or less than significant with mitigation incorporated. This is
largely due to the fact project construction activities would be temporary and project operation
would result in minimal changes to the environmental baseline condition. Additionally, where it was
determined the project would have no impact (aesthetics, agriculture and forestry resources,
energy, land use and planning, mineral resources, population and housing, public services, and
recreation), no cumulative impact would be exacerbated as a result of the project.

Cumulatively considerable impacts could occur if the construction of other projects occurs at the
same time as the proposed project and in the same vicinity, such that the effects of similar impacts
of multiple projects combine to expose adjacent sensitive receptors to greater levels of impact than
would occur under the proposed project. For example, if the construction of other projects in the
area occurs at the same time as construction of the proposed project, potential impacts associated
with noise and traffic to residents in the project area may be more substantial. There are no other
planned or pending projects within the immediate vicinity of the project site that could combine
with the project to result in cumulative construction-related impacts (City of Santa Clarita 2023).

The project would result in no change to existing operations and maintenance activities in the SCV
Water service area and would not increase water supply availability. Therefore, the project would
not contribute to cumulative impacts related to direct or indirect population growth, such as
impacts to public services, recreation, and population and housing. Impacts related to cultural
resources, geology and soils, hazards and hazardous materials, land use and planning, mineral
resources, and tribal cultural resources are inherently restricted to the project site and would not
contribute to cumulative impacts associated with existing and future development in Santa Clarita.
In addition, air quality and GHG impacts are cumulative by nature, and as discussed in
Environmental Checklist Section 3, Air Quality, and Environmental Checklist Section 8, Greenhouse
Gas Emissions, the project would not generate air pollutant emissions in excess of SCAQMD
thresholds or GHG emissions that would conflict with any applicable plans, policies, or regulations to
reduce GHG emissions. Therefore, the project would not contribute to the existing significant
cumulative air quality impacts related to the SCAB’s nonattainment status for ozone, PMig, PM35,
and lead, or the existing significant cumulative climate change impact. Furthermore, project impacts
to resources such as aesthetics, agriculture and forestry resources, biological resources, hydrology
and water quality, noise, transportation, and utilities and service systems would be minimal with
mitigation, where proposed, and would not have the potential to constitute a considerable

106

161



Environmental Checklist
Mandatory Findings of Significance

contribution to cumulative impacts that may occur due to existing and future development in the
region. Therefore, the proposed project would not result in a cumulatively considerable
contribution to a significant impact.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

c. Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on
human beings, either directly or indirectly?

In general, impacts to human beings are associated with air quality, hazards and hazardous
materials, and noise impacts. As detailed in the preceding sections, the project would not result,
either directly or indirectly, in substantial adverse effects related to air quality, hazards and
hazardous materials, or noise with implementation of Mitigation Measures HAZ-1, HAZ-2 and HAZ-
3. Therefore, impacts to human beings would be less than significant with mitigation incorporated.

LESS THAN SIGNIFICANT WITH MITIGATION INCORPORATED

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 107

162



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

108

163



References
Mandatory Findings of Significance

References

Bibliography

Association of Environmental Professionals. 2016. Final White Paper Beyond 2020 and Newhall: A
Field Guide to New CEQA Greenhouse Gas Thresholds and Climate Action Plan Targets for
California. October 18, 2016.

Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). 2023. 2022 CEQA Guidelines. April 20, 2023.
https://www.baagmd.gov/plans-and-climate/california-environmental-quality-act-
cega/updated-ceqa-guidelines

California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2005. Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community
Health Perspective. April 2005. https://www.arb.ca.gov/ch/handbook.pdf (accessed April
2022).

. 2022a. Maps of State and Federal Area Designations.
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/maps-state-and-federal-area-designations
(accessed June 2023).

. 2022b. 2022 Scoping Plan for Achieving Carbon Neutrality. November 16, 2022.
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-12/2022-sp.pdf

. 2023. “Overview Diesel Exhaust & Health” [webpage]. N.d.
https://ww?2.arb.ca.gov/resources/overview-diesel-exhaust-and-health (accessed June
2023).

California Department of Conservation (DOC). 2022a. California Important Farmland Finder.
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/ (accessed March 2023).

. 2022b. California Williamson Act Enrollment Finder.
https://gis.conservation.ca.gov/portal/home/webmap/viewer.html|?webmap=18f7488c0a9
d4d299f5e9¢33b312f312 (accessed March 2023).

. 2022c. CGS Seismic Hazards Program: Liquefaction Zones
https://gis.data.ca.gov/datasets/b70a766a60ad4c0688babdd47497dbad_0/explore?locatio
n=34.421443%2C-118.494055%2C15.00 (accessed March 2023).

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2023. LSA Questions and Answers.
https://wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/Environmental-Review/LSA/Q-and-A#2195914-what-
is-an-Isa-agreement (accessed June 2023).

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CalFire). 2023. FHSZ Viewer.
https://egis.fire.ca.gov/FHSZ/ (accessed March 2023).

California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC). 2023a. EnviroStor.
https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/ (accessed March 2023).

. 2023b. National Technical Systems (1980018).
https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/profile_report?global_id=19890018 (accessed
March 2023).

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 109

164



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2018. California State Scenic Highway System
Map.
https://caltrans.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.htm|?id=465dfd3d807c46cc8e
8057116flaacaa (accessed January 2023).

California Department of Finance. 2021. QuickFacts Santa Clarita city, California.
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/santaclaritacitycalifornia/PST045222
(accessed March 2023).

California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecyle). 2023a. SWIS Facility/Site
Activity Details Chiquita Canyon Sanitary Landfill (19-AA-0052).
https://www?2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/SiteActivity/Details/3574?sitelD=1037
(accessed June 2023).

. 2023b. SWIS Facility/Site Activity Details Sunshine Canyon City/County Landfill (19-AA-
2000). https://www?2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/SiteActivity/Details/2597?sitelD=4702
(accessed June 2023).

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2020. Transportation and Construction Vibration
Guidance Manual (CT-HWANP-RT-20-365.01.01). April. https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-
media/programs/environmental-analysis/documents/env/tcvgm-apr2020-ally.pdf
(accessed January 2023).

California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA). 2023a. List of “active” CDO and CAO.
https://calepa.ca.gov/sitecleanup/corteselist/section-65962-5c/(accessed June 2023).

. 2023b. Sites Identified with Waste Constituents Above Hazardous Waste Levels Outside the
Waste Management. https://calepa.ca.gov/wp-
content/uploads/sites/6/2016/10/SiteCleanup-CorteseList-CurrentList.pdf (accessed June
2023).

California Natural Resources Agency. 2019. California’s Fourth Climate Change Assessment
Statewide Summary Report. August 27, 2018. http://www.climateassessment.ca.gov/state/

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 2008. National Flood Insurance Program.
https://msc.fema.gov/portal/search?AddressQuery=Santa%20Clarita%2C%20CA#searchresu
Itsanchor (accessed April 2023).

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). 2011. Highway Traffic Noise: Analysis and Abatement
Guidance (FHWA-HEP-10-025).
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/noise/regulations_and_guidance/analysis_and_ab
atement_guidance/revguidance.pdf (accessed April 2023).

Federal Transit Administration (FTA). 2018. Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual.
https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/research-
innovation/118131/transit-noise-and-vibration-impact-assessment-manual-fta-report-no-
0123 _0.pdf (accessed January 2023).

110

165



References
Mandatory Findings of Significance

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). 2021. Climate Change 2021: The Physical
Science Basis. Contribution of Working Group | to the Sixth Assessment Report of the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [Masson-Delmotte, V., P. Zhai, A. Pirani, S. L.
Connors, C. Péan, S. Berger, N. Caud, Y. Chen, L. Goldfarb, M. I. Gomis, M. Huang, K. Leitzell,
E. Lonnoy, J.B.R. Matthews, T. K. Maycock, T. Waterfield, O. Yelekgi, R. Yu and B. Zhou
(eds.)] Cambridge University Press.
https://www.ipcc.ch/report/ar6/wgl/downloads/report/IPCC_AR6_WGI_Full_Report.pdf

Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB). 2020. Basin Plan for the Coastal
Watersheds of Los Angeles and Ventura Counties. May 18, 2020.
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/losangeles/water_issues/programs/basin_plan/basin_pla
n_documentation.html (accessed May 2023).

Santa Clarita, City of. 2011a. General Plan.
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/html/SantaClaritaGP/SantaClaritaGP.ht
ml (accessed February 2022).

. 2011b. General Plan Environmental Impact Report - Mineral Resources Chapter.
http://filecenter.santa-clarita.com/EIR/OVOV/Draft/3_10_MineralResources091410.pdf
(accessed February 2022).

. 2020. Transportation Analysis Update in Santa Clarita. May 19, 2020. https://www.santa-
clarita.com/home/showpublisheddocument/18536/637353560090700000 (accessed May
2023).

.2021. 2021 Santa Clarita Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. https://www.santa-
clarita.com/home/showpublisheddocument/20324/637720683963930000 (accessed March
2023).

. 2023. Capital Improvement Projects. https://www.santa-clarita.com/city-
hall/departments/public-works/capital-improvement-projects (accessed March 2023).

Society of Vertebrate Paleontology. 2010. Standard Procedures for the Assessment and Mitigation
of Adverse Impacts to Paleontological Resources. Society of Vertebrate Paleontology Impact
Mitigation Guidelines Revision Committee. https://vertpaleo.org/wp-
content/uploads/2021/01/SVP_Impact_Mitigation_Guidelines-1.pdf (accessed March 2023).

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD). 1993. CEQA Air Quality Handbook.

. 2008a. Final Localized Significance Threshold Methodology.
http://www.agmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/localized-significance-
thresholds/final-Ist-methodology-document.pdf.

. 2008b. Draft Guidance Document — Interim CEQA Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Significance
Threshold. October 2008. http://www.agmd.gov/docs/default-
source/ceqa/handbook/greenhouse-gases-(ghg)-ceqa-significance-
thresholds/ghgattachmente.pdf

. 2009. Appendix C. Mass Rate LST Look Up Table. October 2009.
http://www.agmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/localized-significance-
thresholds/appendix-c-mass-rate-Ist-look-up-tables.pdf?sfvrsn=2

. 2023. SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds. https://www.agmd.gov/docs/default-
source/ceqa/handbook/south-coast-agmd-air-quality-significance-thresholds.pdf?sfvrsn=25

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 111

166



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

. 2022. 2022 Air Quality Management Plan. December 2022.
http://www.agmd.gov/docs/default-source/clean-air-plans/air-quality-management-
plans/2022-air-quality-management-plan/final-2022-agmp/final-2022-agmp.pdf?sfvrsn=16

Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG). 2020. Final Connect SoCal Demographics
and Growth Forecast. Adopted September 3, 2020. https://scag.ca.gov/read-plan-adopted-
final-plan

Spencer, W.D., P. Beier, K. Penrod, K. Winters, C. Paulman, H. Rustigian-Romsos, J. Strittholt, M.
Parisi, and A. Pettler. 2010. California Essential Habitat Connectivity Project: A Strategy for
Conserving a Connected California. Prepared for California Department of Transportation,
California Department of Fish and Game, and Federal Highways Administration.

State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). 2019. Final 2014/2016 California Integrated Report
(Clean Water Act Section 303(d) List/305(b) Report). April 2, 2019.
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/tmdl|/integrated2014_2016.shtml
(accessed March 2022).

. 2023a. Clean Water Act (CWA) Section 401.
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/water_issues/programs/clean_water_act_401/
#:~:text=Under%20federal%20Clean%20Water%20Act,with%20state%20water%20quality%
20standards. (accessed June 2023).

. 2023b. GeoTracker. https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ (accessed March 2023).

. 2023c. GeoTracker GLASS SEAL CORPORATION (FORMER) (SL184041387).
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=5L184041387
(accessed March 2023).

.2023d. NATIONAL READY MIXED CONCRETE (T0603704681).
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603704681
(accessed March 2023).

. 2023e. GeoTracker. PACIFIC BELL (T0603703250).
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603703250
(accessed March 2023).

.2023f. POINTS WEST TRUCKING, INC. (T0603717891).
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603717891
(accessed March 2023).

United States Department of Agriculture (USDA). 2017. National soil survey handbook, title 430-VI.
https://directives.sc.egov.usda.gov (accessed June 2023).

. 2023. Web Soil Survey. https://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/WebSoilSurvey.aspx
(accessed May 2023).

United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). 2021. Nationwide Permit 58 — Utility Line Activities
for Water and Other Substances.
https://www.swt.usace.army.mil/Portals/41/docs/missions/regulatory/2021%20NWP/2021
%20nwp-58.pdf?ver=n07Ucn6ig910A9WtHNTTfw%3D%3D (accessed June 2023).

Unites States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). 2022. Criteria Air Pollutants. Last Modified:
August 9, 2022. https://www.epa.gov/criteria-air-pollutants (March 2023).

112

167



References
Mandatory Findings of Significance

United States Geological Survey (USGS). 2023a. Earthquake-triggered Ground-failure Inventories.
https://usgs.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=2b6f1e57135f41028ea42
ebc6813d967 (accessed March 2023).

. 2023b. U.S. Quaternary Faults.
https://usgs.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html|?id=5a6038b3a1684561a9b0
aadf88412fcf (accessed March 2023).

Ventura County Watershed Protection District. 2005. Santa Clara River Enhancement and
Management Plan (SCREMP). Prepared for Ventura County Watershed Protection District,
Los Angeles County Department of Public Works, SCREMP Project Steering Committee.
Prepared by AMEC Earth & Environmental. May 2005.

List of Preparers

Rincon Consultants, Inc. prepared this ISS-MND under contract to the Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency. Persons involved in data gathering analysis, project management, and quality control are
listed below.

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY

Wai Lan Lee, Engineer

RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC.

Jennifer Haddow, PhD, Principal
Aileen Mahoney, Senior Environmental Planner, Project Manager
Virginia Dussell, Associate Environmental Planner, Assistant Project Manager

Final Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration 113

168



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Honby Tanks Pipeline Project

This page intentionally left blank.

114

169



Appendix A

Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Modeling Results

170



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report

Table of Contents
1. Basic Project Information
1.1. Basic Project Information
1.2. Land Use Types
1.3. User-Selected Emission Reduction Measures by Emissions Sector
2. Emissions Summary
2.1. Construction Emissions Compared Against Thresholds
2.2. Construction Emissions by Year, Unmitigated
2.3. Construction Emissions by Year, Mitigated
3. Construction Emissions Details
3.1. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2024) - Unmitigated
3.2. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2024) - Mitigated
3.3. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2025) - Unmitigated
3.4. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2025) - Mitigated

3.5. Linear, Paving (2025) - Unmitigated

1li74b



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

3.6. Linear, Paving (2025) - Mitigated
3.7. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2026) - Unmitigated
3.8. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2026) - Mitigated
4. Operations Emissions Details
4.10. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type
4.10.1. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type - Unmitigated
4.10.2. Above and Belowground Carbon Accumulation by Land Use Type - Unmitigated
4.10.3. Avoided and Sequestered Emissions by Species - Unmitigated
4.10.4. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type - Mitigated
4.10.5. Above and Belowground Carbon Accumulation by Land Use Type - Mitigated
4.10.6. Avoided and Sequestered Emissions by Species - Mitigated
5. Activity Data
5.1. Construction Schedule
5.2. Off-Road Equipment
5.2.1. Unmitigated
5.2.2. Mitigated

5.3. Construction Vehicles

Al



5.3.1. Unmitigated
5.3.2. Mitigated
5.4. Vehicles
5.4.1. Construction Vehicle Control Strategies
5.5. Architectural Coatings
5.6. Dust Mitigation
5.6.1. Construction Earthmoving Activities
5.6.2. Construction Earthmoving Control Strategies
5.7. Construction Paving
5.8. Construction Electricity Consumption and Emissions Factors
5.18. Vegetation
5.18.1. Land Use Change
5.18.1.1. Unmitigated
5.18.1.2. Mitigated
5.18.1. Biomass Cover Type
5.18.1.1. Unmitigated

5.18.1.2. Mitigated

Al

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

5.18.2. Sequestration
5.18.2.1. Unmitigated
5.18.2.2. Mitigated
6. Climate Risk Detailed Report
6.1. Climate Risk Summary
6.2. Initial Climate Risk Scores
6.3. Adjusted Climate Risk Scores
6.4. Climate Risk Reduction Measures
7. Health and Equity Details
7.1. CalEnviroScreen 4.0 Scores
7.2. Healthy Places Index Scores
7.3. Overall Health & Equity Scores
7.4. Health & Equity Measures
7.5. Evaluation Scorecard
7.6. Health & Equity Custom Measures

8. User Changes to Default Data

Ailky



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

1. Basic Project Information

1.1. Basic Project Information

Project Name Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated
Construction Start Date 10/1/2024

Lead Agency —

Land Use Scale Project/site

Analysis Level for Defaults County

Windspeed (m/s) 2.50

Precipitation (days) 19.6

Location 34.431047743459885, -118.49228951559685
County Los Angeles-South Coast
City Santa Clarita

Air District South Coast AQMD

Air Basin South Coast

TAZ 3620

EDFzZ 7

Electric Utility Southern California Edison
Gas Utility Southern California Gas
App Version 2022.1.1.13

1.2. Land Use Types

Land Use Subtype Size Unit Lot Acreage Building Area (sq ft) Landscape Area (sq |Special Landscape |Population Description
INCENERi)]
0.00

Road Construction 4 Mile

gk



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

1.3. User-Selected Emission Reduction Measures by Emissions Sector

Construction C-2* Limit Heavy-Duty Diesel Vehicle Idling
Construction C-10-A Water Exposed Surfaces

Construction C-10-C Water Unpaved Construction Roads
Construction Cc-11 Limit Vehicle Speeds on Unpaved Roads
Construction C-12 Sweep Paved Roads

* Qualitative or supporting measure. Emission reductions not included in the mitigated emissions results.

2. Emissions Summary

2.1. Construction Emissions Compared Against Thresholds

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

unmit. 3.54 295 36.0 0.06 1.16 7.18 8.33 1.07 3.51 4.58 — 6,307 6,307 0.26 0.07 2.43 6,337
Mit. 3.54 295 36.0 0.06 1.16 3.18 4.34 1.07 1.46 2.52 — 6,307 6,307 0.26 0.07 2.43 6,337

% — — — — — 56% 48% — 58% 45% — — — — — — —
Reduced

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Winter
(Max)

unmit. 4.44 37.3 46.3 0.08 1.48 7.40 8.89 1.36 3.57 4.93 — 8,767 8,767 0.36 0.10 0.09 8,805
Mit. 4.44 37.3 46.3 0.08 1.48 3.41 4.89 1.36 151 2.88 — 8,767 8,767 0.36 0.10 0.09 8,805

% — — — — — 54% 45% — 58% 42% — — — — — — —
Reduced

&



Average
Daily
(Max)

Unmit.
Mit.

%
Reduced

Annual
(Max)

Unmit.
Mit.

%
Reduced

2.2. Construction Emissions by Year, Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

vear_JRoc

Daily -
Summer
(Max)

2025

Daily -
Winter
(Max)

2024
2025
2026

Average
Daily

2024
2025

2.27
2.27

0.41
0.41

19.0
19.0

3.47
3.47

23.2
23.2

4.23
4.23

0.04
0.04

0.01
0.01

0.75
0.75

0.14
0.14

4.31
1.93
55%

0.79
0.35
55%

5.05
2.67
47%

0.92
0.49
47%

0.69
0.69

0.13
0.13

2.10
0.88
58%

0.38
0.16
58%

2.79
1.56
44%

0.51
0.29
44%

694
694

694
694

0.17
0.17

0.03
0.03

0.05
0.05

0.01
0.01

0.69
0.69

0.11
0.11

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

4,208
4,208

697
697

3.54

3.82
4.44
0.28

0.69
2.27

29.5

32.0
37.3
1.81

5.77
19.0

36.0

36.9
46.3
2.34

6.67
23.2

0.06

0.06
0.08
< 0.005

0.01
0.04

1.16

1.34
1.48
0.08

0.24
0.75

7.18

7.18
7.40
0.10

1.29
4.31

8.33

8.52
8.89
0.18

1.53
5.05

1.07

1.23
1.36
0.07

0.22
0.69

351

3.51
3.57
0.02

0.63

2.10
il

4.58

4.75
4.93
0.09

0.85
2.79

6,307

6,286
8,767
360

1,133
4,189

6,307

6,286
8,767
360

1,133
4,189

0.26

0.26
0.36
0.02

0.05
0.17

0.07

0.07
0.10
0.01

0.01
0.05

2.43

0.07
0.09
0.01

0.21
0.69

6,337

6,314
8,805
362

1,139
4,208



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

2026 0.04 0.22 0.29 <0.005 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 <0.005 0.01 — 44.5 445 <0.005 <0.005 0.02 44.8
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

2024 0.13 1.05 1.22 <0.005 0.04 0.24 0.28 0.04 0.12 0.16 — 188 188 0.01 <0.005 0.03 189
2025 0.41 3.47 4.23 0.01 0.14 0.79 0.92 0.13 0.38 0.51 — 694 694 0.03 0.01 0.11 697
2026 0.01 0.04 0.05 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 7.37 7.37 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 7.42

2.3. Construction Emissions by Year, Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Daily -

Summer

(Max)

2025 3.54 29.5 36.0 0.06 1.16 3.18 4.34 1.07 1.46 2.52 — 6,307 6,307 0.26 0.07 2.43 6,337
Daily - — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter

(Max)

2024 3.82 32.0 36.9 0.06 1.34 3.18 4.52 1.23 1.46 2.69 — 6,286 6,286 0.26 0.07 0.07 6,314
2025 4.44 37.3 46.3 0.08 1.48 341 4.89 1.36 1.51 2.88 — 8,767 8,767 0.36 0.10 0.09 8,805
2026 0.28 1.81 2.34 <0.005 0.08 0.10 0.18 0.07 0.02 0.09 — 360 360 0.02 0.01 0.01 362
Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

2024 0.69 5.77 6.67 0.01 0.24 0.57 0.81 0.22 0.26 0.48 — 1,133 1,133 0.05 0.01 0.21 1,139
2025 2.27 19.0 23.2 0.04 0.75 1.93 2.67 0.69 0.88 1.56 — 4,189 4,189 0.17 0.05 0.69 4,208
2026 0.04 0.22 0.29 <0.005 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 <0.005 0.01 — 44.5 445 <0.005 <0.005 0.02 44.8
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
2024 0.13 1.05 1.22 <0.005 0.04 0.10 0.15 0.04 0.05 0.09 — 188 188 0.01 <0.005 0.03 189
2025 0.41 3.47 4.23 0.01 0.14 0.35 0.49 0.13 0.16 0.29 — 694 694 0.03 0.01 0.11 697
2026 0.01 0.04 0.05 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 7.37 7.37 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 7.42

8ildd



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

3. Construction Emissions Details

3.1. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2024) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — — —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 3.61 31.7 33.8 0.06 1.34 — 1.34 1.23 — 1.23 — 5,640 5,640 0.23 0.05 — 5,659
Equipment

Dust — — — — — 6.55 6.55 — 3.37 3.37 — — — — — — —
From

Material

Movement

Onsite 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
truck

Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

Off-Road 0.65 5.72 6.09 0.01 0.24 — 0.24 0.22 — 0.22 — 1,015 1,015 0.04 0.01 — 1,019
Equipment

Dust — — — — — 1.18 1.18 — 0.61 0.61 — — — — — — —
From

Material

Movement

Onsite 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
truck

Annual — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _ _

Off-Road 0.12 1.04 111 <0.005 0.04 — 0.04 0.04 — 0.04 — 168 168 0.01 <0.005 — 169
Equipment

Ji7



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Dust — — — — — 0.22 0.22 — 0.11 0.11 — — — — — — —
From

Material

Movement

Onsite 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
truck

Offsite — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — _ _ _

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter
(Max)

Worker  0.21 0.27 3.03 0.00 0.00 0.62 0.62 0.00 0.15 0.15 — 636 636 0.03 0.02 0.07 643
Vendor  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 0.02 0.01 <0.005 <0005 <0.005 <0.005 <0005 <0.005 <0.005 — 10.5 10.5 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 11.0

Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ — —
Daily

Worker 0.04 0.05 0.57 0.00 0.00 0.11 0.11 0.00 0.03 0.03 — 116 116 0.01 <0.005 0.21 118
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 1.88 1.88 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 1.98
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Worker  0.01 0.01 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.02 0.02 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 — 19.2 19.2 <0.005 <0.005 0.03 19.5
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hauling <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 0.31 0.31 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 0.33

3.2. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2024) - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

18840



Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 3.61
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 0.65
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.12
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Offsite —

31.7

0.00

5.72

0.00

1.04

0.00

33.8

0.00

6.09

0.00

111

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.01

0.00

<0.005

0.00

1.34

0.00

0.24

0.00

0.04

0.00

2.56

0.00

0.46

0.00

0.08

0.00

1.34

2.56

0.00

0.24

0.46

0.00

0.04

0.08

0.00

1.23

0.00

0.22

0.00

0.04

0.00

1.31

0.00

0.24

0.00

0.04

0.00

11820

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

1.23

131

0.00

0.22

0.24

0.00

0.04

0.04

0.00

5,640

0.00

1,015

0.00

168

0.00

0.00

0.00

168

0.00

0.23

0.00

0.04

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

5,659

0.00

1,019

0.00

169

0.00



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer

(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter

(Max)

Worker 0.21 0.27 3.03 0.00 0.00 0.62 0.62 0.00 0.15 0.15 — 636 636 0.03 0.02 0.07 643
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 0.02 0.01 <0.005 <0.0056 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 10.5 10.5 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 11.0
Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

Worker 0.04 0.05 0.57 0.00 0.00 0.11 0.11 0.00 0.03 0.03 — 116 116 0.01 <0.005 0.21 118
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.0056 — 1.88 1.88 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 1.98
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Worker 0.01 0.01 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.02 0.02 0.00 <0.005 <0.0056 — 19.2 19.2 <0.005 <0.005 0.03 19.5
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.0056 — 0.31 0.31 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 0.33

3.3. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2025) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer
(Max)

Off-Road 3.34 29.3 32.7 0.06 1.16 — 1.16 1.07 — 1.07 — 5,640 5,640 0.23 0.05 — 5,660
Equipment

13820



Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 3.34
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 1.98
Equipment

Dust —_
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.36
Equipment

Dust —_
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

0.00

29.3

0.00

17.4

0.00

3.18

0.00

0.00

32.7

0.00

19.4

0.00

3.55

0.00

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.03

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00

1.16

0.00

0.69

0.00

0.13

0.00

6.55

0.00

6.55

0.00

3.90

0.00

0.71

0.00

6.55

0.00

1.16

6.55

0.00

0.69

3.90

0.00

0.13

0.71

0.00

0.00

1.07

0.00

0.63

0.00

0.12

0.00

3.37

0.00

3.37

0.00

2.00

0.00

0.37

0.00

13830

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

3.37

0.00

1.07

3.37

0.00

0.63

2.00

0.00

0.12

0.37

0.00

0.00

5,640

0.00

3,355

0.00

556

0.00

0.00

5,640

0.00

3,355

0.00

556

0.00

0.00

0.23

0.00

0.14

0.00

0.02

0.00

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.03

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

5,660

0.00

3,367

0.00

557

0.00



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Offsite — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer

(Max)

Worker  0.20 0.21 3.30 0.00 0.00 0.62 0.62 0.00 0.15 0.15 — 657 657 0.03 0.02 2.40 667
Vendor  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 0.01 0.01 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 10.3 10.3 <0.005 <0.005 0.02 10.8
Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter

(Max)

Worker 0.20 0.23 2.80 0.00 0.00 0.62 0.62 0.00 0.15 0.15 — 623 623 0.03 0.02 0.06 630
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 0.02 0.01 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 10.3 10.3 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 10.8
Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

Worker 0.12 0.15 1.75 0.00 0.00 0.36 0.36 0.00 0.09 0.09 — 376 376 0.02 0.01 0.62 381
Vendor  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 0.01 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 6.11 6.11 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 6.41
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Worker 0.02 0.03 0.32 0.00 0.00 0.07 0.07 0.00 0.02 0.02 — 62.2 62.2 <0.005 <0.005 0.10 63.1
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 1.01 1.01 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 1.06

3.4. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2025) - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer
(Max)

14840



Off-Road 3.34
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 3.34
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 1.98
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.36
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

29.3

0.00

29.3

0.00

17.4

0.00

3.18

32.7

0.00

32.7

0.00

19.4

0.00

3.55

0.06

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.03

0.00

0.01

1.16

0.00

1.16

0.00

0.69

0.00

0.13

2.56

0.00

2.56

0.00

152

0.00

0.28

1.16

2.56

0.00

1.16

2.56

0.00

0.69

1.52

0.00

0.13

0.28

1.07

0.00

1.07

0.00

0.63

0.00

0.12

131

0.00

1.31

0.00

0.78

0.00

0.14

18820

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

1.07

131

0.00

1.07

1.31

0.00

0.63

0.78

0.00

0.12

0.14

5,640

0.00

0.00

0.00

556

5,640

0.00

0.00

0.00

556

0.23

0.00

0.23

0.00

0.00

0.02

0.05

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.03

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.00

5,660

0.00

5,660

0.00

3,367

0.00

557



Onsite
truck

Offsite

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Worker
Vendor
Hauling

Daily,
Winter
(Max)

Worker
Vendor
Hauling

Average
Daily

Worker
Vendor
Hauling
Annual
Worker
Vendor

Hauling

0.00

0.20
0.00
< 0.005

0.20
0.00
< 0.005

0.12
0.00
< 0.005
0.02
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.21
0.00
0.01

0.23
0.00
0.02

0.15
0.00
0.01
0.03
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

3.30
0.00
0.01

2.80
0.00
0.01

1.75
0.00
< 0.005
0.32
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
<0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005
0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005
0.00
0.00
< 0.005

3.5. Linear, Paving (2025) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Locmion 0G|

Onsite

0.00

0.62
0.00
< 0.005

0.62
0.00
< 0.005

0.36
0.00
< 0.005

0.07
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.62
0.00
<0.005

0.62
0.00
<0.005

0.36
0.00
< 0.005

0.07
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
<0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.15
0.00
<0.005

0.15
0.00
< 0.005

0.09
0.00
< 0.005

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

0.00

0.15
0.00
< 0.005

0.15
0.00
< 0.005

0.09
0.00
< 0.005

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

657
0.00
10.3

623
0.00
10.3

376
0.00
6.11

62.2
0.00
1.01

0.00

657
0.00
10.3

623
0.00
10.3

376
0.00
6.11

62.2
0.00
1.01

0.00

0.03
0.00
<0.005

0.03
0.00
< 0.005

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

< 0.005
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

0.01
0.00
< 0.005

< 0.005
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

2.40
0.00
0.02

0.06
0.00
< 0.005

0.62
0.00
0.01

0.10
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

667
0.00
10.8

630
0.00
10.8

381
0.00
6.41

63.1
0.00
1.06

18860



Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 0.83
Equipment

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 0.15
Equipment

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.03
Equipment

Onsite 0.00
truck

Offsite —

Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Worker 0.07
Vendor 0.00
Hauling  0.00

Average —
Daily

7.70

0.00

1.39

0.00

0.25

0.00

0.08
0.00
0.00

9.78

0.00

1.77

0.00

0.32

0.00

1.03
0.00
0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.32

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.23
0.00
0.00

0.32

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.23
0.00
0.00

0.30

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.05
0.00
0.00

13840

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

0.30

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.05
0.00
0.00

2,265

0.00

409

0.00

67.8

0.00

229
0.00
0.00

2,265

0.00

409

0.00

67.8

0.00

229
0.00
0.00

0.09

0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.02
0.00
0.00

2,272

0.00

411

0.00

68.0

0.00

232
0.00
0.00



Worker  0.01
Vendor  0.00
Hauling  0.00
Annual  —
Worker < 0.005
Vendor  0.00
Hauling  0.00

3.6. Linear, Paving (2025) - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 0.83
Equipment

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 0.15
Equipment

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.03
Equipment

0.02
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

7.70

0.00

1.39

0.00

0.25

0.20
0.00
0.00

0.04
0.00
0.00

9.78

0.00

1.77

0.00

0.32

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.32

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.01

0.04
0.00
0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.04
0.00
0.00

0.01

0.00
0.00

0.32

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.01

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.30

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.01

0.01
0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

18880

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

0.01
0.00
0.00

< 0.005

0.00
0.00

0.30

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.01

421
0.00
0.00

6.97

0.00
0.00

2,265

0.00

409

0.00

67.8

421
0.00
0.00

6.97

0.00
0.00

2,265

0.00

409

0.00

67.8

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005

0.00
0.00

0.09

0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005

0.00
0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.07
0.00
0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

42.7
0.00
0.00

7.06

0.00
0.00

2,272

0.00

411

0.00

68.0



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Onsite 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
truck

Offsite — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer

(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter

(Max)

Worker 0.07 0.08 1.03 0.00 0.00 0.23 0.23 0.00 0.05 0.05 — 229 229 0.01 0.01 0.02 232
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

Worker 0.01 0.02 0.20 0.00 0.00 0.04 0.04 0.00 0.01 0.01 — 42.1 42.1 <0.005 <0.005 0.07 42.7
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Worker <0.005 <0.005 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 — 6.97 6.97 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 7.06
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.7. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2026) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer
(Max)

1889



Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 0.26
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 0.03
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.01
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Offsite —

Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

1.78

0.00

0.22

0.00

0.04

0.00

1.92

0.00

0.24

0.00

0.04

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.08

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.08

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.07 —
— 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.01 —
— 0.00
0.00 0.00
<0.005 —
— 0.00
0.00 0.00

28900

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

0.07

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

263

0.00

325

0.00

5.38

0.00

263

0.00

325

0.00

5.38

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

264

0.00

32.6

0.00

5.40

0.00



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter

(Max)

Worker 0.03 0.03 0.41 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.10 0.00 0.02 0.02 — 96.3 96.3 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 97.5
Vendor  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

Worker  <0.005 <0.005 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 — 12.1 12.1 <0.005 <0.005 0.02 12.2
Vendor  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Worker <0.005 <0.005 0.01 0.00 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 0.00 <0.005 <0.0056 — 2.00 2.00 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 2.02
Vendor  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.8. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2026) - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — — — —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 0.26 1.78 1.92 <0.005 0.08 — 0.08 0.07 — 0.07 — 263 263 0.01 <0.005 — 264
Equipment

21910



Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 0.03
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.01
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Offsite —

Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Worker 0.03
Vendor 0.00

Hauling  0.00

0.00

0.22

0.00

0.04

0.00

0.03
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.24

0.00

0.04

0.00

0.41
0.00
0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.10
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.10
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.02
0.00
0.00

23940

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.02
0.00
0.00

0.00

325

0.00

5.38

0.00

96.3
0.00
0.00

0.00

325

0.00

5.38

0.00

96.3
0.00
0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

0.00

32.6

0.00

5.40

0.00

97.5
0.00
0.00



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

Worker <0.005 <0.005 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 — 121 12.1 <0.005 <0.005 0.02 12.2
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Worker  <0.005 <0.005 0.01 0.00 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 — 2.00 2.00 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 2.02
Vendor  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4. Operations Emissions Details

4.10. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type
4.10.1. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

n

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — — — —

Winter
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Annual — — — — — — — — — —_ — _ _ _ _ _ _

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

23930



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

4.10.2. Above and Belowground Carbon Accumulation by Land Use Type - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

4.10.3. Avoided and Sequestered Emissions by Species - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

peses Troo— Juor oo [sor  [ovice [mwuao Jowior Jovese [pwzso |owasr Jocor—|uacon Jooer o ieo s lcon |

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Avoided — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _ _
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _ _

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — . — _ _ _
red

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _
Removed — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _ _

Subtotal — — — — — — — - — _ — — _ _ _ _ _

24940



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ — _ _

Winter
(Max)

Avoided — — —_ — — — — — — —_ _ — _ _ _ _ _
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — _ — — _ _ _ _ _

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _
red

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ — — —
Removed — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — — —
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Avoided — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ — — —
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — — — _

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _
red

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — _ _ _
Removed — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — - — — — _ _ _

4.10.4. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

n

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

24920



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ — _ _

Winter
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _ _

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

4.10.5. Above and Belowground Carbon Accumulation by Land Use Type - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _ _

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

4.10.6. Avoided and Sequestered Emissions by Species - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Avoided — — — — — — — — — — - — — _ _ _ _

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _
red

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _
Removed — — —_ — — — — — — — — _ — _ _ _ _
Subtotal — — —_ — — — — — — — _ — _ _ _ _ _

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter
(Max)

Avoided — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _
Subtotal — — —_ — — — — — — — — _ — — _ _ _

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _
red

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Removed — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _
Avoided — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _
red

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _
Removed — — —_ — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _

Subtotal — — —_ — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _

5. Activity Data

21940



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

5.1. Construction Schedule

‘ Phase Type Start Date End Date Days Per Week Work Days per Phase Phase Description

Infrastructure Installation Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & 10/1/2024 10/31/2025 5.00
Sub-Grade
Linear, Paving Linear, Paving 10/1/2025 12/31/2025 5.00 66.0 —
Site Restoration Linear, Grubbing & Land 1/1/2026 1/30/2026 5.00 45.0 —
Clearing

5.2. Off-Road Equipment

5.2.1. Unmitigated

Infrastructure Tractors/Loaders/Backh Diesel Average 3.00 8.00 84.0 0.37
Installation oes

Infrastructure Air Compressors Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 37.0 0.48
Installation

Infrastructure Plate Compactors Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 8.00 0.43
Installation

Infrastructure Cranes Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 367 0.29
Installation

Infrastructure Rubber Tired Dozers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 367 0.40
Installation

Infrastructure Dumpers/Tenders Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 16.0 0.38
Installation

Infrastructure Forklifts Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 82.0 0.20
Installation

Infrastructure Generator Sets Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 14.0 0.74
Installation

Infrastructure Rough Terrain Forklifts  Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 96.0 0.40
Installation

28980



Infrastructure
Installation

Infrastructure
Installation

Infrastructure
Installation

Infrastructure
Installation

Linear, Paving

Linear, Paving
Linear, Paving
Linear, Paving
Linear, Paving
Linear, Paving

Linear, Paving

Site Restoration
Site Restoration

Site Restoration

5.2.2. Mitigated

Infrastructure
Installation

Infrastructure
Installation

Infrastructure
Installation

Infrastructure
Installation

Signal Boards

Sweepers/Scrubbers

Trenchers

Welders

Cement and Mortar
Mixers

Paving Equipment
Pavers

Rollers

Signal Boards
Surfacing Equipment

Tractors/Loaders/Backh
oes

Signal Boards
Pressure Washers

Sweepers/Scrubbers

Tractors/Loaders/Backh
oes
Air Compressors

Plate Compactors

Cranes

Diesel

Diesel

Diesel

Diesel

Diesel

Diesel
Diesel
Diesel
Diesel
Diesel

Diesel

Diesel
Diesel

Diesel

Diesel

Diesel

Diesel

Diesel

Average

Average

Average

Average

Average

Average
Average
Average
Average
Average

Average

Average
Average

Average

Average

Average

Average

Average

1.00
1.00
2.00
2.00
1.00

1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00

1.00
1.00
1.00

3.00
1.00
1.00

1.00

2899

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00
8.00
8.00
8.00
8.00
8.00

8.00
8.00
8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

8.00

6.00

36.0

40.0

46.0

10.0

89.0
81.0
36.0
6.00
399

84.0

6.00
14.0
36.0

84.0

37.0

8.00

367

0.82

0.46

0.50

0.45

0.56

0.36
0.42
0.38
0.82
0.30
0.37

0.82
0.30
0.46

0.37

0.48

0.43

0.29



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Infrastructure Rubber Tired Dozers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 367 0.40
Installation
Infrastructure Dumpers/Tenders Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 16.0 0.38
Installation
Infrastructure Forklifts Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 82.0 0.20
Installation
Infrastructure Generator Sets Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 14.0 0.74
Installation
Infrastructure Rough Terrain Forklifts  Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 96.0 0.40
Installation
Infrastructure Signal Boards Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 6.00 0.82
Installation
Infrastructure Sweepers/Scrubbers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 36.0 0.46
Installation
Infrastructure Trenchers Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 40.0 0.50
Installation
Infrastructure Welders Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 46.0 0.45
Installation
Linear, Paving Cement and Mortar Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 10.0 0.56
Mixers
Linear, Paving Paving Equipment Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 89.0 0.36
Linear, Paving Pavers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 81.0 0.42
Linear, Paving Rollers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 36.0 0.38
Linear, Paving Signal Boards Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 6.00 0.82
Linear, Paving Surfacing Equipment Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 399 0.30
Linear, Paving Tractors/Loaders/Backh Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 84.0 0.37
oes
Site Restoration Signal Boards Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 6.00 0.82
Site Restoration Pressure Washers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 14.0 0.30
Site Restoration Sweepers/Scrubbers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 36.0 0.46

38000



5.3. Construction Vehicles

5.3.1. Unmitigated

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

‘ Trip Type One-Way Trips per Day Miles per Trip Vehicle Mix

Infrastructure Installation
Infrastructure Installation
Infrastructure Installation
Infrastructure Installation
Infrastructure Installation
Site Restoration

Site Restoration

Site Restoration

Site Restoration

Site Restoration

Linear, Paving

Linear, Paving

Linear, Paving

Linear, Paving

Linear, Paving

5.3.2. Mitigated

Worker
Vendor
Hauling
Onsite truck
Worker
Vendor
Hauling
Onsite truck
Worker
Vendor
Hauling

Onsite truck

47.5
0.00
0.31

7.50
0.00
0.00

17.5
0.00
0.00

18.5
10.2
9.30

18.5
10.2
20.0

18.5
10.2
20.0

LDA,LDT1,LDT2
HHDT,MHDT
HHDT

HHDT
LDA,LDT1,LDT2
HHDT,MHDT
HHDT

HHDT
LDA,LDT1,LDT2
HHDT,MHDT
HHDT

HHDT

‘ Trip Type One-Way Trips per Day Miles per Trip Vehicle Mix

Infrastructure Installation
Infrastructure Installation
Infrastructure Installation
Infrastructure Installation

Infrastructure Installation

Worker
Vendor
Hauling

Onsite truck

47.5
0.00
0.31

18.5
10.2
9.30

LDA,LDT1,LDT2
HHDT,MHDT
HHDT

HHDT



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Site Restoration — — — _

Site Restoration Worker 7.50 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2
Site Restoration Vendor 0.00 10.2 HHDT,MHDT
Site Restoration Hauling 0.00 20.0 HHDT

Site Restoration Onsite truck — — HHDT

Linear, Paving — — — —

Linear, Paving Worker 17.5 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2
Linear, Paving Vendor 0.00 10.2 HHDT,MHDT
Linear, Paving Hauling 0.00 20.0 HHDT

Linear, Paving Onsite truck — — HHDT

5.4. Vehicles

5.4.1. Construction Vehicle Control Strategies

Non-applicable. No control strategies activated by user.

5.5. Architectural Coatings

Phase Name Residential Interior Area Coated |Residential Exterior Area Coated [ Non-Residential Interior Area Non-Residential Exterior Area Parking Area Coated (sq ft)
(sq ft) (sq ft) Coated (sq ft) Coated (sq ft)

5.6. Dust Mitigation

5.6.1. Construction Earthmoving Activities

‘ Material Imported (Cubic Yards) |Material Exported (Cubic Yards) |Acres Graded (acres) Material Demolished (sq. ft.) Acres Paved (acres)

Infrastructure Installation 0.24 0.00

Site Restoration 0.00 0.00 0.24 0.00 —

5.6.2. Construction Earthmoving Control Strategies

32040



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Non-applicable. No control strategies activated by user.

5.7. Construction Paving

Road Construction 0.24 100%

5.8. Construction Electricity Consumption and Emissions Factors

kWh per Year and Emission Factor (Ib/MWh)

2024 0.00 0.03 < 0.005
2025 0.00 532 0.03 <0.005
2026 0.00 532 0.03 <0.005

5.18. Vegetation
5.18.1. Land Use Change

5.18.1.1. Unmitigated

‘ Vegetation Land Use Type Vegetation Soil Type Initial Acres

5.18.1.2. Mitigated

5.18.1. Biomass Cover Type

5.18.1.1. Unmitigated

3803



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

5.18.1.2. Mitigated

5.18.2. Sequestration

5.18.2.1. Unmitigated

‘ Tree Type Electricity Saved (kWh/year) Natural Gas Saved (btu/year)

5.18.2.2. Mitigated

e Tume  [eeoroysessimen |Newsiomsecdouen |
6. Climate Risk Detailed Report

6.1. Climate Risk Summary

Cal-Adapt midcentury 2040-2059 average projections for four hazards are reported below for your project location. These are under Representation Concentration Pathway (RCP) 8.5 which assumes GHG
emissions will continue to rise strongly through 2050 and then plateau around 2100.

Temperature and Extreme Heat 20.3 annual days of extreme heat

Extreme Precipitation 6.60 annual days with precipitation above 20 mm
Sea Level Rise 0.00 meters of inundation depth

Wildfire 105 annual hectares burned

Temperature and Extreme Heat data are for grid cell in which your project are located. The projection is based on the 98th historical percentile of daily maximum/minimum temperatures from observed
historical data (32 climate model ensemble from Cal-Adapt, 2040-2059 average under RCP 8.5). Each grid cell is 6 kilometers (km) by 6 km, or 3.7 miles (mi) by 3.7 mi.
Extreme Precipitation data are for the grid cell in which your project are located. The threshold of 20 mm is equivalent to about % an inch of rain, which would be light to moderate rainfall if received over a full
day or heavy rain if received over a period of 2 to 4 hours. Each grid cell is 6 kilometers (km) by 6 km, or 3.7 miles (mi) by 3.7 mi.
Sea Level Rise data are for the grid cell in which your project are located. The projections are from Radke et al. (2017), as reported in Cal-Adapt (2040—2059 average under RCP 8.5), and consider different
increments of sea level rise coupled with extreme storm events. Users may select from four model simulations to view the range in potential inundation depth for the grid cell. The four simulations make
different assumptions about expected rainfall and temperature are: Warmer/drier (HadGEM2-ES), Cooler/wetter (CNRM-CM5), Average conditions (CanESM2), Range of different rainfall and temperature
possibilities (MIROCS5). Each grid cell is 50 meters (m) by 50 m, or about 164 feet (ft) by 164 ft.

34040



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Wildfire data are for the grid cell in which your project are located. The projections are from UC Davis, as reported in Cal-Adapt (2040—2059 average under RCP 8.5), and consider historical data of climate,
vegetation, population density, and large (> 400 ha) fire history. Users may select from four model simulations to view the range in potential wildfire probabilities for the grid cell. The four simulations make
different assumptions about expected rainfall and temperature are: Warmer/drier (HadGEM2-ES), Cooler/wetter (CNRM-CM5), Average conditions (CanESM2), Range of different rainfall and temperature
possibilities (MIROCS5). Each grid cell is 6 kilometers (km) by 6 km, or 3.7 miles (mi) by 3.7 mi.

6.2. Initial Climate Risk Scores

Temperature and Extreme Heat

Extreme Precipitation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sea Level Rise 1 0 0 N/A
Wildfire 1 0 0 N/A
Flooding N/A N/A N/A N/A
Drought N/A N/A N/A N/A
Snowpack Reduction N/A N/A N/A N/A
Air Quality Degradation 0 0 0 N/A

The sensitivity score reflects the extent to which a project would be adversely affected by exposure to a climate hazard. Exposure is rated on a scale of 1 to 5, with a score of 5 representing the greatest
exposure.

The adaptive capacity of a project refers to its ability to manage and reduce vulnerabilities from projected climate hazards. Adaptive capacity is rated on a scale of 1 to 5, with a score of 5 representing the
greatest ability to adapt.

The overall vulnerability scores are calculated based on the potential impacts and adaptive capacity assessments for each hazard. Scores do not include implementation of climate risk reduction measures.

6.3. Adjusted Climate Risk Scores

Temperature and Extreme Heat

Extreme Precipitation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sea Level Rise 1 1 1 2
Wildfire 1 1 1 2
Flooding N/A N/A N/A N/A
Drought N/A N/A N/A N/A
Snowpack Reduction N/A N/A N/A N/A

38020



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Air Quality Degradation 1 1 1 2

The sensitivity score reflects the extent to which a project would be adversely affected by exposure to a climate hazard. Exposure is rated on a scale of 1 to 5, with a score of 5 representing the greatest
exposure.

The adaptive capacity of a project refers to its ability to manage and reduce vulnerabilities from projected climate hazards. Adaptive capacity is rated on a scale of 1 to 5, with a score of 5 representing the
greatest ability to adapt.

The overall vulnerability scores are calculated based on the potential impacts and adaptive capacity assessments for each hazard. Scores include implementation of climate risk reduction measures.
6.4. Climate Risk Reduction Measures

7. Health and Equity Details

7.1. CalEnviroScreen 4.0 Scores

The maximum CalEnviroScreen score is 100. A high score (i.e., greater than 50) reflects a higher pollution burden compared to other census tracts in the state.

Exposure Indicators

AQ-Ozone 95.3
AQ-PM 49.6
AQ-DPM 47.1
Drinking Water 68.0
Lead Risk Housing 30.1
Pesticides 0.00
Toxic Releases 41.5
Traffic 49.9

Effect Indicators —

CleanUp Sites 4.12
Groundwater 3.30
Haz Waste Facilities/Generators 0.00
Impaired Water Bodies 125
Solid Waste 80.0

36080



Sensitive Population

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

Asthma 52.5
Cardio-vascular 52.3
Low Birth Weights 68.1
Socioeconomic Factor Indicators —

Education 43.4
Housing 20.6
Linguistic 46.0
Poverty 21.7
Unemployment 37.7

7.2. Healthy Places Index Scores

The maximum Health Places Index score is 100. A high score (i.e., greater than 50) reflects healthier community conditions compared to other census tracts in the state.

Economic

Above Poverty
Employed

Median HI

Education

Bachelor's or higher
High school enroliment
Preschool enroliment
Transportation

Auto Access

Active commuting
Social

2-parent households

74.36160657
85.83344027
57.98793789
41.76825356
4.658026434
70.3580136

24.53483896
47.60682664

82.42012062

320740



Voting
Neighborhood
Alcohol availability
Park access

Retail density
Supermarket access
Tree canopy
Housing
Homeownership

Housing habitability

Low-inc homeowner severe housing cost burden

Low-inc renter severe housing cost burden

Uncrowded housing
Health Outcomes
Insured adults

Arthritis

Asthma ER Admissions
High Blood Pressure
Cancer (excluding skin)
Asthma

Coronary Heart Disease
Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease
Diagnosed Diabetes
Life Expectancy at Birth
Cognitively Disabled
Physically Disabled

Heart Attack ER Admissions

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

56.28127807
97.0101373
12.51122803
48.64622097
8.571795201
73.98947774
69.39561145
65.96945977
63.50571025
55.46002823
42.30719877
58.50121904
64.8

43.7

814

36.4

69.3

74.7

68.2

78.0

46.9

74.6

45.1

14.4

38080



Mental Health Not Good
Chronic Kidney Disease
Obesity

Pedestrian Injuries
Physical Health Not Good
Stroke

Health Risk Behaviors
Binge Drinking

Current Smoker

No Leisure Time for Physical Activity
Climate Change Exposures
Wildfire Risk

SLR Inundation Area
Children

Elderly

English Speaking
Foreign-born

Outdoor Workers

Climate Change Adaptive Capacity
Impervious Surface Cover
Traffic Density

Traffic Access

Other Indices

Hardship

Other Decision Support
2016 Voting

62.3
79.8
55.2
19.6
68.2
80.6

9.5
62.2
78.5

64.6
0.0

67.0
53.8
57.0
50.7
58.5

815
275
23.0

44.4

48.4

380%

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Unmitigated Detailed Report, 5/31/2023

7.3. Overall Health & Equity Scores

CalEnviroScreen 4.0 Score for Project Location (a) 43.0
Healthy Places Index Score for Project Location (b) 54.0
Project Located in a Designated Disadvantaged Community (Senate Bill 535) No
Project Located in a Low-Income Community (Assembly Bill 1550) No
Project Located in a Community Air Protection Program Community (Assembly Bill 617) No

a: The maximum CalEnviroScreen score is 100. A high score (i.e., greater than 50) reflects a higher pollution burden compared to other census tracts in the state.
b: The maximum Health Places Index score is 100. A high score (i.e., greater than 50) reflects healthier community conditions compared to other census tracts in the state.

7.4. Health & Equity Measures

No Health & Equity Measures selected.
7.5. Evaluation Scorecard

Health & Equity Evaluation Scorecard not completed.

7.6. Health & Equity Custom Measures

No Health & Equity Custom Measures created.

8. User Changes to Default Data
I

Construction: Construction Phases Based on applicant provided data
Construction: Off-Road Equipment Based on applicant provided information
Construction: Dust From Material Movement Based on applicant provided data
Construction: Trips and VMT Based on applicant provided information

48100



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report

Table of Contents
1. Basic Project Information
1.1. Basic Project Information
1.2. Land Use Types
1.3. User-Selected Emission Reduction Measures by Emissions Sector
2. Emissions Summary
2.1. Construction Emissions Compared Against Thresholds
2.2. Construction Emissions by Year, Unmitigated
2.3. Construction Emissions by Year, Mitigated
3. Construction Emissions Details
3.1. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2025) - Unmitigated
3.2. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2025) - Mitigated
3.3. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2026) - Unmitigated
3.4. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2026) - Mitigated

3.5. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2024) - Unmitigated

2



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

3.6. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2024) - Mitigated
3.7. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2025) - Unmitigated
3.8. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2025) - Mitigated
3.9. Linear, Paving (2025) - Unmitigated
3.10. Linear, Paving (2025) - Mitigated
4. Operations Emissions Details
4.10. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type
4.10.1. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type - Unmitigated
4.10.2. Above and Belowground Carbon Accumulation by Land Use Type - Unmitigated
4.10.3. Avoided and Sequestered Emissions by Species - Unmitigated
4.10.4. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type - Mitigated
4.10.5. Above and Belowground Carbon Accumulation by Land Use Type - Mitigated
4.10.6. Avoided and Sequestered Emissions by Species - Mitigated
5. Activity Data
5.1. Construction Schedule
5.2. Off-Road Equipment

5.2.1. Unmitigated

212



5.2.2. Mitigated
5.3. Construction Vehicles
5.3.1. Unmitigated
5.3.2. Mitigated
5.4. Vehicles
5.4.1. Construction Vehicle Control Strategies
5.5. Architectural Coatings
5.6. Dust Mitigation
5.6.1. Construction Earthmoving Activities
5.6.2. Construction Earthmoving Control Strategies
5.7. Construction Paving
5.8. Construction Electricity Consumption and Emissions Factors
5.18. Vegetation
5.18.1. Land Use Change
5.18.1.1. Unmitigated
5.18.1.2. Mitigated

5.18.1. Biomass Cover Type

2/

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

5.18.1.1. Unmitigated
5.18.1.2. Mitigated
5.18.2. Sequestration
5.18.2.1. Unmitigated
5.18.2.2. Mitigated
6. Climate Risk Detailed Report
6.1. Climate Risk Summary
6.2. Initial Climate Risk Scores
6.3. Adjusted Climate Risk Scores
6.4. Climate Risk Reduction Measures
7. Health and Equity Details
7.1. CalEnviroScreen 4.0 Scores
7.2. Healthy Places Index Scores
7.3. Overall Health & Equity Scores
7.4. Health & Equity Measures
7.5. Evaluation Scorecard

7.6. Health & Equity Custom Measures

24



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

8. User Changes to Default Data

2k



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

1. Basic Project Information

1.1. Basic Project Information

Project Name Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated
Construction Start Date 10/1/2024

Lead Agency —

Land Use Scale Project/site

Analysis Level for Defaults County

Windspeed (m/s) 2.50

Precipitation (days) 19.6

Location 34.43101393102373, -118.49246998613651
County Los Angeles-South Coast
City Santa Clarita

Air District South Coast AQMD

Air Basin South Coast

TAZ 3620

EDFzZ 7

Electric Utility Southern California Edison
Gas Utility Southern California Gas
App Version 2022.1.1.14

1.2. Land Use Types

Land Use Subtype Size Unit Lot Acreage Building Area (sq ft) Landscape Area (sq |Special Landscape |Population Description
INCENERi)]
0.00

Road Construction 4 Mile

e



1.3. User-Selected Emission Reduction Measures by Emissions Sector

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

C-2*

C-10-A
C-10-C
c-11
C-12

* Qualitative or supporting measure. Emission reductions not included in the mitigated emissions results.

2. Emissions Summary

2.1. Construction Emissions Compared Against Thresholds

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Limit Heavy-Duty Diesel Vehicle Idling

Water Exposed Surfaces

Water Unpaved Construction Roads

Limit Vehicle Speeds on Unpaved Roads

Sweep Paved Roads

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Unmit.
Mit.

%
Reduced

Daily,
Winter
(Max)

Unmit.
Mit.

%
Reduced

3.54
3.54

4.44
4.44

295
295

37.3
37.3

36.0
36.0

46.3
46.3

0.06
0.06

0.08
0.08

1.16
1.16

1.48
1.48

7.18
2.33
68%

7.40
2.56
65%

8.33
3.49
58%

8.89
4.04
55%

1.07
1.07

1.36
1.36

3.51
1.02
71%

3.57
1.08
70%

2/ds

4.58
2.09
54%

4.93
2.44

51%

6,307
6,307

8,767
8,767

8,767
8,767

0.26
0.26

0.36
0.36

0.07
0.07

0.10
0.10

2.43
2.43

0.09
0.09

6,337
6,337

8,805
8,805



Average
Daily
(Max)

Unmit.
Mit.

%
Reduced

Annual
(Max)

Unmit.
Mit.

%
Reduced

2.2. Construction Emissions by Year, Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

vear_JRoc

Daily -
Summer
(Max)

2025

Daily -
Winter
(Max)

2024
2025
2026

Average
Daily

2024
2025

2.29
2.29

0.42
0.42

19.1
19.1

3.49
3.49

23.3
23.3

4.26
4.26

0.04
0.04

0.01
0.01

0.75
0.75

0.14
0.14

4.31
1.43
67%

0.79
0.26
67%

5.06
2.18
57%

0.92
0.40
57%

0.69
0.69

0.13
0.13

2.10
0.62
71%

0.38
0.11
71%

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

2.79
131
53%

0.51
0.24
53%

698
698

4,214
4,214

698
698

0.17
0.17

0.03
0.03

0.05
0.05

0.01
0.01

0.70
0.70

0.12
0.12

4,233
4,233

701
701

3.54

3.82
4.44
0.34

0.69
2.29

29.5

32.0
37.3
2.24

5.77
19.1

36.0

36.9
46.3
2.56

6.67
23.3

0.06

0.06
0.08
< 0.005

0.01
0.04

1.16

1.34
1.48
0.09

0.24
0.75

7.18

7.18
7.40
0.10

1.29
4.31

8.33

8.52
8.89
0.19

1.53
5.06

1.07

1.23
1.36
0.09

0.22
0.69

351

3.51
3.57
0.02

0.63
2.10

218

4.58

4.75
4.93
0.11

0.85
2.79

6,307

6,286
8,767
414

1,133
4,214

6,307

6,286
8,767
414

1,133
4,214

0.26

0.26
0.36
0.02

0.05
0.17

0.07

0.07
0.10
0.01

0.01
0.05

2.43

0.07
0.09
0.01

0.21
0.70

6,337

6,314
8,805
417

1,139
4,233



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

2026 0.02 0.13 0.15 <0.005 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 <0.005 0.01 — 24.4 24.4 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 24.5
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

2024 0.13 1.05 1.22 <0.005 0.04 0.24 0.28 0.04 0.12 0.16 — 188 188 0.01 <0.005 0.03 189
2025 0.42 3.49 4.26 0.01 0.14 0.79 0.92 0.13 0.38 0.51 — 698 698 0.03 0.01 0.12 701
2026 <0.005 0.02 0.03 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 4.04 4.04 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 4.06

2.3. Construction Emissions by Year, Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Daily -

Summer

(Max)

2025 3.54 29.5 36.0 0.06 1.16 2.33 3.49 1.07 1.02 2.09 — 6,307 6,307 0.26 0.07 2.43 6,337
Daily - — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter

(Max)

2024 3.82 32.0 36.9 0.06 1.34 2.33 3.67 1.23 1.02 2.25 — 6,286 6,286 0.26 0.07 0.07 6,314
2025 4.44 37.3 46.3 0.08 1.48 2.56 4.04 1.36 1.08 2.44 — 8,767 8,767 0.36 0.10 0.09 8,805
2026 0.34 2.24 2.56 <0.005 0.09 0.10 0.19 0.09 0.02 0.11 — 414 414 0.02 0.01 0.01 417
Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

2024 0.69 5.77 6.67 0.01 0.24 0.42 0.66 0.22 0.18 0.41 — 1,133 1,133 0.05 0.01 0.21 1,139
2025 2.29 19.1 23.3 0.04 0.75 1.43 2.18 0.69 0.62 1.31 — 4,214 4,214 0.17 0.05 0.70 4,233
2026 0.02 0.13 0.15 <0.005 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 <0.005 0.01 — 24.4 24.4 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 24.5
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
2024 0.13 1.05 1.22 <0.005 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.04 0.03 0.07 — 188 188 0.01 <0.005 0.03 189
2025 0.42 3.49 4.26 0.01 0.14 0.26 0.40 0.13 0.11 0.24 — 698 698 0.03 0.01 0.12 701
2026 <0.005 0.02 0.03 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 4.04 4.04 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 4.06

218



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

3. Construction Emissions Details

3.1. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2025) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — — —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 0.32 2.24 2.16 <0.005 0.10 — 0.10 0.09 — 0.09 — 318 318 0.01 <0.005 — 319
Equipment

Dust — — — — — 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 — — — — — — —
From

Material

Movement

Onsite 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
truck

Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

Off-Road 0.02 0.14 0.13 <0.005 0.01 — 0.01 0.01 — 0.01 — 19.3 19.3 <0.005 <0.005 — 19.4
Equipment

Dust — — — — — 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 — — — — — — —
From

Material

Movement

Onsite 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
truck

Annual — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _ _

Off-Road <0.005 0.02 0.02 <0.005 <0.005 — <0.005 <0.005 — <0.005 — 3.19 3.19 <0.005 <0.005 — 3.21
Equipment

18204



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Dust — — — — — 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 — — — — — — —
From

Material

Movement

Onsite 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
truck

Offsite — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — _ _ _

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter
(Max)

Worker  0.03 0.04 0.44 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.10 0.00 0.02 0.02 — 98.3 98.3 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 99.5
Vendor  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ — —
Daily

Worker <0.005 <0.005 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.00 <0.005 <0.0056 — 6.05 6.05 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 6.13
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Worker  <0.005 <0.005 0.01 0.00 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 — 1.00 1.00 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 1.02
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.2. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2025) - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

12224



Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 0.32
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 0.02
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road < 0.005
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Offsite —

2.24

0.00

0.14

0.00

0.02

0.00

2.16

0.00

0.13

0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

<0.005

0.00

0.10

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.10

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.09

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

12244

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

0.09

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

318

0.00

19.3

0.00

3.19

0.00

318

0.00

19.3

0.00

3.19

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

319

0.00

19.4

0.00

3.21

0.00



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer

(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter

(Max)

Worker 0.03 0.04 0.44 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.10 0.00 0.02 0.02 — 98.3 98.3 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 99.5
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

Worker <0.005 <0.005 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.00 <0.005 <0.0056 — 6.05 6.05 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 6.13
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Worker <0.005 <0.005 0.01 0.00 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 0.00 <0.005 <0.0056 — 1.00 1.00 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 1.02
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.3. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2026) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 0.31 221 2.15 <0.005 0.09 — 0.09 0.09 — 0.09 — 318 318 0.01 <0.005 — 319
Equipment

13234



Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 0.02
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road < 0.005
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Offsite —

Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Worker 0.03
Vendor 0.00

Hauling  0.00

0.00

0.13

0.00

0.02

0.00

0.03
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.13

0.00

0.02

0.00

0.41
0.00
0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.10
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.10
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.02
0.00
0.00

14244

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.02
0.00
0.00

0.00

18.7

0.00

3.09

0.00

96.3
0.00
0.00

0.00

18.7

0.00

3.09

0.00

96.3
0.00
0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

0.00

18.7

0.00

3.10

0.00

97.5
0.00
0.00



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

Worker <0.005 <0.005 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 — 5.74 5.74 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 5.82
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Worker  <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 0.00 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 — 0.95 0.95 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 0.96
Vendor  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3.4. Linear, Grubbing & Land Clearing (2026) - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — — —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ — _ _
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 0.31 2.21 2.15 <0.005 0.09 — 0.09 0.09 — 0.09 — 318 318 0.01 <0.005 — 319
Equipment

Dust — — — — — 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 — — — — — — —
From

Material

Movement

Onsite 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
truck

Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _
Daily

Off-Road 0.02 0.13 0.13 <0.005 0.01 — 0.01 0.01 — 0.01 — 18.7 18.7 <0.005 <0.005 — 18.7

Equipment
18224



Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road < 0.005
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Offsite —

Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Worker 0.03
Vendor 0.00
Hauling  0.00

Average —
Daily

Worker < 0.005

Vendor 0.00
Hauling  0.00
Annual —

Worker < 0.005
Vendor 0.00

0.00

0.02

0.00

0.03
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00

0.00

0.02

0.00

0.41
0.00
0.00

0.03
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.10
0.00
0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00

0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.10
0.00
0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00

0.00

<0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.02
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00

18204

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.02
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00

0.00

3.09

0.00

96.3
0.00
0.00

574
0.00
0.00

0.95
0.00

0.00

3.09

0.00

96.3
0.00
0.00

574
0.00
0.00

0.95
0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

< 0.005
0.00

0.00

3.10

0.00

97.5
0.00
0.00

5.82
0.00
0.00

0.96
0.00



Hauling  0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

3.5. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2024) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 3.61
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 0.65
Equipment

Dust —_
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.12
Equipment

31.7

0.00

5.72

0.00

1.04

33.8

0.00

6.09

0.00

111

0.06

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

1.34

0.00

0.24

0.00

0.04

6.55

0.00

1.18

0.00

1.34

6.55

0.00

0.24

1.18

0.00

0.04

1.23

0.00

0.22

0.00

0.04

3.37

0.00

0.61

0.00

12214

1.23

3.37

0.00

0.22

0.61

0.00

0.04

0.00

0.00

168

5,640

0.00

0.00

168

0.23

0.00

0.04

0.00

0.01

0.05

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

5,659

0.00

1,019

0.00

169



Dust
From
Material

Movement

Onsite
truck

Offsite

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Daily,
Winter
(Max)

Worker
Vendor
Hauling

Average
Daily

Worker
Vendor
Hauling
Annual
Worker
Vendor

Hauling

0.00

0.21
0.00
< 0.005

0.04
0.00
< 0.005
0.01
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.27
0.00
0.02

0.05
0.00
<0.005
0.01
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

3.03
0.00
0.01

0.57
0.00
<0.005
0.10
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00

< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005
0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.22

0.00

0.62
0.00
< 0.005

0.11
0.00
< 0.005
0.02
0.00
< 0.005

0.22

0.00

0.62
0.00
< 0.005

0.11
0.00
<0.005
0.02
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
<0.005
0.00
0.00
< 0.005

3.6. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2024) - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Locmion 0G|

Onsite

0.11

0.00

0.15
0.00
< 0.005

0.03
0.00
< 0.005

< 0.005
0.00
< 0.005

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

0.11

0.00

0.15
0.00
< 0.005

0.03
0.00
< 0.005

< 0.005
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

636
0.00
10.5

116
0.00
1.88

19.2
0.00
0.31

0.00

636
0.00
10.5

116
0.00
1.88

19.2
0.00
0.31

0.00

0.03
0.00
< 0.005

0.01
0.00
< 0.005

< 0.005
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

< 0.005
0.00
<0.005

< 0.005
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.07
0.00
< 0.005

0.21
0.00
< 0.005

0.03
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

643
0.00
11.0

118
0.00
1.98

19.5
0.00
0.33

18284



Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 3.61
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 0.65
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.12
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Offsite —

31.7

0.00

5.72

0.00

1.04

0.00

33.8

0.00

6.09

0.00

111

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.01

0.00

<0.005

0.00

1.34

0.00

0.24

0.00

0.04

0.00

1.70

0.00

0.31

0.00

0.06

0.00

1.34

1.70

0.00

0.24

0.31

0.00

0.04

0.06

0.00

1.23

0.00

0.22

0.00

0.04

0.00

0.88

0.00

0.16

0.00

0.03

0.00

182%

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

1.23

0.88

0.00

0.22

0.16

0.00

0.04

0.03

0.00

5,640

0.00

1,015

0.00

168

0.00

5,640

0.00

1,015

0.00

168

0.00

0.23

0.00

0.04

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.01

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

5,659

0.00

1,019

0.00

169

0.00



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer

(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter

(Max)

Worker 0.21 0.27 3.03 0.00 0.00 0.62 0.62 0.00 0.15 0.15 — 636 636 0.03 0.02 0.07 643
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 0.02 0.01 <0.005 <0.0056 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 — 10.5 10.5 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 11.0
Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

Worker 0.04 0.05 0.57 0.00 0.00 0.11 0.11 0.00 0.03 0.03 — 116 116 0.01 <0.005 0.21 118
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.0056 — 1.88 1.88 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 1.98
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Worker 0.01 0.01 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.02 0.02 0.00 <0.005 <0.0056 — 19.2 19.2 <0.005 <0.005 0.03 19.5
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 <0005 <0.005 <0.005 <0.0056 — 0.31 0.31 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 0.33

3.7. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2025) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer
(Max)

Off-Road 3.34 29.3 32.7 0.06 1.16 — 1.16 1.07 — 1.07 — 5,640 5,640 0.23 0.05 — 5,660
Equipment

28304



Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 3.34
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 1.98
Equipment

Dust —_
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.36
Equipment

Dust —_
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

0.00

29.3

0.00

17.4

0.00

3.18

0.00

0.00

32.7

0.00

19.4

0.00

3.55

0.00

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.03

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00

1.16

0.00

0.69

0.00

0.13

0.00

6.55

0.00

6.55

0.00

3.90

0.00

0.71

0.00

6.55

0.00

1.16

6.55

0.00

0.69

3.90

0.00

0.13

0.71

0.00

0.00

1.07

0.00

0.63

0.00

0.12

0.00

3.37

0.00

3.37

0.00

2.00

0.00

0.37

0.00

22344

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

3.37

0.00

1.07

3.37

0.00

0.63

2.00

0.00

0.12

0.37

0.00

0.00

5,640

0.00

3,355

0.00

556

0.00

0.00

5,640

0.00

3,355

0.00

556

0.00

0.00

0.23

0.00

0.14

0.00

0.02

0.00

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.03

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

5,660

0.00

3,367

0.00

557

0.00



Offsite

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Worker
Vendor
Hauling

Daily,
Winter
(Max)

Worker
Vendor
Hauling

Average
Daily

Worker
Vendor
Hauling
Annual
Worker
Vendor

Hauling

0.20
0.00
< 0.005

0.20
0.00
< 0.005

0.12
0.00
< 0.005
0.02
0.00
< 0.005

0.21
0.00
0.01

0.23
0.00
0.02

0.15
0.00
0.01
0.03
0.00
<0.005

3.30
0.00
0.01

2.80
0.00
0.01

1.75
0.00
< 0.005
0.32
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005
0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005
0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.62
0.00
< 0.005

0.62
0.00
< 0.005

0.36
0.00
< 0.005
0.07
0.00
< 0.005

0.62
0.00

< 0.005

0.62
0.00

<0.005

0.36
0.00
< 0.005
0.07
0.00

<0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
<0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005
0.00
0.00
< 0.005

3.8. Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & Sub-Grade (2025) - Mitigated

0.15
0.00
< 0.005

0.15
0.00
< 0.005

0.09
0.00
< 0.005

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

0.15 — 657 657 0.03 0.02 2.40 667
0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
<0.005 — 10.3 10.3 <0.005 <0.005 0.02 10.8
0.15 — 623 623 0.03 0.02 0.06 630
0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
<0.005 — 10.3 10.3 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 108
0.09 — 376 376 0.02 0.01 0.62 381
0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
<0.005 — 6.11 6.11 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 6.41
0.02 — 62.2 62.2 <0.005 <0.005 0.10 63.1
0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
<0.005 — 1.01 1.01 <0.005 <0.005 <0.005 1.06

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

oo Jr0s

Onsite

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

22344



Off-Road 3.34
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 3.34
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 1.98
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.36
Equipment

Dust —
From

Material
Movement

29.3

0.00

29.3

0.00

17.4

0.00

3.18

32.7

0.00

32.7

0.00

19.4

0.00

3.55

0.06

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.03

0.00

0.01

1.16

0.00

1.16

0.00

0.69

0.00

0.13

1.70

0.00

1.70

0.00

1.01

0.00

0.18

1.16

1.70

0.00

1.16

1.70

0.00

0.69

1.01

0.00

0.13

0.18

1.07

0.00

1.07

0.00

0.63

0.00

0.12

0.88

0.00

0.88

0.00

0.52

0.00

0.10

28334

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

1.07

0.88

0.00

1.07

0.88

0.00

0.63

0.52

0.00

0.12

0.10

5,640

0.00

0.00

0.00

556

5,640

0.00

0.00

0.00

556

0.23

0.00

0.23

0.00

0.00

0.02

0.05

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.03

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00

0.00

5,660

0.00

5,660

0.00

3,367

0.00

557



Onsite
truck

Offsite

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Worker
Vendor
Hauling

Daily,
Winter
(Max)

Worker
Vendor
Hauling

Average
Daily

Worker
Vendor
Hauling
Annual
Worker
Vendor

Hauling

0.00

0.20
0.00
< 0.005

0.20
0.00
< 0.005

0.12
0.00
< 0.005
0.02
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.21
0.00
0.01

0.23
0.00
0.02

0.15
0.00
0.01
0.03
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

3.30
0.00
0.01

2.80
0.00
0.01

1.75
0.00
< 0.005
0.32
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
<0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005
0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005
0.00
0.00
< 0.005

3.9. Linear, Paving (2025) - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Locmion 0G|

Onsite

0.00

0.62
0.00
< 0.005

0.62
0.00
< 0.005

0.36
0.00
< 0.005

0.07
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.62
0.00
<0.005

0.62
0.00
<0.005

0.36
0.00
< 0.005

0.07
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
<0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.15
0.00
<0.005

0.15
0.00
< 0.005

0.09
0.00
< 0.005

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

0.00

0.15
0.00
< 0.005

0.15
0.00
< 0.005

0.09
0.00
< 0.005

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

657
0.00
10.3

623
0.00
10.3

376
0.00
6.11

62.2
0.00
1.01

0.00

657
0.00
10.3

623
0.00
10.3

376
0.00
6.11

62.2
0.00
1.01

0.00

0.03
0.00
<0.005

0.03
0.00
< 0.005

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

< 0.005
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

0.02
0.00
< 0.005

0.01
0.00
< 0.005

< 0.005
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

2.40
0.00
0.02

0.06
0.00
< 0.005

0.62
0.00
0.01

0.10
0.00
< 0.005

0.00

667
0.00
10.8

630
0.00
10.8

381
0.00
6.41

63.1
0.00
1.06

24344



Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 0.83
Equipment

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 0.15
Equipment

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.03
Equipment

Onsite 0.00
truck

Offsite —

Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Worker 0.07
Vendor 0.00
Hauling  0.00

Average —
Daily

7.70

0.00

1.39

0.00

0.25

0.00

0.08
0.00
0.00

9.78

0.00

1.77

0.00

0.32

0.00

1.03
0.00
0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.32

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.23
0.00
0.00

0.32

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.23
0.00
0.00

0.30

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.05
0.00
0.00

28324

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

0.30

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.01

0.00

0.05
0.00
0.00

2,265

0.00

409

0.00

67.8

0.00

229
0.00
0.00

2,265

0.00

409

0.00

67.8

0.00

229
0.00
0.00

0.09

0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.02
0.00
0.00

2,272

0.00

411

0.00

68.0

0.00

232
0.00
0.00



Worker  0.01
Vendor  0.00
Hauling  0.00
Annual  —
Worker < 0.005
Vendor  0.00
Hauling  0.00

0.02
0.00
0.00
< 0.005
0.00
0.00

0.20
0.00
0.00
0.04
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

3.10. Linear, Paving (2025) - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Onsite

Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

Daily, —
Winter
(Max)

Off-Road 0.83
Equipment

Onsite 0.00
truck

Average —
Daily

Off-Road 0.15
Equipment

Onsite 0.00
truck

Annual —

Off-Road 0.03
Equipment

7.70

0.00

1.39

0.00

0.25

9.78

0.00

1.77

0.00

0.32

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.32

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.01

0.04
0.00
0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.04
0.00
0.00

0.01

0.00
0.00

0.32

0.00

0.06

0.00

0.01

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.30

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.01

0.01
0.00
0.00
< 0.005

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

28304

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

0.01
0.00
0.00

< 0.005

0.00
0.00

0.30

0.00

0.05

0.00

0.01

421
0.00
0.00

6.97

0.00
0.00

2,265

0.00

409

0.00

67.8

421
0.00
0.00

6.97

0.00
0.00

2,265

0.00

409

0.00

67.8

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005

0.00
0.00

0.09

0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

< 0.005
0.00
0.00

< 0.005

0.00
0.00

0.02

0.00

< 0.005

0.00

< 0.005

0.07
0.00
0.00

0.01
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

42.7
0.00
0.00

7.06

0.00
0.00

2,272

0.00

411

0.00

68.0



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Onsite 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
truck

Offsite — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Summer

(Max)

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter

(Max)

Worker 0.07 0.08 1.03 0.00 0.00 0.23 0.23 0.00 0.05 0.05 — 229 229 0.01 0.01 0.02 232
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Average — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Daily

Worker 0.01 0.02 0.20 0.00 0.00 0.04 0.04 0.00 0.01 0.01 — 42.1 42.1 <0.005 <0.005 0.07 42.7
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Worker <0.005 <0.005 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.00 <0.005 <0.005 — 6.97 6.97 <0.005 <0.005 0.01 7.06
Vendor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hauling  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 — 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4. Operations Emissions Details

4.10. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type
4.10.1. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

-.

22344



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ — _ _

Summer
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — — — — — - — — _ _ _ _

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

4.10.2. Above and Belowground Carbon Accumulation by Land Use Type - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — — — —
Winter
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _ _

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

4.10.3. Avoided and Sequestered Emissions by Species - Unmitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

peses Troe— Juor oo [so2  [ruice [wuao Jowior Jovese |puzso |owasr Jocor —|uscon Jooer o ieo s lcons |

Daily, —
Summer
(Max)

28384



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Avoided — — —_ — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — _ — — _ _ _ _ _

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _
red

Subtotal — — —_ — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _
Removed — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — _ — — _ _ _ _ _

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Winter
(Max)

Avoided — — —_ — — — — — — — — _ — _ _ _ _
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — _ — — _ _ _ _ _

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _
red

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Removed — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — — —
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Avoided — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — — —

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _
red

Subtotal — — —_ — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _
Removed — — — — — — — — — _ — — _ _ _ _ _

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — _ — — _ _ _ _ _

28394



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

4.10.4. Soil Carbon Accumulation By Vegetation Type - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for dally, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Winter
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _ _

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

4.10.5. Above and Belowground Carbon Accumulation by Land Use Type - Mitigated

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (Ib/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Winter
(Max)

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Annual — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _ _

Total — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

4.10.6. Avoided and Sequestered Emissions by Species - Mitigated
38404



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Criteria Pollutants (Ib/day for daily, ton/yr for annual) and GHGs (lb/day for daily, MT/yr for annual)

Daily,
Summer
(Max)

Avoided — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — _ _ _
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _
red

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _
Removed — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ _ _ _ _

Daily, — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ — _ _

Winter
(Max)

Avoided — — — — — — — - — _ _ — _ _ _ _ _
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — _ — — _ _ _ _ _

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _
red

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _ — _ _
Removed — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Annual — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —
Avoided — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — —
Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Sequeste — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — _ _
red

Subtotal — — — — — — — — — — — — _ — _ _ _

32444



Removed —

Subtotal —

5. Activity Data

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

5.1. Construction Schedule

Site Restoration

Infrastructure Installation

Paving

Linear, Grubbing & Land 12/1/2025 1/30/2026 5.00 45.0

Clearing

Linear, Drainage, Utilities, & 10/1/2024 10/31/2025 5.00 284 —
Sub-Grade

Linear, Paving 10/1/2025 12/31/2025 5.00 66.0 —

5.2. Off-Road Equipment

5.2.1. Unmitigated

Site Restoration
Site Restoration
Site Restoration

Infrastructure
Installation

Infrastructure
Installation

Infrastructure
Installation

Infrastructure
Installation

Pressure Washers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 14.0 0.30
Generator Sets Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 14.0 0.74
Sweepers/Scrubbers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 36.0 0.46
Tractors/Loaders/Backh Diesel Average 3.00 8.00 84.0 0.37
oes

Plate Compactors Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 8.00 0.43
Air Compressors Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 37.0 0.48
Cranes Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 367 0.29

328424



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Infrastructure Rubber Tired Dozers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 367 0.40
Installation
Infrastructure Dumpers/Tenders Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 16.0 0.38
Installation
Infrastructure Forklifts Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 82.0 0.20
Installation
Infrastructure Generator Sets Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 14.0 0.74
Installation
Infrastructure Rough Terrain Forklifts  Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 96.0 0.40
Installation
Infrastructure Signal Boards Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 6.00 0.82
Installation
Infrastructure Sweepers/Scrubbers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 36.0 0.46
Installation
Infrastructure Trenchers Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 40.0 0.50
Installation
Infrastructure Welders Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 46.0 0.45
Installation
Paving Cement and Mortar Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 10.0 0.56
Mixers
Paving Paving Equipment Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 89.0 0.36
Paving Rollers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 36.0 0.38
Paving Signal Boards Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 6.00 0.82
Paving Tractors/Loaders/Backh Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 84.0 0.37
oes
Paving Pavers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 81.0 0.42
Paving Surfacing Equipment Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 399 0.30

5.2.2. Mitigated

Site Restoration Pressure Washers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 14.0 0.30

38434



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Site Restoration Generator Sets Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 14.0 0.74
Site Restoration Sweepers/Scrubbers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 36.0 0.46
Infrastructure Tractors/Loaders/Backh Diesel Average 3.00 8.00 84.0 0.37
Installation oes

Infrastructure Plate Compactors Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 8.00 0.43
Installation

Infrastructure Air Compressors Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 37.0 0.48
Installation

Infrastructure Cranes Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 367 0.29
Installation

Infrastructure Rubber Tired Dozers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 367 0.40
Installation

Infrastructure Dumpers/Tenders Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 16.0 0.38
Installation

Infrastructure Forklifts Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 82.0 0.20
Installation

Infrastructure Generator Sets Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 14.0 0.74
Installation

Infrastructure Rough Terrain Forklifts  Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 96.0 0.40
Installation

Infrastructure Signal Boards Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 6.00 0.82
Installation

Infrastructure Sweepers/Scrubbers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 36.0 0.46
Installation

Infrastructure Trenchers Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 40.0 0.50
Installation

Infrastructure Welders Diesel Average 2.00 8.00 46.0 0.45
Installation

Paving Cement and Mortar Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 10.0 0.56

Mixers

Paving Paving Equipment Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 89.0 0.36
Paving Rollers Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 36.0 0.38
Paving Signal Boards Diesel Average 1.00 8.00 6.00 0.82

34444



Paving
Paving

Paving

Tractors/Loaders/Backh Diesel
Pavers Diesel

Surfacing Equipment Diesel

5.3. Construction Vehicles

5.3.1. Unmitigated

Average
Average

Average

Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

1.00
1.00
1.00

0.37
0.42
0.30

‘ Trip Type One-Way Trips per Day Miles per Trip Vehicle Mix

Infrastructure Installation
Infrastructure Installation
Infrastructure Installation
Infrastructure Installation
Infrastructure Installation
Site Restoration

Site Restoration

Site Restoration

Site Restoration

Site Restoration

Paving

Paving

Paving

Paving

Paving

5.3.2. Mitigated

Worker
Vendor
Hauling
Onsite truck
Worker
Vendor
Hauling
Onsite truck
Worker
Vendor
Hauling

Onsite truck

47.5
0.00
0.31

7.50
0.00
0.00

17.5
0.00
0.00

18.5
10.2
9.30

18.5
10.2
20.0

18.5
10.2
20.0

LDA,LDTL,LDT2
HHDT,MHDT
HHDT

HHDT
LDA,LDTL,LDT2
HHDT,MHDT
HHDT

HHDT
LDA,LDTL,LDT2
HHDT,MHDT
HHDT

HHDT

‘ Trip Type One-Way Trips per Day Miles per Trip Vehicle Mix

Infrastructure Installation



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Infrastructure Installation Worker 47.5 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2
Infrastructure Installation Vendor 0.00 10.2 HHDT,MHDT
Infrastructure Installation Hauling 0.31 9.30 HHDT
Infrastructure Installation Onsite truck — — HHDT

Site Restoration — — — _

Site Restoration Worker 7.50 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2
Site Restoration Vendor 0.00 10.2 HHDT,MHDT
Site Restoration Hauling 0.00 20.0 HHDT

Site Restoration Onsite truck — — HHDT

Paving — — — —

Paving Worker 17.5 18.5 LDA,LDT1,LDT2
Paving Vendor 0.00 10.2 HHDT,MHDT
Paving Hauling 0.00 20.0 HHDT

Paving Onsite truck — — HHDT

5.4. Vehicles

5.4.1. Construction Vehicle Control Strategies

Non-applicable. No control strategies activated by user.

5.5. Architectural Coatings

Phase Name Residential Interior Area Coated |Residential Exterior Area Coated | Non-Residential Interior Area Non-Residential Exterior Area Parking Area Coated (sq ft)
(sq ft) (sq ft) Coated (sq ft) Coated (sq ft)

5.6. Dust Mitigation

5.6.1. Construction Earthmoving Activities



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Site Restoration 0.00 0.00 0.24 0.00 —
Infrastructure Installation 400 300 0.24 0.00 —
5.6.2. Construction Earthmoving Control Strategies

Non-applicable. No control strategies activated by user.

5.7. Construction Paving

Road Construction 0.24 100%

5.8. Construction Electricity Consumption and Emissions Factors

kWh per Year and Emission Factor (Ib/MWh)

2024 0.00 0.03 < 0.005
2025 0.00 532 0.03 < 0.005
2026 0.00 532 0.03 < 0.005

5.18. Vegetation
5.18.1. Land Use Change

5.18.1.1. Unmitigated

5.18.1.2. Mitigated

‘ Vegetation Land Use Type Vegetation Soil Type Initial Acres

32444



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

5.18.1. Biomass Cover Type

5.18.1.1. Unmitigated

5.18.1.2. Mitigated

5.18.2. Sequestration

5.18.2.1. Unmitigated

‘ Tree Type Electricity Saved (kWh/year) Natural Gas Saved (btu/year)

5.18.2.2. Mitigated

S e S e S
6. Climate Risk Detailed Report

6.1. Climate Risk Summary

Cal-Adapt midcentury 2040—2059 average projections for four hazards are reported below for your project location. These are under Representation Concentration Pathway (RCP) 8.5 which assumes GHG
emissions will continue to rise strongly through 2050 and then plateau around 2100.

Temperature and Extreme Heat 20.3 annual days of extreme heat

Extreme Precipitation 6.60 annual days with precipitation above 20 mm
Sea Level Rise 0.00 meters of inundation depth

Wildfire 10.5 annual hectares burned

38484



Honby Tanks Pipeline Project - Mitigated Detailed Report, 6/27/2023

Temperature and Extreme Heat data are for grid cell in which your project are located. The projection is based on the 98th historical percentile of daily maximum/minimum temperatures from observed
historical data (32 climate model ensemble from Cal-Adapt, 2040-2059 average under RCP 8.5). Each grid cell is 6 kilometers (km) by 6 km, or 3.7 miles (mi) by 3.7 mi.

Extreme Precipitation data are for the grid cell in which your project are located. The threshold of 20 mm is equivalent to about ¥ an inch of rain, which would be light to moderate rainfall if received over a full
day or heavy rain if received over a period of 2 to 4 hours. Each grid cell is 6 kilometers (km) by 6 km, or 3.7 miles (mi) by 3.7 mi.

Sea Level Rise data are for the grid cell in which your project are located. The projections are from Radke et al. (2017), as reported in Cal-Adapt (2040-2059 average under RCP 8.5), and consider different
increments of sea level rise coupled with extreme storm events. Users may select from four model simulations to view the range in potential inundation depth for the grid cell. The four simulations make
different assumptions about expected rainfall and temperature are: Warmer/drier (HadGEM2-ES), Cooler/wetter (CNRM-CM5), Average conditions (CanESM2), Range of different rainfall and temperature
possibilities (MIROCS5). Each grid cell is 50 meters (m) by 50 m, or about 164 feet (ft) by 164 ft.

Wildfire data are for the grid cell in which your project are located. The projections are from UC Davis, as reported in Cal-Adapt (2040-2059 average under RCP 8.5), and consider historical data of climate,
vegetation, population density, and large (> 400 ha) fire history. Users may select from four model simulations to view the range in potential wildfire probabilities for the grid cell. The four simulations make
different assumptions about expected rainfall and temperature are: Warmer/drier (HadGEM2-ES), Cooler/wetter (CNRM-CM5), Average conditions (CanESM2), Range of different rainfall and temperature
possibilities (MIROCS). Each grid cell is 6 kilometers (km) by 6 km, or 3.7 miles (mi) by 3.7 mi.

6.2. Initial Climate Risk Scores

‘ Climate Hazard Sensitivity Score Adaptive Capacity Score Vulnerability Score

Temperature and Extreme Heat

Extreme Precipitation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sea Level Rise 1 0 0 N/A
Wildfire 1 0 0 N/A
Flooding N/A N/A N/A N/A
Drought N/A N/A N/A N/A
Snowpack Reduction N/A N/A N/A N/A
Air Quality Degradation 0 0 0 N/A

The sensitivity score reflects the extent to which a project would be adversely affected by exposure to a climate hazard. Exposure is rated on a scale of 1 to 5, with a score of 5 representing the greatest
exposure.

The adaptive capacity of a project refers to its ability to manage and reduce vulnerabilities from projected climate hazards. Adaptive capacity is rated on a scale of 1 to 5, with a score of 5 representing the
greatest ability to adapt.

The overall vulnerability scores are calculated based on the potential impacts and adaptive capacity assessments for each hazard. Scores do not include implementation of climate risk reduction 